# SOUTHSHORE Chelan UGA Development Standards

See page 221 for revisions adopted in 2010 which supersede 2009 codes



#### **CITY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS MANUAL**

In the event of conflict between these standards and sections of the Chelan Municipal Code, these standards shall prevail.

**Compliance with Provisions and Concurrency Requirements** 

All subdivisions and developments shall conform to the design standards of this manual in addition to the City comprehensive plan and all zoning regulations in effect at the time any preliminary plat of a subdivision is submitted for approval. Lots shall be of sufficient area, width, and length to satisfy zoning requirements. Further, the standards established in this manual shall apply to all streets to be constructed and subsequently dedicated to the City as a right-of-way, to all development projects that require a development permit (planned development, conditional use permits, etc.) and propose to utilize an existing City street, a private road, or otherwise on all proposed improvements to existing City streets and to all extensions to existing water, sewer and storm drain systems. If the development results in a level of service lower than those set forth in these standards or in the Comprehensive Plan, the development may be approved if improvements or strategies to raise the level of service above the minimum standard are made concurrent with the development. For the purpose of this section, "concurrent with the development" is defined as the required improvements or strategies in place at the time of occupancy.

### CITY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS MANUAL TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION ONE - WATER STANDARDS

SECTION TWO - WATER DESIGNS

**SECTION THREE - SEWER STANDARDS** 

**SECTION FOUR- SEWER DESIGNS** 

**SECTION FIVE - STREET STANDARDS** 

**SECTION SIX - STREET DESIGNS** 

**SECTION SEVEN - STORM WATER MANAGEMENT** 

SECTION EIGHT - DRAFTING STANDARDS

**SECTION NINE - PARKING STANDARDS** 

**SECTION TEN - UTILITY DESIGNS** 

**SECTION ELEVEN - ILLUMINATION** 

**SECTION TWELVE - ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISION** 

**SECTION THIRTEEN - BONDING AND LIABILITY INSURANCE** 

**APPENDIX A - DEFINITIONS** 

**APPENDIX B - FORMS** 

**APPENDIX C - ADOPTION ORDINANCE** 

ţ

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

## SECTION ONE TABLE OF CONTENTS

Description Page
TABLE OF CONTENTS
DOMESTIC WATER MAIN EXTENSIONS
GENERAL
INTRODUCTION
STANDARDS AND CONDITIONS
SPECIFICATIONS
EXTENSIONS
PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 1-4
METHODS AND MATERIALS OF CONSTRUCTION
TRENCH EXCAVATION 1-5
PIPE INSTALLATION WITHIN STREET RIGHT-OF-WAYS
PIPE IN FILLED AREAS 1-6
PIPE BEDDING
DUCTILE IRON PIPE
DUCTILE IRON PIPE INSTALLATION 1-7
PVC PIPE
PVC PIPE INSTALLATION
TRACER WIRES 1-8
DETECTABLE MARKING TAPE 1-8
DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS 1-8
BOLTS IN PIPING 1-9
GALVANIZED IRON PIPE AND FITTINGS
CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKING
BEDDING CONCRETE
GATE VALVES
BUTTERFLY VALVES
VALVE INSTALLATION
SERVICE CONNECTION 1-11
METER BOX
PLASTIC SERVICE PIPE AND CONNECTIONS
DETECTOR CHECK AND BACKFLOW DEVICE
PUMP AND PRESSURE REDUCING STATION
BACKFILLING
HYDROSTATIC TESTS
STERILIZATION AND FLUSHING OF WATER MAINS
SANITARY SEWER CROSSINGS
SUMMARY
CHECKLIST
AS-BUILT DRAWINGS

### CITY OF CHELAN

#### DOMESTIC WATER MAIN EXTENSIONS

#### GENERAL:

#### INTRODUCTION:

The items herein contained are the domestic water main extension and repair Standards, Conditions, and Specifications for the City of Chelan. These are minimums only when they exceed the minimums required in the Washington State DOH Standard (Department of Health "Design Standards for Public Water Supplies), and may be increased or altered at the discretion of the Public Works Director to fit particular situations, but in no event shall said standards be reduced below the DOH standard. In the event of conflicting standards the higher standard shall control.

### STANDARDS AND CONDITIONS

- A. When extension of the existing water distribution system is required for service, an Agreement for Domestic Water Main Extension in the form which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Appendix B, Exhibit 1, shall be entered into between the Developer and the City.
- B. To initiate the Water Main Extension process the Developer shall submit a water plan designed by a registered professional engineer licensed in the State of Washington. Final plan and profile drawings shall be stamped by the same.
- C. The licensed professional engineer shall certify that the design and construction of the water distribution system meets or exceeds all applicable standards, to include backflow prevention and cross connection control.
- D. Obtaining necessary permits will be the responsibility of the Developer.
- E. Where franchises, easements or deeds to property are required it shall be the responsibility of the Developer to obtain and provide the same and submit appropriate documentation to the City.
- F. Easements shall be as per Section 10 of this code.
- G. All developments shall be required to provide sufficient water storage for fire protection which shall be in addition to those water supplies required for domestic purposes.
- H. A development containing forty lots or more shall contain at least two water supply routes, completing a system loop.
- I. In a development where lot size is larger than one acre, fire hydrants shall be spaced no further than one thousand feet apart and in subdivisions where lot size

(Revised 01/07)

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

is less than one acre, fire hydrants shall be spaced no further than six hundred feet apart. Where multiple family housing developments are developed within a subdivision, fire hydrant spacing shall be no further than five hundred feet apart, with additional fire hydrants located as may be necessary to permit all sides of a building to be reached by hose outlays of no greater than three hundred feet. In industrial or commercial areas, hydrants will be installed at three hundred (300) foot spacing. Typically, hydrants will be installed on alternating sides of the street. The size, type and location of fire hydrants shall meet the approval of Fire District 7. Fire hydrants shall conform with the Uniform Fire Code as adopted by the City.

- J. The minimum size water main permitted shall be six inch (6") diameter when an adequate grid is provided. An adequate grid shall be defined as a piping system that measures no more than six hundred feet on one side and the sum of the two sides shall not exceed nine hundred feet. Hydraulic calculations shall be submitted where required to validate designs involving two or more pressure zones, a booster pump, or a reservoir, as required by the engineer. Where an adequate grid is not established, pipe size shall be eight inch (8") diameter or larger as required to transport peak daily demand plus fire flow.
- K. The Developer shall supply an "as-built" drawing on approved mylar film and electronic CD format as an AutoCAD file.
- L. The Developer is required to supply bonding and insurance as per the Section on "Bonding and Liability Insurance."
- M. The Developer shall notify the City 48 hours prior to connection between the City's existing system and the new water distribution system.
- N. All main lines must be designed to provide proper circulation of water and fire flow to all lands serviced by the development. Extensions shall be required through and to the extremes of the property for future service as determined by the City. Fire flow demand shall be in accordance with the Uniform Fire Code Appendix Table III-A as now exists or as may be amended.
- O. Hydrostatic testing (see page 1-14) shall be accomplished by the developer on lines before completion of backfilling, with the pipe joints accessible for examination. Sufficient backfill material shall be placed over the pipe barrel between joints to prevent movement.
- P. Final acceptance shall not constitute acceptance of any unauthorized or defective work or material. The City shall not be barred from requiring the Developer to reimburse the City for the removal, adjustment, replacement, repair or disposal of any unauthorized or defective work or material or from recovering costs for any such work or material within two years.
- Q. Meters smaller than 2" shall be furnished and set by the City. Meters shall not be

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

activated prior to payment by water user of all applicable hook-up fees. The City owns and maintains only appurtenances from and including the water meter to the water main.

- R. Water Main Extension projects shall be conveyed to the City for operation and maintenance upon final project acceptance.
- S. Installation and testing shall be in conformance with the current edition of APWA (American Public Work Association) specifications, Division IV. The City must supervise the owner taking necessary samples for bacteriological tests. The system shall not be placed into service until the City provides written permission.
- T. For existing platted lots, the City may enter into Latecomer Agreements with Developers, prior to installation of water mains and appurtenances, in order to provide for the reimbursement to Developers for a pro-rata share of the cost of construction pursuant to Chelan Municipal Code Chapter 13.36 and Chapter 12.28 as now exists or as may hereafter be amended.

### SPECIFICATIONS

### EXTENSIONS:

All extensions to the water system shall conform to the design standards of the City as set forth herein. The system must be capable of future expansion if required and be constructed of permanent materials.

### PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS:

The installation of water extensions shall be in accordance with construction plans and specification approved by the City.

### METHODS AND MATERIALS OF CONSTRUCTION:

- 1. Water pipe shall be ductile iron or C900 PVC. Ductile iron shall typically be class 50 in improved areas and class 52 in easement areas. PVC shall be class 200 (See pgs 1-8, 1-9)
- 2. Fire hydrants shall be installed in accordance with these standards and the current fire code as adopted.
- 3. Valving shall be installed at all intersections, on each end of easement lines and in line at maximum spacing of 600 feet.
- 4. Minimum cover for all water mains shall be four (4) feet to top of pipe unless otherwise approved.
- 5. Except as otherwise noted herein, all work shall be accomplished as

## CITY OF CHELAN

recommended in the current applicable American Waterworks Association (AWWA) and American Public Works Association/Department of Transportation Standard Specifications and according to the recommendations of the manufacturer of the material or equipment use. Contractor shall have a copy of the specifications on the job site at all times. Contractor shall furnish a water tight plug of the appropriate size which shall be installed in the end of the water main when work is delayed or stopped at the end of the work day.

6. All materials shall be new and undamaged. Unless otherwise approved by the City, the same manufacturer of each item shall be used throughout the work.

### TRENCH EXCAVATION:

Clearing and grubbing where required shall be performed within the easement or public right-of-way and as permitted by the property owner and/or governing agencies. Debris resulting from the clearing and grubbing shall be disposed of by the Developer in accordance with the terms of all applicable permits.

Trenches shall be excavated to the line and depth designated by the approved plans to provide a minimum of 48 inches of cover over the pipe, unless otherwise approved. The trench width shall be excavated only to such widths as are necessary for adequate and safe working space. Trench width to one foot above the pipe crown shall not exceed 30 inches or 1.5 times the pipe nominal O.D. plus 18 inches, whichever is greater. The trench shall be kept free from water until complete. Surface water shall be diverted so as not to enter the trench. The Developer shall maintain sufficient pumping equipment on the job to insure that these provisions are carried out.

The Developer shall perform all excavation. Boulders, rocks, roots and other obstructions shall be entirely removed or cut out to the width of the trench and to a depth 6 inches below water main grade. Where material is removed from below subgrade, the trench shall be backfilled to grade with material satisfactory to the City and thoroughly compacted to 85% for easements outside of roadway and 95% in streets, alleys or traveled ways, using modified proctor testing. The Developer shall be responsible for meeting current Labor and Industry Trench and Shoring Protection and Washington State Safety Standards.

Unsuitable material below the depth of the proposed pipe shall be removed and replaced with satisfactory materials as determined by the City.

When trenching operations cut through asphalt/concrete pavement, the pavement shall be removed to a solid edge along the width of the trench as approved by the City engineer. The pavement shall be saw cut on a straight line and shall be beveled so that the cut will be approximately 1 inch wider at the top than at the bottom.

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

Trenching operation shall not proceed more than 200 feet in advance of pipe laying without written approval of the City.

### PIPE INSTALLATION WITHIN STREET RIGHT-OF-WAYS:

The Developer may use any method which provides satisfactory results which complies with Chapter 12.20 of the Chelan Municipal Code as it now exists or may be hereafter amended and is acceptable to the City and the agency having control of the road, provided that the Developer restores the roadway to its original condition. Permits shall be required for all crossings. Highway crossings may require the placing of steel pipe casing by jacking or tunneling and laying the water main within this casing.

### PIPE IN FILLED AREAS:

Special treatment may be required at the discretion of the City. This treatment may consist of compacting the backfill in 6" layers, use of select backfill materials, use of Mechanical Joint Ductile Iron Pipe in short lengths, welded HDPE pipe, or such other reasonable methods or combinations as may be necessary in the opinion of the City based upon topography, soil type and any other unique characteristics or the area.

### PIPE BEDDING:

- 1. Except when excavating in pure sand, where imported bedding material will not be required, the pipe shall be placed on a prepared subgrade of imported bedding material four inches under the pipe for all pipe sizes of 27 inches diameter and smaller and 6 inches for all pipe sizes 30 inches and larger. Bedding material shall consist of clean, granular, unfractured material of which 100 percent will pass the U.S. Standard 5/8 inch opening; not more than 3 percent will pass the U.S. No. 200 (wet sieve). Bell holes shall be excavated so the pipe, when laid, will have a uniform bearing under the full length of the pipe. The Developer shall be responsible for adequate support and bedding for the pipe. The trench shall be backfilled from the spring line of the pipe to six inches above the top of the pipe as shown in the Standard The material shall be placed in four-inch layers and Detail drawing. compacted to no less than 95 percent of the maximum theoretical density as measured by a soil lab, using the modified proctor test.
- 2. Where the undisturbed trench below the four-inch bedding is unstable, the unstable material shall be removed and backfilled with foundation gravel upon which to place the bedding, as approved by the City engineer. The Contractor shall be responsible for providing a stable foundation for placing of the bedding.
- 3. Boulders, rocks, roots and other obstructions shall be entirely removed or cut out to the full width of the trench and to a depth six inches below the pipe.

In solid rock, the trench shall be excavated six inches below the pipe bottom and backfilled as provided above.

4. Whenever the trench is excavated below the depth required for proper bedding, it shall be backfilled with bedding gravel and compacted, as provided above.

### DUCTILE IRON PIPE:

Ductile iron pipe shall be cement-lined standard thickness Class 50 in improved areas or Class 52 in non-roadway easement areas, unless otherwise specified and shall conform to the standards of USA Standard A-21.51 (AWWA C-111).

Rubber gasket pipe joints to be push-on-joint (Tyton) or mechanical joint (M.J.) in accordance with USA Standard A21-11 (AWWA C-111), unless otherwise specified.

Flanged joint shall conform to USA Standard B16.1.

Standard Thickness cement lining shall be in accordance with USA Standard A21.4 (AWWA C-1-4).

The Developer shall furnish written certification from the manufacturer of the pipe and gasket being supplied that the inspection and all of the specified tests have been made and the results thereof comply with the requirements of this standard.

#### **DUCTILE IRON PIPE INSTALLATION:**

Ductile iron pipe shall be installed in accordance with AWWA Standard C-151 and the manufacturers recommendation.

The bottom of the trench shall be finished to grade with hand tools in such a manner that the pipe will have bearing along the entire length of the barrel. The bell holes shall be excavated with hand tools to sufficient size to make up the joint. Bolts on mechanical joint pipe and fittings shall be tightened uniformly with a "Torque" wrench which measures the torque applied. Required torque for mechanical joints shall be as follows:

4" - 24" pipe size 3/4" bolts 60-90# torque.

Installation of push-on-joint (Tyton) pipe shall be in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions.

#### **PVC PIPE:**

PVC pipe shall be AWWA C900-81 high pressure water pipe, class 200, and shall meet the requirements of DR 14.

### **CITY OF CHELAN**

The gasketed joint assembly shall conform to ASTM D3139 with gaskets conforming to ASTM F477.

The Developer shall furnish written certification from the manufacturer of the pipe and gasket being supplied that the inspections and all of the specified tests have been made and the results thereof comply with the requirements of this standard.

### **PVC PIPE INSTALLATION:**

PVC pipe shall be installed in accordance with AWWA M23 and the manufacturers recommendation.

The bottom of the trench shall be finished to grade with hand tools in such a manner that the pipe will have bearing along the entire length of the barrel. The bell holes shall be excavated with hand tools to sufficient size to make up the joint.

### TRACER WIRES

The Contractor shall install a tracer wire, in addition to the location ribbon, over all non-metallic water mains. The tracer wire shall be 14 gauge copper wire with blue coded UF insulation. The tracer wire shall be installed as shown on the City of Chelan Standard Drawing. Bare wire contact points shall be provided at valve boxes, air release and blow off installations.

### DETECTABLE MARKING TAPE:

Detectable Marking Tape (S.9-15.18) shall be installed twelve inches (12") below finished grade over all PVC pipe located within public street right-of-ways. Pipe locator ribbon shall be two inches wide, plastic coated aluminum and shall be clearly marked, "CAUTION BURIED WATER LINE" continuously along the length of the ribbon with minimum 1-1/2 inch letters. The ribbon shall be blue in color. For combined utility ditch requirements see Section 10.

### **DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS:**

Ductile iron fittings shall be short body for pressure rating of 150 psi, unless otherwise noted. Metal thickness and manufacturing process shall conform to applicable portions of USA Standard A21.10, A21.11, B16.2 and B16.4.

Fittings shall be cement-lined in accordance with USA Standard A21.4 (AWWA C-104).

Rubber gaskets for mechanical joint (M.J.) in accordance with USA Standard A21.11 (AWWA C-111).

Gasket material for flanges shall be neoprene, Buna N, chlorinated butyl. Type of connections shall be specified as push-on-joint (Tyton), mechanical joint (M.J.),

plain end (P.E.), flanged (FL.) or threaded.

### **BOLTS IN PIPING:**

Bolts shall be cast iron, zinc or chromium plated or stainless steel, as approved by the City.

### GALVANIZED IRON PIPE AND FITTINGS:

Where specified, galvanized iron pipe shall be standard weight, Schedule 80. Fittings shall be threaded malleable iron galvanized per USA Standard B16.3.

### CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKING:

Concrete thrust blocking shall be cast in place and have a minimum of 1/4 square foot bearing against the fitting and two square feet bearing area against undisturbed soil. Blocking shall bear against fittings only and shall be clear of joints so as to permit taking up or dismantling joint. All poured in place blocking shall have a minimum measurement of twelve inches (12") between the pipe and the undisturbed bank. All bends and tees shall be blocked in accordance with Standard Blocking as per design details which shall be adequate to withstand full test pressures as well as to continuously withstand operating pressure under all conditions of service. Polyethylene sheeting shall be installed to cover joints and bolts for future dismantling.

#### **BEDDING CONCRETE:**

Bedding concrete shall be mixed from materials acceptable to the City and shall have a 30-day compressive strength of not less than 1,500 psi. The mix shall contain four sacks of cement per cubic yard and shall be of such consistency that the slump is between 1 inch and 5 inches.

### GATE VALVES:

Gate Valves shall be used when a ten-inch (10") or smaller valve is required. They shall conform to the Standards of AWWA C-509. Buried gate valves shall be iron body, bronze mounted, resilient wedge, nonrising stem, operating stems equipped with Standard two (2) inch operation nut, and O-ring stem seals, suitable for installation with the type and class of pipe being installed. Ends to be as specified.

Valves not buried shall be so specified.

### **BUTTERFLY VALVES:**

Butterfly valves shall be used when a twelve inch (12") or larger valve is required. They shall conform to AWWA Standard C504, Class 150, with cast iron short body and O-ring stem seal. Valves in chambers shall have a mutual crank operation. Buried valves shall have stem extension with AWWA 2-inch operation nut.

#### CHECK VALVES:

Check valves shall be for 150 psi working pressure, unless otherwise specified. Valve shall have adjustable tension lever and spring to provide non-slamming action under all conditions unless otherwise specified. Check valves shall be equal to Empire Fig. 230 single increasing lever and spring.

### AIR AND VACUUM RELEASE VALVES:

Air and vacuum release valves shall be APCO - Valve and Primer Corporation, "Heavy-Duty", combination air release valve, or equal.

Installation shall be as shown on the Standard Detail, Section Two, page 5.

Piping and fittings shall be copper or brass. The installation shall be set at the high point of the line. Water line must be constructed so the air release valve may be installed in a convenient location.

### VALVE INSTALLATION:

The valve and valve box shall be set plumb with the valve box centered on the valve. Valve boxes shall be set flush in pavement and in gravel roads as required by the City. An area around the top shall be black topped in unimproved roads for 2 feet. Where valve operation nut is more than 3 feet below finished grade, a stem extension shall be installed conforming to the Standard Detail, Section 2, pg 2-6.

### VALVE BOXES:

Valve boxes shall be cast iron, two-piece with tabs, for 42-inch trench with extension, Tyler 7126 top and 7100 bottom.

#### VALVE MARKER INSTALLATION:

When specified, concrete marker posts painted with two coats, Rust-Oleum yellow paint shall be set for all valves except auxiliary hydrant valves. The post shall be set at right angles to the road from the valve and shall be situated in a safe and reasonably conspicuous location, normally on the property line. Distance to valve shall be neatly stenciled on the post with two inch numerals. Valve markers shall be installed in unimproved or unpaved areas.

Valve marker posts shall be reinforced concrete posts, 4" x 4" on one end, 42 inches long. Fogtite Meter Seal Co. or equal.

### CITY OF CHELAN

#### FIRE HYDRANTS:

Fire hydrants shall have a minimum valve opening of 5-1/4" O-ring stem seal, two  $2\frac{1}{2}$ " N.S.T. hose nozzle connections, and one  $4\frac{1}{2}$ " N.S.T. pumper connection. The shoe connection shall be 6" mechanical joint or flanged. The operation nut shall be  $1\frac{1}{4}$ " pentagonal. Hydrants shall be Mueller Centurion or equal, with approved breakaway features.

#### **HYDRANT GUARDS:**

When required by City engineer, hydrant guards shall consist of individually designed curbed planters. Hydrant guards shall be required where hydrants are susceptible to potential vehicle contact as determined by the City.

#### SERVICE CONNECTION:

Connections shall be installed with pipe saddles and corporation stops on C900 PVC, asbestos cement, and steel, and by direct tap into Class 52 or thicker ductile. Installation shall be as shown in the Standard Details. Minimum size tap is 1 inch.

#### METER BOX:

Meter box shall be complete with full lid. Lid shall have a hole for Sensus Touch Read. One inch service box shall be Mueller/McCullough thermal-coil meter box 18" diameter 48" depth equipped with inlet angle meter stop with lockwing, dual angle check valve outlet and insulating pad.  $1\frac{1}{2}$ " and 2" meter boxes shall be concrete H 2 precast 2019.

#### PLASTIC SERVICE PIPE AND CONNECTIONS:

Plastic pipe shall be manufactured from high molecular weight polyethylene (average molecular weight of 1,750,000) defined by ASTM-1248, as polyethylene Type 111 (3306) (PE). Pipe shall be made of all virgin material and conform to CS-255-63. Plastic pipe shall meet all requirements of ASTM D2241-67. The pipe shall be copper tube size, and have a working pressure of 200 psi at 73.4 degrees F. It shall sustain 300 psi at 73.4 degrees F. for 1000 hours. All connections to this pipe shall be of the Ford Packjoint, Mueller instatite, or equal, compression type connection with a stainless steel insert stiffener or by O-ring type self sealing fittings. All connections shall be rated at a working pressure of 160 psi.

### DETECTOR CHECK AND BACKFLOW DEVICE:

Cross connection control is governed by Chelan Municipal Code, Chapter 13.05. All backflow devices are to be tested and certified upon installation and annually thereafter by a Washington State certified backflow assembly tester. All backflow devices are to be in accordance with the current edition of the AWWA "Accepted

### CITY OF CHELAN

Procedure and Practice" in the Cross Connection Control Manual.

Detector checks will be installed on all fire lines. See Standard Details, Section 2.

In addition to Chelan Municipal Code, Chapter 13.05.070, an approved backflow device will be required on the following fire systems:

- a. All foamite or chemically charged installations.
- b. Systems where an unapproved water source is permanently connected to the fire system.
- c. Systems in which anti-freeze is allowed.
- d. Systems with private hydrants.
- e. Wet systems with an in-line booster pump or building over three stories high.
- f. Wet systems with pumper connection within 1700 feet of an auxiliary water supply.
- g. Dry systems with pumper connection.
- h. Sprinkler systems.

#### PUMP AND PRESSURE REDUCING STATION:

Pipe, fittings, and equipment shall be supported and blocked against static and dynamic loading in accordance with the "Concrete Thrust Blocking" standard drawing, and the equipment manufacturer's recommendations.

Drain lines from pumps and other equipment shall be piped to a below grade drainage system connected to the station sump or drain.

#### BACKFILLING:

Backfilling and surface restoration shall closely follow installation and testing of pipe, so that not more than 200 feet is left exposed without express approval of the City. Selected backfill material shall be placed and compacted around and under the water mains by hand tools to a height of 6 inches above the top of the water main. The remaining backfill shall be compacted to current WSDOT Standards, modified proctor test, of the maximum density as determined by a certified soils lab. Where other agencies have jurisdiction over roadways, the backfill and compaction shall be done to the standard of the agency having jurisdiction.

**CITY OF CHELAN** 

#### HYDROSTATIC TESTS:

Prior to the acceptance of the work, the installation shall be subjected to a hydrostatic pressure test of 200 psi for 15 minutes at the high point in the line, as per APWA (American Public Works Association), and any leaks or imperfections developing under said pressure shall be remedied by the Developer before final acceptance of the work. No air will be allowed in the line. The main shall be tested between valves. Insofar as possible, no hydrostatic pressure shall be placed against the opposite side of the valve being tested. Test pressure shall be maintained while the entire installation is inspected. The Developer shall provide all necessary equipment including valves to test against where needed and shall perform all work connected with tests. Tests shall be made after all connections as shown on the plan are complete. Insofar as is practical, tests shall be made with pipe joints, fittings and valves exposed for inspection. For approval, the quantity of water lost from the main shall not exceed the number of gallons per hour as determined by the formula  $L= (ND(P)^{1/2})/7400$ 

in which

L = Allowable leakage, gallons/hour

N = No. of joints in the length of pipeline tested

D = Nominal diameter of the pipe in inches

P = Average test pressure during the leakage test, psi

There shall not be an appreciable or abrupt loss in pressure during the 15 minute test period. The Developer shall test to assure that the equipment to be used for the test is adequate and in good operating condition and the air in the line has been released before requesting the City to witness the test. The City engineer shall witness the test; if the test does not pass inspection for any reason, additional trips required to witness the test may be at the Developer's expense.

#### STERILIZATION AND FLUSHING OF WATER MAINS:

Sterilization of water mains shall be accomplished by the Developer in accordance with the requirements of the State Health department and in a manner satisfactory to the City. The section to be sterilized shall be thoroughly flushed at maximum flow prior to chlorination. At no time shall chlorinated water from a new main be flushed into a body of fresh water. This includes lakes, rivers, streams and any and all other waters where fish or other natural water life can be expected. Flushing period must be approved by the City. Sections will ordinarily be sterilized between adjacent valves unless, in the opinion of the City, a longer section may be satisfactorily handled. Chlorine shall be applied by solution fed at one end of the section with a valve or hydrant at the opposite end opened sufficiently to permit a flow through during chlorine application. The chlorine solution shall be fed into the pipeline already mixed by an automatically proportioning applicator so as to provide a steady application rate of not less than 60 PPM chlorine. Hydrants along the chlorinated section shall be opened during application until the presence of chlorine has definitely been detected. When a chlorine concentration of not less than 50 PPM has been established throughout the line, the valves shall be closed and the

## CITY OF CHELAN

line left undisturbed for 24 hours. The line shall then be thoroughly flushed and water samples taken for approval by the City. Flushing period must be approved by the City. The Developer shall exercise special care in flushing to avoid damage to surrounding property. Should the initial treatment result in an unsatisfactory bacteriological test, the original chlorination procedure shall be repeated by the Developer until satisfactory results are obtained.

### SANITARY SEWER CROSSINGS

Required Separation Between Water Lines and Sanitary Sewers

The basic separation requirements apply to sewers of 24-inch diameter or less; larger sewers may create special hazards because of flow volumes and joint types. The special construction requirements given are for the normal conditions found with sewage and water systems. More stringent requirements may be necessary in areas of high ground water, unstable soil conditions, etc.

A. Horizontal Separation (Parallel)

A minimum horizontal separation of ten (10) feet between gravity sanitary sewers and any existing potable water lines shall be maintained, whenever possible. The distance shall be measured edge to edge.

B. Unusual Conditions (Parallel)

When local conditions prevent a horizontal separation as described previously, a gravity sewer may be laid closer than 10 feet to a water line provided:

- a. It is laid in a separate trench; or, it is laid in the same trench with the water line that is located at one side on a bench of undisturbed earth; and
- In either case, the elevation of the crown of the gravity sewer must be at least 18 inches below the invert of the water line. When this vertical separation cannot be obtained, the gravity sewer shall be constructed of materials and joints that are equivalent to water main standards of construction and shall be pressure tested to assure water tightness prior to backfilling.
- C. Vertical Separation (Perpendicular)

Sewer lines crossing water lines shall be laid below the water lines to provide a separation of at least 18 inches between the invert of the water pipe and the crown of the sewer, whenever possible.

### D. Unusual Conditions (Perpendicular)

When local conditions prevent a vertical separation the following construction shall be used:

- a. Gravity sewers passing over or under water lines shall be:
  - 1. Constructed of material described in this section. The one segment of the maximum standard length of pipe, (but no less than 18 feet long) shall be used with the pipes centered to maximize joint separation.
  - 2. Standard gravity sewer material encased in concrete or in a 1/4" thick continuous steel casing with all voids pressuregrouted with sand-cement grout.
  - 3. The length of sewer pipe shall be centered at the point of crossing so that the joints will be equi-distant and as far as possible from the water line. The sewer pipe shall be the longest standard length available from the manufacturer.
- b. Water lines passing under gravity sewers, in addition, shall be protected by providing:
  - 1. A vertical separation of at least 18 inches between the invert of the sewer and the crown of the water line;
  - 2. Adequate structural support for the sewers to prevent excessive deflection of joints and settling on and breaking of the water lines; and
  - 3. The length of sewer pipe shall be centered at the point of crossing so that the joints will be equi-distant and as far as possible from the water line. The sewer pipe shall be the longest standard length available from the manufacturer.
- c. Pressure sewers shall only be constructed under water lines with ductile iron pipe or standard sewer pipe in a steel casing for a distance of at least ten (10) feet on each side of the crossing.

#### SUMMARY:

Any material, design, standard or testing not specifically addressed within these standards shall be as per the current edition of American Public Works Association Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge, and Municipal Construction, Washington

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

State Department of Transportation and the American Water Works Association Standards, both of which are hereby adopted by this reference.

### **CITY OF CHELAN**

## DOMESTIC WATER MAIN EXTENSIONS CHECKLIST

- 1. Developer submits legal description of proposed development.
- 2. City provides standards, conditions and specifications.
- 3. Developer submits water distribution plan designed by registered civil engineer licensed in Washington State.
- 4. Developer signs Domestic Water Service Extension Agreement.
- 5. If the project is in full compliance with the water system comprehensive plan, as determined by the City engineer, administrative approval is sufficient.
- 6. After the water distribution plan is accepted, City enters into agreement with the Developer for water main extension, which will include a right-of-way Excavation Permit.
- 7. Water main extension to be constructed by a licensed and bonded contractor to City standards as certified by a licensed engineer. The construction contract management shall be at the Developer's expense. At the City's option, the project inspectors may be City staff or may be contracted for by the City. (See Appendix B, Exhibit 2)
- 8. Contractor posts required bonds and insurance.
- 9. City inspects and observes testing of water main prior to approval.
- 10. Developer conveys system to City for operation and maintenance.
- 11. All services from the new water main extension are installed.
- 12. After two years, City inspects improvements and, if appropriate, releases bond/returns deposit balance.

### CITY OF CHELAN

# DOMESTIC WATER MAIN EXTENSION AS-BUILT DRAWINGS

As-built drawings of all improvements deeded or conveyed to the City of Chelan shall be provided. As-built drawings shall show all modifications made during construction. They shall also show precisely the location of all buried utilities, including the measured distance to all sewer tees or wyes, and the distance from valves to fittings. The location of water and sewer facilities shall be indicated by showing measured distances to monuments or other approved permanent reference.

As-built drawings for water improvements shall include a copy of the Engineer's Certificate of Completion form, as required by Washington State Department of Health.

As-built drawings turned over to the City upon acceptance of the utilities shall meet the drafting standards in Section 8.

<u>Page</u>

# **SECTION TWO - WATER DESIGNS**

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

## SECTION TWO TABLE OF CONTENTS

## **Description**

TABLE OF CONTENTS         2-1
PRESSURE REDUCING STATION
3/4"-1" SINGLE WATER SERVICE
CONCRETE BLOCKING - VERTICAL
AIR & VACUUM RELEASE ASSEMBLY
WATER VALVE BOX SETTING
VALVE MARKER POST
FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY
1-1/2-2" SERVICE CONNECTION DETAIL
SINGLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY
<b>SPRAY TANK FILLER PIPE</b>
THRUST BLOCK TABLE
CONCRETE BLOCKING - HORIZONTAL
DEADMAN THRUST BLOCKING
<b>1" COMBINATION AIR VALVE</b>
BLOW-OFF HYDRANT FOR DEAD END MAINS
COMBINATION AIR VALVE & BLOW-OFF ASSEMBLIES
<b>RESTRAINED PIPE JOINT REQUIREMENTS</b>
FILLING OF NEW WATER MAINS
DETECTOR CHECK VALVE INSTALLATION
<b>PVBA INSTALLATION</b>
DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 3/4" TO 1"
DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 1-1/4" TO 2-1/2"
DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN BUILDING
SIDE BY SIDE DCVA DUAL INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN BUILDING
VERTICAL APPLICATION DCVA DUAL INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN BUILDING 2-26
SIDE BY SIDE DCVA DUAL INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN VAULT
DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN VAULT
REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 3/4" TO 1" 2-29
REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 1-1/4" TO 2" 2-30
REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 2-1/2" AND LARGER
REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY DUAL INSTALLATION
FIRE LINE INTO BUILDING
SIDE BY SIDE RPBA DUAL INSTALLATION 3" OR LARGER

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

### PRESSURE REDUCING STATION



# **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### 3/4"-1" SINGLE and DOUBLE WATER SERVICE

1" - 3/4" WATER METER SERVICE



- A. 1" SADDLE, ROMAC 101S OR 202S OR EQUAL.
- B. 1" CORPORATION STOP, MUELLER OR APPROVED EQUAL.
- C. 1" HDPE COPPER TUBE SIZE WITH A WORKING
- PRESSURE OF 200 PSI OR EQUAL
- D. 3/4" MUELLER METER COIL BOX.
- E. BALL VALVE OR STOP AND WAIST VALVE TO BE INSTALLED BY PROPERTY OWNER
- F. SENSUS GALLION READ TRPO
- G. DOUBLE METER, 1 1/2" SUPPLY LINE AND FITTINGS

#### NOTES:

- 1. MATERIAL SUBSTITUTIONS OR DETERMINATION OF EQUAL ARE DISCRETION OF THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR.
- 2. SERVICE LINE TO BE 90° OF MAIN.
- 3. ALUMINUM BACKED LOCATE TAPE OVER SERVICE LINE FOR LOCATION AND TONING WIRE
- 4. DRAWING NOT TO SCALE.
- 5. CORRELATE WITH PAGE 2-9

ID-019

**CITY STANDARDS** 

2-3

**CITY OF CHELAN** 

### **CONCRETE BLOCKING - VERTICAL**

#### VERTICAL BLOCKING

VERTICAL BLOCKING FOR 11 1/4° & 22 1/2° BENDS							
PIPE SIZE	VВ	CU FT	A	D	L		
4"	11 1/4° 22 1/2°	8 11	2.0' 2.2'	3/4"	1.5' 2.0'		
6"	11 1/4° 22 1/2°	11 25	2.2' 2.9'	3/4"	2.0'		
8"	11 1/4° 22 1/2°	16 47	2.5' 3.6'	3/4"	2.0'		
12"	11 1/4° 22 1/2°	32 88	3.2' 4.5'	3/4" 7/8"	2.0' 3.0'		
16"	11 1/4° 22 1/2°	70 184	4.1' 5.7'	7/8" 11/8"	3.0' 4.0'		
20"	11 1/4° 22 1/2°	91 225	4.5' 6.1'	7/8" 11/4"	3.0' 4.0'		
24"	11 1/4° 22 1/2°	128 320	5.0' 6.8'	1" 13/8"	3.5' 4.5'		
VERTICAL BLOCKING FOR 45° BENDS							
4" 6" 8"	45°	30 68 123	3.1' 4.1' 5.0'	3/4"	2.0'		
12"	1	232	6.1'	3/4"	2.5'		
16" 20"		478 560	7.8' 8.2'	11/8" 11/4"	4.0'		
24"	1.	820	9.4'	13/8"	4.5'		



NOTE: CONCRETE BLOCKING BASED ON 200 PSI PRESSURE AND 2500 PSI CONCRETE. PROVIDE POLYETHYLENE SHEETING TO COVER BOLTS AND JOINTS FOR DISMANTLING.

ID-020

**CITY STANDARDS** 

(Revised 01/07)

## **CITY OF CHELAN**



## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### WATER VALVE BOX SETTING

All existing concrete valve boxes shall be replaced with cast iron boxes and adjusted to grade.

All existing cast iron valve boxes shall be adjusted to grade with cast iron components. Alignment of the valve box shall be the developer's responsibility and care shall be taken to ensure that the valve may be operated.



## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### VALVE MARKER POST

VALVE MARKER POST SHALL BE EQUAL TO FOG-TITE, WITH TWO COATS OF HI-GLOSS YELLOW PAINT. PAINT DISTANCE FROM THE VALVE MARKER TO THE VALVE ON THE POST WITH BLACK ENAMEL PAINT.

VALVE MARKER POST TO BE USED FOR ALL MAINLINE VALVES OUTSIDE PAVED AREAS.



**CITY OF CHELAN** 

## **SECTION TWO - WATER DESIGNS**

#### FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY



- A. ONE 5-1/4" M.V.O. HYDRANT WITH TWO 2-1/2" N.S.T. AND ONE 4 1/2" PUMPER N.S.T. THE 4 1/2 OUTLET SHALL BE FITTED WITH A 4-INCH HIGH-STRENGTH ALUMINUM ALLOY TEFLON COATED LOCKING STORZ ADAPTER WITH RUBBER GASKET AND SET SCREW. THE STORZ ADAPTER SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH AN APPROVED ALUMINUM ALLOY PRESSURE CAP ATTACHED TO THE HYDRANT BARREL WITH AN APPROVED CABLE. THE HYDRANT SHALL BE MUELLER CENTURION OR EQUAL. PAINT HYDRANT TRAFFIC YELLOW, # 1072 FARWEST PAINT CO.
- B. 6" RESILIENT SEAT GATE VALVE, FL × MJ
- C. CAST IRON VALVE BOX, TYLER OR EQUAL
- D. ONE CAST IRON TEE M.J. × FL.
- E. PIPE / SPOOL AS NEEDED DUCTILE IRON
- F. TWO 3/4" GALVANIZED STEEL SHACKLES. MEGALUG INSTEAD OF SHACKLES IS ACCEPTABLE.
- G. CONCRETE THRUST BLOCK, 4 SF THRUST AREA. (SEE 2-13)
- H. CONCRETE THRUST BLOCK, 6 SF THRUST AREA. (SEE 2-13)
- 1. 12"x12"x4" CONCRETE BLOCK. (SEE 2-13)
- J. 1 1/2" PONEL OP NUT AND PORT COVER NUT

**CITY STANDARDS** 

(Revised 01/07)

2-8

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### 1-1/2-2" SERVICE CONNECTION DETAIL



#### NOTES:

- 1. USE "PAC" JOINT ON COUPLINGS
- ANY METERS DAMAGED OR CLOGGED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE REPLACED BY THE CITY AND BACKCHARGED TO THE DEVELOPER.
- 3. USE METER SETTER WITH 1" BYPASS LOCKING ANGLE STOP & CHECK VALVE.
- 4. LOCATE METER TO PROPERTY LINE, INSTALL NEW METER BOX-H2 PRE-CAST BOTTOM SECTION # WCB AND TOP SECTION # WCT. METER LIDS ARE TO BE H2 PRE-CAST 2019 IN TRAFFIC AREAS OR 2020 IN NON TRAFFIC AREAS.
- 5. SENUS TOUCH READ GALLON WATER METER.

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### SINGLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY

#### TO BE USED AS BYPASS AROUND PUMP STATION OR PRV WHEN NEEDED



NOTE: CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY TO BE INSTALLED AS INDICATED ON INDIVIDUAL DESIGN

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### SPRAY TANK FILLER PIPE







## **CITY OF CHELAN**

### THRUST BLOCK TABLE

MIN. BEARING AREA AGAINST UNDISTURBED SOIL SQUARE FEET							
PIPE SIZE	A (FT. <sup>2</sup> )	B (FT. <sup>2</sup> )	C (FT. <sup>2</sup> )	D (FT. <sup>2</sup> )	E (FT. <sup>2</sup> )		
3"	3	2	2	2	2		
6"	4	4	2	2	2		
8"	7	6	4	2	2		
10"	11	10	6	3	2		
12"	16	14	9	5	3		
14"	22	19	12	6	3		
16"	29	25	16	8	4		
18"	36	31	20	10	5		
20"	45	39	24	13	6		
22"	54	47	29	15	8		
24"	64	56	35	18	9		
28"	87	76	48	24	12		
30"	101	87	55	28	14		
36"	145	125	78	40	20		
42"	197	171	107	55	27		
48"	257	223	140	71	36		

NOTE: Bearing area of conc. thrust block based on 200 psi pressure and safe soil bearing load of 2,000 pounds per square foot.

Areas must be adjusted for other pipe sizes, pressures and soil conditions.

Concrete blocking shall be cast in place and have a minimum of 1/4 square foot bearing against the fitting.

Block shall bear against fittings only and shall be clear of joints to permit taking up or dismantling of joint.

Contractor shall install blocking adequate to withstand full test pressure as well as to continuously withstand operation pressure under all conditions of service.

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

### CONCRETE BLOCKING - HORIZONTAL

- NOTE: See thrust block table on page 2-12 for bearing areas.
  - Provide Polyethylene sheeting to cover bolts and joints for dismantling.











22 1/2° BEND



11 1/4° BEND

NOTES: PROVIDE POLYETHYLENE SHEETING TO COVER BOLTS AND JOINTS FOR DISMANTLING.

ID-023

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

## **DEADMAN THRUST BLOCKING**

SIZING TABLE					MIN. BL	OCK LENG	STH (L)			
						SOI	L CONDITI	ON		
PIPE DIA	T (min)	H (min)	SHACKLE RODS	PIPE DIA	SOFT CLAY	SILT	SAND Y SILT	SAND	SAND Y CLAY	HARD CLAY
6"	18"	30"	(4)#5 (%"dia)	6"	30"	30"	30"	30"	30"	30"
8"	18"	36"		8"	42"	38"	36"	34"	32"	32"
10"	18"	46"		10"	54"	48"	40"	38"	37"	36"
12"	24"	48"		12"	72"	64"	50"	47"	44"	42"
14"	36"	50"		14"	96"	80"	62"	56"	50"	47"
16"	42"	52"		16"	120"	100"	72"	65"	58"	53"
BLOCK SIZES GOOD TO 300 psi TEST PRESSURE										

NOTES: • This standard detail is for deadman blocking only. • Concrete block shall be per APWA specification 7-11.3(13) 1988.

Maintain 18" minimum cover over the top of block. .

Bottom of block is to be on undisturbed soil. ۰

Trench to be backfilled with crushed soli.
Trench to be backfilled with crushed rock compacted to 95% density on all sides of block and a distance of 4' min. in front of block to full depth of block.
Upon extension of water main, shackle rods are to be cut, remove plug. Concrete block to remain in place.

- - · For soil conditions not shown, block is to be designed by engineer.


## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **1" COMBINATION AIR VALVE**

NOTE: Air valve assembly shall be installed at highest point of line.



ID-005

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **BLOW-OFF HYDRANT FOR DEAD END MAINS**



#### NOTES

- 1. INSTALL STANDARD MARKER POST IDENTIFYING VALVE LOCATION
- 2. SET METER BOX FLUSH WITH SIDEWALK OR CURB LOCATED IN LAWN AREA. SET METER BOX APPROX. 2" ABOVE FINISHED GRADE IF IN LANDSCAPING AREA.
- 3. ALL FITTINGS TO BE BRASS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### COMBINATION AIR VALVE & BLOW-OFF ASSEMBLIES

NOTE: •

- E: Install standard marker post identifying valve location.
  - Set meter box flush with sidewalk or curb in located in lawn area. Set meter box approx. 2" above finished grade is in landscaping area.
  - All fittings to be brass unless otherwise noted.



**CITY OF CHELAN** 

## **SECTION TWO - WATER DESIGNS**

#### **RESTRAINED PIPE JOINT REQUIREMENTS**

RESTRAINED JOINTS TO ADHERE TO THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS OR AS RECOMMENDED BY THE MANUFACTURER IF MORE STRINGENT. **RESTRAINED JOINTS ARE REQUIRED:** ON ADJACENT RUNS OF PIPE AT ALL BENDS AND PLUGS. ON RUNS CONNECTED TO TEES AND CROSSES ONLY OPPOSITE THRUST BLOCKS. ON ALL PIPE PLACED IN CASING PIPES. DUCTILE IRON PIPE WILL BE USED WITH ALL RESTRAINED JOINTS. ALL METHODS OF MATERIALS: RESTRAINED JOINTS SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE CITY. LENGTH OF RESTRAINED JOINT PIPE FROM EACH SIDE OF FITTING PIPE DIA CROSS, PLUG, 90° BEND 45° BEND 22 1/2° BEND 11 1/4° BEND TEE 6" 38' (49') 22' (28') 18' (18') 18' (18') 18' (18') 8" & 10" 53' (69') 34' (44') 20' (26') 18' (18') 18' (18')

VALUES IN PARENTHESES WILL BE USED FOR PIPE WITH POLYETHYLENE WRAPPING, WHERE BENDS REQUIRE TWO FITTINGS AS SHOWN ON CONTRACT DRAWINGS, LENGTH OF PIPE WITH RESTRAINED JOINTS SHALL BE AS SPECIFIED FOR THE NEXT ANGLE GREATER THAN THE SUM OF THE ANGLES FORMED BY THE FITTINGS BUT NOT GREATER THAN FOR A 90° BEND.

**CITY OF CHELAN** 

#### FILLING OF NEW WATER MAINS



TESTING PURPOSES WHERE NEEDED.

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### DETECTOR CHECK VALVE INSTALLATION



NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
- 2) A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION.
- 3) A MIN. 3" DIA. FLOOR DRAIN IS REQUIRED.

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **PVBA INSTALLATION**



#### NOTES:

- 1) PVBA MAY BE INSTALLED ON LOW HAZARD
- POTABLE WATER SUPPLY SYSTEMS ONLY. A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION. 2)
- 3) PVBA MUST BE INSTALLED NOT LESS THAN 12' ABOVE THE HIGHEST POINT OF USE AND NOT MORE THAN 60" HIGH.

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 3/4" TO 1"



#### NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
- MAY BE INSTALLED BELOW GROUND IN AN APPROVED VAULT.
   A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE
- PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION.
- 4) FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER.
  5) RISERS AND ALL PIPE IN BOX TO BE GALVANIZED.
- 6) A LADDER IS REQUIRED IF ACCESS OPENING TO FLOOR EXCEEDS 36"

ID-079

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 1-1/4" TO 2-1/2"



#### NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
- MAY BE INSTALLED BELOW GROUND IN AN APPROVED VAULT.
   A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE
- PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION.
- FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER. 4)
- 5) RISERS AND ALL PIPE IN BOX TO BE GALVANIZED.
- 6) A LADDER IS REQUIRED IF ACCESS OPENING TO FLOOR EXCEEDS 36"

**CITY STANDARDS** 

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN BUILDING**



#### NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES. 2) A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE
- PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION.
- 3) A MIN. 3" DIA. FLOOR DRAIN IS REQUIRED.

**CITY OF CHELAN** 

## **SECTION TWO - WATER DESIGNS**

#### SIDE BY SIDE DCVA DUAL INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN BUILDING



#### NOTES:

- MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
   A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE

- PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION. 3) A MIN. 3" DIA. FLOOR DRAIN IS REQUIRED.

ID-082

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **VERTICAL APPLICATION DCVA DUAL INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN BUILDING**



NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
- MAY BE INSTALLED BELOW GROUND IN AN APPROVED VAULT.
   A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE
- PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION. 4) FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER.
  5) A MIN. 3" DIA. FLOOR DRAIN IS REQUIRED.
- 6) A LADDER IS REQUIRED IF THE DISTANCE FROM THE ACCESS
- OPENING TO THE FLOOR EXCEEDS 36". 7) A SPACE EQUALING 12" PLUS ONE PIPE DIAMETER IS REQUIRED BETWEEN ASSEMBLIES.
- 8)
- AN OSHA-WISHA APPROVED PLATFORM MUST BE ERECTED FOR MAINTENANCE AND TESTING WHEN INSTALLED 60" ABOVE FLOOR LEVEL.
- 9) GUARD POST ARE REQUIRED IN AREAS WHERE FORK LIFTS ARE USED

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### SIDE BY SIDE DCVA DUAL INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN VAULT



4) FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER.

- 5) A MIN. 3" DIA. FLOOR DRAIN IS REQUIRED.
- 6) A LADDER IS REQUIRED IF ACCESS OPENING TO FLOOR EXCEEDS 36"

ID-084

(

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN VAULT**



#### NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
- MAY BE INSTALLED BELOW GROUND IN AN APPROVED VAULT.
   A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE
- PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION
- 4) FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER.
   5) A MIN. 3" DIA. FLOOR DRAIN IS REQUIRED.
- 5) A MIN. 3" DIA. FLOOR DRAIN IS REQUIRED.6) A LADDER IS REQUIRED IF ACCESS OPENING TO FLOOR EXCEEDS 36"

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 3/4" TO 1"**



- WHEN INSTALLED INSIDE A BUILDING, A FLOOR DRAIN SIZED TO ACCEPT MAXIMUM DISCHARGE FROM THE RELIEF ASSEMBLY IS REQUIRED.
   FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER.
- 6) RISERS AND ALL PIPE IN BOX TO BE GALVANIZED STEEL.

ID-086

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 1-1/4" TO 2"



#### NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
- 2) MUST BE INSTALLED ABOVE GROUND MIN. 12 INCHES.
- 3) A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION.
- 4) WHEN INSTALLED INSIDE A BUILDING, A FLOOR DRAIN SIZED TO ACCEPT MAXIMUM DISCHARGE FROM THE RELIEF ASSEMBLY IS REQUIRED.
  5) FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER.

ID-087

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 2-1/2" AND LARGER



#### NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
- 2) MUST BE INSTALLED ABOVE GROUND. MIN. 12" PLUS PIPE DIAMETER.
- 3) A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE
- PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION. 4) WHEN INSTALLED INSIDE A BUILDING, A FLOOR DRAIN SIZED TO
- ACCEPT MAXIMUM DISCHARGE FROM THE RELIEF ASSEMBLY IS REQUIRED.
- 5) FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER.
- 6) SEE DWG. PAGE 10-14 FOR PIPE SUPPORTS. SET SUPPORTS ON CONCRETE BLOCKS.

ID-088

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY DUAL INSTALLATION



REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY REQUIRED FOR CONTINUOUS PROTECTION

#### NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
- 2) MUST BE INSTALLED ABOVE GROUND.
- 3) A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION.
- 4) WHEN INSTALLED INSIDE A BUILDING, A FLOOR DRAIN SIZED TO ACCEPT DISCHARGE FROM BOTH ASSEMBLIES IS REQUIRED.
- 5) FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER. 6) SUFFICIENT CLEARANCE IS REQUIRED FROM THE TOP OF THE VALVE
  - STEM WHEN FULLY OPEN TO THE BOTTOM OF THE TOP ASSEMBLY.
- 7) AN OSHA-WISHA APPROVED PLATFORM MUST BE ERECTED FOR MAINTENANCE AND TESTING.
- 8) GUARD POSTS ARE REQUIRED IN AREAS WHERE FORK LIFTS ARE USED

ID-089

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### FIRE LINE INTO BUILDING



**CITY OF CHELAN** 

# **SECTION TWO - WATER DESIGNS**

#### SIDE BY SIDE RPBA DUAL INSTALLATION 3" OR LARGER



**Page** 

# **SECTION THREE - SEWER STANDARDS**

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

## SECTION THREE TABLE OF CONTENTS

## **Description**

2	
STANE	DARDS AND CONDITIONS
SPECI	FICATIONS
	EXTENSIONS
	GENERAL GRAVITY SEWER PIPE
	PVC PIPE:
	DUCTILE IRON PIPE
	DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS
	GATE VALVES
	CHECK VALVES
	BOLTS IN PIPING
	BEDDING AND BLOCKING CONCRETE
	IDENTIFYING TAPE
	METHODS OF CONSTRUCTION
	PIPE LAYING
	PRESSURE SEWER PIPE
	PRESSURE SEWER MAINS
	JOINTS
	ALIGNMENT & GRADE TOLERANCE
	TRENCH EXCAVATION
	SHORING
	TUNNELING
	JACKING OR BORING - ROADWAY CROSSINGS
	CONCRETE BLOCKING AND ENCASEMENT:
	FOUNDATION GRAVEL
	MANHOLES
	TESTING OF GRAVITY SEWERS
	TESTING OF PRESSURE SEWER MAINS
	SIDE SEWERS
	SEWER CONNECTION INSPECTIONS
	SEPTIC TANKS
	PUMP STATIONS

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### SEWER MAIN EXTENSIONS

#### GENERAL:

#### INTRODUCTION:

The items herein contained are the sewerage system standards, conditions, and specifications of the City of Chelan. These are minimums only and may be increased or altered to fit particular situations. Any material, design, standard, or testing not specifically addressed within this document shall be as per the current edition of American Public Works Association Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge, and Municipal Construction and/or Washington State D.O.E. Criteria for Sewage Works Design which are hereby adopted by this reference as if fully set forth herein. (See CMC 13.06.050 F)

#### **STANDARDS AND CONDITIONS:**

- A. When extension of the existing sewer system is required for service, an Agreement for Sewer Main Extension shall be entered into between the Developer and the City, substantially in the form which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Appendix B, Exhibit 1.
- B. To initiate the Developer Extension process the Developer shall submit a sewer plan prepared by a Professional Civil engineer licensed in the State of Washington. Plan/Profile drawing shall be produced on mylar copy and CD electronic format.
- C. The licensed professional civil engineer shall certify that the design and construction of the sewerage collection system meets or exceeds all applicable standards.
- D. Obtaining necessary permits will be the responsibility of the Developer.
- E. Where franchises, easements or deeds to property are required it shall be the responsibility of the Developer to provide same and submit appropriate documentation to the City.
- F. Easements shall be as per Section 10 of this code.
- G. The Developer shall supply a certified "As-built" drawing meeting all standards established in Appendix B
- H. The Developer is required to supply insurance and bonding as per Section 13 of this code.
- 1. Connection between the City's existing system and the new sewerage collection system shall be made by the Developer at the expense of the Developer.
- J. All main lines must be designed to provide for proper collection of sewerage from

all lands served by the development. Extensions shall be required through and to the extremes of the property for future service as determined by the City.

- K. Pressure and leakage testing shall be accomplished as per specifications contained herein before final acceptance.
- L. Final acceptance shall not constitute acceptance of any unauthorized or defective work or material. The City shall not be barred from requiring the developer to reimburse the City for the removal, adjustment, replacement, repair or disposal of any unauthorized or defective work or material or from recovering costs for any such work or material.
- M. Sewer hook-ups shall be made by the lot owner. Sewer service shall not begin prior to payment by of all applicable hook-up fees.
- N. Sewer Main Extension projects shall be conveyed to the City for operation and maintenance upon final project acceptance.
- O. For existing platted lots, the City may enter into latecomer agreements with Developers prior to installation of sewer mains and appurtenances, to provide for the reimbursement of a pro-rata share of the cost of construction by the sewer service users of any real estate who have not contributed to the original cost of such facilities and who subsequently connect to the sewerage collection system, pursuant to Chapter 12.28 of the Chelan Municipal Code as it now exists or as may be hereafter amended.

## SPECIFICATIONS:

## EXTENSIONS:

All extensions to the sewer system must conform to the design standards of the City. The system must be capable of future expansions, if required, and be constructed of permanent materials. The following are required:

- 1. Plans and Specifications. The installation of sewer extensions shall be in accordance with construction plans and specifications approved by the City.
- 2. Sewer pipes shall be P.V.C. or ductile iron. City shall approve type.
- 3. Manholes shall be precast, 48" I.D. and shall generally conform to A.S.T.M. specification for equivalent size reinforced concrete sewer pipe. Outside drop structures shall be constructed of ductile iron. Inside drop structures may be constructed of ductile iron or P.V.C. pipe and fittings.
- 4. Pressure mains shall be ductile iron, P.V.C., or H.D.P.E.
- 5. All joints for sewers or pressure mains shall be of the rubber gasket type.

- 6. Pipe sizes shall be selected as required by standard engineering practice and shall conform to the overall sewerage plan of the City.
- 7. Minimum depth of sewer main and side sewer stubs shall be 4 feet over the top of pipe.
- 8. The sewer grades shall be sufficient to maintain a velocity of 2 feet per second at design flow. Minimum grade shall be one-half of one percent (0.005) for 8" diameter pipe, 0.008 for 6" and/or be in accordance with the Washington DOE <u>"Criteria for Sewage Works Design"</u>.
- 9. Manhole covers shall be IFCO Number 619 or approved equivalent. Manhole cover surface shall be raised style B, lifting device shall be style 2 with one inch diameter pick hole. Where specified, locking cover shall be style 1.

## **GENERAL GRAVITY SEWER PIPE:**

- 1. All material shall be new and undamaged. Unless otherwise approved by the City, the same manufacturer of each item shall be used throughout the work.
- 2. Where reference is made to an ASTM, AWWA or APWA designation, it shall be the latest revision at the time of construction, except as noted on the plans or special provisions of the plans.

## PVC PIPE:

P.V.C. pipe shall conform with the provisions of ASTM D-3034, SDR35 unless otherwise specified. Rubber gaskets for P.V.C. pipe shall conform with ASTM 3034.

## DUCTILE IRON PIPE:

- 1. Ductile iron pipe shall be standard thickness Class 50 cement lined unless otherwise specified and shall conform to the standards of USA Standard A-21.51 (AWWA C-151).
- 2. Rubber gasket pipe joints to be push-on-joint (Tyton) or mechanical joint (M.J.) in accordance with USA Standard A21.11 (AWWA C-111), unless otherwise specified.
- 3. Flanged connection shall conform to USA Standard B16.1.
- 4. Standard thickness cement lining shall be in accordance with USA Standard A21.4 (AWWA C-104).
- 5. The Contractor shall furnish certification from the manufacturer of the pipe and gasket being supplied that all specified tests have been made and the

results thereof comply with the requirements of this standard.

#### DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS:

- 1. Ductile iron fittings shall be short body for pressure rating of 150 psi, unless otherwise noted. Metal thickness and manufacturing process shall conform to applicable portions of USA Standard A21.10, A21.11, B16.2 and B16.4.
- 2. Standard cement lining in accordance with USA Standard A21.4 (AWWA C-104).
- 3. Rubber gaskets for push-on-joint (Tyton) or mechanical joint (M.J.) in accordance with USA Standard A21.11 (AWWA C-111).
- 4. Gasket material for flanges shall be neoprene, Buna N chlorinated butyl, or cloth-inserted rubber. Type of ends shall be specified as push-on-joint (Tyton), mechanical joint (M.J.), plain end (P.E.), flanged (FI.) or threaded (TH.).

#### GATE VALVES:

- 1. The minimum requirements for all gate valves shall, in design, material and workmanship, conform to the Standards of AWWA C-509.
- 2. Buried gate valves shall be iron body, bronze mounted, double disc, nonrising stem, operation stems equipped with standard two (2) inch operation nut, and O-ring stem seals, suitable for installation with the type and class of pipe being installed. Ends to be as specified.

#### CHECK VALVES:

Check valves shall be for 150 psi working pressure, unless otherwise specified. Valve shall have adjustable tension lever and spring to provide nonslamming action under all conditions unless otherwise specified. Check valves shall be equal to Rensselaer List 340.

#### **BOLTS IN PIPING:**

Bolts shall be stainless steel or cast iron, zinc or chromium plated.

## **BEDDING AND BLOCKING CONCRETE:**

Concrete shall be mixed from materials acceptable to the City and shall have a 30day compressive strength of not less than 1,500 psi. The mix shall contain four (4) sacks of cement per cubic yard and shall be of such consistency that the slump is between 1 inch and 5 inches.

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **IDENTIFYING TAPE:**

Identifying tape shall be installed twelve inches (12") below finished grade over all PVC pipe located within public street right-of-ways. Pipe locator ribbon shall be two inches (2") wide, plastic coated aluminum and shall be clearly marked, "CAUTION BURIED SEWER LINE" continuously along the length of the ribbon with minimum 1-1/2 inch letters. The ribbon shall be green in color.

#### METHODS OF CONSTRUCTION:

#### PIPE LAYING:

- 1. Pipe laying shall be in accordance with the latest edition of APWA Construction Manual for Municipal Public Works, Volume 3.
- 2. The first section of pipe not less than 300 feet in length installed by each crew shall be tested in order to qualify the crew and/or material. Successful installation of this section as determined by the City shall be a prerequisite to further pipe installation of said crew.
- 3. Each pipe shall be laid with bells upgrade with the invert of the pipe to the alignment and grade shown on the plans. Care shall be exercised to insure close concentric joints and a smooth invert. Open ends of pipe or fittings shall be temporarily blocked and covered when laying is not in progress.
- 4. Trench shall be kept dewatered during pipelaying.
- 5. Adjustment to the line and grade shall be done by scraping away or filling in and tamping approved pipe bedding material under the body of the pipe. Adjustment to the line and grade by wedging and blocking shall not be permitted.
- 6. The pipe shall be lowered into the trench by means of ropes, tripod, crane or any other suitable means. The pipe shall not be dropped or handled roughly. The pipe shall be checked for cracks and defects prior to use, and any defective pipe shall be rejected.
- 7. Wyes shall be installed as shown on the Standard Details as contained herein and at such locations as are shown on the plans or as otherwise directed by the City. These items shall not be covered until the City has recorded their exact location.
- 8. Pipe laying shall start from the lowest point unless otherwise approved by the City.

#### PRESSURE SEWER PIPE:

- 1. All materials shall be new and undamaged. Unless otherwise approved by the City, the same manufacturer of each item shall be used throughout the work.
- 2. Where reference is made to an AWWA, APWA or ASTM designation, it shall be the latest revision at the time of construction, except, as noted on the plans or special provisions of the plans.
- 3. Non-metallic pressure sewer pipe shall have tracer wire attached to pipe as per these standards. Access points to tracer wire shall be as directed by Public Works.

#### PRESSURE SEWER MAINS:

- 1. P.V.C. pressure pipe shall conform to AWWA C-900. Joints shall be made up as recommended by the pipe manufacturer for pressure pipe. Shall be class 200 minimum.
- 2. Ductile iron pipe shall conform to AWWA C-100. Joints shall be made up as recommended by the pipe manufacturer for the particular joint as specified.
- 3. Pressure sewer mains shall be laid so that no high point exists except at the discharge manhole or an air release assembly. Valves with O-ring seals shall be opened and shut under pressure to check operation without leakage. Two-piece cast iron valve boxes shall be set as directed by the City.

## JOINTS:

- 1. Joints shall not be covered until examined and approved by the City. Only pipe layers experienced with the type of gasket being used shall be allowed to lay the pipe. The City may demand proof of such experience before pipe laying may begin or be continued.
- 2. Joint material shall be used in accordance with the recommendations of the manufacturer. Pipe handling after the gasket has been affixed shall be carefully controlled to avoid bumping the gasket and thus knocking it out of position or loading it with dirt or other foreign material. Any gasket so disturbed shall be removed and replaced, cleaned and relubricated, if required, before the joint is attempted.
- 3. Care shall be taken to properly align the pipe before joints are seated. During insertion of the tongue or spigot, the pipe shall be partially supported by hand, sling or crane as required to minimize lateral pressure on the gasket and to maintain concentricity until the gasket is properly positioned. Pipe deflection and straightening shall be held to a very minimum once the joint

is seated to prevent creep of the joint.

4. Sufficient pressure shall be applied in making the joint to assure that the joint is seated as defined in the standard installation instructions provided by the pipe manufacturer. Sufficient restraint shall be applied to the line to assure the joints, once seated, are held so, by tamping approved pipe bedding material under and alongside the pipe or otherwise. At the end of the day's work, the last pipe shall be blocked in such a manner as may be required to prevent creep during down time.

## ALIGNMENT & GRADE TOLERANCE:

- 1. The maximum tolerance from true line and grade shall be as follows:
  - a. Maximum deviation from established line and grade shall not be greater than one thirty-second (1/32) inch per inch of pipe diameter and not to exceed one-half  $(\frac{1}{2})$  inch per pipe length.
  - b. No adverse grade in any pipe length will be permitted.
  - c. The difference in deviation from established line and grade between two successive joints shall not exceed 1/3 of the amounts specified above.
  - d. Refer to DOE Drainage Design Manual for maximum deflection.

## TRENCH EXCAVATION:

Trenching shall be as per Section One of this code

## SHORING:

The Developer shall provide and install shoring as necessary to protect workmen, the work, existing utilities, and other properties.

## TUNNELING:

Tunneling may be ordered by the City or agency having jurisdiction over the roadway. The Developer may tunnel in lieu of trenching for deep cuts.

## JACKING OR BORING - ROADWAY CROSSINGS:

The Developer may use any method which provides satisfactory results and is acceptable to the governmental agency having control of the road and to the City, provided that the Developer restores the crossing to its original condition. Normally, these crossings require the placing of steel, cast iron or concrete pipe casing by jacking or tunneling and laying the sewer line within the casing.

## CITY OF CHELAN

#### PIPE BEDDING:

Pipe bedding shall be as per Section One of this code.

## CONCRETE BLOCKING AND ENCASEMENT:

Blocking shall be installed at changes in direction and in a manner acceptable to the City. Blocking and encasement of pipe shall be as shown in Standard Detail for water lines or as otherwise directed by the City.

#### FOUNDATION GRAVEL:

Foundation gravel shall be coarse graded gravel or crushed rock passing a 3-inch mesh. Pit run passed through a 3-inch screen thoroughly compacted may be used provided that it is, in the opinion of the City, properly graded and otherwise suitable.

#### MANHOLES:

- 1. Manholes shall be constructed as shown in Standard Details for manholes and drop manholes. Manholes shall be precast reinforced concrete. Manhole ring and covers shall be adjusted to the elevation required by the City prior to final acceptance of the work. Invert elevations in shall be one tenth of a foot (0.1 foot) higher than invert elevations going out.
- 2. The manhole base slab shall be placed on firm soil. If the foundation material is inadequate, the Developer shall use foundation gravel, bedding gravel or concrete under the normal base to support the manhole.
- 3. All joints and connections to manholes shall be made with cement mortar or other approved jointing material and shall be watertight. Joints and connection shall be finished on interior and exterior of manhole. There shall be a 3/4 inch thick smooth plaster finish on the inside and outside of leveling concrete blocks at top of manholes.
- 4. Manholes shall be placed at every angle point, street and alley intersection, and catch basin junction, and in no case shall manholes be spaced greater than 500 feet apart. A connection serving more than one building lot shall require a manhole.
- 5. Where manholes are installed over an existing sewer main, the manhole base shall be poured-in-place on firm soil or foundation material as described above. Sewer main inside manhole will not be cut away until approved by City.

#### INSTALLATION STAKING:

The Developer shall furnish grade, cut and finish staking for the excavation and installation of sanitary sewer mains, manholes and appurtenances.

#### CLEANING AND FLUSHING:

- 1. Prior to pipe testing, all pipes shall be cleaned and flushed.
- 2. All debris flushed out shall be removed at the first manhole where its presence is noted. In the event cemented or wedged debris, or a damaged pipe exists, the Developer shall remove the debris and replace the damaged pipe.

#### **TESTING OF GRAVITY SEWERS:**

Method of testing gravity sewers and manholes shall be at the option of the City engineer.

#### WATER TEST:

- 1. Tests for watertightness shall be made by the Developer in the presence of the City. A test shall be made of every section of the sewer, including the side sewers, after completion of backfill. Where the groundwater table is so high as to preclude a proper exfiltration test, an infiltration test may be used.
- 2. The exfiltration test shall be made by plugging the inlets of the lower manhole and filling the test section with water to a height of six (6) feet above the crown of the sewer at the upper end of the sewer being tested.
- 3. In no case shall the static level be less that six (6) feet above the water table at the upper end of the sewer being tested. Where the static pressure on the lower manhole would exceed 15 feet, the Developer shall test the sewer between manholes in two or more sections. The Developer shall provide for sectional testing by installing tees in the main line. The tees shall be of a type that permit plugging of both the upper and lower run of the tee. The required static water head shall be obtained by installing vertical lengths of pipe in the tee or from the upper end of the sewer pipe being tested at shallow manholes.
- 4. At the discretion of the Public Works Director, the Developer shall provide a groundwater observation well at each manhole for determining the level of groundwater during the test. The observation well shall consist of one-inch plastic pipe installed vertically adjacent

CITY OF CHELAN

to the manhole. The lower end of the test well shall be placed in a one (1) cubic yard pocket of washed gravel and shall be at the same elevation as the invert of the manhole. The upper end of the test well shall be a maximum of two (2) feet below the finished grade elevation and left exposed until completion of the test.

5. The time of exfiltration tests shall be a minimum of one (1) hour. The leakage during the test shall not exceed the flowing allowances:

ALLOWABLE LEAKAGE - EXFILTRATION								
Allowable Leakage in gal/100 linear feet/hr. Head above crown on lower end of test section.								
Pipe	6 Ft.	8 Ft.	10 Ft.	12 Ft.	14 Ft.	16 Ft.		
6	0.6	0.7	0.7	0.8	0.8	0.9		
8	0.8	0.9	1.0	1.0	1.1	1.2		
10	1.0	1.1	1.2	1.3	1.4	1.5		
12	1.2	1.3	1.4	1.6	1.7	1.8		
15	1.5	1.7	1.8	2.0	2.1	2.3		
18	1.8	2.0	2.2	2.3	2.5	2.7		
24	2.4	2.6	2.9	3.1	3.4	3.6		
Repair by chemical grouting will not be allowed.								

- 6. For static head above the basic six feet at the crown of the sewer at the lower end of the test section, the allowable leakage shown above shall be increased at a ratio of 5 percent per foot increase.
- 7. Where the groundwater exceeds a height of six feet above the crown of the sewer at the upper end of the test section, the section shall be tested by infiltration. The infiltration test shall be conducted by placing a plug in the inlet sewer at the upper manhole and inserting an approved measuring device in the inlet sewer at the lower manhole. Prior to making measurements, care shall be taken to assure that the flow over or through the measuring device is constant. A minimum of four measurements shall be made over a period of one hour.

## AIR TESTING:

1. The following procedures shall be used in conducting the low pressure air test. The Developer shall furnish all facilities and personnel for conducting the test under the observation of the City.

The equipment and personnel shall be subject to the approval of the City.

- 2. The Developer may desire to make an air test prior to backfilling for his own purposes. However, the acceptance air test shall be made after backfilling has been completed and compacted.
- 3. All wyes, tees, or end of side sewer stubs shall be plugged with flexible joint caps, or acceptable alternate, securely fastened to withstand the internal test pressures. Such plugs or caps shall be readily removable and their removal shall provide a socket suitable for making a flexible jointed lateral connection or extension. No double plugs shall be allowed.
- 4. Immediately following the pipe cleaning, the pipe installation shall be tested with low-pressure air. Air shall be slowly supplied to the plugged pipe installation until the internal air pressure reaches 4.0 pounds per square inch greater than the average back pressure of any groundwater that may submerge the pipe. At least two minutes shall be allowed for temperature stabilization before proceeding further.
- 5. The requirements of this specification shall be considered satisfied if the time required in seconds for the pressure to decrease from 3.5 to 3.0 pounds per square inch is greater than the average back pressure above the center of the pipe. The following chart shall determine the time requirement:

Size of Pipe	Seconds per Lineal Foot of Pipe
4 inch	0.11
6 inch	0.25
8 inch	0.46
10 inch	0.72
12 inch	1.04
15 inch	1.63
18 inch	2.35
21 inch	3.20
24 inch	4.18

6. The use of air pressure for testing sewer lines creates hazards that

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

must be recognized. The Developer shall be certain that all plugs are securely blocked to prevent blow outs. A supply air regulator shall be installed on the air supply line to the sewer that shall permit a maximum of 10 psi in the line to be tested. All pressure shall be relieved from the sewer section being tested prior to removal of test plugs.

## TESTING OF PRESSURE SEWER MAINS:

Prior to acceptance of the project, the pressure line shall be subjected to a hydrostatic pressure test equal to three times the maximum working pressure at the high point of the line. Any leaks or imperfections developing or occurring under the test pressure shall be remedied by the developer before final acceptance of the project. Leakage measurement method shall be performed by the Developer and approved by the City. Test pressure shall be maintained while the entire installation is inspected. The developer shall provide all necessary equipment and shall perform all work connected with the tests. Insofar as is practical, test shall be made with pipe joints and fittings exposed for inspection. Maximum leakage allowable shall be .05 gallons per hour per inch of pipe diameter per 100 feet of pipe.

## SIDE SEWERS:

1. See Chelan Municipal Code 13.06.030.

## SEWER CONNECTION INSPECTIONS

Sewer connection inspections are required as per the Public Works right-of-way permits. All connection inspections require a report filed with Public Works using the City Standard Form in Appendix B, Exhibit 5.

## SEPTIC TANKS:

1. See Chelan Municipal Code 13.06.040.

## PUMP STATIONS:

- 1. Pump stations shall only serve those properties which cannot otherwise be served by conventional gravity sewers or septic tanks.
- 2. Pump stations to be maintained by the City shall be approved for design by the City.
- 3. Pump stations shall be approved on an individual basis by the City.

## **TELEVISION INSPECTION**

Upon completion, and prior to acceptance, of installation or repair of any sewer

## CITY OF CHELAN

main, all sewer mains shall be video and television inspected by the City. This inspection and recording shall be performed in the presence of the City inspector and the Developer. Any defects in material or workmanship discovered shall be repaired by the Developer prior to acceptance. The City will charge the Developer a reimbursement fee to cover all required man hour costs.

## TYPICAL BUILDING SEWER CONNECTION:

#### **MATERIALS ALLOWED:** (Main to property line)

- 1. 6" PVC pipe and fittings ASTM D-3034 (molded gasket type bell, usually 20 foot length).
- 2. 6" ABS pipe schedule 40 (black). Non-pressure use only.

## **GENERAL REQUIREMENTS:**

- 1. A cleanout is required just outside the building on new construction. An additional cleanout is required at intervals of not more than 100' from the sewer main or after each 135° of accumulated bend of fittings.
- 2. If installation is near a tree, cutting off gasketed bell and using glue couplings may be required by City engineer.
- 3. Pipe must be installed bell up.
- 4. Minimum slope 2%, no maximum.
- 5. If the lowest floor served is lower than the lowest manhole lid in the street, a backflow valve must be installed.
- 6. Pipe must be bedded and any rock contacting pipe must be no larger than 1".
- 7. Abandoned septic tanks must meet requirements of the current or as hereafter amended plumbing code.
- 8. Property owner shall have maintenance responsibility for the entire sewer lateral from the main to the residence.
- 9. Storm sewers may not under any circumstances be connected to the sanitary sewer system.
- 10. Developer shall install sewer laterals from the main to the property line. The end of the lateral shall be at least four feet (4') deep unless building lot requires an unusual depth. The lateral shall be capped and marked with a

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

white painted treated  $2 \times 4$  extending from in front of the cap bottom vertically to at least 24" above ground level. An eighteen inch long #4 rebar shall then be driven flush with the ground marking the  $2 \times 4$  location.

Page **Page** 

## CITY OF CHELAN

## SECTION FOUR TABLE OF CONTENTS

## **Description**

SEWER DESIGNS	4-2
NEW MANHOLE ON EXISTING SEWER	4-2
MANHOLE STEP	
TYPICAL PRECAST MANHOLE	4-4
SIDE SEWER DETAILS	4-5
SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT - 8" MIN.	4-6
INSIDE DROP SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE	4-7
OUTSIDE DROP SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE	4-8
MANHOLE GRADE ADJUSTMENT DETAIL	4-9
FORCE MAIN SERVICE CONNECTION	4-10
#### **SEWER DESIGNS**

#### NEW MANHOLE ON EXISTING SEWER



### MANHOLE STEP



Note: Embedment depth to meet manufacturer's specifications.



ID-034

### SECTION FOUR - SEWER DESIGNS

#### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **TYPICAL PRECAST MANHOLE**



(Revised 02/03)

#### SIDE SEWER DETAILS



ĺ

#### SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT - 8" MIN.



(

#### **INSIDE DROP SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE**





#### **OUTSIDE DROP SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE**



NOTES:

- SELECT NATIVE BACKFILL MATERIAL OR IMPORTED BACKFILL MATERIAL COMPACTED PER SPECIFICATIONS
  STAINLESS BANDS WITH CONCRETE SPACER TO MANHOLE (5' MAX. SPACING, 1' MIN.)
  SEE STD DWG PAGE 4-6 FOR CLEANOUT DETAILS (NOT SHOWN)
- 4. DROP CONNECTION PIPE DIAMETER AND FITTINGS SHALL BE EQUAL TO OR GREATER THAN THE DIAMETER OF THE SEWER MAIN.
- 5. SEE PAGE 4-4 FOR CHANNELING FINISH REQUIREMENTS.
- 6. ALL DUTSIDE DROP M.H. SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH DUCTILE IRON PIPE.

ID-118

### SECTION FOUR - SEWER DESIGNS

1.

#### CITY OF CHELAN

#### **MANHOLE GRADE ADJUSTMENT DETAIL** (For existing manholes)

NOTE:

Remove existing frame & lid, bricks, conc. collar and top riser section. Install new reinforced concrete manhole riser section (field verify height) and maximum of four concrete adjustment rings (16") and existing frame and collar.



## FORCE MAIN SERVICE CONNECTION



# **CITY OF CHELAN**

## SECTION FIVE TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Description</u>	Page
TABLE OF CONTENTS	. 5-1
GENERAL	. 5-2
INTERSECTIONS	. 5-2
CONNECTING TO STATE HIGHWAYS	. 5-2
PLANS AND PROFILES SUBMITTAL	. 5-2
WORKMANSHIP AND MATERIALS	. 5-3
BONDING AND INSURANCE	. 5-3
TRAFFIC SIGNS	. 5-3
GUARD RAILS	. 5-3
ALLEYS	. 5-3
LATECOMERS	. 5-3
EXISTING UNIMPROVED STREET REQUIREMENTS	. 5-4
	. 5-5
HALF-WIDTH STREETS	. 5-6
STREETS VACATED BY OPERATION OF LAW	. 5-6
DRIVEWAYS	. 5-6
PRIVATE ROADS	. 5-6
	. 5-7
	. 5-7
	. 5-8
	. 5-8
	. 5-8
	. 5-8
	. 5-9
	. 5-9
	5-10
	5-11
JIKELI GLAJJIFIGATIONS	D-13

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

### GENERAL

The street layout of every development shall be in conformance with these standards and with the adopted comprehensive plan or circulation element thereof and shall provide for the continuation of major streets which serve property contiguous to the development. Street networks shall provide ready access for fire and other emergency vehicles and the Council, upon recommendation of the planning commission, may require additional access points if such are found to be necessary to protect the public safety. Street layout in mountainous areas may allow alignment cross section shifts as approved by the City engineer to accommodate topographical conditions.

## INTERSECTIONS

Street intersections shall be as nearly at right angles as is practicable and street jogs with offsets of less than one hundred twenty-five feet between centerlines are not allowed. In residential subdivisions where possible, the street system should be designed so as not to intersect with arterial streets at intersections less than one thousand feet apart.

### CONNECTING TO STATE HIGHWAYS

Where City streets connect to state highways, design standards from the most recent edition of the Washington State D.O.T. Standards for intersection design shall apply.

#### PLANS AND PROFILES SUBMITTAL

A plan and profile of the proposed street meeting all drafting standards of Section 8 and showing the following data shall be submitted to the City engineer for approval prior to preliminary development approval and construction:

Plan:

- Street alignment in stations of one-hundred foot intervals;
- Bearings on street centerline; (construction drawings only)
- Curve data on all horizontal curves, 50' stations minimum;
- Right-of-way lines and width for proposed streets;
- All topography within the right-of-way limits, including all utilities;
- Label all streets and adjoining subdivisions;
- Typical roadway section of proposed street;
- Existing and proposed drainage structures indicating direction of flows; and
- Map size shall be twenty four inches by thirty six inches. A one & one halfinch margin shall be provided on the left edge and a one half-inch margin shall be provided on the other edges of the map. All mapping to be drawn on mylar sheets.

Profile:

- Original ground line; Control elevation on border of sheet
- Stationing in intervals of one hundred feet;
- Grade line showing grade percents and vertical curves.

#### WORKMANSHIP AND MATERIALS

Workmanship and materials shall be in accordance with Sections 1-05 and 1-06 of the current edition of the Washington State Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Roads, Bridges, and Municipal Construction.

### BONDING AND INSURANCE

Developers shall meet all standards as set forth in the Section on "Bonding and Liability Insurance."

#### TRAFFIC SIGNS

Traffic control and street name signs shall be provided and installed by the developer in accordance with the current edition of the MUTCD Manual, and as directed by the City engineer.

#### **GUARD RAILS**

Guard rails may be required by the City Engineer where deemed appropriate in the interest of public safety, health and welfare. All guard rails shall conform to the criteria in Washington State Department of Transportation Design Manual as may be amended or revised.

#### ALLEYS

New alleys are not encouraged. Alleys, where provided at the rear of lots, shall have a minimum right-of-way width of twenty feet, shall be surfaced with graded and compacted 5/8"-0" crushed top course 3" deep with 11⁄4"-0" base course 4" deep and 3" AC top. Dead-end alleys and alleys with sharp changes in direction are prohibited. Alleys as a primary access are prohibited. Existing lots that have no alternative access may be exempted by the City engineer.

#### LATECOMERS

For existing platted lots, the City may enter into latecomer agreements with Developers prior to installation of infrastructure to provide for the reimbursement of a pro-rata share of the cost of construction by the service users of any real estate who have not contributed to the original cost of such facilities and who subsequently connect to the system pursuant to Chapters 12.28 and 13.36 of the Chelan Municipal Code as it now exists or as may be hereafter amended.

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

### EXISTING UNIMPROVED STREET REQUIREMENTS

#### Residential

- A. The following minimum standards shall apply to the development of single family residential dwelling units on an unimproved right of way (existing plats), and private roads:
  - 1. Minimum surfacing of all local private access streets shall be 3" of compacted ACP over 3" of compacted 5/8-0" crushed top course, 4" of compacted 1-1/4"-0" crushed base rock. Compacted depths shall meet or exceed existing subgrade depth.
  - 2. An improved turn-around shall be provided consistent with the current edition of these standards if the lot to be developed is located at the end of any road that is over 150 feet in length.
  - 3. All utilities which have not already been installed to serve the site shall be constructed to full City standards as set forth herein and installed underground. The list of affected utilities shall include but not be limited to water, sewer, storm drainage, electrical and communications.
  - 4. When allowed, the installation of a half-width street will be required to extend 100 feet beyond the length of the property toward the closest developed street at a grade and alignment approved by the Department of Public Works and may be allowed for those developments fronting on only one side of a dedicated right of way. Half streets must meet the requirements set forth on page 5-5.
  - 5. Existing subgrade soils may require additional compacted depths as directed by the City engineer.
- Β. All developments will require improvement of the road, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, and utilities in full compliance with these development standards, which shall include completion of conditions in A-3 above. However, street improvements for singular lot development that is non-contiguous to improved streets in existing plats. the existing R/W width, AC width and sidewalk status shall be extended to match the nearest impervious surfaced street. If the developer does not or can not bear the cost of connectivity and if the latecomers agreement does not apply. Council shall form an LID if improvements are required as a health and safety issue. Otherwise, development will not be allowed. The grades shall be established by the developer's engineer. The AC matching width shall be a minimum of 20' and must meet access standards as per Section 902 of the Uniform Fire Code as it now exists or as may be hereafter amended. The cross section of the said street shall meet specifications of these standards. The intent of the exception for singular lot development herein is to allow a private party to build and access a single family residence without the financial burden of completely developing the facilities to all

the lots. Should the private party acquire an interest in the intermediate lots, he will be considered as a developer and the above exception shall be disallowed.

C. Properties installing improvements as required in section A above shall receive credit for the current value of such improvements, to the extent that the improvements reduce the cost of a LID, against the cost of any future LID assessment for street improvements for a period of up to ten years after the date of installation of such improvements, as demonstrated by their acceptance by the City of Chelan.

### Commercial/Industrial

All new commercial development, including multifamily dwelling units, and conditional uses for business other than a home occupation, shall make the following minimum street improvements as a condition of any development permit issuance on any right of way which is not fully improved to current City standards:

- A. Improve the frontage of the property along the street right of way with curbs, gutters, sidewalks, storm drainage facilities and paving between the edge of gutter and existing asphalt.
- B. Improve the alley serving the property by complying with "Alleys" standards contained herein.
- C. Subject to the limitations set forth in RCW 35.43.182 as it now exists or as may be hereafter amended, when the City determines that improvements should be delayed, property owners shall sign an agreement to support and not oppose formation of a local improvement district for completion of the road and all utilities to City standards.
- D. Properties installing improvements as required in sections A or B above shall receive credit for the current value of such improvements, to the extent that the improvements reduce the cost of a LID, against the cost of their LID assessment for a period of up to ten years after the date of installation of such improvements, as demonstrated by their acceptance by the City of Chelan.

## MAILBOX INSTALLATION

Mailboxes shall not be located in such a way so as to obstruct a portion of a sidewalk. If mailboxes are located along the public street, they must be placed in a planter area between curbs and sidewalk. The sidewalk may be enlarged or placed behind mailboxes according to the detail shown in the Street Standards Section. New developments of multiple units must receive approval of the U.S. Post Office for mailbox location.

#### HALF-WIDTH STREETS

Half streets will only be allowed on existing plats with unimproved streets on which lots are non-contiguous with an improved street and where platted lots do not exist on both sides of the right-of-way. A half-width street shall meet the following requirements:

- A. Right-of-way width of the half-width street shall meet the standards of the designated street classification.
- B. If feasible, the half-width street shall be constructed so that the center of the ultimate road section will correspond with the center of the right-of-way;
- C. The traveled way shall be surfaced the same as one half the width of the designated street classification standard.
- D. The edge of the paved street shall be finished with permanent curb and gutter to ensure proper drainage, bank stability and traffic safety.
- E. When a half-street is eventually completed as a whole street, the completing developer shall reconstruct the original half-street as necessary to produce a proper full width street of designated section.

### STREETS VACATED BY OPERATION OF LAW

The City will not issue building permits to property of lots served by streets or alleys vacated by operation of law unless recorded and dedicated access is provided meeting full street standards of the City.

#### DRIVEWAYS

A driveway shall provide access to one, two, or three single family residences. A driveway to multiple residences must be upon a 20' easement and must have fire department approval, but will generally consist of 12' width of all-weather surfacing and a maximum grade of 12%. Driveway easement documentation shall be as per these standards. Regardless of access, all lots must front upon a platted public street or private road. Driveway to multiple residences must provide an emergency vehicle turnaround as per these standards. Maximum grade for a driveway to a single residence shall be 18%. In all cases, the portion of the driveway within the right-of-way shall be asphalt surface.

#### PRIVATE ROADS

Private roads shall meet the definition as given in this section and shall be allowed in the following instances:

- 1. As part of a planned unit development (PUD);
- 2. As permanently established by plat or easement providing legal access to serve two, three, or four single-family dwelling units and having a minimum forty feet of clear width (drawing pgs. 6-2 and 6-3) with a minimum of twenty-

four feet of asphaltic paving;

3. For access to multi-family housing, subject to approval by the City Engineer.

Said road shall be accessible at all times for emergency and public service use. Private roads shall have covenants which provide for the maintenance of the private roads by the owners, homeowners association, or other legal entity, and are recorded with the Chelan County Auditor's Office.

#### STREET CLASSIFICATIONS

The classifications of all streets shall be established by the Public Works Department. Street changes in classifications shall be shown to meet the following criteria.

**LOCAL/PRIVATE ACCESS STREET:** A short street, cul-de-sac, court or a street with branching places or lanes. A Local Access Street is a minor residential street, and usually there is not through traffic between two streets of a higher classification. ADT (Average Daily Trips) less than or equal to 1,000. Shall not exceed 2,000 feet in length.

**MINOR COLLECTOR:** The typical residential street, the minor collector is most commonly recognized as the lesser through street of a residential grid. While vehicular traffic could often travel through on a minor collector, intersections are either controlled or encumbered with stop signs, thus encouraging vehicles to use a major collector for through traffic. ADT greater than 1,000 and less than 2,000.

**MAJOR COLLECTOR**: The Major Collector is the major street in the urban system and correspondingly has the highest average daily traffic (ADT). The Major Collector generally receives many Minor Collector or Residential streets and/or is the major route to significant activity centers. These streets should not generally be encumbered with stop signs. ADT = 2,000+

**ARTERIAL:** The Arterial will generally be a state road and will move urban traffic along to other urban areas or higher class state or federal highways. ADT = WSDOT STANDARDS

\* Centerline striping will be performed for Arterial and major Collector streets only. (See street classification map)

## TRAFFIC COUNTS

The Average Daily Traffic (ADT) shall be estimated using the following trip generation rates or by the trip generations found in the latest edition of <u>Trip</u> <u>Generation Manual</u> by ITE (Institute of Traffic Engineers):

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

- A. Residential (expressed in vehicle trips/Dwelling Unit)
  - Single Family
  - Multi Family 6.6
- B. Commercial (expressed in vehicle trips/acre)
  - Retail (neighborhood)
    900
  - Retail (regional center)
    600
  - Service (highway oriented) 250
  - Service (office buildings) 300

## TRAFFIC STUDY REQUIREMENTS

Individual developments producing ADTs exceeding 50, or the accumulation of existing and proposed developments exceeding 1,000 ADTs may be required at the discretion of the City Engineer to perform a traffic study completed and stamped by a registered traffic engineer. The study shall provide recommendations for access based on collected data.

9.5

## ADDITIONAL ACCESS

Developments shall provide a secondary access way to an Arterial or Major collector when a traffic count of 1,000 ADT is reached. The number of ADTs shall be determined using both (1) existing development within the area that would be served by the secondary access way and (2) the development proposal. A third access point shall be required when a total traffic count of 3,000 ADT is reached. Additional access points may be required if necessary for public safety and/or reasonable level of service. If additional accesses cannot be installed due to topography, waterways, negotiable grades, or other similar conditions, the requirement may be waived, and mitigation measures will be required.

## CUL-DE-SACS

Cul-de-Sacs shall be limited to serve a maximum of 30 lots and shall not exceed 2,000 feet in length. Where the total number of ADTs generated by residences served by the cul-de-sac is between 286 and 999, the limitations on length and on number of lots served may be waived if additional access cannot be installed due to topography, waterways, non-negotiable grades, or other similar conditions. If the limitation on length, number of lots served, or both is waived, all dwelling units and accessory buildings shall be protected by approved automatic sprinkler systems. A cul-de-sac may not serve an area generating more that 999 ADTs without providing additional access, whether or not the buildings are equipped with approved automatic sprinkler systems.

#### SECONDARY ACCESS REQUIREMENTS

## Single-family Residential Developments

Developments consisting of single-family residential housing where the number of dwelling units exceeds 30 shall provide two separate and approved access roads. Where the number of dwelling units is from 31 to 105, the requirement for a second access road may

## CITY OF CHELAN

be waived if the secondary road cannot be installed due to topography, waterways, nonnegotiable grades, or other similar conditions. If the requirement for a secondary access is waived, all dwelling units shall be protected by approved residential sprinkler systems. When the number of dwelling units exceeds 105, two separate and approved access roads shall be required regardless of whether the homes are equipped with approved residential sprinkler systems.

## Multi-family Residential Developments

Developments consisting of multi-family residential units where the number of dwelling units exceeds 100 shall provide two separate and approved access roads. Where the number of dwelling units is from 101 to 151, the requirement for a second access road may be waived if the secondary road cannot be installed due to topography, waterways, non-negotiable grades, or other similar conditions. If the requirement for a secondary access is waived, all buildings, including nonresidential occupancies, shall be equipped throughout with approved automatic sprinkler systems. When the number of dwelling units exceeds 151, two separate and approved access roads shall be required regardless of whether the buildings are equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler system.

## **Mixed Developments**

For developments that contain both single-family and multi-family units, two separate and approved access roads shall be required when the number of Average Daily Trips (ADTs) exceeds 285. The total number of ADTs shall be calculated using the criteria listed under "Traffic Counts", on page 5-7 of the Development Standards. Where the total number of ADTs is between 286 and 999, the requirement for a second access road may be waived if the secondary road cannot be installed due to topography, waterways, nonnegotiable grades, or other similar conditions. If the requirement for a secondary access is waived, all dwelling units and accessory buildings shall be protected by approved automatic sprinkler systems. When the number of ADTs reaches 1,000, two separate and approved access roads shall be required regardless of whether the buildings are equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler system.

## FIRE ACCESS ROADS

Roads which are designated as fire access roads shall conform to the minimum street standards for new construction as shown on page 5-11 of the Development Standards.

## CONNECTIVITY OF STREETS

All new development shall provide for the continuation of streets that will potentially serve property contiguous to the new development. Extending the improved street up to the common property line will fulfill this requirement. Each street with the potential for extension into contiguous properties shall be sized based on the estimated number of Average Daily Trips (ADTs) which will be generated by all properties within the Urban Growth Area (UGA) served by this road. The number of ADTs shall be determined based on the land use designation of the properties in question. In no case shall any parcel of

## CITY OF CHELAN

property within City limits and/or the Urban Growth Boundary be allowed to become "landlocked" due to development in adjoining properties.

## OTHER REFERENCES

The most current edition of the following publications and manuals may be used to supplement this chapter when a specific subject is not covered or discussed:

*"Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge, and Municipal Construction"* - Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT)

"Standard Plans for Road, Bridge, and Municipal Construction" - WSDOT

"Local Agency Guidelines" - (WSDOT)

"Design Manual" - (WSDOT)

*"Policy on Design of Highways and Streets" - American Association of State Highway and "Transportation Officials" (AASHTO)* 

*"Trip Generation Manual" -* Institute of Traffic Engineers (ITE)

"Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices" - United States of Transportation (USDOT)

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

# MINIMUM STREET STANDARDS FOR NEW CONSTRUCTION

Functional Classification		Local/Private	Minor Collector	Major Collector	Arterial
Minimum horiz. curve radius on inside face of curb	Flat <5%	100'	100'	150'	300'
	Rolling 5%-15%	80'	100'	150'	300'
	Mountainous >15%	80'	80'	100	150'
Maximum	F	7	7	7	6
Grade in %	R	10	10	10	8
	м	12	12	12	10
Min. roadway width, curb face to curb face	F	28'	32'	40'	48'
	R	28'	32'	36'	40'
	М	24	24'	NA	NA
Sidewalk-note 2	F	5'-both sides	5'-both sides	5'-both sides	10'-both sides
Min. width (add 0.5' for curb)	R	5'-both sides	5'-both sides	5'-both sides	10'-both sides
	м	5'-one side	5'-one side	NA	NA
Bank Slope	F	4:1	4:1	4:1	5:1
(h:v)	R	2:1	2:1	2:1	2:1
	м	2:1	2:1	2:1	2:1
Minimum Right of Way	F	50' note 3	60'	74'	100'
	R	50' note 3	60'	74'	100'
	м	40'	50'	NA	NA
Parking	F	1 @ 8'	2 @ 8'	2 @ 8'	note 2
	R	1 @ 8'	2 @ 8'	2 @ 8'	note 2
		1 @ 8' note 1	1@8'	NA	NA
Bike Lanes	F	NA	NA	2@6'	2 @ 6'
	R	NA	NA	2 @ 6'	2 @ 6'
	м	NA	NA	NA	NA
Traffic Lanes	F	2 @ 10'	2@8'	2 @ 12'	4 @ 10'
	R	2 @ 10'	2 @ 8'	<u>2 @ 12'</u>	4 @ 10'
	м	2 @ 8'	2@8'	NA	NA
Green Way Utility Strip	F	2 @ 5.5'	2 @ 5.5'	2 @ 5.5'	2 @ 5.5'
	R	2 @ 5.5'	<u>2 @ 5.5'</u>	2@5.5'	2 @ 5.5'
	М	2 @ 1.5'	2 @ 5.5'	NA	NA
Road Surface	Min. 1%	3" asphalt, 3" top			
		course, 4" base	course, 4" base	course, 6" base	course, 6" base

Base course depths may require a design depth by a soils engineer if determined by the City engineer.

1 - As designated by engineer (See 6-3)

2 - 10' width in commercial or industrial areas

3 - Private road right-of-way width may be reduced to 40' at discretion of City Engineer

See following page for additional notes.

## MINIMUM STREET STANDARDS FOR NEW CONSTRUCTION - Con't

NOTES:

- a. Rolled curb (see City standard plan) is allowed on local & minor collector streets in excess of 32' between curbs in width except in mountainous terrain where access or parking is not permitted.
- b. Green way utility strips may be combined to one side of the street upon approval of the City engineer. They are provided for all non City utilities, snow removal and beautification. Green way widths may be reduced if greater backslope area is required as determined by the City engineer.
- c. The City Engineer may allow reduction in paving width to a minimum 24' and an increase in grade up to a maximum of 14% on mountainous terrain where no access is provided and no feasible alternative exists, providing all emergency services approve of the same.
- d. Cut slopes steeper than 2:1 may be used where favorable soil conditions exist or stepped construction is used, when approved by the City Engineer. The City engineer may also require slopes flatter than 2:1, depending on native soil conditions.
- e. Right of way shall include all cut & fill slopes to natural ground.
- f. Switch backs, when necessary, shall be designed with a minimum centerline radius of 55' and a minimum inside radius of 25' with pavement widening on the inside edge accordingly. City engineer may also require local asphalt widening on other curve sections as deemed necessary.
- g. In a PUD, curbside sidewalks may be replaced as a functional equivalent by a separate path or trail with equivalent surface and dimensions, with all weather impervious surfacing on a public easement, when approved as part of the Homeowners Association ownership and responsibility in lieu of Public sidewalks as normally placed adjacent to the roadway and serving the same function.
- h. Additional Right of Way width may be required where a clear pattern of future development is present (such as to serve areas included in the Urban Growth Boundary).
- i. Sidewalks, where necessary because of topographic constraints, may be, upon approval of the City engineer, required on only one side.
- j. Any roadway surface that restricts parking shall be so posted at the expense of the developer.
- k. Curb radius shall be 20' radius to face of curb on local and minor collectors and 35' on major collectors and arterials.
  I. An approved traffic safety control plan is required when working in the R/W.
- m. Dust control will be required for all construction projects.



CITY STANDARDS

Adopted July, 1998

CITY OF CHELAN

Adopted Chelan County Feb 2009 Exhibit A

SECTION FIVE - STREET STANDARDS

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### SECTION SIX TABLE OF CONTENTS

Description	Page
TABLE OF CONTENTS	6-1
LOCAL/PRIVATE ACCESS STREET DESIGN	6-2
LOCAL STREET IN MOUNTAINOUS TERRAIN	6-3
MINOR COLLECTOR STREET DESIGN	6-4
MINOR COLLECTOR IN MOUNTAINOUS TERRAIN	6-5
MAJOR COLLECTOR STREET DESIGN	6-6
ARTERIAL STREET DESIGN	<i>.</i> 6-7
BIKE LANES	6-8
INTERSECTION PLANS AND CURB RAMP LOCATIONS	6-9
CUL-DE-SAC PLAN	6-10
OTHER TYPE TURNAROUND PLANS	6-11
CURB & GUTTER SECTIONS	6-12
ROLLED CURB SECTION	6-13
WHEELCHAIR RAMP DETAIL WITH LANDING	6-14
HANDICAP RAMP TYPE I	6-16
ACCESSIBLE PARKING WITH CONTINUOUS CURB RAMP	6-17
SIDEWALK	6-18
SIDEWALK SPACING	6-19
ACCESS APPROACH CONTROL (DRIVEWAYS & PRIVATE ROADS)	6-20
MAILBOX MOUNTING CURB TYPE INSTALLATION	6-21
NEIGHBORHOOD DELIVERY AND COLLECTION BOX UNIT	6-21
SIGN INSTALLATION	6-23
SILT FENCING	6-24
DRIVEWAY WITH DEPRESSED SIDEWALK	6-25
TYPICAL DRIVEWAY	6-26





CITY STANDARDS

Adopted July, 1998

ID-073

Adopted Chelan County Feb 2009 Exhibit A

CITY OF CHELAN

1



(Revised 01/07)

ဝှ-ပ

CTION XIS 1 S TRE m 1000 DESIGN



Adopted Chelan County Feb 2009 Exhibit A



CITY OF CHELAN

Adopted Chelan County Feb 2009 Exhibit A

CITY STANDARDS

Adopted July, 1998

(Revised 01/07)

6-4



CITY STANDARDS

Adopted July, 1998

(Revised 01/07)

ი 5 Adopted Chelan County Feb 2009 Exhibit A

CITY OF CHELAN

SECTION SIX -

STRE

Ē

DESIGN



Adopted July, 1998

CITY STANDARDS

ი-ი

ID-072

Adopted Chelan County Feb 2009 Exhibit A

CITY OF CHELAN



CITY STANDARDS

Adopted July, 1998

Adopted Chelan County Feb 2009 Exhibit A

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **BIKE LANES**



\* THE OPTIONAL SOLID WHITE STRIPE MAY BE ADVSABLE WHERE STALLS ARE UNNECESSARY (BECAUSE PARKING IS LIGHT) BUT THERE IS CONCERN THAT MOTORISTS MAY MISCONSTURE THE BIKE LANE TO BE A TRAFFIC LANE.







ID-12D

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### INTERSECTION PLANS AND CURB RAMP LOCATIONS

#### Notes:

- 1. Catch basin and inlets shall be outside the curb ramp (24" min. Clearance from ramp).
- 2. Care shall be taken to keep the ramp from conflicting with hydrants, poles, inlets, and other utilities.
- When ramps are constructed on one side of street, ramps shall be constructed at corresponding locations on opposite side of street.
   Minimum 20' R. local and minor collector, 35' R.
  - Minimum 20' R. local and minor collector, 35' R. major collector and arterial.



ID-038

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### CUL-DE-SAC PLAN



ID-039

NOTE: A "Hammerhead" or "L' turnaround may be used, with City Engineer approval, as an alternate when a cul-de-sac is not feasible, or as a means of intermediate turnaround for permanent streets longer than 150'.

A street that is planned to dead-end against a subdivision boundary for future extension, shall have temporary easement for right-of-way and be paved without curb and gutter for ease of removal of extra pavement and easement when street is extended.

At least one sign stating "No parking - Fire Lane" shall be installed at the beginning of Cul-de-sac by developer.

#### OTHER TYPE TURNAROUND PLANS







## **CURB & GUTTER SECTIONS**



CITY STANDARDS

Adopted July, 1998

1.

## CITY OF CHELAN

#### **ROLLED CURB SECTION** (Sidewalk Adjacent or Separated)

NOTE:

Rolled curb is only permitted on local and minor collector streets by developer request and only if curbside sidewalks are built at the same time. It is not allowed by developer request in mountainous terain where property access is prohibited or not intended to occur.

- 2. 4000 psi concrete required for sidewalks abutting rolled curbs.
- 3. 6 x 6 W1.4 x W1.4 welded wire fabric as per ASHTO M55 reinforcement required in rolled curb sidewalk sections. 8" overlap on splices required.



## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### WHEELCHAIR RAMP DETAIL WITH LANDING



- 1. Depressed curb shall have no more than a 1/2" radius lip at gutter in wheelchair ramp sections.
- 2. Texturing with metal grid placed in wet concrete and then removed to leave ridged surface pattern. Texturing shall cover upper sloped area in ramp and shall not exceed 1/2" depth. Contractor to provide sample for approval by engineer prior to performing work. ADA truncated domes as per WSDOT standards. Dome material as approved by Public Works.
- 3. Minimum 5' landing, or use detail #6-15 without landing.
- 4. See also WSDOT Standard Plan F-3a.
## **CITY OF CHELAN**

### WHEELCHAIR RAMP DETAIL WITHOUT LANDING

- 1. Depressed curb shall have no more than a ½" radius lip at gutter in wheelchair ramp sections.
- 2. Texturing with metal grid placed in wet concrete and then removed to leave ridged surface pattern. Texturing shall cover all sloped area in ramp and shall not exceed 1/2" depth. Contractor to provide sample for approval by engineer prior to performing work. ADA truncated domes as per WSDOT Standards. Dome material as approved by Public Works.
- 3. See also WSDOT Standard Plan F-3b.



## WHEELCHAIR RAMP WITHOUT LANDING

ID-041

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

### HANDICAP RAMP TYPE I



ĺ

ĺ

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

### ACCESSIBLE PARKING WITH CONTINUOUS CURB RAMP



ACCESSIBLE PARKING SHOWN WITH CONTINUOUS CURB RAMP

ID-122

í

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

### SIDEWALK



- expansion joints, and score marks.
- 2. Concrete driveways require a minimum depth of 6".

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### SIDEWALK SPACING



WSDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS CURBS, GUTTERS, AND SPILLWAYS

### ID-058

#### **GENERAL NOTES:**

- 1. Expansion joint material to be 3/8" thick premolded joint filler full thickness of concrete.
- 2. Form and subgrade inspection required before pouring concrete.
- 3. Score marks shall be  $\pm 1/8$ " wide by  $\pm 1$ " deep for sidewalks 10' in width, a longitudinal score mark shall be made along center of walk.
- 4. Expansion joints shall be installed in curb and gutter and in sidewalk at PC and PT at all curb returns. Expansion joints shall be placed in sidewalk at same locations as those in curb and gutter when sidewalk is adjacent to curb and gutter, unless otherwise directed by Public Works.
- 5. Brush finish.
- 6. Extruded cement concrete curb allowed with approval of City Engineer.

## CITY OF CHELAN

### ACCESS APPROACH CONTROL (DRIVEWAYS & PRIVATE ROADS)

A residential driveway is an access which serves one, two, or three single family residences. Recorded easements are necessary for such joint use access. All other accesses are commercial access.

Width shall be determined as the net width of opening, exclusive of side slopes.

The maximum width of residential driveway curb cuts shall be 25', minimum 10'. If a parcel is entitled to two accesses, these may be combined into one single access of 35' maximum width. (Does not apply to rolled curb section.)

The maximum width of commercial access shall be 35', minimum 15'.

Not more than one access shall be permitted for frontage 75' or less. Two accesses shall be permitted for frontage greater than 75'. Permission to have three or more accesses on a frontage greater than 150' must be approved by the engineer.

As a condition of issuance of any Right of Way Permit, all abandoned access improvements on the same frontage shall be removed and the curbing and sidewalks properly restored. Location and extent of all commercial access is subject to approval of the engineer.

No concrete shall be poured until forms are inspected by engineer.

Joint use accesses are encouraged in commercial areas.

Upon remodel of existing commercial accesses, standards may be modified to allow minimum turning radius required for related commerce as approved by the City engineer.

The centerline of the approach extended, shall intersect the centerline of the City street at an angle not less than 75°.

Wherever topographic conditions permit, there shall be a level section on the approach extending back from the road shoulder a distance of fifteen feet (15').

Road approaches must be ballasted and leveled with crushed stone surfacing (standard top course.) Approaches shall be paved and must slope away from the road shoulder at a minimum rate of three inches (3") per ten feet (10'). Maximum driveway slope shall not exceed 18%.

No access approach shall be constructed until a permit from the City has been issued.



# **SECTION SIX - STREET DESIGN**

#### MAILBOX MOUNTING CURB TYPE INSTALLATION



#### Mailbox Locations Shall Be:

- For three or more mailboxes on urban residential access streets where the speed limit is 25 mph. Mailbox height varies according to the type of delivery vehicle. These heights shall be determined by the 1. 2. Mailboxes must be postmaster approved with a uniform box style and method of address identification. Location of mailboxes subject to approval of postmaster and City engineer. Optional newspaper box structures are subject to approval of postmaster and City engineer.

- Roof is optional.
- 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. The minimum spacing between the centers of support posts shall be three-fourths the height of the posts above
- 8.
- 9.
- The minimum spacing between the centers of support posts shall be three-routins the neight of the posts above the groundline. Mailbox support designs not described in this regulation will be acceptable if approved by the chief engineer of the United States Post Office. It will be the responsibility of the postal patron to inform the USPO of any new or existing mailbox installation where shoulder construction is inadequate to permit all-weather vehicular access to the mailbox. Any mailbox that is found to violate the intent of this regulation shall be removed by the postal patron upon notification by the USPO. At the discretion of the USPO, based on an assessment of hazard to the public, the patron will be granted not less than 24 hours nor more than 30 days to remove an unacceptable mailbox. 10. patron will be granted not less than 24 hours nor more than 30 days to remove an unacceptable mailbox. After the specified removal period has expired, the unacceptable mailbox will be removed by the USPO at the postal patron's expense.

#### **NEIGHBORHOOD DELIVERY AND COLLECTION BOX UNIT**

## **CITY OF CHELAN**



(

ĺ

## **CITY OF CHELAN**





## **CITY OF CHELAN**

### SILT FENCING







ID-031

## **SECTION SIX - STREET DESIGN**

#### **DRIVEWAY WITH DEPRESSED SIDEWALK**



NOTES:

1 CEMENT CONCRETE APPROACHES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF AIR-ENTRAINED CONCRETE CLASS B

- 2 CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL BE PLACED AT 15' MAXIMUM SPACING.
- 3 ALL JOINTS SHALL BE CLEANED AND EDGED.

ID-043

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### TYPICAL DRIVEWAY WITH CURB/WALK, WITH AND WITHOUT GREEN STRIP



ID-116

### **CITY OF CHELAN**

### SECTION SEVEN TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Description</u>	Page
INTRODUCTION:	7-2
PURPOSE:	7-2
WHEN A DRAINAGE PLAN OR DRAINAGE REVIEW IS REQUIRED:	7-2
WHEN PLANS ARE EXEMPT:	7-2
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS:	7-3
BASIC REQUIREMENTS:	7-4
DRAFTING STANDARDS AND CONTENTS:	7-4
DESIGN CRITERIA:	7-5
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE PLAN:	7-8
FEES:	7-8
BONDS AND LIABILITY INSURANCE:	7-8
STANDARD DRAINAGE SYSTEM MAINTENANCE:	7-8
ACCESS DRAINAGE	7-8
MINIMUM CULVERT SIZES	7-10
FLOW RESTRICTOR (Catch Basin Type 2)	7-11
MULTI-ORIFICE FLOW RESTRICTOR (Catch Basin type 2)	7-12
PRECAST CONCRETE DRYWELL	7-13
MANHOLE TYPE 1	7-14
CATCH BASIN TYPE 1	7-15
CATCH BASIN TYPE II (Oil Separator)	7-16
CATCH BASIN TYPE III (Oil Separator)	7-17

### **INTRODUCTION:**

The City of Chelan has found that future storm water drainage problems may be reduced or avoided if future developers, both private and public, provide for storm and surface water drainage of their respective properties. Storm Drainage Standards and Guidelines are set forth to protect life and property from loss and damage by flooding and to protect streams, creeks, and lakes from pollution and excessive flows.

Any material, design procedure, standard or testing not specifically addressed within this document shall be in conformance with the City's current master drainage plan as now exists or as may hereafter be amended as may be directed by the City engineer. Analysis and improvements shall conform to the guidelines contained in the *Stormwater Management Manual for Eastern Washington* by the Washington State Department of Ecology.

### PURPOSE:

The following storm drainage standards and guidelines are intended to reduce and prevent adverse storm drainage impacts. They represent the minimum design standards for the construction of storm drainage facilities and stream channel improvements within Chelan. Compliance with these standards does not relieve the designer, owner, or developer of the responsibility to apply conservative and sound professional judgment to protect the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Special site conditions and environmental constraints and considerations may require a greater level of protection than would normally be required under these standards.

#### WHEN A DRAINAGE PLAN OR DRAINAGE REVIEW IS REQUIRED:

- A. Plans for permanent drainage and storm water detention facilities shall be provided on property improvements within Chelan in accordance with the Standards for the following types of improvements.
  - 1. All plats (including short plats) where required by the SEPA document.
  - 2. All developments, including remodeling, reconstruction, and new construction adding five thousand (5000) square feet or more of new impervious surfaces, including gravel surfaces.
  - 3. Developments entailing construction which would change the point of discharge of surface waters, discharge surface waters at a higher velocity and/or quantity than that of the pre-development discharge rate, or, tend to add to pollution of surface waters.
  - 4. Any proposed development adjacent to the 100 year flood plain of any stream or lake.

#### WHEN PLANS ARE EXEMPT:

The plan requirement established in the previous section shall not apply when Public

Works determines that the proposal meets all of conditions A, B and C.

- A. Will not seriously and adversely impact the water quality conditions of any affected receiving bodies of water.
- B. Will not substantially alter the drainage pattern or increase the peak discharge.
- C. Will not cause run-off exceeding the available capacity of the existing drainage system where such system was designed to serve the proposed development area.

A single family residence development with less than 5,000 square feet of impervious surfaces is exempt from plan requirements. However, all buildings with down spouts or other point sources shall provide a drainage plan.

### GENERAL REQUIREMENTS:

All persons proposing land development and/or approvals as outlined above shall provide a drainage plan for surface water flows entering, flowing within and leaving the subject property. The plan is to conform to the following standards and requirements:

- A. When required, plans for storm water management shall be prepared by a registered Civil Engineer currently licensed by the State of Washington and qualified by experience and education in the field of hydraulics, hydrology, or a closely related field. Storm drainage plans or revisions to any approved plan shall be reviewed and approved by Public Works prior to any construction.
- B. On-site storm drainage improvements must be sufficient to mitigate impacts on runoff, erosion, sedimentation and pollution.
- C. All drainage system elements must be designed to allow for adequate maintenance and accessibility at all times.
- D. Developer shall meet all applicable laws for water quality prior to discharge to any wetland, stream, or lake.
- E. In no case shall storm sewers be allowed to connect to sanitary sewers.
- F. Storm sewer systems shall generally conform to sanitary sewer design standards. City engineer may specify ductile iron pipe in special circumstances.
- G. No drainage originating inside of a building or structure shall be connected to the storm drainage of surface water systems.

**CITY OF CHELAN** 

H. Drainage systems shall be designed to meet applicable State and Federal requirements for water quality prior to discharge to any wetland, stream, or lake. The developer shall be responsible for obtaining any Local, State, Or Federal construction or discharge approvals or permits.

## **BASIC REQUIREMENTS:**

- A. Discharge at Natural Location: All surface and storm water runoff from a proposed development that would construct new or modify existing drainage facilities should be discharged at the natural location. Diversions may be allowed if it corrects an existing problem.
- B. Tributary Area Analysis: Proposed developments should identify the upstream tributary drainage area and provide an analysis of the pre-existing drainage volume and quality and an analysis of the impact of the proposal on the drainage system. The post development peak rate runoff shall not exceed the pre-development peak rates for the site. The methods of peak rate runoff control may include detention, retention and/or infiltration. On site bio-filtration in combination with infiltration systems is the preferred method for management of on-site storm water and shall be considered before transporting storm water off-site.
- C. Existing System Assessment: For all proposed development requiring a drainage conveyance system, the conveyance system must be analyzed, designed and constructed to handle existing off-site tributary flows and on-site storm drainage flows caused by development of the project.
- D. Erosion & Sediment Control: Developments involving clearing and grading and which require new or modification of existing drainage facilities must include an erosion/sedimentation control plan meeting DOE requirements and providing suitable measures to prevent sediment-laden runoff from leaving the site during construction.
- E. Maintenance and Operation: The long-term maintenance & operation of the proposed drainage facilities must be addressed in the plan (who, when & how).
- F. Adequate easements shall be provided for operation and maintenance of all drainage facilities located on private property.

## DRAFTING STANDARDS AND CONTENTS:

Construction plans for drainage systems shall be prepared in conformance with the City of Chelan's adopted construction plan standards.

### **DESIGN CRITERIA:**

- 1. Runoff Control
  - A. Developments shall be designed and constructed to provide control of the quality and quantity of storm water runoff both during and after construction. Erosion and sedimentation control plans shall be submitted and approved by the City of Chelan prior to the beginning of any construction. Please note that a permit from the DOE is required if 5 or more acres are disturbed. Peak discharge control and detention facilities shall be provided in accordance with the Development Standards.
  - B. Maximum allowable release rates from storm water detention systems shall be based upon the pre-development runoff from the development site as described in section below. The allowable release rate shall be determined as specified, and may be modified on a case-by-case basis due to constraints in the drainage system downstream of the point of discharge. Storm precipitation distribution and runoff modeling will conform to the Soil Conservation Service Technical Report 55 or other acceptable method. The "Rational method" used by licensed professional engineers may be used for runoff modeling on parcels under 2 acres, not subject to upstream runoff. T<sub>c</sub> minimum shall be 0.1 hours.

Allowable Release Rate:

- 1. For sites with tributary basins greater than 5 acres or sites less than 5 acres in area which are deemed by Public Works to have significant impacts due to runoff quantity, the discharge shall be limited to the capacity of the receiving conveyance system. Peak runoff rate shall be computed using the Soil Conservation Service TR-55 method, modified Santa Barbara Urban Hydrograph Method or other appropriate models.
- 2. Should the proponent desire to discharge at higher flowrates than provided above, then he shall provide for improvements of the downstream conveyance system.
- C. The on-site drainage system including conveyance, flow restriction, detention, pollution control, and emergency overflow elements must be properly designed and sized to handle runoff from the site and conveyance through the site. The design should be carefully analyzed for potential problems, flow impediments, construction or maintenance difficulties, and potential erosion or other property damage. Catch basins shall be required at every intersection and shall be spaced a maximum of :

Spacing	Grade
150'	0.5% to 1.5% and 12.0% and greater
200"	1.5% to 3.0% and 8.0% to 12.0%
300'	3.0% to 8.0%

D. Impoundment structures shall be designed to the 100 year (3.0"/24hrs.) event. Conveyance structures shall be designed to the 25 year (2.5"/24 hrs.) event.

### 2. Water Quality Protection

All storm water discharge shall be treated prior to release using best management practices. The applicant should consider the use of vegetative or other natural filtration means. Effluent discharges from any oil removal treatment device to the storm sewer or surface water system shall be in compliance with State Department of Ecology regulations for discharge to storm drains or surface waters. Whenever paved parking is provided for more than 10 vehicles, or for any paved parking or access roadway draining to an open waterway or stream, a City approved oil/grease separation device shall be installed by the Owner. It shall be located at a point where it can be easily maintained and where it will intercept floating contaminants flowing off road rights of way, parking lots, and other sources of pollutants. Selection and sizing of oil separation device type shall be subject to approval of Public Works.

- A. The property owner assumes full responsibility and liability for proper maintenance and operation of the oil separator, unless the separator is a part of a publicly operated drainage system. This statement must appear on the recorded drawings for the development.
- B. Access to the separator shall be maintained.
- 3. Detention Facilities
  - A. Detention facilities will be required when the downstream capacity is inadequate to convey the runoff. All storm water runoff originating from and/or draining from any proposed development shall be controlled and/or conveyed in accordance with all City standards and policies and as described in these Standards.
  - B. Storm water detention systems should be designed to maximize reliability, ease of maintenance, and water quality of runoff and should minimize hazards to persons or property (both on-site and off-site), nuisance values, and risk of failure.
  - C. Sufficient detention storage capacity shall be provided to store the excess runoff from the developed site for all storm events up to a "100-year storm".
  - D. Sizing: In calculating the storage volume provided, "dead storage" in wet ponds shall be excluded, i.e. that volume of water which must be assumed to be present in the detention system at the commencement of the design

CITY OF CHELAN

storm. Any volume at a level below that of the outfall invert must be presumed to be dead storage, e.g. catchments.

- E. Controlled Overflow Requirements: All detention storage facilities should include a provision for control of overflows, and suitable data shall be provided to support the design. Under no circumstances should the overflow discharge overland or over private property unless drainage easements are acquired.
- F. Site, Soil and Infiltration Data Requirements for Calculating Effective Infiltration Rates to Reduce Storage Requirements.

General Data Requirements:

- a. The proposed site should have favorable topography to preclude high runoff rates. Engineering calculations shall be included with any submittal to show that there will be no adverse impacts due to the reduced storage. Such adverse impacts may include but not be limited to, increased frequency of overflows.
- b. A log of the soils and infiltration test data should be submitted to reveal site soil conditions and infiltration rates.
- c. An adequate number of test holes should be located over the proposed site to substantiate representative conditions for the final layout of the development, and as a minimum condition, test holes shall be located in each area and at the elevation proposed for infiltration.
- d. Groundwater depth, location, flow and general characteristics shall be considered.
- e. The designer shall demonstrate the adequacy of the depth to the impervious layer below the bottom of the proposed infiltration trench or basin.
- f. Soil Data Requirement:

A soil log may be required to describe soil type and depth along with a site map showing the location of each test hole. Classification may be in general terms such as loose sand, sandy silt, clay hardpan, rock, etc. or classification may be in specific terms as described by the U.S. Department of Agriculture (Soil Conservation Service). The soil log should include the depth to ground water table, if less than twelve (12) feet in depth. A falling head permeability test or similar method must be used to demonstrate the infiltration capacity of the least pervious soil layer.

### CITY OF CHELAN

### REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE PLAN:

The drainage plan and supporting calculations will be reviewed by Public Works Department's construction plan review procedures in coordination with all other City land development and/or permit review procedures. The City's review and approval of storm drainage control plan shall not relieve the applicant, owner and/or designer of liability for errors or omissions in the design of storm drainage facilities.

All storm drainage plans prepared shall be submitted for review and approval to the Public Works Department.

Any applicant or property owner proposing an action that may require a storm drainage plan may request a preliminary review of the proposal by the City Engineer and a determination of the need for a drainage plan.

### FEES:

Storm drainage plan review and inspection fees are calculated as per Appendix B-2.

### BONDS AND LIABILITY INSURANCE:

The Department of Public Works shall require persons constructing storm drainage facilities to comply with the Section on "Bonding and Liability Insurance."

### STANDARD DRAINAGE SYSTEM MAINTENANCE:

Maintenance of storm drainage facilities on private property shall be the responsibility of the owner(s), unless otherwise provided for in these standards. This responsibility and the provision for maintenance shall be clearly stated on subdivision and short plat plans, property conveyance documents, and/or drainage improvement plans. In the event the owner(s) does not provide proper maintenance and the City engineer determines the storm drainage facility represents a public safety threat the City engineer will give 30-day notice to the owner(s) to correct the deficiencies. If the deficiencies are not corrected within 30-days the City may enter upon the property to perform the necessary maintenance at the owner(s) expense. This provision for access will be included as a provision of plat or plan approval.

### ACCESS DRAINAGE

The right to lay a culvert within the street is reserved expressly to the City. A person desiring the installation of a culvert within a street under a driveway or along property frontage shall apply to the City, stating the length, location, and purpose of the culvert. The City engineer, or his authorized representative, shall determine the necessity of a culvert pipe under the driveway approach. In general, a pipe will be required where the approach crossed the roadway ditch, or where a roadside drainage problem exists., or where one will be created by the construction of the road approach. Where a pipe is specified, it shall meet the following requirements:

- a. Inside diameter 12"
- Material concrete, corrugated steel, or corrugated aluminum, culvert pipe specifications. (Reference WSDOT 1994 standard specifications.) Concrete drain pipe shall meet the requirements of ASTM C118. Zinc coated galvanized steel drain pipe shall meet the requirements of ASSHTO M 36, pipe thickness shall be 0.064 inches. Corrugated aluminum alloy drain pipe shall meet requirements of AASHTO M 196, without perforations. Though generally not allowed for driveway culvert applications, corrugated polyethylene pipe (CPEP) with smooth bore interior is allowed for tight-line storm piping. Piping shall be Hancor Blue Seal, or ADS N–12, with water tight seals, or approved equivalent.
- c. Installation the flow line of the pipe shall be at the same elevation and alignment as the flow line of the roadway ditch or drainage ditch. Concrete pipe joints may be ungrouted. The pipe shall extend a sufficient distance past the toe of the approach fill to prevent sloughing into the pipe ends.

## **SECTION SEVEN - STORM WATER MANAGEMENT**

### MINIMUM CULVERT SIZES

The minimum diameter of culvert pipes under City streets shall be 18." Culvert pipes from grated inlets or catch basins under roadway may have a minimum diameter of 12." Culvert pipes under driveway approaches shall have a minimum diameter of 12."

Culvert pipe shall be CMP or concrete as approved by the City engineer. Culvert outlets shall be constructed to provide erosion control. (See Section 7-8, Driveway access drainage).



**CITY STANDARDS** 

Adopted July, 1998

## CITY OF CHELAN

### FLOW RESTRICTOR (Catch Basin Type 2)



ID-012

### **CITY OF CHELAN**

### **MULTI-ORIFICE FLOW RESTRICTOR** (Catch Basin type 2)



**CITY OF CHELAN** 

## PRECAST CONCRETE DRYWELL



## SECTION SEVEN - STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

### MANHOLE TYPE 1

Note: Design shall provide a one-tenth drop from invert inlet to outlet.



10-074

## SECTION SEVEN - STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

## CATCH BASIN TYPE 1

Notes:

- 1. As an acceptable alternate to rebar, wire mesh having a minimum area of 0.12 square inches per foot may be used. Wire mesh shall not be placed in knockouts.
- 2. The knockout diameter shall not be greater than 20". Knockouts shall have a wall thicknss of 2" minimum to 2-1/2" maximum.
- 3. The maximum depth from the finished grade to the pipe invert shall be 5'.
- 4. Frame and grate may be installed with flange down or cast into adjustment section.
- 5. The precast base section may have a rounded floor and the walls may be sloped at a rate of 1:24 or steeper.
- 6. Opening shall be measured at the top of the precast base unit.









ID-076

## SECTION SEVEN - STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

## CATCH BASIN TYPE II (Oil Separator)

H2 PRE-CAST BIGO OIL SEPARATOR BASE NO. CB1 RISER NOS. SU6 AND SU12 FRAME AND GRATE NOS. FGR AND FGS OR EQUAL. PIPE AND FITTINGS 6" THROUGH 12"DIA. PVC SCH. 40



í

## CATCH BASIN TYPE III (Oil Separator)

OIL SEPARATOR WITH BAFFLE AND WEIR SIZE AS PER ENGR ANALYSIS H2 PRECAST MFG OR APPROVED EQUAL



**CITY STANDARDS** 

ĺ

## SECTION EIGHT TABLE OF CONTENTS

Description	Page
GENERAL	
DRAFTING STANDARDS	

### GENERAL

- 1. All final plans shall be prepared on standard double-matte mylar sheets. The standard sheet size is 24 inches x 36 inches x 3 mil thick. All sheets shall be original or archival quality, Dayrex Dx11 copy or equal.
- 2. The Professional Engineer's seal, signature, address and phone number shall be placed in the title block area, along the bottom of the page.
- 3. The drawing shall be in ink on approved mylar. No "sticky-back" or pasted pieces shall be allowed.
- 4. Use of Chelan County approved datum (NGVD 29) for survey reference is required.
- 5. All existing and proposed improvements shall be located and dimensioned to the Government Land Office monument system, State Plane Coordinates, or Chelan County survey monuments, or a monumentation system approved by Public Works. Proposed improvements should be referenced to the monument lines and street centerlines. Dimensioning must be done by stationing and offset from these control lines.
- 6. Scales: The Scale shall be a standard engineering ratio.
- 7. Draw the plan so the North Arrow points to the left or to the top of the sheet.
- 8. The minimum lettering size is 1/10<sup>th</sup> inch. This is to ensure the plan is legible after microfilming or reduction.
- 9. Use the standard Washington State Chapter of the American Public Works Association symbols.
- 10. Match lines with matched sheet number shall be provided where plan is drawn on two or more sheets. Where plan is shown on three or more sheets, include a total site plan key map at scale 1" = 100' or 1" = 200' to cross reference portions of the project with their corresponding plan sheet location.
- 11. All division or phase lines shall be indicated showing proposed limits of construction.
- 12. Existing and proposed topography contours shall cover the entire site and a minimum of 30' beyond the site boundary. Topography contours should be shown at 2 foot intervals (5 foot intervals for slopes greater than 15%, 10 foot intervals for slopes greater than 40%). Elevation labeling shall be shown at 10 foot intervals maximum for 2 foot contour intervals, maximum 25 feet for 5 foot contour intervals.
- 13. Show and clearly label property lines (with distances and bearings), right-of-way lines, sensitive areas and set backs and all existing and proposed easements with

their recording numbers. Show existing and proposed building footprints.

- 14. Label all streets by City of Chelan names.
- 15. Plans shall include a key for abbreviations and a legend for symbols where such are used.
- 16. All final plats and construction as-builts to be in electronic form, on CD media in a format readable by AutoCAD (.dwg or .dxf).
- 17. Preliminaries should be submitted on a standard size paper. We will not accept anything larger than 36 x 24.
- 18. When both plan and profile views are necessary, they will be on the same page with the plan view for a particular segment appearing just above the profile of that segment.

In addition to the drafting standards listed above, the following information should be included within the utility and transportation plans as appropriate:

**DRAFTING STANDARDS** (Plan, Profile and Cross Section Information Required):

- 1. Each submittal shall contain the following project information on the cover sheet or first sheet:
  - a. Title: Project name (add explanatory note if project name has changed).
  - b. Table of Contents (if more than 3 sheets).
  - c. Vicinity Map (Scale sufficient to cover project limits on one sheet or 1" = 200' whichever is greater).
  - d. General description of site, including Quarter Section, Township and Range.
  - e. Name and phone number of architect/engineering firm preparing plans.
- 2. Existing Improvements and Topography: Show all existing underground and surface improvements and topography in proximity to the project. The information must be shown for the full width of the right of way or the easement and for a sufficient distance on either side of the right of way or easement to show possible impacts on adjacent properties and/or the relationship to related facilities. Information on existing surface and underground City of Chelan facilities may be obtained from the Public Works offices. For information regarding the location of underground utilities, call 1-800-424-5555. Other utility information may be obtained from the respective utility owners (i.e. Chelan Public Utility District, U.S. West, Cascade Natural Gas, etc.).
- 3. Sewer, Water and Drainage Improvements: Provide profiles of all proposed sewer, water and drain lines. Show existing underground improvements within ten (10) feet of where they cross or connect to the new improvements. Show the storm water drainage discharge point to a public system or natural water course. Provide drainage system details whether or not

## SECTION EIGHT - DRAFTING STANDARDS

detention of storm water is required, including biofiltration swales.

- 4. Grades: All profiles and cross sections will show the proposed and the existing grade.
- 5. Infrastructure not within street right of way shall be within easements granted to the City or the appropriate utility.
- 6. Easements shall be shown on plan sheets.
- 7. Label all manholes, clean outs and catch basins in sequential number. Label rim and invert elevations and catch basin and manhole size and type.
- 8. Include flow direction arrows on all gravity lines.
- 9. Label pipe size, length, material and slope.
- 10. Include datum and benchmark information on each plan and/or profile sheet.
- 11. Show spot elevations of pavement in parking lots, and run off flow direction arrows.
- 12. Show roof leaders and footing drains connecting into conveyance system.
- 13. Show all stub-out locations for future connections.
- 14. Include section details for rockeries in grading/paving plans.
- 15. Show the following for all storm water facilities:
  - a. Show and label at least two cross-sections through detention pond. One cross-section shall show the control structure.
  - b. Show location and detail of emergency overflows and spillways.
  - c. Provide invert elevations of all pipes, inlets, tanks, vaults and spot elevations of the pond bottom. Call out pond volume and dimensions, and design surface elevation.
  - d. Provide plan and section views and details of all rock protection and energy dissipaters.
  - e. Section and plan view on restrictor/control structure must be shown and adequately detailed, including size and elevation of orifices, overflow weirs, etc.
  - f. Show length, width, and bottom width dimensions for all biofiltration and water quality swales and storm water conveyance swales. Include sectional view, showing side slopes and design depth of flow.
  - g. Include seeding material information.
- 16. The Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan (ESCP) should provide all necessary details to illustrate how the plan is to be implemented.

# **SECTION NINE - PARKING STANDARDS**

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

## SECTION NINE TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Description</u> <u>Pa</u>	ige
TABLE OF CONTENTS	9-1
PARKING STANDARDS 9   Off-Street Parking -General Requirements 9   Required Stalls Location 9   Variance to these Standards 9   Reduction in Required On-site Parking 9   Changes in Occupancy 9   Site Plan Required 9   Improvement of Parking Spaces in all Districts 9   Standards and Requirements 9   Conditions for Joint Use 9   Minimum Required Parking Spaces - Fractions 9   Location of Parking Spaces 9   Drive Through Stacking Lanes 9   Trash Receptacles - Area for Truck Maneuverability 9   Handrails 9   Compact Parking Spaces 9   Angled or "Head-In" Parking on Public Right of Way 9   Parking Delineation 9   Wheel Stops 9	9-2 9-2 9-2 9-2 9-3 9-3 9-4 9-6 9-7 9-8 9-8 9-8 9-8 9-8 9-9 9-9 9-9 9-9
PARKING DESIGN DETAIL	-10
PARALLEL CURB PARKING SPACING9-	-12
PARKING STALL DESIGN	-13

## **SECTION NINE - PARKING STANDARDS**

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### PARKING STANDARDS

### **Off-Street Parking -General Requirements**

The provisions of this chapter shall not apply to the C-H High Density Commercial District zone unless otherwise stated herein. Every building hereafter constructed, reconstructed, expanded or occupied, or use of property hereafter established or modified shall be provided with off-street parking as provided in this chapter, and such parking areas shall be made permanently available and maintained for parking purposes. No building permit shall be issued until plans showing provisions for the required off-street parking have been submitted and approved as conforming to the standards of this chapter.

### **Required Stalls Location**

All parking stalls required to be on-site shall be independently maneuverable, shall not be double stacked, and shall not back out onto a public right of way except as provided herein.

### Variance to these Standards

An application for a variance to the number of parking spaces required shall follow the procedures outlined in Chapter 17.64 of the Chelan Municipal Code, as the same exists now or may hereafter be amended.

#### **Reduction in Required On-site Parking**

In return for improvement of on-street parking, in accordance with present City standards, credit shall be given for one parking space per each ten feet of street frontage when angle parking is used, and one space for each twenty feet of street frontage when parallel parking is used. Street frontage improvement means curb, gutter, sidewalk, and catch basins if needed.

#### Changes in Occupancy

Whenever the occupancy classification of a building is changed, the minimum standards for off street parking for the new occupancy classification shall be applicable; provided, that if the existing occupancy had established a legal nonconforming status with respect to off-street parking requirements, no additional off street parking shall be required for the new occupancy unless said new occupancy is in a classification requiring more parking than that which would have been required for the existing occupancy if it had been subject to the provisions of this chapter. If strict application of this section is not feasible due to existing site conditions such as building or parking size, shape or layout, a variance may be granted by the hearing examiner in accordance with Chapter 17.64 of the Chelan Municipal Code, as the same exists now or may hereafter be amended.

## SECTION NINE - PARKING STANDARDS

## CITY OF CHELAN

### Site Plan Required

A site plan for every new or enlarged off street parking lot or motor vehicle sales area shall be approved by the planning department prior to construction. The site plan shall be drawn utilizing a common engineering scale (e.g. 1"=20', 1"=30', 1"=40') and will show the proposed/existing development, locations, size, shape, and design of the parking spaces, curb cuts, lighting, landscaping, irrigation, parking lot circulation, drainage and other features of the proposed parking lot including all easements.

### Improvement of Parking Spaces in all Districts

Any parking facility for ten or more vehicles shall be improved in accordance with the following requirements:

- A. Off-street parking requirements shall not apply to the C-H High Density Commercial District zone except for the following uses which are auto dependant:
  - 1. Radio and Television sales and repair shops,
  - 2. Upholstery shops,
  - 3. Newspaper and lithography establishments where production occurs onsite,
  - 4. Radio and T.V. Studios,
  - 5. Hotels,
  - 6. Household Appliance and Repair Facilities,
  - 7. Mortuaries,
  - 8. Gasoline Service Station,
  - 9. Brewpub,

10. Any conditional use where the minimum requirements state that off-street parking shall be required.

- B. Off-street parking facilities shall be hard-surfaced, shall be graded and drained so as to dispose of surface water to the satisfaction of the City engineer, and shall be maintained in good condition free of weeds, dust, trash and debris.
- C. The director of public works shall have authority to fix the location, width and manner of approach of vehicular ingress and/or egress from a building or parking area to a public street and to alter existing ingress and egress as may be required to control traffic in the interest of the public safety and general welfare. The City may require ingress and egress (curb cuts) to be located between parcels and constructed as joint ingress and egress when required to control traffic in the interest of the public safety and general welfare.
- D. Any lighting used to illuminate any off-street parking facility shall be so arranged as to reflect light away from any adjoining residential premises. Night lighting must be provided where stairs, curbs, ramps, or other abrupt
changes occur in walk direction. Lighting shall be arranged so as to reflect light away from any adjoining residential premises.

Any parking facility for less than 10 vehicles shall be graveled or have such other surface as approved by the Public Works Director.

### Standards and Requirements

The minimum required parking spaces for the respective uses shall be as follows. Where square feet are specified, the area measured shall be the total gross floor area of the entire use, structure, or area.

- A. Dwellings: one space for the first unit and 1.5 spaces for each additional dwelling unit with fractions to be rounded up.
- B. Banks, businesses or professional offices: one space for each three hundred square feet of floor area.
- C. Church, mortuary, funeral home, auditorium, gymnasium, club, lodge hall: one space for each four seats or eight feet of bench length in the chapel.
- D. Bowling alleys: six spaces for each lane.
- E. Places of Public Assembly:
  - 1. Library, museum, art gallery, private athletic club, government buildings: one space per four hundred square feet of floor area.
  - 2. Preschool, nursery, day nursery, kindergarten: two spaces per teacher or adult supervisor.
  - 3. Elementary or junior high school: three spaces per classroom.
  - 4. High school or college: eight spaces per classroom.
  - 5. Parks, Playgrounds, Golf Courses, Ball Fields, Outdoor Recreation Amenities: 1 space per 5000 square feet of area including structures.
- F. Drive-in eating or drinking establishment serving customers outside the building only: no less than fifteen parking spaces on site.
- G. Eating and drinking establishments serving both within and without the building: one space for each fifty square feet of floor area, with not less than fifteen spaces.
- H. Eating and drinking establishments with no service outside the building: one space for each one hundred square feet of floor area.
- I. Retail store (exclusive of those listed below): one space per two hundred square feet of floor area.
- J. Retail store exclusively handling bulky merchandise such as furniture or

(Revised 01/07)

CITY OF CHELAN

appliances: one space per six hundred square feet of floor area.

- K. Service or repair shop: one space per six hundred square feet of floor area. Each actual vehicle repair bay area space located inside or outside of a building may be counted as a parking space to attain compliance with this requirement.
- L. Medical or dental office: one space per two hundred square feet of floor area.
- M Open air market used car lot: one space per fifteen hundred square feet of land.
- N. Resort, motel, and hotel: 1.2 spaces for each room or suite plus required spaces for accessory uses and one space per boat moorage stall.
- O. Marinas: 1.5 spaces per boat moorage stall; provided, that .5 spaces per boat moorage stall shall be sufficient where no boat launching facilities are provided, except for boat launching facilities provided and used solely for the private use of a marina operator and to which the public has no access.
- P. Unspecified uses: in the case of a use not specifically mentioned, the requirements for off-street parking facilities shall be the same as the abovementioned use which is most similar.
- Q. Mixed occupancies: in the case of mixed uses, the total requirements for offstreet parking facilities shall be the sum of the requirements for the various uses computed separately. Off-street parking facilities for one use shall not be considered as providing required facilities for any other use except as hereinafter specified for a joint use.
- R. Veterinary hospitals and clinics: one space per four hundred square feet of floor area, provided that a minimum of five spaces shall be required.
- S. Malls including business and commercial centers that have multiple spaces available for a variety of tenant uses shall provide 1 parking space per 250 square feet.
- T. Businesses that provide services outside of their primary location shall provide one parking space per employee.
- U. Barber/Beauty Shops: 1.5 parking spaces per work station.
- V. Bakery: 1 space per 150 square feet of floor area.
- W. Gasoline stations with a convenience store: 1 space per 150 sq. feet. Fuel pump islands may be utilized to calculate one parking space per pump.

CITY OF CHELAN

- X. Manufacturing/Assembly, Industrial : 1 space per employee.
- Y. Adult Entertainment Facilities: 1 space per 100 square feet.
- Z. Newspaper publication, TV and Radio Studios: 1 space per 500 square feet.

### Conditions for Joint Use

A. Joint use of parking facilities - Spaces required. For joint use of parking facilities, the minimum total number of required parking spaces may be reduced by up to ten percent and the minimum number of required parking spaces may be further reduced by the following amounts in the following circumstances:

- 1. Up to fifty percent of the parking spaces required for a theater, bowling alley, tavern, restaurant, or other enterprise which is primarily a nighttime or Sunday use may be supplied by the off-street parking spaces allocable to other types of uses which are not primarily nighttime or Sunday uses.
- 2. Up to fifty percent of the parking spaces required for a bank, business office, retail store, personal service shop, household equipment or furniture shop or other enterprise which is primarily a daytime and non-Sunday use may be supplied by the off-street parking space allocable to other types of uses which are primarily nighttime or Sunday uses.
- B. The building or use for which application is being made to utilize the off-street parking facilities provided by another building or use shall be located within 500 feet of such parking facilities and, in addition:
  - 1. The off-site parking facilities must be on the same side of the street as the business that is requesting the joint use parking facilities;
  - 2. The applicant shall show that there is no substantial conflict in the principal operating hours of the two buildings or uses for which joint use of off-street parking facilities is proposed;
  - 3. Parties concerned in the joint use of off street parking facilities shall submit a proper legal instrument defining the conditions of the joint use for review and approval of the Community Development Director and the City Attorney; and
  - 4. In the event of a change in ownership or use, the joint use instrument may be terminated upon mutual agreement by all parties if reviewed and approved by the Community Development Director. The existing and/or new uses shall comply with all parking and other requirements of this section for said uses.

#### Minimum Required Parking Spaces - Fractions

In the event the minimum required parking spaces results in the requirement of any

CITY OF CHELAN

fraction of a parking space, an entire additional parking space shall be required.

#### Location of Parking Spaces

Required off-street parking spaces shall be located as follows:

- A. Dwelling: on the same lot with the building to be served but not in any required front yard or side yard setback abutting upon a street.
- B. For any other use except one served by an approved joint use parking facility: the parking lot shall be not more than one hundred fifty feet from the building or use to be served and on the same lot.
- C. Parking Setbacks.
  - 1. This subsection shall not apply to the following structures:
    - a. Structures located in the R-1 Single Family Residential District zone; and
    - b. Residential structures containing three or fewer dwelling units and located in the R-M Multi-Family Residential District zone.
  - 2. Required parking may occur within a required front yard upon compliance with the following:
    - a. A minimum landscaped buffer of at least ten feet in width is located between the front property line and the parking area.
    - b. An agreement in a form acceptable to the City guaranteeing the property owner will maintain the landscaped buffer is executed by the property owner and filed with the City.
    - c. The landscaped buffer shall be designed so as not to impair site distance requirements and other traffic safety concerns of the City.
    - d. A detailed landscaping plan shall be submitted to the City engineer for review and approval prior to the issuance of a building permit. At the discretion of the City engineer, surety may be required to ensure construction of the landscaped buffer in accordance with approved plans.

### Loading Areas

On the same premises with every building, structure, or part thereof, erected and occupied for manufacturing, storage, warehouse, goods display, department store, wholesale store, market, hotel, hospital, or for any use that requires a delivery of merchandise, materials or supplies by truck there shall be provided truck loading/unloading berths. The space shall be situated so that no part of a truck or delivery van using the loading berth will project into any public right-of-way. Each loading berth shall measure not less than 10 feet wide by 30 feet long with a 14 foot height clearance, and shall be made permanently available for such purposes, and shall be of impermeable surface, and maintained. Required loading

**CITY STANDARDS** 

### **CITY OF CHELAN**

berths shall be provided in accordance with the following table:

<u> Total Gross Floor Area</u>	Number of Berths
10,000-20,000 sq. ft.	· 1
20,001-50,000 sq. ft.	2
50,001-100,000 sq. ft.	3

Greater than 100,001 sq. ft.1 berth for each additional 50,000 sq. ft. Exception or waiver to the requirements listed in this section: For businesses within the C-H High Density Commercial District zone, if a business is located immediately adjacent to an alley, the alley may serve as a loading/unloading berth.

#### Drive Through Stacking Lanes

Any facility or business that provides a drive through lane or drive up window shall provide outside of the public right-of-way a stacking lane that shall accommodate seven parking spaces for each side of each structure with drive-up window(s) in addition to the onsite parking requirements. A stacking lane shall be at least 9 feet wide and each stacking space shall be at least 12 feet in length. A stacking lane must be delineated clearly and shall not be located within any required driveway, internal circulation drive, parking aisle, or parking stall.

#### Trash Receptacles - Area for Truck Maneuverability

If the parking lot is the location for trash receptacles, trash receptacles shall not impede parking areas or travel lanes.

#### Handrails

The Community Development Director may require handrails in parking areas where more than three risers exist for pedestrian traffic, and such handrails are warranted for safety reasons.

#### Barrier Free Parking

Included in the number of required parking spaces outlined in this section, parking shall be provided and designed in accordance with the Washington State Barrier Free Design Regulations, as the same exist now or may hereafter be amended.

#### **Compact Parking Spaces**

A. Compact parking spaces may comprise up to forty percent of the required minimum number of off-street parking spaces for commercial property uses and for multi-family property uses consisting of greater than four dwelling units.

- B. Every compact parking space shall be clearly identified as such by painting the word "COMPACT" in upper case block letters, using white paint, on the pavement within the space.
- C. Each individual compact parking space shall be at least eight feet by sixteen feet in size.

#### Angled or "Head-In" Parking on Public Right of Way

- A. All parking shall be 0°, 60° or 90° parking.
- B. Any angled (60°) or "head-in" (90°) parking in the public right of way shall only be allowed in commercially zoned areas, serving commercial uses, and shall only be allowed on streets classified as minor collector or less.
- C. Any angled or "head-in" parking on the public right of way shall be located so that the minimum distance from the center line of the street to the property line shall be 50 feet. The front of each parking space shall be a minimum of 40 feet from the center line of the street for angled or "head-in" parking.
- D. For those streets that do not have 100 feet of width, property owners may dedicate additional width to the City or create an unrestricted parking easement in favor of the City to allow the necessary width.

#### Parking Delineation

Hard-surfaced parking areas shall use paint or other similar devices to delineate parking stalls and directional arrows.

#### Wheel Stops

Wheel stops shall be installed as per drawing 9-10 where designed parking will likely cause vehicles to overhang and encroach on adjoining private or public right-of-way, land, or alleys.

ID-054





60°





## UNE WAY IRAFFIC

A	В	С	D		F	Β'	С,
0°	30'	9'	12'	24'	9'		
90°	58'	20'	18'	9'	9'		
60°	59'	22'	15'	10.5	9'	55'	20'

### PARKING DESIGN DETAIL

0

(

(

**SECTION NINE - PARKING STANDARDS** 

**CITY OF CHELAN** 

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

NOTE: Capacity is approximated by the total lot area (ft<sup>2</sup>) divided by 320.



## **CITY OF CHELAN**

## PARALLEL CURB PARKING SPACING



Ĺ

# SECTION NINE - PARKING STANDARDS

## PARKING STALL DESIGN



ID-065

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

### SECTION TEN TABLE OF CONTENTS

escription	<u>Page</u>
ENERAL CONDITIONS	10-2
ONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS AND GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS	10-2
LOTS	10-5
Access:	10-5
Width and Depth:	10-5
Slope:	10-5
Corners At Street Intersections:	10-6
Line Angles:	10-6
Reverse Frontage:	10-6
LOCKS	10-6
	10-6
ASEMENT PREPARATION STANDARDS	10-7
TILITIES EASEMENTS	10-8
UTILITIES	10-8
Undergrounding:	10-8
Public:	10-8
TILITY SERVICES	10-8
OMMON UTILITY TRENCHES	10-8
TREET NAME AND TRAFFIC SIGNS	10-8
ROJECT REVIEW AND INSPECTION	10-9
OLID WASTE REQUIREMENTS	10-9
TANDARD DETAIL S9-01 - DUMPSTER PAD AND ENCLOSURE	. 10-10
YPICAL CITY UTILITY LOCATION FOR NEW STREET CONSTRUCTION	. 10-11
	. 10-12
ATCH BASIN FRAME AND GRATE	. 10-13
	. 10-14
	. 10-15
IPE SUPPORTS	. 10-16
YPICAL MONUMENT CASE (NEW)	. 10-17
	. 10-18

(

#### **GENERAL CONDITIONS**

Construction shall be in accordance with the current City development standards and APWA/WSDOT Standard Specifications; except as specifically superseded by the approved plans or special condition of the permit. The following conditions or restrictions must be followed:

Should any damage be done to the roads during the time of construction and installation or in the maintenance and/or operations of said facilities, the road(s) shall be restored by the permittee(s), their successors or assigns, to as good a condition as it was before such damage occurred. Should the grade, width or location of the road(s) be changed or altered in any way so as to require the removal of said facilities, the permittee(s), their successors or assigns, shall forthwith move and relocate said facilities without any redress against the City.

The permittee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees, from and against any and all claims, losses or liability, including attorneys fees, arising from injury or death to persons or damage to property occasioned by the construction, installation, operation, location, maintenance, or any other cause related to the improvement for which this permit is granted. With respect to this permit and to claims against the City, its officers, agents and employees, the permittee expressly waives its immunity under Tittle 51 of the Revised Code of Washington, the Industrial Insurance, Act, for injuries to any employee the permittee may have, and agrees that the obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless provided for in this paragraph extends to any claim brought by or on behalf of any employee of the permittee. This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties as part of the permitting process and is given, as is the indemnification agreement contained within this paragraph, as consideration for issuance of a right-of-way use permit by the City. This paragraph shall not apply to any damage or injury resulting from the sole negligence of the City, its agents or employees. The extent any of the damages or injuries referenced by this paragraph were caused by or resulted from the concurrent negligence of the City, its agents or employees, this obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless is valid and enforceable only to the extent of the negligence of the permittee, its officers, agents or employees, if any.

The acceptance of the conditions upon which this permit is granted shall be evidenced by the beginning of the installation of said facilities as set forth herein.

#### CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS AND GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

- 1. No open cut crossing of City roads or streets shall be made without the approval of the City engineer (notice of two working days required). Borings will generally be required.
- 2. Signing, flagging and traffic control shall be in accordance with the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices. One lane of traffic shall remain open at all times. The road shall be restored with asphalt surface to two-way traffic at the end of each working day. Should a total road closure appear necessary, application for a road

#### **CITY OF CHELAN**

closure permit must be filed with the Public Works office at least two (2) working days prior to the anticipated closure. Application must be accompanied with dust control plan, detour plans, hours of closure, and signing/traffic control plans.

- 3. Asphalt shall be cut in a solid straight line. After excavating trench and installing utility, all backfill material must be free draining granular material, free of debris and clay. This material to be compacted by a mechanical compactor (approved by the City engineer) to 95% of maximum density (modified protor) in six inch lifts followed by placement of six (6) inches in 5/8" minus crushed stone top course. After placing a tack coat on the edges of the existing pavement, three (3) inches of class B shall be placed and compacted to match the existing surface. Pavement sections are subject to a two year workmanship warranty; to be replaced if excessive settling or mechanical breakdown develops.
- 4. When the excavation is located in a graveled shoulder, backfill shall be placed and compacted as specified in paragraph 4 above, and surfaced with a minimum of six (6) inches of compacted 5/8" minus crushed stone surfacing.
- 5. When multiple open cut utility crossings are proposed at intervals of 200 feet or less, between adjacent crossing, a full width chip coat of the roadway pavement section will be required for the entire length of roadway between crossing extending to ten (10) feet either side of crossings. Existing crossing will be considered when establishing overlay requirements in addition to work contemplated under current utility permit application.
- 6. Existing drainage ditches, culverts, etc. shall be kept clean at all times. Temporary diversion of any drainage system will not be permitted without the consent of the City engineer. Any drainage culvert tile, catch basins, manholes, etc., disturbed by excavation shall be replaced with new material or repaired as directed by the City engineer. Temporary erosion/sedimentation control measures shall be employed to protect adjacent property and storm drain facilities.
- 7. If in the opinion of the City engineer, weather conditions are so bad as to make the traveled roadways unsafe for the traveling public or detrimental to the restoration of the roads, excavation shall cease immediately and clean up shall be promptly accomplished.
- 8. Maximum amount of open trench on streets shall be 200 lineal feet unless authorized otherwise by the City engineer. At the end of each day, all ditches must be backfilled or covered with steel plates and barricaded with flashing warning lights to prevent people or animals from falling into the trench.
- 9. All pipe or other material strung along City right-of-way must be placed a safe distance from the traveled roadway in such a manner as to avoid rolling onto the roadway, or creating a traffic hazard.
- 10. Final cleanup including complete restoration of shoulders, cleaning of ditches,

### CITY OF CHELAN

culverts and catch basins, and removal of loose material from back slopes of ditches shall not exceed 500 lineal feet behind excavating operations. Street surfaces shall be kept cleaned at all times with the use of a power broom or other approved means.

- 11. No excess material or unsuitable material shall be wasted on City right-of-way without the express written consent of the City engineer.
- 12. The Developer shall use special care to protect existing survey monuments or control points and it is the obligation of the Developer to notify the City engineer of the possibility of them being disturbed by his work.

If any of the markers and/or reference points are disturbed or damaged, the Developer shall have them reset by a registered Land Surveyor. The surveyor shall record or file all required documents with the County or the State Department of Natural Resources as may be appropriate, at the Developer's cost.

Standard cast iron monument cases will be required for all GPS and brass cap monuments and will be furnished by the Developer at no cost to the City. The Developer shall bear the cost of installation, by his surveyor, of such cases in a manner satisfactory to the City engineer.

- 13. Yard improvements within the right-of-way shall be restored to as close to original condition as feasible. This includes but is not limited to features such as landscaping, rockeries, lamp post, mailboxes and fences. This permit does not authorize or regulate work on private property, private easements or vacated and "ancient" rights-of-way without public easements. Any private property damages or liability incurred are the sole responsibility of the Contractor.
- 14. Notify the City engineer immediately prior to starting work and upon completion, the applicant shall call the City engineer for an inspection of work at (509) 682-8030. All items noted during the inspection shall be corrected to meet with the City engineer's approval.
- 15. No equipment, except equipment with rubber tires, shall be permitted to operate on any road. Damage to any road will be repaired by the Developer, at his expense, to restore the road to the original condition.
- 16. Completion of construction of a facility within City road right-of-way by permit or franchise obligates the Developer, successors, and assigns to perpetually maintain said facility or utility for its full period of existence and to cause to be repaired any subsidence, settlement or other condition of damage or hazard to the City road resulting therefrom.

### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### LAND DIVISION

#### LOTS

**Access:** Every new lot shall be provided with satisfactory access to a street and shall be platted so as to provide acceptable driveway grades of less than 18%. A maximum of 18% grade shall be allowed for a continuous length of up to 100 feet.

**Width and Depth:** All lots shall have a minimum width and depth sufficient to meet the Chelan zoning ordinance width and depth requirements for the particular zone in which the property is located.

**Slope:** As slope increases, lot sizes shall increase to partially or completely avoid the problems of drainage, siltation, flood control, potential land slides and accessibility which frequently are attrtibutable to over development of slope areas. Slope shall be calculated based on the average topography of individual lots. The following slope chart shall be used as a guide to determine minimum lot size and frontage.



ID-055

CITY STANDARDS

### CITY OF CHELAN

Chart Example:

For a lot whose natural ground slope is 25%, the indicated area is 32,000 square feet and the indicated average width is 145 feet. Relief from slope requirements may be obtained only if adequate provisions are made for parking, health regulations, building siting, soil stabilization and utility easements.

A slope analysis shall be submitted showing an access plan to individual lots.

**Corners At Street Intersections:** At street intersections in residential areas, lot corners shall be rounded by an arc. Radii shall be per the Street Standards Section.

**Line Angles:** Side lot lines shall be straight lines running within twenty degrees of perpendicular to the road upon which the lots front. Side lot lines on curved roads should run at or near radially to the curve.

**Reverse Frontage:** No residential lots shall have street frontage along two opposite boundaries unless topographical features or the need to provide separation of the lots from arterials, railways, commercial activities or industrial activities justify the designing of reverse frontage lots.

#### BLOCKS

In general, blocks shall be as long as is reasonable and consistent with the topography and the needs for convenient access, circulation, control and safety of street traffic and the type of land use proposed. For residential subdivision, the block length ordinarily shall not exceed one thousand three hundred twenty feet or be less than four hundred feet.

Except for reverse-frontage parcels, the width of blocks shall ordinarily be sufficient to allow for two tiers of lots of depths consistent with the type of land use proposed. This width should not be less than two hundred feet for the sum of two lot depths.

In residential subdivisions, a through pedestrian walk right-of-way not less than ten feet wide shall be provided at the midpoint of any block exceeding six hundred feet in length where such a walk is deemed essential to provide circulation or pedestrian access to schools, parks, shopping centers and other community facilities.

#### SURVEY MONUMENTATION

Survey shall comply with RCW 58.20, City Municipal Code Title 16, and this Section. For each 500,000 square feet of new development state plane coordinates shall be calculated for at least one monument. Developments of four or more lots shall establish or tie to at least one such monument. The intent of this requirement is to facilitate entry of plat and development data into Public Works date base. The state plane coordinates are not intended to be a legally binding representation of property locations.

#### EASEMENT PREPARATION STANDARDS

- 1. SUMMARY: This procedure establishes a uniform method for the preparation of all City easements.
- 2. SCOPE: This procedure applies to all easements to be granted to the City.
- 3. GENERAL: When City utilities are to be constructed on private property, an easement must be granted to the City. The City Public Works Department will generally process, record, and file all City easements. Easements prepared by applicant consultants must be reviewed and approved by the City before recording and filing by the applicant. The Standard City easement format is in Appendix B, Exhibit 4.
  - 1. EASEMENT PREPARATION. All easements not shown on a plat must be prepared by a licensed land surveyor or licensed engineer. The descriptions contained in the easement document shall be prepared by a Washington licensed land surveyor or licensed engineer who shall seal or affix their name to the legal description. Legal descriptions must contain the full legal description of the real property upon which the easement is located as recorded in the Chelan County Auditor's records. In addition, the Chelan County Assessor's parcel number must be provided.

All easements must be prepared on  $8\frac{1}{2}$ " x 11" paper. Every easement shall include an easement number in the lower right corner of each page. This number will be assigned by the City Public Works Department.

An easement drawing will be attached to each easement. The easement drawing shall include: (1) the name of the grantors, (2) the easement number provided by the City Public Works Department, and (3) the general purpose of the easement, (i.e., all City utility purposes, water, sewer, drainage, well protection, access, etc.) The drawing shall be to a suitable scale on size 81/2" x 11" paper. The drawing must show the entire parcel and shall contain enough information to clearly identify both the parcel and easement. The easement must be tied to a platted corner or a section corner. Easement areas shall be delineated by cross-hatching. Each drawing shall be sealed and signed by the submitting licensed land surveyor or licensed engineer.

2. RETRIEVAL. Original easements will be on file with the City clerk and copies will be on file in the City Public Works Department. To obtain copies of easements, please contact the City Public Works Department. Easements are filed numerically by section, township, and range so the legal description of the real property involved is necessary for a prompt retrieval of any easement.

#### UTILITIES EASEMENTS

Easements for all facilities such as high voltage electric transmission lines, drainage canals, pondage areas, etc., shall be of such width as is adequate for the purpose. Minimum linear easement width shall be 20 feet unless directed otherwise by the City engineer. Easement for utilities at greater depths than 7 feet may require greater width.

#### UTILITIES

**Undergrounding:** Utility lines, including but not limited to those for electricity, communications and street lighting, serving and located within the subdivision, shall be placed underground.

**Public:** Where alleys are not provided, easements for public utilities shall be provided along rear lot lines and side lot lines where necessary including any necessary access easement. Where easements are necessary, they shall be a minimum of twenty feet in width. For safety concerns, where possible, the width of rear and side lot line easements shall be equally shared by abutting lots and shall be continuous and aligned from block to block within the subdivision and with adjoining subdivisions. Additional width will be required where multiple utilities or depth and separation so require.

#### UTILITY SERVICES

- 1. All utility lines including electric, telephone, fire alarm and television cables shall be placed underground prior to paving.
- 2. Easements for maintenance of all utilities, both on and off site, shall be provided to the City, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer prior to final plat approval.

#### COMMON UTILITY TRENCHES

Common Utility trenches shall generally not be allowed with water, sewer, and storm lines. Utility lines shall generally be located as per drawing 10-11. Common trenches may be allowed for phone, electric, cable TV, gas, and other non-City utilities if approved by each individual utility. Water and sewer lines shall be separated as required by the D.O.H.

Under extreme unusual conditions, common trenches may be necessary and allowed as approved by the City engineer. Crossings and connections with existing lines may also require individual evaluation for variation approval by the City engineer.

#### STREET NAME AND TRAFFIC SIGNS

1. All street name and traffic directional signs shall be provided and installed by the developer. Sign materials, lettering and placement shall be in

CITY STANDARDS

CITY OF CHELAN

accordance with the current edition of the "Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices" published by the Federal Highway Administration.

- 2. All costs for signage shall be paid by the proponent and installation shall be complete prior to final plat approval.
- 3. The naming of all streets shall receive approval from the Department of Public Works to assure consistency and elimination of confusing or inconsistent address numbers. Address numbers shall be assigned to all new lots prior to recording any plat. The Building Official shall review addresses prior to recording to insure that the addresses are consistent with City policies.

#### PROJECT REVIEW AND INSPECTION

Whenever the City Engineer and/or the Public Works Director determine that the magnitude and/or complexity of any public improvement being constructed by a private developer, as a condition of a land use permit or approval, requires full or part-time on-site inspection, the City Engineer and/or the Public Works Director shall have the authority to provide or contract with a duly qualified inspector to provide inspection services for the City in connection with such construction. All costs of such inspection services incurred by the City shall be paid by the developer. The fee must be deposited in advance with the City prior to issuance of a construction permit.

City personnel shall strive to assist developers with such information as is readily available or easily obtained. Costs for investigative research or project review requiring more than two man hours, or which will require an outside consultant (such as City attorney, or City consulting engineer) shall be borne by the requesting developer. Prior to performing such research or review, the City may require the developer to execute a reimbursement agreement.

#### SOLID WASTE REQUIREMENTS

- 1. All multi-family and commercial development must provide recycling facilities.
- 2. Multifamily housing shall be served by commercial solid waste containers (dumpsters) at a ratio not less than 0.15 CY per ERU per living unit.
- 3. Commercial solid waste containers or Commercial Accounts with four or more 30-gallon cans must be placed on a fenced concrete slab easily accessible to the solid waste packer truck. The location shall provide side drive-by and side loading, no back-in locations will be allowed. See City of Chelan Standard Detail "Dumpster Pad and Enclosure" for typical construction details.

### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **STANDARD DETAIL S9-01 - DUMPSTER PAD AND ENCLOSURE**



1D-056

#### Notes:

1. Solid waste truck requires:

a) no backing up b) A 45' clear radius to turn

- 2. Concrete slab full ramp at opening
- 3. Full opening gates
- 4. 6' high enclosure
- 5. One enclosure as per drawing for each building
- 6. Dumpster concrete pad must match existing pavement/lot grade
- 7. Enclosure doors to be free hanging, no rollers.

(Recycling facilities must also be provided.)

### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### TYPICAL CITY UTILITY LOCATION FOR NEW STREET CONSTRUCTION



#### Notes:

- 1. Developer or contractor is required to call Utility Locate at (800) 424-5555 a minimum of 48 hours prior to digging within the limits of City right-of-way for the location marking of all underground utilities.
- 2. Typical locations for other proposed public utilities shall be in greenway behind sidewalk, City engineer may approve exceptions. A minimum horizontal separation of 3 feet shall be maintained from City water mains and a minimum 5 foot horizontal separation shall be maintained from City sewer and storm sewer mains.
- Street light poles typically will be installed on alternating sides of the street and 3. spaced as indicated on detail page 11-9.
- Water meter boxes will be installed at the back of new or existing sidewalks. 4.
- Potable water lines typically shall be installed 15 feet from and parallel to the 5. centerline of the right-of-way on the north or east side.
- Sanitary sewer line typically shall be installed 6 feet from and parallel to the 6. centerline of the right-of-way on the south or west side.
- 7. Fire hydrants typically will be installed on alternating sides of the street on 300 foot spacing in industrial and commercial areas and on 600 foot spacing in residential areas.
- 8. If conflicts require alternate water or sewer main locations, approval shall be obtained from the City Engineer for the location. A minimum 3 foot separation from the face of curb is required.

### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### UTILITY TRENCH REPAIR STANDARD



NOTES: 1. BEDDING FOR FLEXIBLE PIPE SHALL BE A MINIMUM THICKNESS OF 4" UNDER THE PIPE AND 6" OVER THE CROWN.

- 2. CRUSHED SURFACING TOP COURSE.
- 3. SELECT BACKFILL SHALL BE 5/8-0 CRUSHED ROCK. \*CONTROLLED DENSITY FILL (CDF) MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE CITY ENGINEER AS NEEDED.
- 4. BACKFILL MECHANICALLY COMPACTED TO 95% MAX. DENSITY IN 6" LIFTS OR CONTROLED DENSITY BACKFILL.
- 5. 4' MIN. COVER ON ALL WATER AND SEWER MAINS.
- 6. TRENCH EXCAVATION SAFTY SYSTEM PER WASHINGTON INDUSTRIAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT.
  - CDF SHALL CONSIST OF:
    - 1.5 SACK CEMENT
    - 1750 LBS. PEAGRAVEL
    - 1750 LBS. SAND
    - 6 OZ./100 WEIGHT WATER REDUCING AGENT
    - 4" TO 5" SLUMP

CDF SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE CITY ENGINEER FOR SPECIFICATIONS AND USE.

ID-113

**CITY STANDARDS** 

Adopted July, 1998

(Revised 01/07)

#### CATCH BASIN FRAME AND GRATE



TYPE "A" FRAME

23" -

5/8"--

17'



**CITY OF CHELAN** 







2-1/4"

ID-114

**CITY STANDARDS** 

Adopted July, 1998

(Revised 01/07)

10-13

**CITY OF CHELAN** 

## CATCH BASIN DETAIL



**CITY STANDARDS** 

## **SECTION TEN - UTILITY DESIGNS**

## TRACER WIRE INSTALLATION



**CITY STANDARDS** 

(Revised 01/07)

10-15

### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **PIPE SUPPORTS**



**CITY STANDARDS** 

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

### **TYPICAL MONUMENT CASE (NEW)**



ID-044

**CITY STANDARDS** 

(Revised 01/07)

#### SIGHT OBSTRUCTION

It is unlawful to construct, plant, or place and maintain any trees, shrubs, structure, objects, walls, or fences of more than three feet in height from the ground for a distance of 25' from any street corner property line in order to permit good visibility at said street corners and intersections.



## SECTION ELEVEN TABLE OF CONTENTS

Description	<b>Page</b>
STREET ILLUMINATION	2
General Notes (Street Light Construction)	2
Staking	4
Testing	4
CONDUIT TRENCHING	5
STREET LIGHT CONDUIT LOCATION	6
TYPICAL LIGHTING CONTROL PANEL	7
TYPICAL LIGHT CIRCUIT	8
HIGH PRESSURE SODIUM LUMINAIRE	9
STREET LIGHT STANDARD	10
HIGH PRESSURE SODIUM VAPOR LAMP	11
PEDESTRIAN LIGHTING	12
JUNCTION BOX DETAILS	13
JUNCTION BOX DETAILS, Cont.	14
JUNCTION BOX DETAILS, Cont.	15
TYPICAL SERVICE LIGHTING DETAILS	16

#### STREET ILLUMINATION

All new commercial or residential subdivisions, short plats, building site plans shall provide street lights in accordance with the standards for such improvements of the City and they shall be owned and operated by the City.

A street lighting plan submitted by the applicant and approved by the Public Works Director shall be required for all street light installations. Type of installation shall be as set forth in the current edition of the WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications and as directed by the City except where noted herein.

All public street light designs shall be prepared by an engineering firm capable of performing such work. The engineer shall be licensed by the State of Washington. All developments shall submit the lighting plan on a separate sheet. After the system is completed and approved, a set of "as built" mylars shall be submitted to the City as a permanent record.

All street intersections shall have provisions for lighting, so as to provide minimum illumination as set forth in WSDOT Publication M51-02 (Traffic Manual).

All developments shall include conduit installed so as to provide adequate capacity for future installation of complete street lighting as set forth in these standards and in WSDOT Publication M51-02. Positioning of conduit shall be determined by the City engineer. All conduit installed solely to comply with future street lighting upgrade requirements shall have at least a single ground conductor (minimum #10AWG copper stranded type) installed.

All street light electrical installations including wiring conduit and power connections shall be located underground.

The General Notes below need to be included on any plans dealing with street design.

#### General Notes (Street Light Construction)

- 1. All workmanship, materials and testing shall be in accordance with the current edition of the WSDOT/APWA, MUTCD, National Electrical Code (NEC) or City of Chelan Development Guidelines unless otherwise specified below. In cases of conflict, the most stringent guideline shall apply.
- 2. Electrical permits and inspections are required for all street lighting installations within the City of Chelan. The contractor is responsible for obtaining said permits prior to any type of actual construction. These permits are available from the State Department of Electrical Inspections (L & I), Chelan County PUD, and the Department of Planning and Community Development at City Hall.

- 3. A clearly marked service disconnect shall be provided for every lighting circuit. The location and installation of the disconnect shall conform to NEC and City of Chelan standards, whichever is more stringent. The photo cell window shall face north unless otherwise directed by the City. The service disconnect shall not be mounted on the luminaire pole.(See drawing pg. 11-7) The service panel shall be supplied with PUD approved meter base, galvanized steel NEMA 3R enclosure. The photo electric cell shall be utility grade Intermatic series K4100 or equivalent, installed in a vandal/tamper resistant manner. Enclosure shall have provisions for locking with a City supplied padlock. Test switch shall be commercial grade 120/277 VAC rating Hubbell CS115 or equivalent. GFCI duplex recepticle shall be within main enclosure and be Hubbell 5352-IS or equivalent. Contactor shall be Square D model 8903 type L or equivalent.
- 4. All lighting wire shall be stranded copper with a minimum size of #10 AWG. All wire shall be suitable for wet locations. All wire shall be installed in schedule 40 PVC conduit with a minimum diameter of 1-1/4 inches. A bushing or bell-end shall be used at the end of a conduit that terminates at a junctions box or luminaire pole. Conductor/circuit identification shall be used throughout the system. Equipment grounding conductor shall be a minimum of #8 AWG copper. All splices or taps in pull boxes or made below finish grade shall be made by approved methods utilizing epoxy kits rated at 600 volts (3M Scotch cast 82-A series resin splicing kits or equivalent). All splices shall be made with pressure type connectors (wire nuts will not be allowed). Direct buried wire will not be allowed. All other installation shall conform to NEC, WSDOT/APWA and MUTCD standards.
- 5. Each luminaire pole shall have an in-line, water tight fuse on each conduit above ground potential located at the base of the pole. Access to these fuses shall be through the hand-hole on the pole. The hand-hole shall be facing away from on-coming traffic. Additional conductor length shall be left inside the pole and pull or junction box equal to a loop having a diameter of one foot. Load side of in-line fuse to luminaire head shall be a minimum of #10 copper, and shall be supported at the end of the luminaire arm by an approved means. Fuse size and grounding in pole shall conform to NEC standards. All junction boxes shall meet or exceed WSDOT and NEC standards. (See drawings pg. 11-14 & 11-15)
- 6. Approved pull boxes or junction boxes shall be installed when conduit runs are more than 200 feet. In addition, a pull box or junction box shall be located within 10 feet of each luminaire pole and at every road crossing. The luminaire base, where adequate space is available and accessible, may be considered adequate as a pull or junction box. Boxes shall be clearly and permanently marked as lighting boxes by the legend "L.T." or "LIGHTING". See WSDOT standard plan J-11a.

- 7. All lighting poles shall have tapered round shafts with a linear taper of between 0.125 and 0.14 inches per foot. All poles shall be Hapco 50700-005 or 50700-006 for single arm and Hapco 50701-010 for twin arm or approved equal. In existing developed areas, the City may approve/require use of other poles to establish consistency within the developed area.
- 8. Mounting heights, arm length, power source, luminaire, and bolt patterns shall be as indicated on drawings pages 11-9, 11-10, 11-11.
- 9. Any modification to approved plans shall be reviewed and approved by the City engineer prior to installation.

#### Staking

All surveying and staking shall be performed by an engineering or surveying firm capable of performing such work. The engineer or surveyor directing such work shall be licensed by the State of Washington.

A preconstruction meeting shall be held with the City prior to commencing staking. All construction staking shall be inspected by the City prior to construction.

The minimum staking of luminaires shall be as follows:

- A. Location and elevation to the center of every pole base;
- B. Location and elevation of each service disconnect.

#### Testing

All luminaires shall be subject to an electrical inspection. Lamp, photocell and fixture shall be warranted for a period of two years.

#### **CONDUIT TRENCHING**



ID-099

#### STREET LIGHT CONDUIT LOCATION



## NOTE:

A TOTAL OF FOUR 90° BENDS, OR AN EQUIVALENT OF 360° MAXIMUM IS PERMITTED IN A CONDUIT RUN PER NEC SECTION 347-14. SINCE EACH "J" BOX REQUIRES ONE 90° BEND TO ENTER THE BOTTON OF THE BOX, A MAXIMUM OF TWO ADDITIONAL 90° BENDS CAN BE INSTALLED BETWEEN BOXES OR NO MORE THAN 180°



.

#### **TYPICAL LIGHTING CONTROL PANEL**



#### **TYPICAL LIGHT CIRCUIT**



ID-096
### HIGH PRESSURE SODIUM LUMINAIRE



NOTES:

 LUMINAIRE SHALL BE COBRA-HEAD CONFIGURATION WITH BALLAST IN HEAD MEETING I.E.S., TYPE III, LIGHT DISTRIBUTION PATTERN WITH CUT OFF OPTICS AND POWER DOOR.

2) LUMINAIRE BALLAST SHALL BE MAGNETIC REGULATOR TYPE AND PROVIDE FOR A  $\pm$  10% INPUT VOLTAGE. PLUG-IN LEADS, PLUG-IN STARTER BOARD.

3) POWER VOLTAGE TO LUMINAIRE SHALL BE VERIFIED WITH CHELAN COUNTY P.U.D. PRIOR TO ORDERING LUMINAIRE. ALL LUMINAIRES SHALL BE 240V IF AVAILABLE.

- 4) SEE CITY OF CHELAN STANDARD DWG. PAGE 11-10 FOR POLE AND MAST ARM REQUIREMENTS.
- 5) LUMINAIRE SHALL BE G.E. OR CROUS HEINZ.
- 6) LUMINAIRE REQUIREMENTS :

STREET WIDTH *	LUMINAIRE MOUNTING HEIGHT	GENERAL STREET CLASSIFICATION	NOTE3 LAMP WATTAGE	AVERAGE INITIAL LUMENS	MAXIMUM POLE SPACING **
40' MIN.	35.0'	COMMERCIAL	400	50,000	125'
32'	30.0'	MAJOR,MINOR COLLECTORS LOCAL, PRIVATE, RESIDENTAL	250****	9,500 16,000****	300'

 MEASURED FROM FACE OF CURB TO FACE OF CURB.
\*\* SPACING TO BE STAGGERED OPPOSITE SIDE OF STREET INTERVALS, EXCEPT ON CURVES WHERE SPACING SHALL BE DETERMINED USING GUIDELINES SET FORTH IN WSDOT PUB. M51-02
\*\*\* SEE CITY OF CHELAN STANDARD DRAWING 11-11 FOR LAMP REQUIREMENTS.
\*\*\*\* USE TO BE DETERMINED BY CITY ENGINEER.

ID-094



## STREET LIGHT STANDARD

1

#### HIGH PRESSURE SODIUM VAPOR LAMP

See City of Chelan Standard drawing page 11-9 for luminaire housing requirements.

#### General

These lamps shall be used in the luminaires specified on City of Chelan Standards drawing page 11-9.

#### Marking

Manufacturer's name or symbol, catalog number, and wattage rating shall be printed on each lamp.

#### Packaging

Lamps shall be packaged in containers which will prevent shipping and handling breakage.

Each container shall be marked with the manufacturer's name, name of item , wattage, and catalog number.

#### Failed Lamps

Lamps in service for less than one year are under warranty and shall be returned for replacement.

#### Manufacturer and Catalog Numbers

- 100 Watt OSRAM Sylvania #LU100 S54\*
- 200 Watt OSRAM Sylvania #LU200 S66\* Philips #C200 S66
- 400 Watt OSRAM Sylvania #LU400 S51\* Philips #C400 S51

\* ANSI Ballast Reference

#### PEDESTRIAN LIGHTING

Pedestrian light luminaires shall be 18" round globe, 100 watt high pressure sodium vapor with constant wattage ballast, rated 240v when available.. The luminaires shall be as manufactured by Welsback Lighting, Inc., Deville Model T7WH7700 with cast aluminum ballast housing and cast aluminum post fitter, or approved equal. Ballast housing and post fitter to be painted with Benjamin Moore Color PV-61 Blue or approved equal via EP-S system.



# SECTION ELEVEN - STREET ILLUMINATION

## JUNCTION BOX DETAILS

M	ITEM		BOX TYPE		r		
R		TYP	E 1	TYPE 2	TYPE 3		
ĸ		ALTERNATIVE 1	ALTERNATIVE 2				
Α	Box outsitde length	22"	22"	33"	42"		
в	Box outside width	17"	17"	22-1/2"	30"		
с	Box inside length	18"	18"	28"	36"		
D	Box inside width	13"	14"	17"	24"		
Е	Lid length	18"	18''	26-1/2"	38"		
F	Lid width	13"	13"	17"	26"		
G	Box depth	12"	12"	12"	12"		
н	Lid and frame depth	5/16"	5/16"	5/16"	1/2"		
J	Wall thickness (Minimum)	1-1/2"	1-1/2"	1-1/2"	3"		
к	Wire reinforcement	W-3	W-2.5	W-2.5	W-5		
L	Legend	See Detail	See Detail	See Detail	See Detail		
м	Handle	N/A	N/A	N/A	See Detail		
Ν	Frame slot mark	N/A	N/A	N/A	See Detail		
Р	Lid hook mark	N/A	N/A	N/A	See Detail		
Q	Foundation outside length	N/A	N/A	N/A	48"		
R	Foundation outside width	N/A	N/A	N/A	36"		
s	Foundation inside length	N/A	N/A	N/A	36"		
т	Foundation inside width	N/A	N/A	N/A	20"		
U	Foundation depth (Minimum)	N/A	N/A	N/A	3"		
v	Fountain reinforcement	N/A	N/A	N/A	2-W-5		
C	oacity - Conduit Diameter	6"	6"	12"	24"		
N	ote: a 1% tolerance is allowed.						

## Junction Box Dimension Table

Notes:

All box dimensions are minimum. Exact configurations vary among different manufacturers. 1.

- The noted lid thicknesses are overall minimums. The diamond pattern for Type 1 or Type 2 boxes shall be 28% 2. minimum of overall thickness. The diamond pattern for Type 3 boxes shall be 3/32" minimum thick.
- 3. Lid support members shall be welded to the frame.
- 4.
- When noted in the contract, Type 2 and Type 3 boxes shall be provided with 12" deep extension boxes. When noted in the contract, Type 2 boxes shall be provided with a 10" x 27-1/2", 10 gage divider plate complete 5. with fasteners.

6. Non-concrete boxes may be submitted for approval. Evaluation will include an H-20 load test.

CITYG	STAND.	ARDS

.

# SECTION ELEVEN - STREET ILLUMINATION

#### JUNCTION BOX DETAILS, Cont.

ĺ

ĺ





# SECTION ELEVEN - STREET ILLUMINATION

# CITY OF CHELAN

#### JUNCTION BOX DETAILS, Cont.





HOOK DETAIL (TWO HOOKS PER LID)





LID HOOD MARK DETAIL (MARK P)



LEGEND DETAIL FORM LETTERS WITH 1/8" WELD BEAD GRIND OFF DIAMOND PATTERN BEFORE FORMING LETTERS

ID-104

**CITY STANDARDS** 

Adopted July, 1998

(Revised 02/03)

11-15

## **TYPICAL SERVICE LIGHTING DETAILS**



Notes:

- 1. The contractor shall verify the requirements of the utility prior to installing the service equipment.
- 2. All service pole conduit shall be secured to the pole with conduit strap at minimum 5' centers.
- 3. All risers and service equipment shall be installed on side of pole that is away from traffic.
- 4. Where required by the serving utility, service breakers shall be installed above the meter socket in a separate rain tight enclosure.
- 5. Attach all conduit to pole within 1' of enclosure. See drawing page 11-7
- 6. For service wiring diagram, use Standard Plan, page 11-7.
- 7. Submit breaker schedule in contract for breaker and contactor sizes.
- 8. All exposed conduit to be rigid galvanized steel to 18" below grade.

Reserved for future augmentation

# **SECTION THIRTEEN - BONDING**

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

## SECTION THIRTEEN TABLE OF CONTENTS

Description	Page
BONDING AND LIABILITY INSURANCE	

## **SECTION THIRTEEN - BONDING**

## CITY OF CHELAN

#### BONDING AND LIABILITY INSURANCE

Developers constructing infrastructure facilities shall provide performance and payment bonds and maintenance bonds, subject to the requirements specified herein, in the form of a surety bond, cash bond, or certified check deposited with the City in a sufficient amount as verified by the City Engineer, to assure construction of required improvements, correction of project deficiencies and/or elimination of hazards relating to the project, payment of subcontractors and material men, maintenance of such improvements and protection of public property. Subject to the bond amount requirements set forth herein, contracts for public improvements or work entered into by the City shall comply with RCW 39.08, as now exists or as may be hereafter amended.

#### Performance and Payment bond:

A performance and payment bond shall be provided to the City in the amount of 150% of the estimated completion cost of the improvement. (See Appendix B, Exhibit 2 for calculation of completion costs.) Prior to commencing construction, the developer constructing the facility shall post a performance and payment bond executed by a security company authorized to transact business in the state in a substantially similar form as that set forth in Appendix B, Exhibit 6, or in a form approved by the City Engineer; or, in lieu of a surety bond, the applicant may establish other legal performance assurance in the form of a cash account with the City Finance Director in the amount specified above. The instructions to the City shall provide that after ten days prior written notice to the developer and the developer's failure to correct project deficiencies and/or eliminate existing or potential hazardous conditions in a timely manner, the City shall be authorized without any further notice to the developer and without any further consent of the developer to disburse the necessary funds to the City for the purpose of completing, correcting and/or eliminating such conditions as specified in the City notice.

After determination by the City Engineer that all infrastructure facilities are constructed in compliance with the approved plans, and all suppliers, laborers and subcontractors have been paid, and that the maintenance bond provided for herein has been posted, the performance and payment bond shall be released.

In the event the developer fails to complete all improvements in accordance with the Chelan Municipal Code and the City completes the same, the City shall call upon the performance and payment bond as required herein, for reimbursement or shall appropriate from any cash deposit, funds for reimbursement. In the event the amount of security bond or cash deposit shall exceed all costs and expenses incurred by the City, it shall release the remainder of such bond or deposit, and if the amount of the security bond or deposit is less than the cost of expense incurred by the City, the developer shall be liable to the City and shall immediately pay for such difference upon notice from the City.

Maintenance Bond:

Prior to release of the performance and payment bond required herein, developers and contractors for public works projects shall provide a maintenance bond for a guarantee of all materials, construction and workmanship in an amount equal to 20% of the estimated cost of the improvements (see Appendix B, Exhibit 2) as verified by the City Engineer, for a period of two years after the date of acceptance of all infrastructure facilities by the City. Such maintenance bond shall be in the form substantially similar to Appendix B, Exhibit 7 or in a form approved by the City Engineer and shall be executed by a security company authorized to transact business in the state of Washington. Release of the maintenance bond will occur two years from the date of City acceptance if all maintenance has been accepted by the City.

In lieu of a maintenance bond, the developer or contractor on a public works project may deposit with the City Finance Director in the form of a cash deposit the amount set forth herein.

In the event the Developer and/or contractor fails to maintain the improvement in accordance with the provisions of this section and the terms of the maintenance bond, the City shall have the right to maintain the same, and shall call upon the security for reimbursement or shall appropriate, from any cash deposit, funds for reimbursement. In the event the security bond or cash deposit shall exceed all costs and expenses incurred by the City, it shall release the remainder of such maintenance bond or cash deposit, and if the amount of the security bond or cash deposit is less than the cost of expense incurred by the City, the applicant shall be liable to the City and shall immediately pay for such difference upon notice from the City.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless:

The Developer shall execute an agreement providing the Developer shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including, without limitation, attorney fees, costs, and expenses arising out of or in connection with the construction of the facility, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City, or arising out of Developer's non-observance or non-performance of any law, ordinance, or regulation applicable to the property.

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Developer and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Developer's liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Developer's negligence.

It is further specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided

# **SECTION THIRTEEN - BONDING**

## CITY OF CHELAN

herein constitutes the Developer's waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification. THIS WAIVER HAS BEEN MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED BY THE PARTIES. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION SHALL SURVIVE THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT.

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

# APPENDIX A

# DEFINITIONS

CITY STANDARDS

Adopted July, 1998

(Revised 01/07) A-1

APWA - American Public Works Association

AWWA - American Water Works Association

As-Built Drawing - A neat and legibly marked set of full size construction drawings accurately showing the final location along with changes made during construction and the final location of buried or concealed items. Said drawings shall be to scale.

Alley - A public thoroughfare having a width of not less than sixteen feet nor more than twenty feet; for the use of vehicles and/or pedestrians which affords only a secondary means of access to abutting property and utility purposes.

Bedding Materials - Sand applied as per standard trench detail and good construction practice providing support and strength to pipe lines laid.

Best Management Practices - The most effective method, technique or product available which is generally accepted in the field, and which is demonstrated to be reliable and effective.

City - City of Chelan

Court - A short street, usually no through traffic.

Cul-de-sac - A short dead-end street or court not exceeding 2000 feet and having one end open to traffic and the other temporarily or permanently terminated by a vehicle turnaround.

Developer(s) - Any person or other entity who undertakes any activity regulated by these standards.

Development - The formation of a lot, subdivision, plat or short plat with potential for construction; and/or construction that requires infrastructure improvements or a building permit. (Building permits for "development" shall exclude remodels other than reconstruction that directly affects specific elements of these standards, which element will be considered development only as it applies to the specific category.) Remodels exceeding 50% of the assessed evaluation shall require that development standards apply.

Development Permit - A permit issued by the city to perform any work regulated by these standards.

Development Standards - Design, construction methods, and materials adopted by ordinance as required for infrastructure installation.

Driveway - A private access to one, two, or three single-family residences.

Half-width street - A street constructed along the edge of a development, using a portion of the regular width of right-of-way and permitted as an interim facility pending construction

of the remainder of the street improvement by the adjacent owner(s).

Impervious Surfaces - Hard surfaces made of portland concrete or asphaltic concrete as per City standards.

Improved Street - Street section constructed to City standards including sidewalks, curb, gutter and storm drainage.

Infrastructure Facilities and Improvements - Any improvement required by a development permit except for improvements estimated to cost less than \$5,000 in the reasonable estimation of the City engineer.

Lane - A short street, or a street with branching places or lanes. A lane is a minor residential street, and usually there is no through traffic between two streets of a higher classification.

Maintenance Bond - A bond posted with the City for the guarantee of the public works improvements in a specified amount of the estimated cost of the improvements for a period of two years after the completed job is accepted by the City.

Path - a surfaced facility designed for pedestrians. Paths shall be a minimum of five feet in width with at least one and one-half feet of clearance to obstructions on both sides and a 10 feet vertical clearance. Paths shall be designed and located to avoid drainage and erosion problems.

Performance Bond - A bond posted with the City assuring construction in a specified amount.

Place - A short street, cul-de-sac, or court. A place has a very limited destination and deadends with no apparent future need for extension. A place cannot exceed three hundred fifty feet in length.

Private Road - A privately owned and maintained access provided for by a tract, easement or other legal means.

Public Street - A publically-owned facility providing access, including the roadway and all other improvements inside the right-of-way.

Public Works - means the Public Works Director or his/her designee.

Right-of-Way - land dedicated to the City for purposes of public circulation and/or utilities.

Sewerage Collection System - The collection of sewer mains and sewer service lines required to provide sewer service to each customer in a development.

Sewer Main - An 8" or larger pipe designed to collect sewerage from more than two users to properties over 150 feet from an existing sewer main.

## CITY OF CHELAN

Sewer Service Line - 4" to 6" pipe, valves, and necessary accessories designed to convey sewerage from each lot to the sewer main, unless said lot is over 150 feet from the sewer main.

Sewer System User - Any persons, firm, or corporation having a right to sewer service within the City. This also includes the holders of title or evidence of title to land to which sewer service is furnished.

Street - A public thoroughfare which provides the principal means of access to abutting properties, but not including an alley.

Unimproved Street - A street not built to complete City standards, i.e. no curb, gutter, sidewalk, or storm drainage.

Water Distribution System - The collection of water mains and water service lines required to provide water service to each customer in a development.

Water Main - A pipe designed to convey water to two or more users or to two or more properties over 150 feet from an existing water main.

Water Service Line - The pipe, valves, and necessary accessories designed to convey water from the water main to each lot.

Water User - Any person, firm or corporation having a right to water service within the water service area; this also includes the holders of title or evidence of title to land to which water service is furnished.

WSDOT - Washington State Department of Transportation.

## APPENDIX B - FORMS

# CITY OF CHELAN

## APPENDIX B TABLE OF CONTENTS

# **Description**

ĺ

ĺ

(

## <u>Page</u>

AGREEMENT FOR EXTENSION OF CHELAN INFRASTRUCTURE	B-2
IMPROVEMENT EVALUATION PACKET	B-6
PUBLIC WORKS EXCAVATION PERMIT (CMC 12.20)	B-14
UTILITY EASEMENT	B-15
SEWER CONNECTION INSPECTION REPORT	B-16
PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND	B-17
MAINTENANCE BOND	B-20

B-1

## EXHIBIT 1

## AGREEMENT FOR EXTENSION OF CHELAN INFRASTRUCTURE

This AGREEMENT is executed \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_ by the City of Chelan (herein "City") and \_\_\_\_\_ (herein "Developer").

WHEREAS, the Developer desires to develop certain real property situated in the County of Chelan, State of Washington, particularly described as:

and to install a system of streets, pipes and appurtenances for the above described property to enable the delivery of domestic water, wastewater, or transportation from the City's existing service;

WHEREAS, the City will approve the proposed facilities and furnish said connections upon the Developer's facilities upon the Developers full compliance with the terms, conditions and covenants of this agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed as follows:

1. <u>DEVELOPER TO FURNISH DESCRIPTION</u>: Developer shall furnish to the City a legal description of the real property which he plans to develop. A copy of the legal description is attached to this Agreement as "Exhibit A".

2. <u>DEVELOPER TO FURNISH DEVELOPMENT PLAN</u>: Developer shall also furnish to the City a copy of his plan to develop or subdivide the "Exhibit A" real property.

3. <u>PREPARATION OF INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN</u>: Upon receipt of the Developer's plans, the City shall provide basic information as needed by the Developer to prepare an infrastructure plan. Developer will be responsible for the cost of preparation of the plan. The plan shall be prepared by a professional engineer licensed in the State of Washington. The plan shall include the following:

- a. The location of connection to the City's existing systems for the purpose of supplying service to the proposed development.
- b. A plan/profile of all transportation and pipe system facilities to be installed to serve the development and its components.

- c. The pipe sizes and specifications of all mains and laterals.
- d. All fittings, equipment and material to be installed in connection with the mains and laterals in order to transport water from the City's system to the point of utilization.
- e. Standards and methods of construction as adopted herein shall be in full force for this agreement.
- f. Any other information which the City determines is required by the particular circumstances involved.

4. <u>DEVELOPER TO PROVIDE PROOF OF INSURANCE</u>: Developer shall have system installed by a licensed and bonded contractor. The contractor shall furnish proof of license, bond and insurance. The Developer may elect to install the infrastructure system with his own forces. The City will require that the Developer have public liability and property damage insurance coverage as outlined in Section 13 "Bonding" of Chelan City Standards.

5. <u>CONSTRUCTION OF SYSTEM</u>: Developer will construct or cause to be constructed a completed system, in full conformity with the infrastructure plan, as prepared by the Developer's Engineer. The City's standards, conditions and specifications shall be followed in the construction of the Water Plan.

6. <u>AS-BUILT PLAN</u>: Developer will provide a certified mylar copy of the as-built plan showing final relations to the property lines and other physical features. Electronic file is required. Bond will not be released until asbuilts are completed and approved.

7. <u>EASEMENT DESCRIPTIONS</u>: Easements for all the infrastructure shall be a minimum of 20 feet wide. Easement legal descriptions shall be prepared by a surveyor or engineer licensed to practice in the State of Washington. Easement legal descriptions shall be reviewed and approved by the City engineer prior to acceptance and recording.

8. <u>CITY'S INSPECTION AND DIRECTION</u>: The City, by its agents, servants and employees, shall have the right to enter upon the Developer's property, at any time prior to the completion of the construction, installation, inspection and testing of the system to inspect the construction of the water system and/or to direct the Developer, his contractor, agents, or employees, to take any action necessary to fully comply with the infrastructure plan. Developer shall take, or cause to be taken, any action directed by the City and shall cause such system to be constructed in all respects in full conformity with the plan. The Developer shall reimburse the City for the inspection services at the current inspection rate as calculated in these standards, Appendix B-2.

If the scope of the project requires such, the City will require the design-engineering firm to provide inspection of the construction work. The Developer shall be responsible for the charges from the engineering firm. The City and the engineering firm shall coordinate

## APPENDIX B - FORMS

the inspections and resolve any disputes regarding plan or specification interpretation.

9. <u>INSTALLATION OF STREETS, MAIN TAPS AND VALVES</u>: All connections to existing City facilities, necessary to serve such water and wastewater systems, shall be installed by the Developer, at the expense of the Developer. All costs shall be paid in full prior to acceptance of the system by the City.

10. <u>INSPECTION AND TESTING OF COMPLETED SYSTEM</u>: When the Developer believes that the system has been completed in full conformity with the Infrastructure Plan, he shall notify the City. The City shall inspect the system and be present during tests to the system as the City shall specify. Such testing shall be at the expense of the developer. Following such testing, the City shall notify the Developer in writing of its approval of the system, or of any additions, changes or modifications required prior to such approval.

11. <u>ACCEPTANCE OF SYSTEM</u>: Upon approval of the construction and conveyance of the water system by the City, and the deposit of cash or a bond by the Developer as hereinafter provided, the City shall notify the Developer of its acceptance of the system. The system shall then become a part of the City's system. Thereafter, the Developer and his assigns shall be entitled to receive services from the City in the same manner, and upon the same terms as other users within the City.

12. <u>REPAIRS TO AND REPLACEMENT OF SYSTEM</u>: Following the acceptance of the said system by the City, the responsibility for repairs and replacements thereto shall be as follows:

a. For the first twenty-four months following such acceptance, the obligation and expense of any repairs or replacements to the system which are required by the City shall be that of the Developer. Any such repairs or replacement shall be done by the City. The cost shall be paid by the Developer, as computed by the City. The Developer shall deposit with the City either cash or a performance bond with a surety acceptable to the City in the sum of 20 percent of construction costs. In the event the Developer fails or neglects to pay the costs of any such repairs or replacements during the twenty-four month period, the costs may be assessed against the surety bond. After the Developer's responsibility for repair or replacement has terminated, any balance of the cash deposit will be refunded to the Developer.

b. Twenty-four months after the acceptance of the water system, the responsibility for the repair and replacement of that portion of the system conveyed by the Developer to the City shall become the responsibility of the City.

13. <u>CITY RULES AND REGULATIONS</u>: The Developer, his successors and assigns shall be subject to existing or as amended ordinances, rules and regulations of the City at the time of development.

14. <u>BINDING AGREEMENT</u>: The terms, conditions and covenant hereof shall

extend to and be binding upon the heirs, successors, and assigns of the parties to this agreement.

15. INDEMNIFICATION The permittee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees, from and against any and all claims, losses or liability, including attorneys fees, arising from injury or death to persons or damage to property occasioned by the construction, installation, operation, location, maintenance, or any other cause related to the improvement for which this agreement is granted. With respect to this agreement and to claims against the City, its officers, agents and employees, the permittee expressly waives its immunity under Tittle 51 of the Revised Code of Washington, the Industrial Insurance Act, for injuries to any employee the permittee may have, and agrees that the obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless provided for in this paragraph extends to any claim brought by or on behalf of any employee of the developer. This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties as part of the agreement process and is given, as is the indemnification agreement contained within this paragraph, as consideration for the City allowing development. This paragraph shall not apply to any damage or injury resulting from the sole negligence of the City, its agents or employees. The extent any of the damages or injuries referenced by this paragraph were caused by or resulted from the concurrent negligence of the City, its agents or employees, this obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless is valid and enforceable only to the extent of the negligence of the developer, its officers, agents or employees, if any.

## 16. <u>ADDITIONAL COVENANTS AND TERMS</u>: (If any)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have caused this instrument to be executed the day and year first written.

Developer

CITY OF CHELAN

Developer

Mayor

**City Administrator** 

#### EXHIBIT 2

#### IMPROVEMENT EVALUATION PACKET

The Improvement Evaluation Packet is used by the City of Chelan Public Works Department to evaluate the dollar inspection and bond value of the improvements being installed on development construction projects. The applicant filling out the packet is asked to provide the material quantities and to compute the value of the improvements using the dollar amounts as verified by the Public Works Department. The following are answers to commonly asked questions about the packet:

- 1. All development projects must complete the packet.
- 2. The amounts generated are used to establish bond amounts and review and inspection fees for Public Works.
- 3. Public work is considered to be any improvement installed in the right-of-way. The break occurs at the property line for all developments. However, maintenance for sewer laterals remains the responsibility of the property owner to the sewer main.
- 4. Private work is considered to be any of the listed improvements occurring on private property. Private work will be covered within the authority of the building permit.
- 5. After completion of the packet, the Public Works Department will check the quantities, establish the bond and fee amounts and sign off.
- 6. The Public Works Department will not issue permits for the project until the packet is completed.

If you have any further questions about the packet, please call the Public Works Department at (509) 682-8030.

## APPENDIX B - FORMS

### IMPROVEMENT EVALUATION

This form must be completed by the developer (or representative), and include all work Required by the project. Quantity take-offs shall be from documents approved by the City of Chelan.

PUBLIC WORK, except for sewer laterals, will be owned and maintained by the City after the appropriate maintenance period and will be subject to review bond and inspection fees.

PRIVATE WORK will be owned and maintained by the property owner(s), and is not subject to the above fees. All private work shall conform to the respective building permit. Planned Unit Development's (PUD) infrastructure within designated right-of-way shall fall under the definition of Public Work as it applies to meeting the required City standard specification.

## **CONSTRUCTION STORM DRAINAGE - PUBLIC WORK**

ltem	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
Silt fence, Installed	LF			
Grading for drainage swales	LF			
Sod for drainage swales	SY			
Hydroseeding	SF			
Construction entrance	EA			
OTHER				
OTHER				

# **Construction Storm Drainage Total**

## **EXCAVATION IN RIGHT-OF-WAY AND CUT & FILL - PUBLIC WORK**

Item	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
Paved wide area	LF			
Right-of-way - Unpaved	LF			
Total yardage				
Bond requirement				
	_			

# Excavation in Right-of-way and Cut & Fill Total

# SANITARY SEWER - PUBLIC WORK

Item		Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
6" PVC pipe		LF			
8" PVC pipe		LF			
Unsuitable Ex. (2' over & ballast)		CY			
Extra Depth Ex. (over 12' deep)		FT/LF			
Manhole, 48"		EA			
Extra Depth MH, (per ft over 12")		FT			
Sewer Connection		ERU			
OTHER					
<b>-</b> 4, 4, 4, − − − − − − − − − − − − − − −	Sanitary Sewer Tot	al			

(

# **STORM SEWER - PUBLIC WORK**

	ltem	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
8" Pipe		LF			
12" Pipe		LF			
18" Pipe		LF			
24" Pipe		LF			
30" Pipe		LF			
36" Pipe		LF			
48" Pipe		LF			
Detention P	ipe	LF			
Unsuitable I	Ex. (2' over & ballast)	CY			
Extra Depth	Ex. (over 12' deep)	FT/LF		: 	
Curb Inlet		EA			
Type I Catc	h Basin	EA			
Type II Cate	ch Basin - 48"	EA			
Type II Cate	ch Basin - 54"	EA			
Connection	to existing Catch Basin	EA			
Extra Depth	MH, (per ft over 12")	FT			
Restrictor/Pollution Control - 8"		EA			
Restrictor/Pollution Control - 12"		EA			
OTHER					
OTHER					
	Storm Sewer Total				

ĺ

# **PAVING - PUBLIC WORK**

	ltem	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
AC paveme	ent patching	SY			
Crushed rock; 1¼" minus		CY			
Crushed rock; 5/8" minus		CY			
Asphalt pavement		CY			
Saw cut AC pavement		LF			
Cold Planing (Grinding)		SY			
OTHER					
OTHER					
	Paving Total				

# **CURB AND GUTTER - PUBLIC WORK**

	ltem	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
Concrete e	xtruded curb	LF			
Asphalt extruded curb		LF			
Conc. curb & gutter, Type A		LF			
OTHER	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••				
OTHER					
	Curb and Gutter	Гotal			

# SIDEWALKS - PUBLIC WORK

	ltem	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
5' Concrete	sidewalk	LF			
6' Concrete sidewalk		LF			
5' Concrete	driveway	LF			
Asphalt wa	kways, Class B	SY			
Wheel chai	r ramps	EA			
OTHER					
<b>.</b>	Sidewalks Total				

# LANDSCAPING - PUBLIC WORK

	ltem	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
Street trees		EA			
Sod		SY			
Rockery wa		SY			
OTHER					
	Landscaping Total				

## WATER - PUBLIC WORKS

ltem	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
Pipe				
Valves				
Other				
Other				
Other				
Water Total				

# **MISCELLANEOUS - PUBLIC WORKS**

Item	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
Monuments	EA			
Street signs	EA			
Pavement marking	LF			
Adjust existing utilities	EA		<u> </u>	
OTHER			······	
OTHER				

# **Miscellaneous Total**

	Items Required	Value of Public Infrastructure
1.	Construction Drainage	
2.	ROW Excavation/C&F	
3.	Sanitary Sewer	
4.	Storm Sewer	
5.	Paving	
6.	Curb & Gutter	
7.	Sidewalks	
8.	Landscaping	
9.	Water	
10.	Miscellaneous	
11.	Other	
тот	AL	

ĺ

(

	PUBLIC WO	RKS DEPARTME	NT MMARY	
TYPE	OF PROJECT: ( ) Subdivision ( ) Access Permit	() Utility	Excavation Pe	rmit
PROJ	ECT NAME:			
PROJ	ECT LOCATION		-	
DEVE	LOPER:			
CONT	ACT PERSON:	TEI	EPHONE:	
I here constr Ager All pro in valu	eby certify the above to be a tru ruction for the above mentioned pr nt/Owner: ojects within City right-of-way requin ue may request waiver with justifica	e and accurate r roject. Da re insurance and b ation of no signific	epresentation ate: onding. Project ant effect.	of the required
1.	Total Value Public Project Infrast	ructure:		
2.	Insurance Amount (See Section	13):		
3.	Inspection Fee Deposit (1/2% of #1, \$25.00 min.): Final Fee will be actual City Cost	Amount	Date Received	Date Released
4.	Performance Bond (See Section 13) (150% of #1)	Amount	Date Received	Date Released
5.	Maintenance Bond (See Section 13) (20% of #1)	Amount	Date Received	Date Released
Depo	sit and Bonding Release Authoriza	ation: City Engin	eer	Date
This approact	application, for all improvements oved subject to completion of const Conditions and any special requirer	that are performe truction in conform ments as stated be	d on right-of-v ance with City elow:	way, are hereby Standard Plans

(

## EXHIBIT 3 PUBLIC WORKS EXCAVATION PERMIT (CMC 12.20)

PERMIT #:	DATE:	EXPIRES:	
PROJECT ADDRES	68 <u></u>	PHONE	
	Plans Attached	Improvement Evaluation	Summary Sheet Attached
CONTRACTOR		PHONE	
Address	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
State Registration #	# Expires	City Business Lic	ense
"Additional Insured"	Endorsement: Yes	No Expires	
Project Start:		Project Complete:	
RIGHT-OF-WAY PE Utility Exca Sidewalk Street/Curl	ERMIT avation b Cut, Driveway Access rol Plan Approved? Y N	REQUEST FOR INSPECTI Failure to call for in Backfilling, pouring Will result in requir Date/Time	ON hspection prior to performing g or other inspection obstructions red removal of the improvement.
SANITARY/STORM	SEWER PERMIT	REQUEST FOR IN	ISPECTION
Sanitary S	ewer Connection	Date/Time	9
Storm Sew	ver Connection	Number of Housin Commercial	g Units
Comments:		City Water P.U.D. Water Inside City Limits Outside City Limits	
	48 HOUR NOTICE REQUIRE 24 HOUR NOTICE REQUIR	TO UTILITY COUNCIL: (8) ED FOR INSPECTION: (509	00) 424-5555 ) 682-8030
The contractor agre and sidewalk, accor	ees, at his expense, to barricade, rding to the City of Chelan Stand	compact, backfill and replace rds.	street base, surfacing, and/or curb
Contractor		Date	
Applicant hereby certi permit in accordance become null and void.	fies that the information given herein with all applicable ordinances and s	true and accurate and further a tutes. Any deviation from this	grees to perform work authorized by the original application causes the permit to
Applicant	:	Date	
* PERMIT FEE	Received Check #	Cash	Receipt #
*Bond Required:(I Application Appro Inspection By * These fees are for fees.	Evaluation Summary Sheet B oved By Public Works Date/Commer or permit processing, inspectio	<sup>1</sup> 3) Date , and bonding only. They c	on Fee:

(

(

#### EXHIBIT #4 - UTILITY EASEMENT

THIS EASEMENT is granted effective the \_\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, \_\_\_\_ b e t w e e n \_\_\_\_\_\_ hereinafter called "GRANTOR," and the CITY OF CHELAN, a Municipal Corporation, hereinafter called the "GRANTEE."

#### WITNESSETH:

For valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Grantor hereby grants and conveys to the Grantee, its successors and assigns, A PERPETUAL EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR ALL UTILITY PURPOSES, over, under, upon and through a portion of that certain Real Property situated and being in the County of Chelan, State of Washington, more particularly described as follows (hereinafter called "Real Property"):

#### (INSERT LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF ENTIRE PARCEL)

The portion of the above-described Real Property where the PERPETUAL EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR ALL UTILITY PURPOSES is located is described as follows (hereinafter called "Easement Area"):

#### (INSERT LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF EASEMENT AREA)

GRANTOR further grants to GRANTEE the right to enter upon, over and along the Real Property, from time to time, to construct, install, inspect, service, repair, alter, modify, replace, remove, maintain, and update to present and future technological standards, any and all public utilities. Grantor shall not place or construct any building, fence, planter, or other structure on the Easement Area.

GRANTEE shall not be responsible for replacing or restoring any structures, fences, retaining walls, shrubbery, hedges, landscaping or any other items located now or hereafter within the Easement Area.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been executed the date and year first above written

GRANTOR

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) ) ss.

COUNTY OF CHELAN

I certify that I know or have satisfactory ev	/idence that	(is/are) the person(s) who
appeared before me, and said person(s)	acknowledged that	(he/she/they) signed this
instrument and acknowledged it to be	(his/her/their) free	and voluntary act for the uses and
purposes mentioned in the instrument.		-
GIVEN under my hand and seal this	day of	

Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, residing at \_\_\_\_\_ My commission expires: ĺ

#### **EXHIBIT #5 - SEWER CONNECTION INSPECTION REPORT**

Date:	Account No	
Name of Person Connecting:		
Address:		
Location of Tap:		
Size of Tap:	Depth:	
Service Line Size:		
Owner of Collection System:		
Remarks:		
Approved and Inspected by:		

(

#### Appendix B Exhibit 6

#### PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND

Project Name: Project Address:	
Developer/Contractor: City of Chelan File Name and Permit No.	

WHEREAS, \_\_\_\_\_\_, hereinafter referred to as "the Principal", has applied to the City of Chelan, hereinafter referred to as "the City", for \_\_\_\_\_\_ to construct the project known as

on a site located at \_\_\_\_\_, within the City of Chelan, and

WHEREAS, the City approved the requested action on \_\_\_\_\_, 200 \_\_\_\_, and

WHEREAS, the approval granted by the City and the provisions of the Chelan Municipal Code require certain improvements to be made in connection with construction of the project and the improvements are shown on the approved site plan and other required plans and further defined by the conditions identified in the City file,

NOW THEREFORE, the undersigned Principal and \_\_\_\_\_\_, a corporation authorized to transact surety business in the State of Washington, hereinafter referred to as "the Surety", agree and jointly and severally bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators and assigns, unto the City, in the sum of \_\_\_\_\_\_ (\$\_\_\_), lawful money of the United States, according to the following terms and conditions:

1) If the Principal does not complete all improvements required by the abovereferenced conditions, plans, and file by \_\_\_\_\_\_, 200\_\_\_, and/or fails to pay any laborers, mechanics and subcontractors and materialmen, taxing authorities, and all persons who supply such person or persons or subcontractors with material, equipment and supplies for such work, then the Surety shall, upon the written demand of the City, remit to the City within ten (10) days of receipt of said demand the amount of this bond or such lesser amount as may be specified in the demand.

2) In the event the Principal fails to complete all of the above referenced improvements within the time period specified by the City, its employees and agents shall have the right at their sole election to enter onto said property described above for the purpose of completing the improvements. This provision shall not be construed as creating an obligation on the part of the City or its representatives to complete such improvements.

3) In the event any lawsuit is instituted by the City, the principal or the surety to enforce the terms of this bond or to determine the rights of any party hereunder, the substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred as a result of such lawsuit.

4) This obligation shall be governed by the laws of the state of Washington and venue shall be in Chelan County, Washington.

5) This bond shall remain in full force and effect until the obligations secured hereby have been fully performed and a bond guaranteeing maintenance of all improvements for a period of 2 years from acceptance has been submitted to the City in an amount of not less than \_\_\_\_\_\_ percent (\_\_%) of the cost of the improvements and in a form suitable to the City, and until released in writing by the City at the request of the Surety or the Principal upon expiration of the period specified in paragraph 1 above.

DATED this \_\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_, 200 \_\_\_.

Surety

Principal

Title

Surety Address

Accepted: \_\_\_\_\_ City of Chelan

Attached hereto is an Authorization or a Power of Attorney to execute this Bond.

Surety

Note:

If attorney-in-fact signs for surety, a certified copy of the power of attorney must be attached.

CITY STANDARDS

#### SURETY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF WASHINGTON

County of Chelan

On this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_, 200\_\_\_, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared \_\_\_\_\_\_, to me known to be the \_\_\_\_\_\_ of \_\_\_\_\_\_, the corporation that executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act mentioned, and on oath stated that \_\_\_\_\_\_ was authorized to execute said instrument.

DATED this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 200\_\_\_

)ss.

(Printed Name) NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Washington My appointment expires

### PRINCIPAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF WASHINGTON

County of Chelan

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that \_\_\_\_\_\_ is the person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this instrument, on oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it to be his/her free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument.

DATED this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 200\_.

)ss.

(Printed Name) NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Washington My appointment expires \_\_\_\_\_
#### Appendix B Exhibit 7

#### MAINTENANCE BOND

DATE POSTED: DATE EXPIRES:

RE:	Chelan Subdivision/Plat/Permit No.:	
	Owner/Developer/Contractor:	
	Project Address:	

#### KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

WHEREAS, the City of Chelan, Washington (hereinafter "City") has approved an application by \_\_\_\_\_\_\_(hereinafter "Developer") for the construction of an extension to the City's infrastructure to serve the \_\_\_\_\_\_(hereinafter "Development"), in accordance with the City ordinances governing street, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, and water, which are incorporated into this agreement by reference, and which require the Developer to furnish a bond for the faithful maintenance of the work, including replacement or repair, for a period of \_\_\_\_\_\_(maintenance) months from the final and written acceptance by the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, Developer and \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ (hereinafter "Surety"), are held and firmly bound to the City in the amount of \_\_\_\_\_\_ dollars (\$\_\_\_\_\_\_) for the payment of which Developer and Surety do jointly and severally bind themselves, their heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns.

1. The work shall remain free of defects in material, workmanship and installation for a period of \_\_ month(s) from the final and written acceptance by the City; and in the case of landscaping, shall survive for a period of \_\_\_\_\_ month(s) from the date of final and written acceptance by the City. Maintenance is defined as acts carried out to prevent a decline, lapse or cessation of the state of project as accepted by the City during the month period following final and written acceptance, and includes but is not limited to repair or replacement of defective workmanship, materials or installations.

These improvements include, but are not limited to:

2.

The Developer and Surety agree that in the event that any of the improvements or restoration work installed or completed by the Developer or Surety pursuant to the above-referenced permit, plans, conditions and file, fail to remain free from defects in materials, workmanship or installation, for a period of \_\_\_\_\_\_ (\_\_\_\_) month(s) from the date of acceptance of the work by the City, the Developer shall repair and/or replace the

CITY STANDARDS

(Revised 2/03)

B-20

same within ten (10) days of demand by the City, and if the Developer should fail to do so, then the Surety shall, within twenty (20) days of demand by the City, make a written commitment to the City that it will either:

A. remedy the defect(s) itself with reasonable diligence pursuant to a time schedule acceptable to the City, or

B. tender to the City within an additional ten (10) days, the amount necessary as determined by the City, for the City to remedy the defect(s), up to the total bond amount.

The Surety shall then fulfill its obligation under this bond, according to the requirement selected by the Surety under either paragraph 2.A or 2.B above.

If the Surety elects to fulfill its obligation under paragraph 2.B above, then upon completion of the remedy, the City shall notify the Surety of the actual cost of the remedy. The City shall return, without interest, any overpayment made by the Surety, and the Surety shall pay to the City any actual cost which exceeded the City's estimate, limited to the bond amount.

- 3. This bond shall remain in full force and effect until the obligations secured hereby have been fully performed and until released in writing by the City at the request of the Surety or Developer.
- 4. Any corrections required shall be commenced within seven (7) days of notification by the City and completed within thirty (30) days of the date of notification. If the work is not performed in a timely manner, the City shall have the right, without recourse to legal action, to have said work performed, at the expense of the Developer.
- 5. No change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the work to be performed by the Developer shall affect the obligation of the Developer or Surety on this bond, and the Surety waives notice of any such change, extension, alteration or addition thereunder.
- 6. It is hereby specifically agreed by and between the parties that in the event any legal action must be taken to enforce the provisions of this bond or to collect said bond, the substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to collect its costs and reasonable attorney fees as a part of the reasonable costs of securing the obligation hereunder. In the event of settlement or resolution of these issues prior to the filing of any suit, the actual costs incurred by the City, including reasonable attorney fees, shall be considered a part of the obligation hereunder secured. Said costs and reasonable legal fees shall be recoverable by the prevailing party, not only from the proceeds of this bond, but also over and above said bond as a part of any recovery in any judicial proceeding, in addition to recovery on the bond.

## APPENDIX B - FORMS

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Developer and Su	rety have caused	this bond to be signed
by their duly authorized officers or representatives this	day of	, 200

Developer	Surety
By:	By:Attorney in Fact
Title:	<u> </u>
Business Name	Business Address
Business Address	City/State/Zip Code
City/State/Zip Code	Business Telephone Number
Business Telephone Number	Accepted by the City of Chelan:
	Name/Title
	Date

Ę

{

#### SURETY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF WASHINGTON

County of Chelan

On this \_\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_, 200\_\_\_, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared \_\_\_\_\_\_, to me known to be the \_\_\_\_\_\_ of \_\_\_\_\_, the corporation that executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act mentioned, and on oath stated that \_\_\_\_\_\_ was authorized to execute said instrument.

DATED this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 200\_\_\_

) )ss.

)

(Printed Name) NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Washington My appointment expires

#### DEVELOPER ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF WASHINGTON

County of Chelan

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that \_\_\_\_\_\_ is the person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this instrument, on oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it to be his/her free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument.

DATED this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 200\_.

)ss.

(Printed Name) NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Washington My appointment expires \_\_\_\_\_

#### **CITY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS MANUAL**

In the event of conflict between these standards and sections of the Chelan Municipal Code, these standards shall prevail.

**Compliance with Provisions and Concurrency Requirements** 

All subdivisions and developments shall conform to the design standards of this manual in addition to the City comprehensive plan and all zoning regulations in effect at the time any preliminary plat of a subdivision is submitted for approval. Lots shall be of sufficient area, width, and length to satisfy zoning requirements. Further, the standards established in this manual shall apply to all streets to be constructed and subsequently dedicated to the City as a right-of-way, to all development projects that require a development permit (planned development, conditional use permits, etc.) and propose to utilize an existing City street, a private road, or otherwise on all proposed improvements to existing City streets and to all extensions to existing water, sewer and storm drain systems. If the development results in a level of service lower than those set forth in these standards or in the Comprehensive Plan, the development may be approved if improvements or strategies to raise the level of service above the minimum standard are made concurrent with the development. For the purpose of this section, "concurrent with the development" is defined as the required improvements or strategies in place at the time of occupancy.

### CITY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS MANUAL TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION ONE - WATER STANDARDS

SECTION TWO - WATER DESIGNS

**SECTION THREE - SEWER STANDARDS** 

**SECTION FOUR- SEWER DESIGNS** 

**SECTION FIVE - STREET STANDARDS** 

**SECTION SIX - STREET DESIGNS** 

**SECTION SEVEN - STORM WATER MANAGEMENT** 

SECTION EIGHT - DRAFTING STANDARDS

**SECTION NINE - PARKING STANDARDS** 

**SECTION TEN - UTILITY DESIGNS** 

**SECTION ELEVEN - ILLUMINATION** 

**SECTION TWELVE - ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISION** 

**SECTION THIRTEEN - BONDING AND LIABILITY INSURANCE** 

**APPENDIX A - DEFINITIONS** 

**APPENDIX B - FORMS** 

**APPENDIX C - ADOPTION ORDINANCE** 

ţ

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

## SECTION ONE TABLE OF CONTENTS

Description Page
TABLE OF CONTENTS
DOMESTIC WATER MAIN EXTENSIONS
GENERAL
INTRODUCTION
STANDARDS AND CONDITIONS
SPECIFICATIONS
EXTENSIONS
PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 1-4
METHODS AND MATERIALS OF CONSTRUCTION
TRENCH EXCAVATION 1-5
PIPE INSTALLATION WITHIN STREET RIGHT-OF-WAYS
PIPE IN FILLED AREAS 1-6
PIPE BEDDING
DUCTILE IRON PIPE
DUCTILE IRON PIPE INSTALLATION 1-7
PVC PIPE
PVC PIPE INSTALLATION
TRACER WIRES 1-8
DETECTABLE MARKING TAPE 1-8
DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS 1-8
BOLTS IN PIPING 1-9
GALVANIZED IRON PIPE AND FITTINGS
CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKING
BEDDING CONCRETE
GATE VALVES
BUTTERFLY VALVES
VALVE INSTALLATION
SERVICE CONNECTION 1-11
METER BOX
PLASTIC SERVICE PIPE AND CONNECTIONS
DETECTOR CHECK AND BACKFLOW DEVICE
PUMP AND PRESSURE REDUCING STATION
BACKFILLING
HYDROSTATIC TESTS
STERILIZATION AND FLUSHING OF WATER MAINS
SANITARY SEWER CROSSINGS
SUMMARY
CHECKLIST
AS-BUILT DRAWINGS

## CITY OF CHELAN

#### DOMESTIC WATER MAIN EXTENSIONS

#### GENERAL:

#### INTRODUCTION:

The items herein contained are the domestic water main extension and repair Standards, Conditions, and Specifications for the City of Chelan. These are minimums only when they exceed the minimums required in the Washington State DOH Standard (Department of Health "Design Standards for Public Water Supplies), and may be increased or altered at the discretion of the Public Works Director to fit particular situations, but in no event shall said standards be reduced below the DOH standard. In the event of conflicting standards the higher standard shall control.

### STANDARDS AND CONDITIONS

- A. When extension of the existing water distribution system is required for service, an Agreement for Domestic Water Main Extension in the form which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Appendix B, Exhibit 1, shall be entered into between the Developer and the City.
- B. To initiate the Water Main Extension process the Developer shall submit a water plan designed by a registered professional engineer licensed in the State of Washington. Final plan and profile drawings shall be stamped by the same.
- C. The licensed professional engineer shall certify that the design and construction of the water distribution system meets or exceeds all applicable standards, to include backflow prevention and cross connection control.
- D. Obtaining necessary permits will be the responsibility of the Developer.
- E. Where franchises, easements or deeds to property are required it shall be the responsibility of the Developer to obtain and provide the same and submit appropriate documentation to the City.
- F. Easements shall be as per Section 10 of this code.
- G. All developments shall be required to provide sufficient water storage for fire protection which shall be in addition to those water supplies required for domestic purposes.
- H. A development containing forty lots or more shall contain at least two water supply routes, completing a system loop.
- I. In a development where lot size is larger than one acre, fire hydrants shall be spaced no further than one thousand feet apart and in subdivisions where lot size

(Revised 01/07)

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

is less than one acre, fire hydrants shall be spaced no further than six hundred feet apart. Where multiple family housing developments are developed within a subdivision, fire hydrant spacing shall be no further than five hundred feet apart, with additional fire hydrants located as may be necessary to permit all sides of a building to be reached by hose outlays of no greater than three hundred feet. In industrial or commercial areas, hydrants will be installed at three hundred (300) foot spacing. Typically, hydrants will be installed on alternating sides of the street. The size, type and location of fire hydrants shall meet the approval of Fire District 7. Fire hydrants shall conform with the Uniform Fire Code as adopted by the City.

- J. The minimum size water main permitted shall be six inch (6") diameter when an adequate grid is provided. An adequate grid shall be defined as a piping system that measures no more than six hundred feet on one side and the sum of the two sides shall not exceed nine hundred feet. Hydraulic calculations shall be submitted where required to validate designs involving two or more pressure zones, a booster pump, or a reservoir, as required by the engineer. Where an adequate grid is not established, pipe size shall be eight inch (8") diameter or larger as required to transport peak daily demand plus fire flow.
- K. The Developer shall supply an "as-built" drawing on approved mylar film and electronic CD format as an AutoCAD file.
- L. The Developer is required to supply bonding and insurance as per the Section on "Bonding and Liability Insurance."
- M. The Developer shall notify the City 48 hours prior to connection between the City's existing system and the new water distribution system.
- N. All main lines must be designed to provide proper circulation of water and fire flow to all lands serviced by the development. Extensions shall be required through and to the extremes of the property for future service as determined by the City. Fire flow demand shall be in accordance with the Uniform Fire Code Appendix Table III-A as now exists or as may be amended.
- O. Hydrostatic testing (see page 1-14) shall be accomplished by the developer on lines before completion of backfilling, with the pipe joints accessible for examination. Sufficient backfill material shall be placed over the pipe barrel between joints to prevent movement.
- P. Final acceptance shall not constitute acceptance of any unauthorized or defective work or material. The City shall not be barred from requiring the Developer to reimburse the City for the removal, adjustment, replacement, repair or disposal of any unauthorized or defective work or material or from recovering costs for any such work or material within two years.
- Q. Meters smaller than 2" shall be furnished and set by the City. Meters shall not be

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

activated prior to payment by water user of all applicable hook-up fees. The City owns and maintains only appurtenances from and including the water meter to the water main.

- R. Water Main Extension projects shall be conveyed to the City for operation and maintenance upon final project acceptance.
- S. Installation and testing shall be in conformance with the current edition of APWA (American Public Work Association) specifications, Division IV. The City must supervise the owner taking necessary samples for bacteriological tests. The system shall not be placed into service until the City provides written permission.
- T. For existing platted lots, the City may enter into Latecomer Agreements with Developers, prior to installation of water mains and appurtenances, in order to provide for the reimbursement to Developers for a pro-rata share of the cost of construction pursuant to Chelan Municipal Code Chapter 13.36 and Chapter 12.28 as now exists or as may hereafter be amended.

### SPECIFICATIONS

### EXTENSIONS:

All extensions to the water system shall conform to the design standards of the City as set forth herein. The system must be capable of future expansion if required and be constructed of permanent materials.

## PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS:

The installation of water extensions shall be in accordance with construction plans and specification approved by the City.

## METHODS AND MATERIALS OF CONSTRUCTION:

- 1. Water pipe shall be ductile iron or C900 PVC. Ductile iron shall typically be class 50 in improved areas and class 52 in easement areas. PVC shall be class 200 (See pgs 1-8, 1-9)
- 2. Fire hydrants shall be installed in accordance with these standards and the current fire code as adopted.
- 3. Valving shall be installed at all intersections, on each end of easement lines and in line at maximum spacing of 600 feet.
- 4. Minimum cover for all water mains shall be four (4) feet to top of pipe unless otherwise approved.
- 5. Except as otherwise noted herein, all work shall be accomplished as

## CITY OF CHELAN

recommended in the current applicable American Waterworks Association (AWWA) and American Public Works Association/Department of Transportation Standard Specifications and according to the recommendations of the manufacturer of the material or equipment use. Contractor shall have a copy of the specifications on the job site at all times. Contractor shall furnish a water tight plug of the appropriate size which shall be installed in the end of the water main when work is delayed or stopped at the end of the work day.

6. All materials shall be new and undamaged. Unless otherwise approved by the City, the same manufacturer of each item shall be used throughout the work.

## TRENCH EXCAVATION:

Clearing and grubbing where required shall be performed within the easement or public right-of-way and as permitted by the property owner and/or governing agencies. Debris resulting from the clearing and grubbing shall be disposed of by the Developer in accordance with the terms of all applicable permits.

Trenches shall be excavated to the line and depth designated by the approved plans to provide a minimum of 48 inches of cover over the pipe, unless otherwise approved. The trench width shall be excavated only to such widths as are necessary for adequate and safe working space. Trench width to one foot above the pipe crown shall not exceed 30 inches or 1.5 times the pipe nominal O.D. plus 18 inches, whichever is greater. The trench shall be kept free from water until complete. Surface water shall be diverted so as not to enter the trench. The Developer shall maintain sufficient pumping equipment on the job to insure that these provisions are carried out.

The Developer shall perform all excavation. Boulders, rocks, roots and other obstructions shall be entirely removed or cut out to the width of the trench and to a depth 6 inches below water main grade. Where material is removed from below subgrade, the trench shall be backfilled to grade with material satisfactory to the City and thoroughly compacted to 85% for easements outside of roadway and 95% in streets, alleys or traveled ways, using modified proctor testing. The Developer shall be responsible for meeting current Labor and Industry Trench and Shoring Protection and Washington State Safety Standards.

Unsuitable material below the depth of the proposed pipe shall be removed and replaced with satisfactory materials as determined by the City.

When trenching operations cut through asphalt/concrete pavement, the pavement shall be removed to a solid edge along the width of the trench as approved by the City engineer. The pavement shall be saw cut on a straight line and shall be beveled so that the cut will be approximately 1 inch wider at the top than at the bottom.

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

Trenching operation shall not proceed more than 200 feet in advance of pipe laying without written approval of the City.

## PIPE INSTALLATION WITHIN STREET RIGHT-OF-WAYS:

The Developer may use any method which provides satisfactory results which complies with Chapter 12.20 of the Chelan Municipal Code as it now exists or may be hereafter amended and is acceptable to the City and the agency having control of the road, provided that the Developer restores the roadway to its original condition. Permits shall be required for all crossings. Highway crossings may require the placing of steel pipe casing by jacking or tunneling and laying the water main within this casing.

## PIPE IN FILLED AREAS:

Special treatment may be required at the discretion of the City. This treatment may consist of compacting the backfill in 6" layers, use of select backfill materials, use of Mechanical Joint Ductile Iron Pipe in short lengths, welded HDPE pipe, or such other reasonable methods or combinations as may be necessary in the opinion of the City based upon topography, soil type and any other unique characteristics or the area.

### PIPE BEDDING:

- 1. Except when excavating in pure sand, where imported bedding material will not be required, the pipe shall be placed on a prepared subgrade of imported bedding material four inches under the pipe for all pipe sizes of 27 inches diameter and smaller and 6 inches for all pipe sizes 30 inches and larger. Bedding material shall consist of clean, granular, unfractured material of which 100 percent will pass the U.S. Standard 5/8 inch opening; not more than 3 percent will pass the U.S. No. 200 (wet sieve). Bell holes shall be excavated so the pipe, when laid, will have a uniform bearing under the full length of the pipe. The Developer shall be responsible for adequate support and bedding for the pipe. The trench shall be backfilled from the spring line of the pipe to six inches above the top of the pipe as shown in the Standard The material shall be placed in four-inch layers and Detail drawing. compacted to no less than 95 percent of the maximum theoretical density as measured by a soil lab, using the modified proctor test.
- 2. Where the undisturbed trench below the four-inch bedding is unstable, the unstable material shall be removed and backfilled with foundation gravel upon which to place the bedding, as approved by the City engineer. The Contractor shall be responsible for providing a stable foundation for placing of the bedding.
- 3. Boulders, rocks, roots and other obstructions shall be entirely removed or cut out to the full width of the trench and to a depth six inches below the pipe.

In solid rock, the trench shall be excavated six inches below the pipe bottom and backfilled as provided above.

4. Whenever the trench is excavated below the depth required for proper bedding, it shall be backfilled with bedding gravel and compacted, as provided above.

## DUCTILE IRON PIPE:

Ductile iron pipe shall be cement-lined standard thickness Class 50 in improved areas or Class 52 in non-roadway easement areas, unless otherwise specified and shall conform to the standards of USA Standard A-21.51 (AWWA C-111).

Rubber gasket pipe joints to be push-on-joint (Tyton) or mechanical joint (M.J.) in accordance with USA Standard A21-11 (AWWA C-111), unless otherwise specified.

Flanged joint shall conform to USA Standard B16.1.

Standard Thickness cement lining shall be in accordance with USA Standard A21.4 (AWWA C-1-4).

The Developer shall furnish written certification from the manufacturer of the pipe and gasket being supplied that the inspection and all of the specified tests have been made and the results thereof comply with the requirements of this standard.

#### **DUCTILE IRON PIPE INSTALLATION:**

Ductile iron pipe shall be installed in accordance with AWWA Standard C-151 and the manufacturers recommendation.

The bottom of the trench shall be finished to grade with hand tools in such a manner that the pipe will have bearing along the entire length of the barrel. The bell holes shall be excavated with hand tools to sufficient size to make up the joint. Bolts on mechanical joint pipe and fittings shall be tightened uniformly with a "Torque" wrench which measures the torque applied. Required torque for mechanical joints shall be as follows:

4" - 24" pipe size 3/4" bolts 60-90# torque.

Installation of push-on-joint (Tyton) pipe shall be in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions.

#### **PVC PIPE:**

PVC pipe shall be AWWA C900-81 high pressure water pipe, class 200, and shall meet the requirements of DR 14.

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

The gasketed joint assembly shall conform to ASTM D3139 with gaskets conforming to ASTM F477.

The Developer shall furnish written certification from the manufacturer of the pipe and gasket being supplied that the inspections and all of the specified tests have been made and the results thereof comply with the requirements of this standard.

## **PVC PIPE INSTALLATION:**

PVC pipe shall be installed in accordance with AWWA M23 and the manufacturers recommendation.

The bottom of the trench shall be finished to grade with hand tools in such a manner that the pipe will have bearing along the entire length of the barrel. The bell holes shall be excavated with hand tools to sufficient size to make up the joint.

## TRACER WIRES

The Contractor shall install a tracer wire, in addition to the location ribbon, over all non-metallic water mains. The tracer wire shall be 14 gauge copper wire with blue coded UF insulation. The tracer wire shall be installed as shown on the City of Chelan Standard Drawing. Bare wire contact points shall be provided at valve boxes, air release and blow off installations.

## DETECTABLE MARKING TAPE:

Detectable Marking Tape (S.9-15.18) shall be installed twelve inches (12") below finished grade over all PVC pipe located within public street right-of-ways. Pipe locator ribbon shall be two inches wide, plastic coated aluminum and shall be clearly marked, "CAUTION BURIED WATER LINE" continuously along the length of the ribbon with minimum 1-1/2 inch letters. The ribbon shall be blue in color. For combined utility ditch requirements see Section 10.

## **DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS:**

Ductile iron fittings shall be short body for pressure rating of 150 psi, unless otherwise noted. Metal thickness and manufacturing process shall conform to applicable portions of USA Standard A21.10, A21.11, B16.2 and B16.4.

Fittings shall be cement-lined in accordance with USA Standard A21.4 (AWWA C-104).

Rubber gaskets for mechanical joint (M.J.) in accordance with USA Standard A21.11 (AWWA C-111).

Gasket material for flanges shall be neoprene, Buna N, chlorinated butyl. Type of connections shall be specified as push-on-joint (Tyton), mechanical joint (M.J.),

plain end (P.E.), flanged (FL.) or threaded.

### **BOLTS IN PIPING:**

Bolts shall be cast iron, zinc or chromium plated or stainless steel, as approved by the City.

## GALVANIZED IRON PIPE AND FITTINGS:

Where specified, galvanized iron pipe shall be standard weight, Schedule 80. Fittings shall be threaded malleable iron galvanized per USA Standard B16.3.

## CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKING:

Concrete thrust blocking shall be cast in place and have a minimum of 1/4 square foot bearing against the fitting and two square feet bearing area against undisturbed soil. Blocking shall bear against fittings only and shall be clear of joints so as to permit taking up or dismantling joint. All poured in place blocking shall have a minimum measurement of twelve inches (12") between the pipe and the undisturbed bank. All bends and tees shall be blocked in accordance with Standard Blocking as per design details which shall be adequate to withstand full test pressures as well as to continuously withstand operating pressure under all conditions of service. Polyethylene sheeting shall be installed to cover joints and bolts for future dismantling.

#### **BEDDING CONCRETE:**

Bedding concrete shall be mixed from materials acceptable to the City and shall have a 30-day compressive strength of not less than 1,500 psi. The mix shall contain four sacks of cement per cubic yard and shall be of such consistency that the slump is between 1 inch and 5 inches.

## GATE VALVES:

Gate Valves shall be used when a ten-inch (10") or smaller valve is required. They shall conform to the Standards of AWWA C-509. Buried gate valves shall be iron body, bronze mounted, resilient wedge, nonrising stem, operating stems equipped with Standard two (2) inch operation nut, and O-ring stem seals, suitable for installation with the type and class of pipe being installed. Ends to be as specified.

Valves not buried shall be so specified.

### **BUTTERFLY VALVES:**

Butterfly valves shall be used when a twelve inch (12") or larger valve is required. They shall conform to AWWA Standard C504, Class 150, with cast iron short body and O-ring stem seal. Valves in chambers shall have a mutual crank operation. Buried valves shall have stem extension with AWWA 2-inch operation nut.

#### CHECK VALVES:

Check valves shall be for 150 psi working pressure, unless otherwise specified. Valve shall have adjustable tension lever and spring to provide non-slamming action under all conditions unless otherwise specified. Check valves shall be equal to Empire Fig. 230 single increasing lever and spring.

### AIR AND VACUUM RELEASE VALVES:

Air and vacuum release valves shall be APCO - Valve and Primer Corporation, "Heavy-Duty", combination air release valve, or equal.

Installation shall be as shown on the Standard Detail, Section Two, page 5.

Piping and fittings shall be copper or brass. The installation shall be set at the high point of the line. Water line must be constructed so the air release valve may be installed in a convenient location.

### VALVE INSTALLATION:

The valve and valve box shall be set plumb with the valve box centered on the valve. Valve boxes shall be set flush in pavement and in gravel roads as required by the City. An area around the top shall be black topped in unimproved roads for 2 feet. Where valve operation nut is more than 3 feet below finished grade, a stem extension shall be installed conforming to the Standard Detail, Section 2, pg 2-6.

### VALVE BOXES:

Valve boxes shall be cast iron, two-piece with tabs, for 42-inch trench with extension, Tyler 7126 top and 7100 bottom.

#### VALVE MARKER INSTALLATION:

When specified, concrete marker posts painted with two coats, Rust-Oleum yellow paint shall be set for all valves except auxiliary hydrant valves. The post shall be set at right angles to the road from the valve and shall be situated in a safe and reasonably conspicuous location, normally on the property line. Distance to valve shall be neatly stenciled on the post with two inch numerals. Valve markers shall be installed in unimproved or unpaved areas.

Valve marker posts shall be reinforced concrete posts, 4" x 4" on one end, 42 inches long. Fogtite Meter Seal Co. or equal.

### CITY OF CHELAN

#### FIRE HYDRANTS:

Fire hydrants shall have a minimum valve opening of 5-1/4" O-ring stem seal, two  $2\frac{1}{2}$ " N.S.T. hose nozzle connections, and one  $4\frac{1}{2}$ " N.S.T. pumper connection. The shoe connection shall be 6" mechanical joint or flanged. The operation nut shall be  $1\frac{1}{4}$ " pentagonal. Hydrants shall be Mueller Centurion or equal, with approved breakaway features.

#### **HYDRANT GUARDS:**

When required by City engineer, hydrant guards shall consist of individually designed curbed planters. Hydrant guards shall be required where hydrants are susceptible to potential vehicle contact as determined by the City.

#### SERVICE CONNECTION:

Connections shall be installed with pipe saddles and corporation stops on C900 PVC, asbestos cement, and steel, and by direct tap into Class 52 or thicker ductile. Installation shall be as shown in the Standard Details. Minimum size tap is 1 inch.

#### METER BOX:

Meter box shall be complete with full lid. Lid shall have a hole for Sensus Touch Read. One inch service box shall be Mueller/McCullough thermal-coil meter box 18" diameter 48" depth equipped with inlet angle meter stop with lockwing, dual angle check valve outlet and insulating pad.  $1\frac{1}{2}$ " and 2" meter boxes shall be concrete H 2 precast 2019.

#### PLASTIC SERVICE PIPE AND CONNECTIONS:

Plastic pipe shall be manufactured from high molecular weight polyethylene (average molecular weight of 1,750,000) defined by ASTM-1248, as polyethylene Type 111 (3306) (PE). Pipe shall be made of all virgin material and conform to CS-255-63. Plastic pipe shall meet all requirements of ASTM D2241-67. The pipe shall be copper tube size, and have a working pressure of 200 psi at 73.4 degrees F. It shall sustain 300 psi at 73.4 degrees F. for 1000 hours. All connections to this pipe shall be of the Ford Packjoint, Mueller instatite, or equal, compression type connection with a stainless steel insert stiffener or by O-ring type self sealing fittings. All connections shall be rated at a working pressure of 160 psi.

### DETECTOR CHECK AND BACKFLOW DEVICE:

Cross connection control is governed by Chelan Municipal Code, Chapter 13.05. All backflow devices are to be tested and certified upon installation and annually thereafter by a Washington State certified backflow assembly tester. All backflow devices are to be in accordance with the current edition of the AWWA "Accepted

## CITY OF CHELAN

Procedure and Practice" in the Cross Connection Control Manual.

Detector checks will be installed on all fire lines. See Standard Details, Section 2.

In addition to Chelan Municipal Code, Chapter 13.05.070, an approved backflow device will be required on the following fire systems:

- a. All foamite or chemically charged installations.
- b. Systems where an unapproved water source is permanently connected to the fire system.
- c. Systems in which anti-freeze is allowed.
- d. Systems with private hydrants.
- e. Wet systems with an in-line booster pump or building over three stories high.
- f. Wet systems with pumper connection within 1700 feet of an auxiliary water supply.
- g. Dry systems with pumper connection.
- h. Sprinkler systems.

#### PUMP AND PRESSURE REDUCING STATION:

Pipe, fittings, and equipment shall be supported and blocked against static and dynamic loading in accordance with the "Concrete Thrust Blocking" standard drawing, and the equipment manufacturer's recommendations.

Drain lines from pumps and other equipment shall be piped to a below grade drainage system connected to the station sump or drain.

#### BACKFILLING:

Backfilling and surface restoration shall closely follow installation and testing of pipe, so that not more than 200 feet is left exposed without express approval of the City. Selected backfill material shall be placed and compacted around and under the water mains by hand tools to a height of 6 inches above the top of the water main. The remaining backfill shall be compacted to current WSDOT Standards, modified proctor test, of the maximum density as determined by a certified soils lab. Where other agencies have jurisdiction over roadways, the backfill and compaction shall be done to the standard of the agency having jurisdiction.

**CITY OF CHELAN** 

#### HYDROSTATIC TESTS:

Prior to the acceptance of the work, the installation shall be subjected to a hydrostatic pressure test of 200 psi for 15 minutes at the high point in the line, as per APWA (American Public Works Association), and any leaks or imperfections developing under said pressure shall be remedied by the Developer before final acceptance of the work. No air will be allowed in the line. The main shall be tested between valves. Insofar as possible, no hydrostatic pressure shall be placed against the opposite side of the valve being tested. Test pressure shall be maintained while the entire installation is inspected. The Developer shall provide all necessary equipment including valves to test against where needed and shall perform all work connected with tests. Tests shall be made after all connections as shown on the plan are complete. Insofar as is practical, tests shall be made with pipe joints, fittings and valves exposed for inspection. For approval, the quantity of water lost from the main shall not exceed the number of gallons per hour as determined by the formula  $L= (ND(P)^{1/2})/7400$ 

in which

L = Allowable leakage, gallons/hour

N = No. of joints in the length of pipeline tested

D = Nominal diameter of the pipe in inches

P = Average test pressure during the leakage test, psi

There shall not be an appreciable or abrupt loss in pressure during the 15 minute test period. The Developer shall test to assure that the equipment to be used for the test is adequate and in good operating condition and the air in the line has been released before requesting the City to witness the test. The City engineer shall witness the test; if the test does not pass inspection for any reason, additional trips required to witness the test may be at the Developer's expense.

#### STERILIZATION AND FLUSHING OF WATER MAINS:

Sterilization of water mains shall be accomplished by the Developer in accordance with the requirements of the State Health department and in a manner satisfactory to the City. The section to be sterilized shall be thoroughly flushed at maximum flow prior to chlorination. At no time shall chlorinated water from a new main be flushed into a body of fresh water. This includes lakes, rivers, streams and any and all other waters where fish or other natural water life can be expected. Flushing period must be approved by the City. Sections will ordinarily be sterilized between adjacent valves unless, in the opinion of the City, a longer section may be satisfactorily handled. Chlorine shall be applied by solution fed at one end of the section with a valve or hydrant at the opposite end opened sufficiently to permit a flow through during chlorine application. The chlorine solution shall be fed into the pipeline already mixed by an automatically proportioning applicator so as to provide a steady application rate of not less than 60 PPM chlorine. Hydrants along the chlorinated section shall be opened during application until the presence of chlorine has definitely been detected. When a chlorine concentration of not less than 50 PPM has been established throughout the line, the valves shall be closed and the

## CITY OF CHELAN

line left undisturbed for 24 hours. The line shall then be thoroughly flushed and water samples taken for approval by the City. Flushing period must be approved by the City. The Developer shall exercise special care in flushing to avoid damage to surrounding property. Should the initial treatment result in an unsatisfactory bacteriological test, the original chlorination procedure shall be repeated by the Developer until satisfactory results are obtained.

## SANITARY SEWER CROSSINGS

Required Separation Between Water Lines and Sanitary Sewers

The basic separation requirements apply to sewers of 24-inch diameter or less; larger sewers may create special hazards because of flow volumes and joint types. The special construction requirements given are for the normal conditions found with sewage and water systems. More stringent requirements may be necessary in areas of high ground water, unstable soil conditions, etc.

A. Horizontal Separation (Parallel)

A minimum horizontal separation of ten (10) feet between gravity sanitary sewers and any existing potable water lines shall be maintained, whenever possible. The distance shall be measured edge to edge.

B. Unusual Conditions (Parallel)

When local conditions prevent a horizontal separation as described previously, a gravity sewer may be laid closer than 10 feet to a water line provided:

- a. It is laid in a separate trench; or, it is laid in the same trench with the water line that is located at one side on a bench of undisturbed earth; and
- In either case, the elevation of the crown of the gravity sewer must be at least 18 inches below the invert of the water line. When this vertical separation cannot be obtained, the gravity sewer shall be constructed of materials and joints that are equivalent to water main standards of construction and shall be pressure tested to assure water tightness prior to backfilling.
- C. Vertical Separation (Perpendicular)

Sewer lines crossing water lines shall be laid below the water lines to provide a separation of at least 18 inches between the invert of the water pipe and the crown of the sewer, whenever possible.

### D. Unusual Conditions (Perpendicular)

When local conditions prevent a vertical separation the following construction shall be used:

- a. Gravity sewers passing over or under water lines shall be:
  - 1. Constructed of material described in this section. The one segment of the maximum standard length of pipe, (but no less than 18 feet long) shall be used with the pipes centered to maximize joint separation.
  - 2. Standard gravity sewer material encased in concrete or in a 1/4" thick continuous steel casing with all voids pressuregrouted with sand-cement grout.
  - 3. The length of sewer pipe shall be centered at the point of crossing so that the joints will be equi-distant and as far as possible from the water line. The sewer pipe shall be the longest standard length available from the manufacturer.
- b. Water lines passing under gravity sewers, in addition, shall be protected by providing:
  - 1. A vertical separation of at least 18 inches between the invert of the sewer and the crown of the water line;
  - 2. Adequate structural support for the sewers to prevent excessive deflection of joints and settling on and breaking of the water lines; and
  - 3. The length of sewer pipe shall be centered at the point of crossing so that the joints will be equi-distant and as far as possible from the water line. The sewer pipe shall be the longest standard length available from the manufacturer.
- c. Pressure sewers shall only be constructed under water lines with ductile iron pipe or standard sewer pipe in a steel casing for a distance of at least ten (10) feet on each side of the crossing.

#### SUMMARY:

Any material, design, standard or testing not specifically addressed within these standards shall be as per the current edition of American Public Works Association Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge, and Municipal Construction, Washington

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

State Department of Transportation and the American Water Works Association Standards, both of which are hereby adopted by this reference.

### **CITY OF CHELAN**

## DOMESTIC WATER MAIN EXTENSIONS CHECKLIST

- 1. Developer submits legal description of proposed development.
- 2. City provides standards, conditions and specifications.
- 3. Developer submits water distribution plan designed by registered civil engineer licensed in Washington State.
- 4. Developer signs Domestic Water Service Extension Agreement.
- 5. If the project is in full compliance with the water system comprehensive plan, as determined by the City engineer, administrative approval is sufficient.
- 6. After the water distribution plan is accepted, City enters into agreement with the Developer for water main extension, which will include a right-of-way Excavation Permit.
- 7. Water main extension to be constructed by a licensed and bonded contractor to City standards as certified by a licensed engineer. The construction contract management shall be at the Developer's expense. At the City's option, the project inspectors may be City staff or may be contracted for by the City. (See Appendix B, Exhibit 2)
- 8. Contractor posts required bonds and insurance.
- 9. City inspects and observes testing of water main prior to approval.
- 10. Developer conveys system to City for operation and maintenance.
- 11. All services from the new water main extension are installed.
- 12. After two years, City inspects improvements and, if appropriate, releases bond/returns deposit balance.

## CITY OF CHELAN

# DOMESTIC WATER MAIN EXTENSION AS-BUILT DRAWINGS

As-built drawings of all improvements deeded or conveyed to the City of Chelan shall be provided. As-built drawings shall show all modifications made during construction. They shall also show precisely the location of all buried utilities, including the measured distance to all sewer tees or wyes, and the distance from valves to fittings. The location of water and sewer facilities shall be indicated by showing measured distances to monuments or other approved permanent reference.

As-built drawings for water improvements shall include a copy of the Engineer's Certificate of Completion form, as required by Washington State Department of Health.

As-built drawings turned over to the City upon acceptance of the utilities shall meet the drafting standards in Section 8.

<u>Page</u>

# **SECTION TWO - WATER DESIGNS**

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

## SECTION TWO TABLE OF CONTENTS

## **Description**

TABLE OF CONTENTS 2-1
PRESSURE REDUCING STATION
3/4"-1" SINGLE WATER SERVICE
CONCRETE BLOCKING - VERTICAL
AIR & VACUUM RELEASE ASSEMBLY
WATER VALVE BOX SETTING
VALVE MARKER POST
FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY
1-1/2-2" SERVICE CONNECTION DETAIL
SINGLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY
<b>SPRAY TANK FILLER PIPE</b>
THRUST BLOCK TABLE
CONCRETE BLOCKING - HORIZONTAL
DEADMAN THRUST BLOCKING
<b>1" COMBINATION AIR VALVE</b>
BLOW-OFF HYDRANT FOR DEAD END MAINS
COMBINATION AIR VALVE & BLOW-OFF ASSEMBLIES
<b>RESTRAINED PIPE JOINT REQUIREMENTS</b>
FILLING OF NEW WATER MAINS
DETECTOR CHECK VALVE INSTALLATION
<b>PVBA INSTALLATION</b>
DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 3/4" TO 1"
DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 1-1/4" TO 2-1/2"
DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN BUILDING
SIDE BY SIDE DCVA DUAL INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN BUILDING
VERTICAL APPLICATION DCVA DUAL INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN BUILDING 2-26
SIDE BY SIDE DCVA DUAL INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN VAULT
DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN VAULT
REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 3/4" TO 1" 2-29
REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 1-1/4" TO 2" 2-30
REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 2-1/2" AND LARGER
REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY DUAL INSTALLATION
FIRE LINE INTO BUILDING
SIDE BY SIDE RPBA DUAL INSTALLATION 3" OR LARGER

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

## PRESSURE REDUCING STATION



# **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### 3/4"-1" SINGLE and DOUBLE WATER SERVICE

1" - 3/4" WATER METER SERVICE



- A. 1" SADDLE, ROMAC 101S OR 202S OR EQUAL.
- B. 1" CORPORATION STOP, MUELLER OR APPROVED EQUAL.
- C. 1" HDPE COPPER TUBE SIZE WITH A WORKING
- PRESSURE OF 200 PSI OR EQUAL
- D. 3/4" MUELLER METER COIL BOX.
- E. BALL VALVE OR STOP AND WAIST VALVE TO BE INSTALLED BY PROPERTY OWNER
- F. SENSUS GALLION READ TRPO
- G. DOUBLE METER, 1 1/2" SUPPLY LINE AND FITTINGS

#### NOTES:

- 1. MATERIAL SUBSTITUTIONS OR DETERMINATION OF EQUAL ARE DISCRETION OF THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR.
- 2. SERVICE LINE TO BE 90° OF MAIN.
- 3. ALUMINUM BACKED LOCATE TAPE OVER SERVICE LINE FOR LOCATION AND TONING WIRE
- 4. DRAWING NOT TO SCALE.
- 5. CORRELATE WITH PAGE 2-9

ID-019

**CITY STANDARDS** 

2-3

**CITY OF CHELAN** 

### **CONCRETE BLOCKING - VERTICAL**

#### VERTICAL BLOCKING

VERTICAL BLOCKING FOR 11 1/4° & 22 1/2° BENDS							
PIPE SIZE	VВ	CU FT	A	D	L		
4"	11 1/4° 22 1/2°	8 11	2.0' 2.2'	3/4"	1.5' 2.0'		
6"	11 1/4° 22 1/2°	11 25	2.2' 2.9'	3/4"	2.0'		
8"	11 1/4° 22 1/2°	16 47	2.5' 3.6'	3/4"	2.0'		
12"	11 1/4° 22 1/2°	32 88	3.2' 4.5'	3/4" 7/8"	2.0' 3.0'		
16"	11 1/4° 22 1/2°	70 184	4.1' 5.7'	7/8" 11/8"	3.0' 4.0'		
20"	11 1/4° 22 1/2°	91 225	4.5' 6.1'	7/8" 11/4"	3.0' 4.0'		
24"	11 1/4° 22 1/2°	128 320	5.0' 6.8'	1" 13/8"	3.5' 4.5'		
VERTICAL BLOCKING FOR 45° BENDS							
4" 6" 8"	45°	30 68 123	3.1' 4.1' 5.0'	3/4"	2.0'		
12"	1	232	6.1'	3/4"	2.5'		
16" 20"		478 560	7.8' 8.2'	11/8" 11/4"	4.0'		
24"	1.	820	9.4'	13/8"	4.5'		



NOTE: CONCRETE BLOCKING BASED ON 200 PSI PRESSURE AND 2500 PSI CONCRETE. PROVIDE POLYETHYLENE SHEETING TO COVER BOLTS AND JOINTS FOR DISMANTLING.

ID-020

**CITY STANDARDS** 

(Revised 01/07)

## **CITY OF CHELAN**



## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### WATER VALVE BOX SETTING

All existing concrete valve boxes shall be replaced with cast iron boxes and adjusted to grade.

All existing cast iron valve boxes shall be adjusted to grade with cast iron components. Alignment of the valve box shall be the developer's responsibility and care shall be taken to ensure that the valve may be operated.



**CITY STANDARDS** 

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### VALVE MARKER POST

VALVE MARKER POST SHALL BE EQUAL TO FOG-TITE, WITH TWO COATS OF HI-GLOSS YELLOW PAINT. PAINT DISTANCE FROM THE VALVE MARKER TO THE VALVE ON THE POST WITH BLACK ENAMEL PAINT.

VALVE MARKER POST TO BE USED FOR ALL MAINLINE VALVES OUTSIDE PAVED AREAS.



**CITY OF CHELAN** 

## **SECTION TWO - WATER DESIGNS**

#### FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY



- A. ONE 5-1/4" M.V.O. HYDRANT WITH TWO 2-1/2" N.S.T. AND ONE 4 1/2" PUMPER N.S.T. THE 4 1/2 OUTLET SHALL BE FITTED WITH A 4-INCH HIGH-STRENGTH ALUMINUM ALLOY TEFLON COATED LOCKING STORZ ADAPTER WITH RUBBER GASKET AND SET SCREW. THE STORZ ADAPTER SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH AN APPROVED ALUMINUM ALLOY PRESSURE CAP ATTACHED TO THE HYDRANT BARREL WITH AN APPROVED CABLE. THE HYDRANT SHALL BE MUELLER CENTURION OR EQUAL. PAINT HYDRANT TRAFFIC YELLOW, # 1072 FARWEST PAINT CO.
- B. 6" RESILIENT SEAT GATE VALVE, FL × MJ
- C. CAST IRON VALVE BOX, TYLER OR EQUAL
- D. ONE CAST IRON TEE M.J. × FL.
- E. PIPE / SPOOL AS NEEDED DUCTILE IRON
- F. TWO 3/4" GALVANIZED STEEL SHACKLES. MEGALUG INSTEAD OF SHACKLES IS ACCEPTABLE.
- G. CONCRETE THRUST BLOCK, 4 SF THRUST AREA. (SEE 2-13)
- H. CONCRETE THRUST BLOCK, 6 SF THRUST AREA. (SEE 2-13)
- 1. 12"x12"x4" CONCRETE BLOCK. (SEE 2-13)
- J. 1 1/2" PONEL OP NUT AND PORT COVER NUT

**CITY STANDARDS** 

(Revised 01/07)

2-8

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### 1-1/2-2" SERVICE CONNECTION DETAIL



#### NOTES:

- 1. USE "PAC" JOINT ON COUPLINGS
- ANY METERS DAMAGED OR CLOGGED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE REPLACED BY THE CITY AND BACKCHARGED TO THE DEVELOPER.
- 3. USE METER SETTER WITH 1" BYPASS LOCKING ANGLE STOP & CHECK VALVE.
- 4. LOCATE METER TO PROPERTY LINE, INSTALL NEW METER BOX-H2 PRE-CAST BOTTOM SECTION # WCB AND TOP SECTION # WCT. METER LIDS ARE TO BE H2 PRE-CAST 2019 IN TRAFFIC AREAS OR 2020 IN NON TRAFFIC AREAS.
- 5. SENUS TOUCH READ GALLON WATER METER.

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### SINGLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY

#### TO BE USED AS BYPASS AROUND PUMP STATION OR PRV WHEN NEEDED



NOTE: CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY TO BE INSTALLED AS INDICATED ON INDIVIDUAL DESIGN

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### SPRAY TANK FILLER PIPE







**CITY STANDARDS** 

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

### THRUST BLOCK TABLE

MIN. BEARING AREA AGAINST UNDISTURBED SOIL SQUARE FEET					
PIPE SIZE	A (FT. <sup>2</sup> )	B (FT. <sup>2</sup> )	C (FT. <sup>2</sup> )	D (FT. <sup>2</sup> )	E (FT. <sup>2</sup> )
3"	3	2	2	2	2
6"	4	4	2	2	2
8"	7	6	4	2	2
10"	11	10	6	3	2
12"	16	14	9	5	3
14"	22	19	12	6	3
16"	29	25	16	8	4
18"	36	31	20	10	5
20"	45	39	24	13	6
22"	54	47	29	15	8
24"	64	56	35	18	9
28"	87	76	48	24	12
30"	101	87	55	28	14
36"	145	125	78	40	20
42"	197	171	107	55	27
48"	257	223	140	71	36

NOTE: Bearing area of conc. thrust block based on 200 psi pressure and safe soil bearing load of 2,000 pounds per square foot.

Areas must be adjusted for other pipe sizes, pressures and soil conditions.

Concrete blocking shall be cast in place and have a minimum of 1/4 square foot bearing against the fitting.

Block shall bear against fittings only and shall be clear of joints to permit taking up or dismantling of joint.

Contractor shall install blocking adequate to withstand full test pressure as well as to continuously withstand operation pressure under all conditions of service.

CITY STANDARDS
# **CITY OF CHELAN**

## CONCRETE BLOCKING - HORIZONTAL

- NOTE: See thrust block table on page 2-12 for bearing areas.
  - Provide Polyethylene sheeting to cover bolts and joints for dismantling.











22 1/2° BEND



11 1/4° BEND

NOTES: PROVIDE POLYETHYLENE SHEETING TO COVER BOLTS AND JOINTS FOR DISMANTLING.

ID-023

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

## **DEADMAN THRUST BLOCKING**

SIZING TABLE				MIN. BLOCK LENGTH (L)						
						SOI	L CONDITI	ON		
PIPE DIA	T (min)	H (min)	SHACKLE RODS	PIPE DIA	SOFT CLAY	SILT	SAND Y SILT	SAND	SAND Y CLAY	HARD CLAY
6"	18"	30"	(4)#5 (%"dia)	6"	30"	30"	30"	30"	30"	30"
8"	18"	36"		8"	42"	38"	36"	34"	32"	32"
10"	18"	46"		10"	54"	48"	40"	38"	37"	36"
12"	24"	48"		12"	72"	64"	50"	47"	44"	42"
14"	36"	50"		14"	96"	80"	62"	56"	50"	47"
16"	42"	52"		16"	120"	100"	72"	65"	58"	53"
BLOCK SIZES GOOD TO 300 psi TEST PRESSURE										

NOTES: • This standard detail is for deadman blocking only. • Concrete block shall be per APWA specification 7-11.3(13) 1988.

Maintain 18" minimum cover over the top of block. .

Bottom of block is to be on undisturbed soil. ۰

Trench to be backfilled with crushed soli.
Trench to be backfilled with crushed rock compacted to 95% density on all sides of block and a distance of 4' min. in front of block to full depth of block.
Upon extension of water main, shackle rods are to be cut, remove plug. Concrete block to remain in place.

- - · For soil conditions not shown, block is to be designed by engineer.



## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **1" COMBINATION AIR VALVE**

NOTE: Air valve assembly shall be installed at highest point of line.



ID-005

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **BLOW-OFF HYDRANT FOR DEAD END MAINS**



#### NOTES

- 1. INSTALL STANDARD MARKER POST IDENTIFYING VALVE LOCATION
- 2. SET METER BOX FLUSH WITH SIDEWALK OR CURB LOCATED IN LAWN AREA. SET METER BOX APPROX. 2" ABOVE FINISHED GRADE IF IN LANDSCAPING AREA.
- 3. ALL FITTINGS TO BE BRASS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### COMBINATION AIR VALVE & BLOW-OFF ASSEMBLIES

NOTE: •

- E: Install standard marker post identifying valve location.
  - Set meter box flush with sidewalk or curb in located in lawn area. Set meter box approx. 2" above finished grade is in landscaping area.
  - All fittings to be brass unless otherwise noted.



**CITY OF CHELAN** 

## **SECTION TWO - WATER DESIGNS**

#### **RESTRAINED PIPE JOINT REQUIREMENTS**

RESTRAINED JOINTS TO ADHERE TO THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS OR AS RECOMMENDED BY THE MANUFACTURER IF MORE STRINGENT. **RESTRAINED JOINTS ARE REQUIRED:** ON ADJACENT RUNS OF PIPE AT ALL BENDS AND PLUGS. ON RUNS CONNECTED TO TEES AND CROSSES ONLY OPPOSITE THRUST BLOCKS. ON ALL PIPE PLACED IN CASING PIPES. DUCTILE IRON PIPE WILL BE USED WITH ALL RESTRAINED JOINTS. ALL METHODS OF MATERIALS: RESTRAINED JOINTS SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE CITY. LENGTH OF RESTRAINED JOINT PIPE FROM EACH SIDE OF FITTING PIPE DIA CROSS, PLUG, 90° BEND 45° BEND 22 1/2° BEND 11 1/4° BEND TEE 6" 38' (49') 22' (28') 18' (18') 18' (18') 18' (18') 8" & 10" 53' (69') 34' (44') 20' (26') 18' (18') 18' (18')

VALUES IN PARENTHESES WILL BE USED FOR PIPE WITH POLYETHYLENE WRAPPING, WHERE BENDS REQUIRE TWO FITTINGS AS SHOWN ON CONTRACT DRAWINGS, LENGTH OF PIPE WITH RESTRAINED JOINTS SHALL BE AS SPECIFIED FOR THE NEXT ANGLE GREATER THAN THE SUM OF THE ANGLES FORMED BY THE FITTINGS BUT NOT GREATER THAN FOR A 90° BEND.

**CITY OF CHELAN** 

#### FILLING OF NEW WATER MAINS



TESTING PURPOSES WHERE NEEDED.

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### DETECTOR CHECK VALVE INSTALLATION



NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
- 2) A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION.
- 3) A MIN. 3" DIA. FLOOR DRAIN IS REQUIRED.

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **PVBA INSTALLATION**



#### NOTES:

- 1) PVBA MAY BE INSTALLED ON LOW HAZARD
- POTABLE WATER SUPPLY SYSTEMS ONLY. A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION. 2)
- 3) PVBA MUST BE INSTALLED NOT LESS THAN 12' ABOVE THE HIGHEST POINT OF USE AND NOT MORE THAN 60" HIGH.

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 3/4" TO 1"



#### NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
- MAY BE INSTALLED BELOW GROUND IN AN APPROVED VAULT.
   A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE
- PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION.
- 4) FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER.
  5) RISERS AND ALL PIPE IN BOX TO BE GALVANIZED.
- 6) A LADDER IS REQUIRED IF ACCESS OPENING TO FLOOR EXCEEDS 36"

ID-079

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 1-1/4" TO 2-1/2"



#### NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
- MAY BE INSTALLED BELOW GROUND IN AN APPROVED VAULT.
   A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE
- PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION.
- FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER. 4)
- 5) RISERS AND ALL PIPE IN BOX TO BE GALVANIZED.
- 6) A LADDER IS REQUIRED IF ACCESS OPENING TO FLOOR EXCEEDS 36"

**CITY STANDARDS** 

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN BUILDING**



#### NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES. 2) A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE
- PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION.
- 3) A MIN. 3" DIA. FLOOR DRAIN IS REQUIRED.

**CITY OF CHELAN** 

## **SECTION TWO - WATER DESIGNS**

#### SIDE BY SIDE DCVA DUAL INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN BUILDING



#### NOTES:

- MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
   A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE

- PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION. 3) A MIN. 3" DIA. FLOOR DRAIN IS REQUIRED.

ID-082

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **VERTICAL APPLICATION DCVA DUAL INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN BUILDING**



NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
- MAY BE INSTALLED BELOW GROUND IN AN APPROVED VAULT.
   A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE
- PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION. 4) FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER.
  5) A MIN. 3" DIA. FLOOR DRAIN IS REQUIRED.
- 6) A LADDER IS REQUIRED IF THE DISTANCE FROM THE ACCESS
- OPENING TO THE FLOOR EXCEEDS 36". 7) A SPACE EQUALING 12" PLUS ONE PIPE DIAMETER IS REQUIRED BETWEEN ASSEMBLIES.
- 8)
- AN OSHA-WISHA APPROVED PLATFORM MUST BE ERECTED FOR MAINTENANCE AND TESTING WHEN INSTALLED 60" ABOVE FLOOR LEVEL.
- 9) GUARD POST ARE REQUIRED IN AREAS WHERE FORK LIFTS ARE USED

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### SIDE BY SIDE DCVA DUAL INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN VAULT



4) FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER.

- 5) A MIN. 3" DIA. FLOOR DRAIN IS REQUIRED.
- 6) A LADDER IS REQUIRED IF ACCESS OPENING TO FLOOR EXCEEDS 36"

ID-084

(

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 3" & LARGER IN VAULT**



#### NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
- MAY BE INSTALLED BELOW GROUND IN AN APPROVED VAULT.
   A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE
- PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION
- 4) FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER.
   5) A MIN. 3" DIA. FLOOR DRAIN IS REQUIRED.
- 5) A MIN. 3" DIA. FLOOR DRAIN IS REQUIRED.6) A LADDER IS REQUIRED IF ACCESS OPENING TO FLOOR EXCEEDS 36"

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 3/4" TO 1"**



- WHEN INSTALLED INSIDE A BUILDING, A FLOOR DRAIN SIZED TO ACCEPT MAXIMUM DISCHARGE FROM THE RELIEF ASSEMBLY IS REQUIRED.
   FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER.
- 6) RISERS AND ALL PIPE IN BOX TO BE GALVANIZED STEEL.

ID-086

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 1-1/4" TO 2"



#### NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
- 2) MUST BE INSTALLED ABOVE GROUND MIN. 12 INCHES.
- 3) A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION.
- 4) WHEN INSTALLED INSIDE A BUILDING, A FLOOR DRAIN SIZED TO ACCEPT MAXIMUM DISCHARGE FROM THE RELIEF ASSEMBLY IS REQUIRED.
  5) FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER.

ID-087

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION 2-1/2" AND LARGER



#### NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
- 2) MUST BE INSTALLED ABOVE GROUND. MIN. 12" PLUS PIPE DIAMETER.
- 3) A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE
- PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION. 4) WHEN INSTALLED INSIDE A BUILDING, A FLOOR DRAIN SIZED TO
- ACCEPT MAXIMUM DISCHARGE FROM THE RELIEF ASSEMBLY IS REQUIRED.
- 5) FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER.
- 6) SEE DWG. PAGE 10-14 FOR PIPE SUPPORTS. SET SUPPORTS ON CONCRETE BLOCKS.

ID-088

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY DUAL INSTALLATION



REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY REQUIRED FOR CONTINUOUS PROTECTION

#### NOTES:

- 1) MUST BE ON THE LATEST DEPT. OF HEALTH APPROVED LIST OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES.
- 2) MUST BE INSTALLED ABOVE GROUND.
- 3) A CITY OF CHELAN CROSS CONNECTION SPECIALIST MUST BE PRESENT DURING INSTALLATION.
- 4) WHEN INSTALLED INSIDE A BUILDING, A FLOOR DRAIN SIZED TO ACCEPT DISCHARGE FROM BOTH ASSEMBLIES IS REQUIRED.
- 5) FREEZE PROTECTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER. 6) SUFFICIENT CLEARANCE IS REQUIRED FROM THE TOP OF THE VALVE
  - STEM WHEN FULLY OPEN TO THE BOTTOM OF THE TOP ASSEMBLY.
- 7) AN OSHA-WISHA APPROVED PLATFORM MUST BE ERECTED FOR MAINTENANCE AND TESTING.
- 8) GUARD POSTS ARE REQUIRED IN AREAS WHERE FORK LIFTS ARE USED

ID-089

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### FIRE LINE INTO BUILDING



**CITY OF CHELAN** 

# **SECTION TWO - WATER DESIGNS**

#### SIDE BY SIDE RPBA DUAL INSTALLATION 3" OR LARGER



**Page** 

# **SECTION THREE - SEWER STANDARDS**

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

### SECTION THREE TABLE OF CONTENTS

## **Description**

2	
STANE	DARDS AND CONDITIONS
SPECI	FICATIONS
	EXTENSIONS
	GENERAL GRAVITY SEWER PIPE
	PVC PIPE:
	DUCTILE IRON PIPE
	DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS
	GATE VALVES
	CHECK VALVES
	BOLTS IN PIPING
	BEDDING AND BLOCKING CONCRETE
	IDENTIFYING TAPE
	METHODS OF CONSTRUCTION
	PIPE LAYING
	PRESSURE SEWER PIPE
	PRESSURE SEWER MAINS
	JOINTS
	ALIGNMENT & GRADE TOLERANCE
	TRENCH EXCAVATION
	SHORING
	TUNNELING
	JACKING OR BORING - ROADWAY CROSSINGS
	CONCRETE BLOCKING AND ENCASEMENT:
	FOUNDATION GRAVEL
	MANHOLES
	TESTING OF GRAVITY SEWERS
	TESTING OF PRESSURE SEWER MAINS
	SIDE SEWERS
	SEWER CONNECTION INSPECTIONS
	SEPTIC TANKS
	PUMP STATIONS

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### SEWER MAIN EXTENSIONS

#### GENERAL:

#### INTRODUCTION:

The items herein contained are the sewerage system standards, conditions, and specifications of the City of Chelan. These are minimums only and may be increased or altered to fit particular situations. Any material, design, standard, or testing not specifically addressed within this document shall be as per the current edition of American Public Works Association Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge, and Municipal Construction and/or Washington State D.O.E. Criteria for Sewage Works Design which are hereby adopted by this reference as if fully set forth herein. (See CMC 13.06.050 F)

#### **STANDARDS AND CONDITIONS:**

- A. When extension of the existing sewer system is required for service, an Agreement for Sewer Main Extension shall be entered into between the Developer and the City, substantially in the form which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Appendix B, Exhibit 1.
- B. To initiate the Developer Extension process the Developer shall submit a sewer plan prepared by a Professional Civil engineer licensed in the State of Washington. Plan/Profile drawing shall be produced on mylar copy and CD electronic format.
- C. The licensed professional civil engineer shall certify that the design and construction of the sewerage collection system meets or exceeds all applicable standards.
- D. Obtaining necessary permits will be the responsibility of the Developer.
- E. Where franchises, easements or deeds to property are required it shall be the responsibility of the Developer to provide same and submit appropriate documentation to the City.
- F. Easements shall be as per Section 10 of this code.
- G. The Developer shall supply a certified "As-built" drawing meeting all standards established in Appendix B
- H. The Developer is required to supply insurance and bonding as per Section 13 of this code.
- 1. Connection between the City's existing system and the new sewerage collection system shall be made by the Developer at the expense of the Developer.
- J. All main lines must be designed to provide for proper collection of sewerage from

all lands served by the development. Extensions shall be required through and to the extremes of the property for future service as determined by the City.

- K. Pressure and leakage testing shall be accomplished as per specifications contained herein before final acceptance.
- L. Final acceptance shall not constitute acceptance of any unauthorized or defective work or material. The City shall not be barred from requiring the developer to reimburse the City for the removal, adjustment, replacement, repair or disposal of any unauthorized or defective work or material or from recovering costs for any such work or material.
- M. Sewer hook-ups shall be made by the lot owner. Sewer service shall not begin prior to payment by of all applicable hook-up fees.
- N. Sewer Main Extension projects shall be conveyed to the City for operation and maintenance upon final project acceptance.
- O. For existing platted lots, the City may enter into latecomer agreements with Developers prior to installation of sewer mains and appurtenances, to provide for the reimbursement of a pro-rata share of the cost of construction by the sewer service users of any real estate who have not contributed to the original cost of such facilities and who subsequently connect to the sewerage collection system, pursuant to Chapter 12.28 of the Chelan Municipal Code as it now exists or as may be hereafter amended.

## SPECIFICATIONS:

## EXTENSIONS:

All extensions to the sewer system must conform to the design standards of the City. The system must be capable of future expansions, if required, and be constructed of permanent materials. The following are required:

- 1. Plans and Specifications. The installation of sewer extensions shall be in accordance with construction plans and specifications approved by the City.
- 2. Sewer pipes shall be P.V.C. or ductile iron. City shall approve type.
- 3. Manholes shall be precast, 48" I.D. and shall generally conform to A.S.T.M. specification for equivalent size reinforced concrete sewer pipe. Outside drop structures shall be constructed of ductile iron. Inside drop structures may be constructed of ductile iron or P.V.C. pipe and fittings.
- 4. Pressure mains shall be ductile iron, P.V.C., or H.D.P.E.
- 5. All joints for sewers or pressure mains shall be of the rubber gasket type.

- 6. Pipe sizes shall be selected as required by standard engineering practice and shall conform to the overall sewerage plan of the City.
- 7. Minimum depth of sewer main and side sewer stubs shall be 4 feet over the top of pipe.
- 8. The sewer grades shall be sufficient to maintain a velocity of 2 feet per second at design flow. Minimum grade shall be one-half of one percent (0.005) for 8" diameter pipe, 0.008 for 6" and/or be in accordance with the Washington DOE <u>"Criteria for Sewage Works Design"</u>.
- 9. Manhole covers shall be IFCO Number 619 or approved equivalent. Manhole cover surface shall be raised style B, lifting device shall be style 2 with one inch diameter pick hole. Where specified, locking cover shall be style 1.

## **GENERAL GRAVITY SEWER PIPE:**

- 1. All material shall be new and undamaged. Unless otherwise approved by the City, the same manufacturer of each item shall be used throughout the work.
- 2. Where reference is made to an ASTM, AWWA or APWA designation, it shall be the latest revision at the time of construction, except as noted on the plans or special provisions of the plans.

## PVC PIPE:

P.V.C. pipe shall conform with the provisions of ASTM D-3034, SDR35 unless otherwise specified. Rubber gaskets for P.V.C. pipe shall conform with ASTM 3034.

## DUCTILE IRON PIPE:

- 1. Ductile iron pipe shall be standard thickness Class 50 cement lined unless otherwise specified and shall conform to the standards of USA Standard A-21.51 (AWWA C-151).
- 2. Rubber gasket pipe joints to be push-on-joint (Tyton) or mechanical joint (M.J.) in accordance with USA Standard A21.11 (AWWA C-111), unless otherwise specified.
- 3. Flanged connection shall conform to USA Standard B16.1.
- 4. Standard thickness cement lining shall be in accordance with USA Standard A21.4 (AWWA C-104).
- 5. The Contractor shall furnish certification from the manufacturer of the pipe and gasket being supplied that all specified tests have been made and the

results thereof comply with the requirements of this standard.

#### DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS:

- 1. Ductile iron fittings shall be short body for pressure rating of 150 psi, unless otherwise noted. Metal thickness and manufacturing process shall conform to applicable portions of USA Standard A21.10, A21.11, B16.2 and B16.4.
- 2. Standard cement lining in accordance with USA Standard A21.4 (AWWA C-104).
- 3. Rubber gaskets for push-on-joint (Tyton) or mechanical joint (M.J.) in accordance with USA Standard A21.11 (AWWA C-111).
- 4. Gasket material for flanges shall be neoprene, Buna N chlorinated butyl, or cloth-inserted rubber. Type of ends shall be specified as push-on-joint (Tyton), mechanical joint (M.J.), plain end (P.E.), flanged (FI.) or threaded (TH.).

#### GATE VALVES:

- 1. The minimum requirements for all gate valves shall, in design, material and workmanship, conform to the Standards of AWWA C-509.
- 2. Buried gate valves shall be iron body, bronze mounted, double disc, nonrising stem, operation stems equipped with standard two (2) inch operation nut, and O-ring stem seals, suitable for installation with the type and class of pipe being installed. Ends to be as specified.

#### CHECK VALVES:

Check valves shall be for 150 psi working pressure, unless otherwise specified. Valve shall have adjustable tension lever and spring to provide nonslamming action under all conditions unless otherwise specified. Check valves shall be equal to Rensselaer List 340.

#### **BOLTS IN PIPING:**

Bolts shall be stainless steel or cast iron, zinc or chromium plated.

## **BEDDING AND BLOCKING CONCRETE:**

Concrete shall be mixed from materials acceptable to the City and shall have a 30day compressive strength of not less than 1,500 psi. The mix shall contain four (4) sacks of cement per cubic yard and shall be of such consistency that the slump is between 1 inch and 5 inches.

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **IDENTIFYING TAPE:**

Identifying tape shall be installed twelve inches (12") below finished grade over all PVC pipe located within public street right-of-ways. Pipe locator ribbon shall be two inches (2") wide, plastic coated aluminum and shall be clearly marked, "CAUTION BURIED SEWER LINE" continuously along the length of the ribbon with minimum 1-1/2 inch letters. The ribbon shall be green in color.

#### METHODS OF CONSTRUCTION:

#### PIPE LAYING:

- 1. Pipe laying shall be in accordance with the latest edition of APWA Construction Manual for Municipal Public Works, Volume 3.
- 2. The first section of pipe not less than 300 feet in length installed by each crew shall be tested in order to qualify the crew and/or material. Successful installation of this section as determined by the City shall be a prerequisite to further pipe installation of said crew.
- 3. Each pipe shall be laid with bells upgrade with the invert of the pipe to the alignment and grade shown on the plans. Care shall be exercised to insure close concentric joints and a smooth invert. Open ends of pipe or fittings shall be temporarily blocked and covered when laying is not in progress.
- 4. Trench shall be kept dewatered during pipelaying.
- 5. Adjustment to the line and grade shall be done by scraping away or filling in and tamping approved pipe bedding material under the body of the pipe. Adjustment to the line and grade by wedging and blocking shall not be permitted.
- 6. The pipe shall be lowered into the trench by means of ropes, tripod, crane or any other suitable means. The pipe shall not be dropped or handled roughly. The pipe shall be checked for cracks and defects prior to use, and any defective pipe shall be rejected.
- 7. Wyes shall be installed as shown on the Standard Details as contained herein and at such locations as are shown on the plans or as otherwise directed by the City. These items shall not be covered until the City has recorded their exact location.
- 8. Pipe laying shall start from the lowest point unless otherwise approved by the City.

#### PRESSURE SEWER PIPE:

- 1. All materials shall be new and undamaged. Unless otherwise approved by the City, the same manufacturer of each item shall be used throughout the work.
- 2. Where reference is made to an AWWA, APWA or ASTM designation, it shall be the latest revision at the time of construction, except, as noted on the plans or special provisions of the plans.
- 3. Non-metallic pressure sewer pipe shall have tracer wire attached to pipe as per these standards. Access points to tracer wire shall be as directed by Public Works.

#### PRESSURE SEWER MAINS:

- 1. P.V.C. pressure pipe shall conform to AWWA C-900. Joints shall be made up as recommended by the pipe manufacturer for pressure pipe. Shall be class 200 minimum.
- 2. Ductile iron pipe shall conform to AWWA C-100. Joints shall be made up as recommended by the pipe manufacturer for the particular joint as specified.
- 3. Pressure sewer mains shall be laid so that no high point exists except at the discharge manhole or an air release assembly. Valves with O-ring seals shall be opened and shut under pressure to check operation without leakage. Two-piece cast iron valve boxes shall be set as directed by the City.

## JOINTS:

- 1. Joints shall not be covered until examined and approved by the City. Only pipe layers experienced with the type of gasket being used shall be allowed to lay the pipe. The City may demand proof of such experience before pipe laying may begin or be continued.
- 2. Joint material shall be used in accordance with the recommendations of the manufacturer. Pipe handling after the gasket has been affixed shall be carefully controlled to avoid bumping the gasket and thus knocking it out of position or loading it with dirt or other foreign material. Any gasket so disturbed shall be removed and replaced, cleaned and relubricated, if required, before the joint is attempted.
- 3. Care shall be taken to properly align the pipe before joints are seated. During insertion of the tongue or spigot, the pipe shall be partially supported by hand, sling or crane as required to minimize lateral pressure on the gasket and to maintain concentricity until the gasket is properly positioned. Pipe deflection and straightening shall be held to a very minimum once the joint

is seated to prevent creep of the joint.

4. Sufficient pressure shall be applied in making the joint to assure that the joint is seated as defined in the standard installation instructions provided by the pipe manufacturer. Sufficient restraint shall be applied to the line to assure the joints, once seated, are held so, by tamping approved pipe bedding material under and alongside the pipe or otherwise. At the end of the day's work, the last pipe shall be blocked in such a manner as may be required to prevent creep during down time.

## ALIGNMENT & GRADE TOLERANCE:

- 1. The maximum tolerance from true line and grade shall be as follows:
  - a. Maximum deviation from established line and grade shall not be greater than one thirty-second (1/32) inch per inch of pipe diameter and not to exceed one-half  $(\frac{1}{2})$  inch per pipe length.
  - b. No adverse grade in any pipe length will be permitted.
  - c. The difference in deviation from established line and grade between two successive joints shall not exceed 1/3 of the amounts specified above.
  - d. Refer to DOE Drainage Design Manual for maximum deflection.

## TRENCH EXCAVATION:

Trenching shall be as per Section One of this code

## SHORING:

The Developer shall provide and install shoring as necessary to protect workmen, the work, existing utilities, and other properties.

## TUNNELING:

Tunneling may be ordered by the City or agency having jurisdiction over the roadway. The Developer may tunnel in lieu of trenching for deep cuts.

## JACKING OR BORING - ROADWAY CROSSINGS:

The Developer may use any method which provides satisfactory results and is acceptable to the governmental agency having control of the road and to the City, provided that the Developer restores the crossing to its original condition. Normally, these crossings require the placing of steel, cast iron or concrete pipe casing by jacking or tunneling and laying the sewer line within the casing.

## CITY OF CHELAN

#### PIPE BEDDING:

Pipe bedding shall be as per Section One of this code.

## CONCRETE BLOCKING AND ENCASEMENT:

Blocking shall be installed at changes in direction and in a manner acceptable to the City. Blocking and encasement of pipe shall be as shown in Standard Detail for water lines or as otherwise directed by the City.

#### FOUNDATION GRAVEL:

Foundation gravel shall be coarse graded gravel or crushed rock passing a 3-inch mesh. Pit run passed through a 3-inch screen thoroughly compacted may be used provided that it is, in the opinion of the City, properly graded and otherwise suitable.

#### MANHOLES:

- 1. Manholes shall be constructed as shown in Standard Details for manholes and drop manholes. Manholes shall be precast reinforced concrete. Manhole ring and covers shall be adjusted to the elevation required by the City prior to final acceptance of the work. Invert elevations in shall be one tenth of a foot (0.1 foot) higher than invert elevations going out.
- 2. The manhole base slab shall be placed on firm soil. If the foundation material is inadequate, the Developer shall use foundation gravel, bedding gravel or concrete under the normal base to support the manhole.
- 3. All joints and connections to manholes shall be made with cement mortar or other approved jointing material and shall be watertight. Joints and connection shall be finished on interior and exterior of manhole. There shall be a 3/4 inch thick smooth plaster finish on the inside and outside of leveling concrete blocks at top of manholes.
- 4. Manholes shall be placed at every angle point, street and alley intersection, and catch basin junction, and in no case shall manholes be spaced greater than 500 feet apart. A connection serving more than one building lot shall require a manhole.
- 5. Where manholes are installed over an existing sewer main, the manhole base shall be poured-in-place on firm soil or foundation material as described above. Sewer main inside manhole will not be cut away until approved by City.

#### INSTALLATION STAKING:

The Developer shall furnish grade, cut and finish staking for the excavation and installation of sanitary sewer mains, manholes and appurtenances.

#### CLEANING AND FLUSHING:

- 1. Prior to pipe testing, all pipes shall be cleaned and flushed.
- 2. All debris flushed out shall be removed at the first manhole where its presence is noted. In the event cemented or wedged debris, or a damaged pipe exists, the Developer shall remove the debris and replace the damaged pipe.

#### **TESTING OF GRAVITY SEWERS:**

Method of testing gravity sewers and manholes shall be at the option of the City engineer.

#### WATER TEST:

- 1. Tests for watertightness shall be made by the Developer in the presence of the City. A test shall be made of every section of the sewer, including the side sewers, after completion of backfill. Where the groundwater table is so high as to preclude a proper exfiltration test, an infiltration test may be used.
- 2. The exfiltration test shall be made by plugging the inlets of the lower manhole and filling the test section with water to a height of six (6) feet above the crown of the sewer at the upper end of the sewer being tested.
- 3. In no case shall the static level be less that six (6) feet above the water table at the upper end of the sewer being tested. Where the static pressure on the lower manhole would exceed 15 feet, the Developer shall test the sewer between manholes in two or more sections. The Developer shall provide for sectional testing by installing tees in the main line. The tees shall be of a type that permit plugging of both the upper and lower run of the tee. The required static water head shall be obtained by installing vertical lengths of pipe in the tee or from the upper end of the sewer pipe being tested at shallow manholes.
- 4. At the discretion of the Public Works Director, the Developer shall provide a groundwater observation well at each manhole for determining the level of groundwater during the test. The observation well shall consist of one-inch plastic pipe installed vertically adjacent

CITY OF CHELAN

to the manhole. The lower end of the test well shall be placed in a one (1) cubic yard pocket of washed gravel and shall be at the same elevation as the invert of the manhole. The upper end of the test well shall be a maximum of two (2) feet below the finished grade elevation and left exposed until completion of the test.

5. The time of exfiltration tests shall be a minimum of one (1) hour. The leakage during the test shall not exceed the flowing allowances:

ALLOWABLE LEAKAGE - EXFILTRATION						
Allowable Leakage in gal/100 linear feet/hr. Head above crown on lower end of test section.						
Pipe	6 Ft.	8 Ft.	10 Ft.	12 Ft.	14 Ft.	16 Ft.
6	0.6	0.7	0.7	0.8	0.8	0.9
8	0.8	0.9	1.0	1.0	1.1	1.2
10	1.0	1.1	1.2	1.3	1.4	1.5
12	1.2	1.3	1.4	1.6	1.7	1.8
15	1.5	1.7	1.8	2.0	2.1	2.3
18	1.8	2.0	2.2	2.3	2.5	2.7
24	2.4	2.6	2.9	3.1	3.4	3.6
Repair by chemical grouting will not be allowed.						

- 6. For static head above the basic six feet at the crown of the sewer at the lower end of the test section, the allowable leakage shown above shall be increased at a ratio of 5 percent per foot increase.
- 7. Where the groundwater exceeds a height of six feet above the crown of the sewer at the upper end of the test section, the section shall be tested by infiltration. The infiltration test shall be conducted by placing a plug in the inlet sewer at the upper manhole and inserting an approved measuring device in the inlet sewer at the lower manhole. Prior to making measurements, care shall be taken to assure that the flow over or through the measuring device is constant. A minimum of four measurements shall be made over a period of one hour.

## AIR TESTING:

1. The following procedures shall be used in conducting the low pressure air test. The Developer shall furnish all facilities and personnel for conducting the test under the observation of the City.

The equipment and personnel shall be subject to the approval of the City.

- 2. The Developer may desire to make an air test prior to backfilling for his own purposes. However, the acceptance air test shall be made after backfilling has been completed and compacted.
- 3. All wyes, tees, or end of side sewer stubs shall be plugged with flexible joint caps, or acceptable alternate, securely fastened to withstand the internal test pressures. Such plugs or caps shall be readily removable and their removal shall provide a socket suitable for making a flexible jointed lateral connection or extension. No double plugs shall be allowed.
- 4. Immediately following the pipe cleaning, the pipe installation shall be tested with low-pressure air. Air shall be slowly supplied to the plugged pipe installation until the internal air pressure reaches 4.0 pounds per square inch greater than the average back pressure of any groundwater that may submerge the pipe. At least two minutes shall be allowed for temperature stabilization before proceeding further.
- 5. The requirements of this specification shall be considered satisfied if the time required in seconds for the pressure to decrease from 3.5 to 3.0 pounds per square inch is greater than the average back pressure above the center of the pipe. The following chart shall determine the time requirement:

Size of Pipe	Seconds per Lineal Foot of Pipe
4 inch	0.11
6 inch	0.25
8 inch	0.46
10 inch	0.72
12 inch	1.04
15 inch	1.63
18 inch	2.35
21 inch	3.20
24 inch	4.18

6. The use of air pressure for testing sewer lines creates hazards that

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

must be recognized. The Developer shall be certain that all plugs are securely blocked to prevent blow outs. A supply air regulator shall be installed on the air supply line to the sewer that shall permit a maximum of 10 psi in the line to be tested. All pressure shall be relieved from the sewer section being tested prior to removal of test plugs.

## TESTING OF PRESSURE SEWER MAINS:

Prior to acceptance of the project, the pressure line shall be subjected to a hydrostatic pressure test equal to three times the maximum working pressure at the high point of the line. Any leaks or imperfections developing or occurring under the test pressure shall be remedied by the developer before final acceptance of the project. Leakage measurement method shall be performed by the Developer and approved by the City. Test pressure shall be maintained while the entire installation is inspected. The developer shall provide all necessary equipment and shall perform all work connected with the tests. Insofar as is practical, test shall be made with pipe joints and fittings exposed for inspection. Maximum leakage allowable shall be .05 gallons per hour per inch of pipe diameter per 100 feet of pipe.

## SIDE SEWERS:

1. See Chelan Municipal Code 13.06.030.

## SEWER CONNECTION INSPECTIONS

Sewer connection inspections are required as per the Public Works right-of-way permits. All connection inspections require a report filed with Public Works using the City Standard Form in Appendix B, Exhibit 5.

## SEPTIC TANKS:

1. See Chelan Municipal Code 13.06.040.

## PUMP STATIONS:

- 1. Pump stations shall only serve those properties which cannot otherwise be served by conventional gravity sewers or septic tanks.
- 2. Pump stations to be maintained by the City shall be approved for design by the City.
- 3. Pump stations shall be approved on an individual basis by the City.

## **TELEVISION INSPECTION**

Upon completion, and prior to acceptance, of installation or repair of any sewer

## CITY OF CHELAN

main, all sewer mains shall be video and television inspected by the City. This inspection and recording shall be performed in the presence of the City inspector and the Developer. Any defects in material or workmanship discovered shall be repaired by the Developer prior to acceptance. The City will charge the Developer a reimbursement fee to cover all required man hour costs.

## TYPICAL BUILDING SEWER CONNECTION:

#### **MATERIALS ALLOWED:** (Main to property line)

- 1. 6" PVC pipe and fittings ASTM D-3034 (molded gasket type bell, usually 20 foot length).
- 2. 6" ABS pipe schedule 40 (black). Non-pressure use only.

## **GENERAL REQUIREMENTS:**

- 1. A cleanout is required just outside the building on new construction. An additional cleanout is required at intervals of not more than 100' from the sewer main or after each 135° of accumulated bend of fittings.
- 2. If installation is near a tree, cutting off gasketed bell and using glue couplings may be required by City engineer.
- 3. Pipe must be installed bell up.
- 4. Minimum slope 2%, no maximum.
- 5. If the lowest floor served is lower than the lowest manhole lid in the street, a backflow valve must be installed.
- 6. Pipe must be bedded and any rock contacting pipe must be no larger than 1".
- 7. Abandoned septic tanks must meet requirements of the current or as hereafter amended plumbing code.
- 8. Property owner shall have maintenance responsibility for the entire sewer lateral from the main to the residence.
- 9. Storm sewers may not under any circumstances be connected to the sanitary sewer system.
- 10. Developer shall install sewer laterals from the main to the property line. The end of the lateral shall be at least four feet (4') deep unless building lot requires an unusual depth. The lateral shall be capped and marked with a
# **SECTION THREE - SEWER STANDARDS**

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

white painted treated  $2 \times 4$  extending from in front of the cap bottom vertically to at least 24" above ground level. An eighteen inch long #4 rebar shall then be driven flush with the ground marking the  $2 \times 4$  location.

Page **Page** 

# CITY OF CHELAN

# SECTION FOUR TABLE OF CONTENTS

## **Description**

SEWER DESIGNS	 	4-2
NEW MANHOLE ON EXISTING SEWER	 	4-2
MANHOLE STEP	 	4-3
TYPICAL PRECAST MANHOLE	 	4-4
SIDE SEWER DETAILS	 	4-5
SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT - 8" MIN.	 	4-6
INSIDE DROP SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE	 	4-7
OUTSIDE DROP SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE	 	4-8
MANHOLE GRADE ADJUSTMENT DETAIL	 	4-9
FORCE MAIN SERVICE CONNECTION	 	4-10

#### **SEWER DESIGNS**

#### NEW MANHOLE ON EXISTING SEWER



## MANHOLE STEP



Note: Embedment depth to meet manufacturer's specifications.



ID-034

## SECTION FOUR - SEWER DESIGNS

#### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **TYPICAL PRECAST MANHOLE**



(Revised 02/03)

#### SIDE SEWER DETAILS



ĺ

## SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT - 8" MIN.



(

## **INSIDE DROP SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE**





#### **OUTSIDE DROP SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE**



NOTES:

- SELECT NATIVE BACKFILL MATERIAL OR IMPORTED BACKFILL MATERIAL COMPACTED PER SPECIFICATIONS
  STAINLESS BANDS WITH CONCRETE SPACER TO MANHOLE (5' MAX. SPACING, 1' MIN.)
  SEE STD DWG PAGE 4-6 FOR CLEANOUT DETAILS (NOT SHOWN)
- 4. DROP CONNECTION PIPE DIAMETER AND FITTINGS SHALL BE EQUAL TO OR GREATER THAN THE DIAMETER OF THE SEWER MAIN.
- 5. SEE PAGE 4-4 FOR CHANNELING FINISH REQUIREMENTS.
- 6. ALL DUTSIDE DROP M.H. SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH DUCTILE IRON PIPE.

ID-118

## SECTION FOUR - SEWER DESIGNS

1.

## CITY OF CHELAN

#### **MANHOLE GRADE ADJUSTMENT DETAIL** (For existing manholes)

NOTE:

Remove existing frame & lid, bricks, conc. collar and top riser section. Install new reinforced concrete manhole riser section (field verify height) and maximum of four concrete adjustment rings (16") and existing frame and collar.



## FORCE MAIN SERVICE CONNECTION



# TABLE OF CONTENTS

5A	. GENERAL
5B	PUBLIC WORKS CONSIDERATIONS1
	5B.010 Standard Specifications1
	5B.020 Plan Checklist2
	5B.030 Plan and Profile Submittal2
	5B.040 Workmanship and Materials3
	5B.050 Bonding and Insurance3
	5B.060 Latecomers
	5B.070 Streets Vacated by Operation of Law3
5C	STREETS
	5C.010 General Notes (Street Construction)
	5C.020 Traffic Impact Analysis4
	5C.030 Minimum Street Design Standards5
	5C.040 Street Frontage Improvements6
	5C.050 Right-of-Way
	5C.060 Existing Unimproved Street Requirements8
	5C.070 Staking
	5C.080 Testing
	5C.090 Access Management10
	5C.100 Sight Distance Requirements15
	5C.110 Illumination16
	5C.120 Intersections16
	5C.130 Driveways17
	5C.140 Private Roads20
	5C.150 Gated Access
	5C.160 Cul-de-Sacs
	5C.170 Dead End Roadways21
	5C.180 Alleys
	5C.190 Fire Access Roads22
	5C.200 Naming
	5C.210 Traffic Control - Construction23
5D	NON-MOTORIZED TRANSPORTATION
	5D.010 General
	5D.020 Design Standards24
	5D.030 Curb and Gutter25
	5D.040 Sidewalks
	5D.050 Pathways and Trails25
	5D.060 Bicycle Facilities25
	5D.070 Staking
	5D.080 Testing
5E	ROADSIDE FEATURES
	5E.010 General
	5E.020 Survey Monuments26
	5E.030 Mailboxes
	5E.040 Bus Pads, Shelters and Amenities27
	5E.050 Retaining Walls in Right-of-Way28
	5E.060 Street Trees
	5E.070 Planter Strips/Islands
	5E.080 Parking Lots
	5E.090 Traffic Signs
	5E.100 Guard Rails
	5E.110 Hand Rails

## 5A. GENERAL

The overall goal of this chapter is to encourage the uniform development of an integrated, fully accessible public transportation system that will facilitate present and future travel demand with minimal environmental impact to the community as a whole. All design standards shall follow accepted engineering practices with an emphasis on safety.

The street layout of every development shall be in conformance with these standards and with the City's adopted comprehensive plan, including the Transportation Element thereof, and shall provide for the continuation of major streets which serve property contiguous to the development. Street networks shall provide ready access for fire and other emergency vehicles and the Council, upon recommendation of the planning commission, may require additional access points if such are found to be necessary to protect the public safety. Street layout in mountainous areas may allow alignment cross section shifts as approved by the City engineer to accommodate topographical conditions.

# 5B PUBLIC WORKS CONSIDERATIONS

## **5B.010 Standard Specifications**

Design detail, workmanship and materials shall be in accordance with the current edition of the "Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction:, the "APWA Amendments to Division One", and the "Standard Plans for Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction", all written and promulgated by the Washington State Chapter of the American Public Works Association and the Washington State Department of Transportation, except where these standards provide otherwise.

All applicable rules of Washington State shall be adhered to with respect to safety, construction methods, and other state requirements. This includes, but is not limited to the Revised Code of Washington (RCW) and the Washington Administrative Code (WAC).

The following specifications shall be applicable when pertinent, when specifically cited in the standards, or when required by a higher funding authority.

- 1. Conditions and standards as set forth in the City of Chelan Water Comprehensive Plan, most current edition.
- 2. Conditions and standards as set forth in the City of Chelan Comprehensive Sanitary Sewer Plan, most current edition.
- 3. Rules and regulations as adopted in the City of Chelan Municipal Code.
- 4. Criteria set forth in the City of Chelan Traffic Circulation Enhancement Study.
- 5. Criteria set forth in the Local Agency Guidelines as amended and approved by Washington State Department of Transportation, most current edition.
- 6. Conditions and standards as set forth in the WSDOT Design Manual as amended and approved by WSDOT.

- 7. U.S. Department of Transportation Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) as amended and approved by Washington State Department of Transportation.
- 8. DOT Construction Manual as amended and approved by Washington State Department of Transportation.
- 9. Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge, and Municipal Construction as amended and approved by Washington State Department of Transportation.
- 10. Policy on Design of Highways and Streets by American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO).
- 11. Trip Generation Manual by Institute of Traffic Engineers (ITE)
- 12. Conditions and standards as set forth by the State of Washington, Department of Labor and Industries.
- 13. Other specifications not listed above as may apply when required by the City of Chelan.

# 5B.020 Plan Checklist

The Plan Checklist is provided in Appendix E of the Development Standards.

# 5B.030 Plan and Profile Submittal

A plan and profile of the proposed street meeting all drafting standards of Section 8 and showing the following data shall be submitted to the City engineer for approval prior to preliminary development approval and construction:

Plan:

- Street alignment in stations of one-hundred foot intervals;
- Bearings on street centerline (construction drawings only);
- Curve data on all horizontal curves, 50-foot stations minimum;
- Right-of-way lines and width for proposed streets;
- All topography within the right-of-way limits, including all utilities;
- Label all streets and adjoining subdivisions;
- Typical roadway section of proposed street;
- Existing and proposed drainage structures indicating direction of flows; and
- Map size shall be twenty-four inches by thirty-six inches. A one and one-half inch margin shall be provided on the left edge and a one-half inch margin shall e provided on the other edges of the map. All mapping to be drawn on mylar sheets.

Profile:

- Original ground line; Control elevation on border of sheet;
- Stationing in intervals of one hundred feet;
- Grade line showing grade percents and vertical curves.

# 5B.040 Workmanship and Materials

Workmanship and materials shall be in accordance with Sections 1-05 and 1-06 of the current edition of the Washington State Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Roads, Bridges, and Municipal Construction.

# 5B.050 Bonding and Insurance

Developers shall meet all standards as set forth in Section 13 of this manual, "Bonding and Liability Insurance".

# 5B.060 Latecomers

For existing platted lots, the City may enter into latecomer agreements with developers prior to installation of infrastructure to provide for the reimbursement of a pro-rata share of the cost of construction by the service users of any real estate who have not contributed to the original cost of such facilities and who subsequently connect to the system, pursuant to Chapters 12.28 and 13.36 of the Chelan Municipal Code as it now exists or as may be hereafter amended.

# 5B.070 Streets Vacated by Operation of Law

The City will not issue building permits to property of lots served by streets or alleys vacated by operation of law unless recorded and dedicated access is provided meeting full street standards of the City.

# 5C STREETS

# 5C.010 General Notes (Street Construction)

A. All workmanship and materials shall be in accordance with City of Chelan standards and the most current copy of the WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction. In cases of conflict, the most stringent standard shall apply.

B. The contractor shall be in compliance with all safety standards and requirements as set forth by OSHA, WISHA and the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries.

C. The contractor shall be responsible for all traffic control in accordance with the *WSDOT/APWA Standard Plans for Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction* (all applicable "K" plans) and/or the *Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD).* Prior to disruption of any traffic, a traffic control plan shall be prepared and submitted to the City for approval. No work shall commence until all approved traffic control is in place.

D. All approvals and permits required by the City of Chelan shall be obtained by the contractor prior to the start of construction.

E. If construction is to take place in other jurisdiction's right-of-way (i.e., the County or the State), the contractor shall notify the jurisdiction and obtain all the required approvals and permits.

F. A pre-construction meeting shall be held with the City of Chelan Public Works Department a minimum 72 hours prior to the start of construction.

G. The contractor shall be fully responsible for the location and protection of all existing utilities. The contractor shall verify all utility locations prior to construction by calling the Underground Locate line at 1-800-424-5555 a minimum of two business days prior to any excavation.

H. It shall be the responsibility of the contractor to have a copy of an approved set of plans on the construction site at all times.

I. All surveying and staking shall be performed per the corresponding sections of the *City of Chelan Development Standards Manual.* 

# 5C.020 Traffic Impact Analysis

A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) is a specialized study of the impacts that development will have on the surrounding transportation system. The TIA is an integral part of the development impact review process. It is specifically concerned with the generation, distribution, and assignment of traffic from the "new development". New development is defined as a "site action that triggers SEPA requirements. "New development" shall not include individual one or two-family residential lots within plats.

In accordance with the City of Chelan Traffic Impact Analysis Guidelines, a full or partial TIA may be required if:

- 1. The new development generates 20 or more new PM peak hour trips; or
- 2. The project requires a SEPA review; or
- 3. The new development will generate more than 50 peak hour trips at a time other than the PM peak hour.

The TIA Guidelines are provided in Appendix D of the Development Standards Manual.

		Local/	Minor	Major	Principal
Functional Classification		Private	Collector	Collector	Arterial
Minimum horizontal	Terrain $\leq 15\%$	80'	100'	150'	300′
curve radius on	Mountainous > 15%	80'	80′	N/A	N/A
inside face of curb	-				
Maximum Grade in	Terrain ≤ 15%	10%	10%	10%	8%
%	Mountainous > 15%	12%	12%	N/A	N/A
Minimum roadway	Terrain ≤15%	28′	32'	52′	46' (Note 4)
width, curb face to	Mountainous > 15%	28′	28'	N/A	N/A
curb face					
Sidewalk Minimum	Terrain ≤ 15%	5' both sides	5' both sides	5' both sides	10' both
Width (add 0.5' for					sides
curb) (see Note 1)					(Note 5)
	Mountainous > 15%	5' one side	5' both sides	N/A	N/A
Bank Slope (h:v)	Terrain ≤ 15%	2:1	2:1	2:1	2:1
	Mountainous > 15%	2:1	2:1	N/A	N/A
Minimum Right of	Terrain ≤ 15%	50' (Note 2)	54'	74'	100'
Way	Mountainous > 15%	38' (Note 3)	43' (Note 3)	N/A	N/A
Parking Lane	Terrain ≤ 15%	1@8′	1@8′	2@8′	Note 6
—	Mountainous > 15%	1@8′	1@8'	N/A	N/A
Bike Lanes	Terrain ≤ 15%	N/A	N/A	2@6′	2@6′
	Mountainous > 15%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Traffic Lanes	Terrain ≤ 15%	2@10'	2@12'	2@12′	Note 7
	Mountainous > 15%	2@10'	2@10'	N/A	N/A
Planter Strip	Terrain ≤ 15%	2@6′	2@6′	2@6′	2@6' (Note
•					8)
	Mountainous > 15%	N/A	N/A	<u>N/A</u>	N/A
Utility Easement	Terrain ≤ 15%	2@6′	2@6′	2@6′	2@6′
(See Note 9)	Mountainous > 15%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Road Surface		3" asphalt,	3" asphalt,	4" asphalt,	4" asphalt,
(See Note 10)		3" top	3" top	4" top	4" top
		course,	course,	course,	course,
		4" base	4" base	6" base	6" base

# 5C.030 Minimum Street Design Standards

#### Notes to table:

- 1. 10' width in commercial or industrial areas as required by City Engineer.
- 2. Private road right-of-way width may be reduced to 40' at discretion of City Engineer.
- 3. For mountainous terrain, an additional 2 feet of right-of-way is provided behind the back of curb and/or sidewalk.
- 4. Two 11-foot lanes, one 12-foot center lane, and two 6-foot bike lanes. Actual width will be determined by number of travel lanes based on the projected volume of traffic.
- The minimum sidewalk width will be six feet for all other areas not designated within City planning documents.
- 6. Parking lane required in designated areas per approved planning documents.
- Actual width will be determined based on two-five travel lanes depending on projected volume of traffic using the facility. (Refer to Transportation Plan.)
- 8. Planter strips will be required for all areas where the sidewalk width is between 5-8 feet; otherwise, street trees may be included within the 10-foot sidewalk width. The City Engineer will make the final determination.
- 9. Utility easement strips will be located immediately adjacent to the back of sidewalk and/or street right-of-way edge. For mountainous terrain areas, non-City utilities will be located within the roadway prism at the location approved by the City Engineer. The easement strips are provided for all non-City utilities and snow removal.
- 10. Base course depths may require a design depth by a soils engineer if determined by the City Engineer.

Additional notes:

- 11. Rolled curb (see City standard plan) is allowed at the discretion of the City Engineer on local and minor collector streets in excess of 32' between curbs in width, except in mountainous terrain where access or parking is not permitted.
- 12. The City Engineer may allow reduction in paving width to a minimum 24' and an increase in grade up to a maximum of 18% on mountainous terrain where no driveway access is provided to the street and no feasible alternative exists, providing all emergency services approve of the same.
- 13. Cut slopes steeper than 2:1 may be used where favorable soil conditions exist or stepped construction is used, when approved by the City Engineer. The City Engineer may also require slopes flatter than 2:1, depending on native soil conditions.
- 14. Right of way limits shall be per the information presented above and as depicted on the street cross-section details.
- 15. Street design standards specified in approved plans, including the Non-Motorized Transportation Implementation Plan, the Downtown Master Plan, and any adopted neighborhood plans, may be substituted for the standards shown in the table above at the discretion of the City Engineer.
- 16. Switch backs, when necessary, shall be designed with a minimum centerline radius of 55' and a minimum inside radius of 25' with pavement widening on the inside edge accordingly. The limits of additional pavement widening will be confirmed based on design vehicle turning radius requirements as depicted on approved "auto-turn" exhibits. The City Engineer may also require pavement widening on other curve sections as deemed necessary.
- 17. In a Planned Development District, curbside sidewalks may be replaced as a functional equivalent by a separate path or trail with equivalent surface and dimensions, with all-weather impervious surfacing on a public easement, when approved as part of the Homeowners Association ownership and responsibility in lieu of public sidewalks as normally placed adjacent to the roadway and serving the same function.
- 18. Additional right-of-way width may be required where a clear pattern of future development is present (such as to serve areas included in the Urban Growth Boundary).
- 19. Sidewalks, where necessary because of topographic constraints, may be, upon approval of the City engineer, required on only one side.
- 20. Any roadway surface that restricts parking shall be so posted at the expense of the developer.
- Curb radius shall be 25' radius to face of curb on local and minor collectors and 35' on major collectors and arterials.
- 22. An approved traffic safety control plan is required when working in the right-of-way.
- 23. Dust and erosion\_control will be required for all construction projects.

## 5C.040 Street Frontage Improvements

A. All commercial and residential (including multi-family) development, subdivisions, short subdivisions and binding site plans shall install street frontage improvements at the time of construction as required by the Public Works Department. For new proposals which fall under the definition of development in Appendix A, if Site Plan Review (SPR) approval is necessary, frontage improvements shall be required. If an existing use is being altered or improved, frontage improvements shall be required if the project meets all of the following conditions:

- 1. The project requires binding site plan, conditional use permit, or SPR approval per CMC 19.01, and
- 2. The site has more than 100 feet of total frontage, and
- 3. The project meets the threshold requirements as determined by all applicable CMCs.

Per the Site Plan Review approval, such improvements include but are not limited to: curb and gutter; sidewalk; street storm drainage; street lighting system; holiday lighting features; traffic signal modification, utility conduit, traffic control devices, signal interconnect, relocation or installation; public transit amenities, street signing; utility relocation; planter strips; landscaping and irrigation; and street widening all per these Standards. Plans shall be prepared and signed by a licensed engineer registered in the State of Washington.

B. All frontage improvements shall be made across full frontage of property to include full street section with sidewalk on development side of street only. Off project site frontage improvements may be required if determined by the City for public safety.

C. Utility relocations shall follow the requirements as outlined in Section 10, Utility Designs, in these Standards.

D. If contiguous parcels are under the same ownership, frontage improvements shall be required if the project meets all of the following conditions:

- 1. The project requires binding site plan, conditional use permit, or SPR approval, and
- The contiguous sites have more than 100 lineal feet of combined frontage, and,
- 3. The project meets the threshold requirements as determined by all applicable CMCs.

E. Exceptions. When the City Engineer deems the above such improvements cannot be accomplished at the time of building construction, frontage improvements may be deferred, modified or waived. These exceptions shall be made a condition of Site Plan Review approval or as a condition of subdivision, short subdivision, binding site plan, and conditional use permit approval.

Improvements may be deferred by signing a Waiver of Protest for a Local Improvement District (L.I.D.), by signing a Deferral of Frontage Improvements Agreement, or by paying a fee in lieu of constructing the improvements. If a fee-in-lieu is paid, it shall be based on the engineer's estimate and the City will be responsible for constructing said facilities at a later date.

If the frontage improvements are deferred, all necessary right-of-way must be dedicated as a condition of approval. If additional right-of-way is required and the side slopes exceed 7:1 slope, then a 10-foot slope easement shall also be required to facilitate construction of future improvements. All methods of deferral, and components thereof, must be in place, signed, collected, and/or processed prior to the project scheduling a preconstruction meeting.

# 5C.050 Right-of-Way

Right-of-way shall be dedicated for a subdivision, short subdivision, binding site plan, for a project that triggers Site Plan Review, or for a conditional use permit. The requirement to dedicate right-of-way shall be determined by Public Works. Although a right-of-way dedication may be required, frontage improvements may be deferred per Chapter 5C.040 of the Development Standards Manual.

Right-of-way width is determined by the functional classification of a street. Refer to Table 5C.030 Minimum Street Design Standards.

Right-of-way requirements may be increased if additional lanes, turn pockets, intersection treatments, transit lanes, bus loading zones, bus shelters, operational speed, bike lanes, utilities, schools or future planned improvements are required as determined by the City Engineer.

The right-of-way boundaries at intersections shall be sufficient to contain all portions of the sidewalk, curb ramps, all signal and lighting appurtenances, and any other appurtenance associated with a public utility.

Right-of-way shall be conveyed to the City on a recorded subdivision or by a right-ofway dedication deed. If the dedication is by deed, the deed shall be submitted and approved upon completion of the street improvement that reflects the "as-built" condition of the roadway. For all developments requiring a subdivision of property, the right-of-way shall be a condition of approval and conveyed through the final plat process.

When right-of-way is conveyed to the City by plat or by dedication deed, the rightof-way centerline or other appropriate control line shall be monumented by a Washington licensed Professional Land Surveyor. A monumentation plan shall be submitted to the Public Works Department for approval prior to placement of the monument positions.

# **5C.060 Existing Unimproved Street Requirements**

## Residential

A. The following minimum standards shall apply to the development of single family residential dwelling units on an unimproved right-of-way (existing plats), and private roads:

- 1. Minimum surfacing of all local private access streets shall conform to design standards in Table 5C.030.
- 2. An improved turn-around shall be provided consistent with the current edition of these standards if the lot to be developed is located at the end of any road that is over 150 feet in length.
- 3. All utilities which have not already been installed to serve the site shall be constructed to full City standards as set forth herein and installed

underground. The list of affected utilities shall include but not be limited to water, sewer, storm drainage, electrical and communications.

4. Existing subgrade soils may require additional compacted depths as directed by the City Engineer.

All developments will require improvement of the road, sidewalks, curbs, Β. gutters, and utilities in full compliance with these development standards, which shall include completion of conditions in A-3 above. However, street improvements for singular lot development that is non-contiguous to improved streets in existing plats, the existing R/W width, AC width and sidewalk status shall be extended to match the nearest impervious surfaced street. If the developer does not or can not bear the cost of connectivity and if the latecomers agreement does not apply, Council shall form an LID if improvements are required as a health and safety issue. Otherwise, development will not be allowed. The grades shall be established by the developer's engineer. The AC matching width shall be a minimum of 20 feet and must meet access standards as per Section 902 of the Uniform Fire Code as it now exists or as may be hereafter amended. The cross section of the said street shall meet specifications of these standards. The intent of the exception for singular lot development herein is to allow a private party to build and access a single family residence without the financial burden of completely developing the facilities to all the lots. Should the private party acquire an interest in the intermediate lots, he will be considered as a developer and the above exception shall be disallowed.

C. Properties installing improvements as required in Section A above shall receive credit for the current value of such improvements, to the extent that the improvements reduce the cost of a LID, against the cost of any future LID assessment for street improvements for a period of up to ten years after the date of installation of such improvements, as demonstrated by their acceptance by the City of Chelan.

#### Commercial/Industrial

All new commercial development, including multifamily dwelling units, and conditional uses for business other than a home occupation, shall make the following minimum street improvements as a condition of any development permit issuance on any right-of-way which is not fully improved to current City standards:

A. Improve the frontage of the property along the street right-of-way with curbs, gutters, sidewalks, planter strips, storm drainage facilities and paving between the edge of gutter and existing asphalt.

B. Improve the alley serving the property by complying with "Alleys" standards contained herein.

C. Subject to the limitations set forth in RCW 35.43.182 as it now exists or as may be hereafter amended, when the City determines that improvements should be delayed, property owners shall sign an agreement to support and not oppose

formation of a local improvement district for completion of the road and all utilities to City standards.

D. Properties installing improvements as required in Sections A and B above shall receive credit for the current value of such improvements, to the extent that the improvements reduce the cost of a LID, against the cost of their LID assessment for a period of up to ten years after the date of installation of such improvements, as demonstrated by their acceptance by the City of Chelan.

# 5C.070 Staking

All surveying and staking shall be performed by an engineering or surveying firm capable of performing such work. The surveyor directing such work shall be licensed as a Professional Land Surveyor by the State of Washington.

A pre-construction meeting shall be held with the City prior to commencing staking. All construction staking shall be inspected by the City prior to construction.

The minimum staking of streets shall be as directed by the City Engineer or as follows:

- A. Stake centerline every 50 foot in tangent sections and 25 feet in curved sections plus grade breaks, PVCs, PVTs, high points and low points, with cut and/or fill to subgrade.
- B. Stake top of ballast and top of crushed surfacing at centerline and edge of pavement at the above-described intervals.
- C. Stake top back of curb at a minimum 3 foot offset at the above-described intervals with cut or fill to finished grade

# 5C.080 Testing

Testing shall be required at the developer's or contractor's expense. The testing shall be ordered by the City construction inspector from a testing lab approved by the City. Testing shall be done on all materials and construction as specified in the WSDOT/APWA *Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction* and with frequency as specified in Sampling and Testing Frequency Guide located in section 9-5.7 of the *WSDOT Construction Manual.* 

In addition, the City shall be notified before each phase that street construction commences (i.e., staking, grading, subgrade, ballast, base, top course, and surfacing).

# 5C.090 Access Management

Access Management is a tool to address traffic congestion, crashes, and loss of street capacity. The intent of Access Management is to provide access for land

development while preserving the flow of traffic in terms of safety, capacity and speed of travel. Studies show the uncontrolled proliferation of driveways and intersections along a given section of roadway reduces the capacity, increases the number of severity of crashes, and inhibits bicycle and pedestrian usage. In addition, poorly designed entrances and exits cause congestion and create a negative image for a commercial district.

## A. Connection to State Highways and Work Within State Right-of-Way

Where City streets connect to state highways, design standards from the most recent edition of the Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) Standards for intersection design shall apply. The developer is responsible to obtain review and approval from WSDOT for work within State Right-of-Way

#### B. Functional Classifications and Connectivity

Roadway hierarchy based on functional classification provides a network of streets based on the service they provide. Roadway layout shall be based primarily on the safety, efficiency of traffic flow, and functional use of the roadway. Roadways are divided into arterials, major and minor collectors, local/private access streets and alleys.

Roadways of all classifications shall be planned to provide for connectivity of existing and proposed streets in relation to adjoining parcels and possible future connections as approved by Public Works. New development roadway systems should be designed so as to minimize the distance pedestrians travel to bus stops.

The classifications of all streets shall be established by the Public Works Department. Arterials and collectors are identified in the most current adopted version of the Transportation Element. Street changes in classifications or classifications applied to new streets shall be shown to meet the following criteria.

1. Local/Private Access Street: A short street, cul-de-sac, court or a street with branching places or lanes. A Local Access Street is a minor residential street, and usually there is not through traffic between two streets of a higher classification. ADT (Average Daily Trips) less than or equal to 1,000.

Local access streets shall interconnect with each other and with minor collectors and have a minimum level of access control. Alleys in residential neighborhoods are encouraged. Traffic calming techniques shall be designed into all residential subdivisions. The pedestrian network shall be paramount in the residential roadway network. Local residential streets serve as land access from residences and generally connect with minor collectors. Safety is always the major consideration when determining intersection locations and connectivity.

- Minor Collector: The typical residential street, the minor collector is most commonly recognized as the lesser through street of a residential grid. While vehicular traffic could often travel through on a minor collector, intersections are either controlled or encumbered with stop signs, thus encouraging vehicles to use a major collector for through traffic. ADT greater than 1,000 and less than 2,000.
- 3. **Major Collector:** The Major Collector is the major street in the urban system and correspondingly has the highest average daily traffic (ADT). The Major Collector generally receives many Minor Collector or Residential streets and/or is the major route to significant activity centers. These streets should not generally be encumbered with stop signs. ADT= 2,000+.

Collectors generally connect commercial, industrial and residential projects to other collectors and arterials and have a moderate level of access control.

4. **Arterial:** The Arterial will generally be a state road or other major facility that moves urban traffic along to other urban areas or higher class state or federal highways. The number of travel lanes and facilities will be determined by the carrying capacity to accommodate projected traffic levels. Arterials are intended for the efficient movement of people and goods and have the highest level of access control. They have limited access and accommodate controlled intersections. The level of service standard for the state-owned facilities will be established by WSDOT and the City will set the LOS standard for all other designated arterials.

Unless directed otherwise by the City Engineer, centerline striping will be performed for Arterial and Major Collector Streets only. (See street classification map)

All new developments shall provide for the continuation of streets that will potentially serve property contiguous to the new development. Extending the improved street up to the common property line will fulfill this requirement. Each street with the potential for extension into contiguous properties shall be sized based on the estimated number of Average Daily Trips (ADTs) which will be generated by all properties within the Urban Growth Area (UGA) served by this road. The number of ADTs shall be determined based on the land use designation of the properties in question. In no case shall any parcel of property within City limits and/or the Urban Growth Boundary be allowed to become "landlocked" due to development in adjoining properties.

## C. Determination of Access Classification

Determination of access shall be the responsibility of the City except on State highways, where WSDOT maintains strict standards for access. The developer shall provide the following information along with recommendations to assist the City in determining access locations:

- 1. Local land use plans, zoning, and land development regulations as set forth in adopted comprehensive plans.
- 2. The current and potential functional classification of the roadway.
- 3. Existing and projected traffic volumes, accident history, and other operational considerations.
- 4. Existing and projected state, local and regional planning organization transportation plans and needs, including considerations of new or improved facilities.
- 5. Drainage requirements.
- 6. The physical features of lands adjoining the roadway.
- 7. The availability of alternative connections to the existing roadway network.
- 8. The cumulative effect of existing and projected connections on the roadway's ability to provide safe and efficient movement of people and goods.

#### D. Access Spacing

Minimum access spacing provides drivers with sufficient perception-reaction time to address one potential conflict area at a time. Access points shall be located to reduce the possibility of weaving, lane shifts, or other conflicts in the traffic stream. Existing access on both sides of the roadway shall be analyzed to determine proper location for a new access. Spacing is important to the safety and capacity of a roadway, as well as the appearance of a corridor. Bicyclists and pedestrians will benefit from the reduced conflicts generated by excessive access points. The following guidelines shall be used for minimum spacing between access points.

Functional Classification	Access Spacing
Arterial	660 feet
Major Collector	330 feet
Major Collector in	165 feet
Business District	

The spacing standards are for full access. Restricted access (right-in, right-out), shall be half the amount shown in the table above. If the spacing requirements and the connectivity requirements as outlined in this Chapter cannot be met, the access shall be designed using the objectives herein and as approved by the City. All distances in this chapter are measured centerline to centerline.

#### E. Additional Access

Developments shall provide a secondary access way to an Arterial or Major Collector when a traffic count of 1,000 ADT is reached. The number of ADTs shall be determined using both (1) existing development within the area that would be

served by the secondary access way and (2) the development proposal. A third access point may be required if necessary for public safety and/or reasonable level of service. If additional accesses cannot be installed due to topography, waterways, negotiable grades, or other similar conditions, the requirement may be waived, and mitigation measures will be required.

## F. Secondary Access Requirements

## 1. Single-Family Residential Developments

Developments consisting of single-family residential housing where the number of dwelling units exceeds 30 shall provide two separate and approved access roads. Where the number of dwelling units is from 31 to 100, the requirement for a second access road may be waived if the secondary road cannot be installed due to topography, waterways, non-negotiable grades, or other similar conditions. If the requirement for a secondary access is waived, all dwelling units shall be protected by approved residential sprinkler systems. When the number of dwelling units exceeds 100, two separate and approved access roads shall be required regardless of whether the homes are equipped with approved residential sprinkler systems.

#### 2. Multi-family Residential Developments

Developments consisting of multi-family residential units where the number of dwelling units exceeds 100 shall provide two separate and approved access roads. Where the number of dwelling units is from 101-150, the requirement for a second access road may be waived if the secondary road cannot be installed due to topography, waterways, nonnegotiable grades, or other similar conditions. If the requirement for a secondary access is waived, all buildings including nonresidential occupancies, shall be equipped throughout with approved automatic sprinkler systems. When the number of dwelling units exceeds 150, two separate and approved access roads shall be required regardless of whether the buildings are equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler system.

## 3. Mixed Developments

For developments that contain both single-family and multi-family units, two separate and approved access roads shall be required when the number of Average Daily Trips (ADTs) exceeds 300. The total number of ADTs shall be estimated using the trip rate identified in the latest edition of the *Trip Generation Manual* as published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE). Where the total number of ADTs is between 300 and 1,000, the requirement for a second access road may be waived if the secondary road cannot be installed due to topography, waterways, nonnegotiable grades, or other similar conditions. If the requirement for a secondary access is waived, all dwelling units and accessory buildings shall be protected by approved automatic sprinkler systems. When the number of ADTs reaches 1,000, two separate and approved access roads shall be required regardless of whether the buildings are equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler system.

# 5C.100 Sight Distance Requirements

The criteria in this chapter shall be used as a reference for streetscape amenities such as signs, trees, fences, bus shelters, etc. Use AASHTO Design standards to determine sight distance criteria for all road and intersection designs. Use WSDOT design standards for access to State highways. Intersections may include public and private driveways and pedestrian crossings. See Chapter 5C.120 for intersection definition.

The area within the sight distance triangle shall be subject to restrictions to maintain a clear view on the intersection approach. The ultimate roadway width (number of lanes) per the most current version of the City's Transportation Plan shall be used to calculate the dimensions of the sight distance triangle.





The centerline of the road is the actual physical centerline regardless of the number of lanes. Sight distance B is 15 feet measured from the near edge of travelled way to the eye of the driver on the minor road. The following table shall apply to both vertical and horizontal sight distance.

Minimum Distance "A" (in feet)*								
Posted Speed (mph)	20	25	30	35	40	45	50	Multiplier
Residential Streets	200	250	300	350	400	450	500	10
Collectors and Arterials	240	30	360	420	480	540	600	12

\*Based on Sight of Distance per 10 mph for Design Vehicle "P" Crossing Arterial.

If your speed is not shown above, use the following formula for distance A:

Multiplier x posted speed = sight distance A

On roadways with 5 or more lanes or roadways with medians more than 20 feet wide, use AASHTO Design Standards. WSDOT design standards shall be used for access to State highways.

The vertical clearance area within the sight distance triangle shall be free from obstructions to a motor vehicle operator's view between a height of 3 feet and 8 feet above the existing surface of the street.

Exclusions: Sight obstructions that may be excluded from these requirements include: fences in conformance with this chapter, utility poles, regulatory signs, trees trimmed from the base to a height of 8 feet above the street, places where the contour of the ground is such that there can be no cross visibility at the intersection, saplings or plant species of open growth habits and not in the form of a hedge which are so planted and trimmed as to leave at all seasons a clear and unobstructed cross view, buildings constructed in conformance with the provisions of appropriate zoning regulations and pre-existing buildings.

## 5C.110 Illumination

All new commercial or residential subdivisions, short plats, binding site plans shall provide street lights in accordance with the standards for such improvements of the City and they shall be owned and operated by the City. All improvements shall be provided and constructed as detailed in Section Eleven – Street Illumination.

# **5C.120 Intersections**

An intersection may be any access point, whether a public street or a public or private driveway, onto a public street. See Chapter 5C.100 for Access Management criteria and for intersections as they relate to functional classification.

Street intersections shall be as nearly at right angles as is practicable and street jogs with offsets of less than one hundred twenty-five feet between centerlines are not allowed.

For safe design, the following types of intersection features shall be avoided unless approved by the City Engineer:

- 1. Intersections with more than four intersection streets;
- 2. "Y" type intersections where streets meet at acute angles;
- 3. Intersections adjacent to bridges and other sight obstructions.

# 5C.130 Driveways

All abandoned driveway areas along the frontage of redeveloped property shall be removed and the curbing, planter strip, sidewalk, or shoulder and ditch section shall be properly restored. All driveway approaches shall be constructed of Commercial Concrete and shall be subject to the same testing and inspection requirements as curb, gutter, and sidewalk construction.

Joint use driveways serving two adjacent parcels are encouraged whenever feasible. A joint use driveway serving two adjacent parcels is required if contiguous property is under the same ownership <u>unless joint access is not feasible due to topography</u> <u>constraints, as determined by the City Engineer</u>. An easement and a maintenance agreement shall be recorded for both parcels specifying maintenance and joint usage in perpetuity.

#### A. Residential Driveways

Residential driveways shall be those driveways constructed on private property to serve up to three single-family residential structures or a duplex. A driveway to multiple residences must be upon a 20-foot easement and must have fire department approval, but will generally consist of 12-foot width of all-weather surfacing and a maximum grade of 12%. Driveway easement documentation shall be as per these standards. Regardless of access, all lots must front upon a platted public street or private road. In all cases, the portion of the driveway within the right-of-way shall be asphalt surface.

- 1. All residential driveways shall meet the sight distance requirements of Chapter 5C.100.
- 2. Maximum grade for a driveway to a single residence shall be 18%.
- 3. A driveway to multiple residences must provide an emergency vehicle turnaround as per these standards.
- 4. The maximum residential driveway width onto an arterial or major collector roadway shall be 25 feet. The maximum residential driveway width onto a local or minor collector roadway shall be 25 feet; minimum width shall be 10 feet (net flat width without transition ramp).
- 5. No more than one access shall be permitted onto an arterial or major collector roadway, regardless of the frontage. Not more than one access shall be permitted for a frontage of 75 feet or less on a local or minor collector roadway. Two accesses on a local or minor collector may be permitted for frontage of 75 feet to 150 feet. The two accesses may be combined into a single access of up to 35 feet net flat width.
- 6. Driveway parking space shall not interfere with pedestrian traffic on sidewalks.

#### B. Public Driveways

Public Driveways are those driveways constructed on private property to serve commercial, industrial and multi-family projects. Public Driveways shall be curb cuts. A traffic engineer shall design public driveways with safety being the primary design criteria. The following criteria shall apply to all public driveways:

- 1. Commercial properties shall provide internal connections between neighboring properties. Developments must give priority to internal access before access to the public roadway system is permitted. Cross access allows vehicles to circulate between commercial properties without having to re-enter the public street system.
- 2. Public driveways shall meet the sight distance requirement of Chapter 5C.100.
- 3. No public driveway shall be approved where backing onto the sidewalk or street will occur.
- 4. Parking lot circulation and signing shall be met on site. The public right-ofway shall not be utilized as part of the parking lot flow. Alleys may be utilized with the approval of the City Engineer.
- 5. The maximum driveway width for a two-way, public driveway with curb returns shall be the same as listed for curb cut. A wider public driveway may be approved by the City Engineer where a substantial percentage of oversized vehicle traffic exists, where divisional islands are desired, or where multiple exit or entrance lanes are needed.
- 6. The maximum one-way public driveway width for a curb cut or a driveway with curb return shall be 14 feet for multi-family residential and 20 feet for commercial and industrial uses. The storage length of a driveway must be adequate to prevent vehicles from waiting in thru lanes to enter the site or causing unsafe conflicts with on-site circulation and parking. General standards appear below but these requirements will vary according to the projected volume of the individual driveway. The length shall be measured from the face of curb into the site.

Adequate Driveway Storage Lengths			
Development Type	Minimum Driveway Throat Length		
Commercial Center > 150,000 GLA <sup>(1)</sup>	200 feet		
Smaller Project < 150,000 GLA <sup>(1)</sup>	40-95 feet <sup>(2)</sup>		
Signalized Driveway	Based on operational analysis for 95% queue		

(1) Gross Leasable Area

<sup>(2)</sup> Distance confirmed by City Engineer

7. Road approaches and/or ingress and egress tapers may be required in industrial and commercially zoned areas as directed by the City Engineer.

Tapers shall be designed per the ITE (Institute of Transportation Engineers) publication, *Transportation and Land Development*, latest edition.

#### C. Residential Driveway Access Spacing

- 1. Residential access to a public street shall be limited to one driveway for each parcel of property separately owned.
- 2. In new construction, residential driveways shall not be permitted to access arterials, major collectors, or minor collectors unless the property has no other reasonable access to the general street system.
- 3. If an existing residential parcel abuts an arterial, major collector or minor collector, no residential access shall be allowed to those streets within 150-feet of the nearest right-of-way line of an intersecting street.
- 4. Corner lots shall access the roadway with the lower functional classification.

If the above standards cannot be met, the developer's engineer must design the most appropriate access with safety being the primary design criteria.

#### D. Public Driveway Access Spacing

- Access to a public street shall be limited to one public driveway connected to the lowest classified roadway for each parcel of property separately owned. Property fronting more than one public street may be permitted an access to each public street if the Traffic Impact Analysis supports multiple accesses. Two or more public driveways accessing a public street will only be allowed with the approval of the City Engineer. Properties contiguous to each other and owned by the same person are considered to be one parcel.
- 2. If all other access management techniques have been exhausted, the City will permit public driveways utilizing the following minimum corner clearance requirements. Corner clearance is the distance between a private access and the nearest cross road intersection and is applicable to all roadway classifications. Corner Clearance is necessary to provide adequate perception-reaction time to reduce potential downstream conflicts and is aimed at preventing the location of driveways within the functional area of an intersection. Minimum driveway setback and corner clearance requirements shall meet the most current ITE standard. The minimum corner clearance setbacks are shown in the following table.

Minimum Corner Clearance Distance (in feet) from Near Side of Street to Near Side of Access Driveway			
Posted Speed (mph)	Major Traffic Generator	Minor Traffic Generator	
30	200	150	
35	260	215	
40	330	260	
45	395	310	
50	460	345	

Reference: Traffic Engineering Handbook

Major traffic generators are developments that require or would be required to complete a Traffic Impact Analysis per City of Chelan TIA Guidelines.

# 5C.140 Private Roads

Private roads shall meet the definition as given in this section and shall be allowed in the following instances:

- 1. As part of a Planned Development District (Zone P-D);
- 2. As permanently established by plat or easement providing legal access to serve two, three, or four single-family dwelling units and conforming to design standards in Table 5C.030;
- 3. For access to multifamily housing, subject to approval by the City Engineer.

Private roads must meet all of the following conditions:

- 1. Said road shall be accessible at all times for emergency and public service use.
- 2. Private roads shall have covenants which provide for the maintenance of the private roads by the owners, homeowners association, or other legal entity, and are recorded with the Chelan County Auditor's Office.
- 3. Private streets will not landlock present or future parcels nor obstruct public street circulation. If there is the ability for a future roadway connection, a private street will not be allowed.
- 4. The design and construction of sidewalks along private streets shall meet all applicable standards as for sidewalks along public roadways as specified in Chapter 5D.040.

Acceptance of private roads as public streets will be considered only if the road(s) meet all applicable public street and utility standards.

# 5C.150 Gated Access

#### A. Gated Residential Access

Gates to neighborhoods or gated communities shall be allowed only on private streets. Private streets shall meet all the conditions as set forth in Chapter 5C.140. In addition the following conditions shall apply:

1. A minimum stacking distance as shown in the table below shall be required:

Intersecting Public Street Classification Arterial	Minimum Stacking Distance If only one access, use 5-feet per PM peak hour trip. Minimum stacking distance shall be 100 feet.
Major and Minor Collector	1-foot per PM peak hour trip. Minimum stacking distance shall be 20 feet.
Local and Private	0.5-foot per PM peak hour trip. Minimum stacking distance shall be 10 feet.

- 2. A turn around shall be provided on the public right-of-way side of the gate.
- 3. Mailboxes meeting U.S. Postal standards shall be located on the public side of the gate.
- 4. Gates shall be equipped with an emergency pre-emption system capable of operating from the public side of the gate to facilitate immediate entry of emergency vehicles into the development and shall have the concurrence of emergency services. This system must be maintained in proper working order by the owners of the development or the proper homeowners or business owners association, whichever shall be the case. A copy of the access key, code, or combination shall be provided to the City to facilitate access.

#### B. Gated Commercial Access

Gated access in commercial or industrial projects shall follow the standards as set forth in 5C.150.A. The stacking distance shall be based on vehicle length, access street classification, and entering volumes in the PM peak hour. A Traffic Impact Analysis shall be used to determine an appropriate stacking distance.

# 5C.160 Cul-de-Sacs

To encourage connectivity, cul-de-sacs shall be discouraged. Cul-de-sacs may be allowed with the approval of the City Engineer where geographical, topographic or environmental conditions preclude connection. When these conditions preclude street connections, continuous non-vehicular connections should still be attempted.

Cul-de-sacs may also be allowed for short subdivisions bordered on three sides by properties developed to their maximum use. Dead ends or a shared access may be required for subdivisions where the potential for future connectivity exists due to the proximity of under-developed properties.

Streets designed to have one end permanently closed shall typically be no longer than 600 feet as measured from the intersecting right-of-way line extended, to the center of the cul-de-sac. At the closed end, there shall be a widened bulb having a minimum paved traveled radius as shown in the Cul-de-Sac Plan Detail. Where the total number of ADTs generated by residences served by the cul-de-sac is between 300 and 1,000, the limitations on length and on number of lots served may be waived if additional access cannot be installed due to topography, waterways, nonnegotiable grades, or other similar conditions. If the limitation on length, number of lots served, or both is waived, all dwelling units and accessory buildings shall be protected by approved automatic sprinkler systems. A cul-de-sac may not serve an area generating 1,000 ADTs or more without providing additional access, whether or not the buildings are equipped with approved automatic sprinkler systems.

# 5C.170 Dead End Roadways

Where a street is temporarily dead ended, turn around provisions and a Type III red and white barricade the full width of the roadway must be provided where the road serves more than one lot. Hammerheads or L turnarounds may be used in lieu of a cul-de-sac only upon approval of the City Engineer and shall be designed in accordance with details in the Standard Details Section. Permanent dead ends shall be properly signed per Section 3C-4 of the MUTCD.

At the end of a sidewalk to be extended in the future, a red and white type II barricade the full width of a sidewalk is required.

## 5C.180 Alleys

Alleys, where provided at the rear of lots, shall have a minimum right-of-way width of twenty feet and shall be designed in accordance with the alley detail in the Standard Details section. Dead-end alleys and alleys with sharp changes in direction are prohibited. Alleys as a primary access are encouraged, subject to the following standards:

- 1. The alley right-of-way must be at least twenty feet wide; and
- 2. The alley must be paved; and
- 3. Alley access shall be subject to approval by the City Engineer. The City Engineer's review shall include, but not be limited to, review of provisions for trash collection and snow removal, and access by fire trucks and other emergency service vehicles.

Existing lots that have no alternative access may be exempted from the standards by the City Engineer.

## 5C.190 Fire Access Roads

Roads which are designated as fire access roads shall conform to the minimum street standards for new construction as shown in Section 5C.030 of the Development Standards or shall be designed and installed per the most current adopted edition of the Fire Code as adopted and amended by the Chelan Municipal Code.

# 5C.200 Naming

Streets and roads shall be named according to specific criteria. "Avenues" run eastwest, and "Streets" generally run north-south. All avenues lying east of Columbia St. are designated east (E) and west of Columbia Street are designated west (W). Streets north of Woodin Avenue are designated north (N) and south of Woodin Avenue are designated (S).

An address number will be assigned to all new buildings at the time of final plat, site plan review, or at the time the building permit is issued. This will be done by the Building Official per CMC 12.08.

The developer must check with the Building Official regarding the naming of streets. This should be done at the time the subdivision is submitted and again upon approval of the subdivision. The Building Official will insure the name assigned to a new street is consistent with policies of the City.

Street signs for public and private roadways, including poles and hardware, will be supplied and installed by the developer. A signage plan will be required with the project submittal. The City Public Works Department will have final approval over materials and types of signs.

All sign types and installations shall meet MUTCD standards and City standard details.

# 5C.210 Traffic Control - Construction

The contractor shall be responsible for all traffic control in accordance with the *WSDOT/AWA Standard Plans for Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction*, "K" plan sheets, and the *Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD)*. Prior to the disruption of any traffic, a traffic control plan shall be prepared and submitted to the City for approval. At no time shall a roadway be blocked without the approval of the City Engineer. No work shall commence until the City has approved the plan and the traffic control is in place. A street closure permit is required if a roadway is to be closed or restricted.

There shall be no restrictions or interruptions to traffic on Saturdays, Sundays or holidays. In addition, there shall be no restrictions or interruptions to traffic after 12:00 noon on the day prior to a holiday or holiday weekend.

There shall be no restrictions or interruptions to traffic on arterial roadways during the peak traffic hours of 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. and from 3:30 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, except when deemed necessary by the City. If the City determines the peak hours differ from those specified, the contractor will be required to adjust his working hours accordingly.

Work shall comply with all applicable state and local noise regulations. Construction hours in or adjacent to a residential zone shall be in accordance with hours specified in the Chelan Municipal Code.

The City may require roadway work to commence at night when it is in the best interest of the public.

Two-way traffic shall be maintained at all times unless specifically approved in the traffic control plan. Flaggers shall be shown on the traffic control plan except for emergency situations. The developer is responsible for traffic control signing per Chapter 5E.090.

All lane restrictions shall be held to a minimum time and length. Lane closures shall comply with the traffic control plans, these specifications, the MUTCD, and the WSDOT *Standard Plans*. If the City determines that lane restrictions are causing

congestion, the contractor will be required to open any lanes, as determined by the City, until the congestion is eliminated.

There shall be no delay to medical, fire, police, or other emergency vehicles with flashing lights or sirens.

The contractor shall maintain pedestrian access through or around the project site at all times without having pedestrians enter the travel lane.

Flaggers shall possess a current flagging card issued by the State of Washington prior to performing any traffic control work on a project. Workers engaged in flagging shall wear reflective clothing and hard hats in accordance with the *WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction.* Flagger's paddles shall meet MUTCD standards.

## 5D NON-MOTORIZED TRANSPORTATION

## 5D.010 General

All properties, with the exception of an individual single family residence, abutting public streets shall, in conjunction with new construction on such properties where the estimated cost of the alterations or improvements constitute 25% or more of the value of the existing structures on the property according to current Assessor records, have sidewalks constructed along abutting streets. Curbs and gutters must also be constructed along the abutting street when the City Engineer determines that the conditions of drainage require curbs and gutters.

In cases where a sidewalk exists adjacent to the curb, the sidewalk must be moved back to accommodate a new planter strip.

Upon approval of the City Engineer, sidewalk construction may be deferred as described in 5C.040.E, although the necessary right-of-way shall be granted to facilitate future construction of the sidewalk.

Building footings shall not be located under a public sidewalk. Footings may be located under a sidewalk if the sidewalk is in an easement and not in the public rightof-way. If building footings are to be located under a sidewalk located within an easement, all the private utilities located within that easement and under that sidewalk shall be located within conduit.

## 5D.020 Design Standards

The City has set forth minimum standards as shown in the Standard Details which must be met in the design and construction of sidewalks, curbs and gutters. Because they are minimum standards, they may be modified by the City Engineer should the City Engineer feel circumstances require increased or decreased widths. Plans for the construction of sidewalks, curbs and gutters are to be submitted as part of the street plans when applicable.
#### 5D.030 Curb and Gutter

Commercial concrete curb and gutter per the detail in the Standard Details Section shall be used for all street edges unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer. Form and subgrade inspection by the City are required before curb and gutter are poured.

The face or top of all new curbs shall be embossed to denote the location of water and sewer services crossings. Water services shall be marked ¼-inch into concrete with a "W" and side sewers shall be marked with an "S".

#### 5D.040 Sidewalks

All public streets shall have sidewalks on both sides of the street as shown on the roadway details in the Standard Details Section. Sidewalks, when necessary because of topographic constraints, may be required on only one side, upon approval of the City Engineer. Sidewalk widths may vary based on plans and studies adopted by the City but, except as provided in this section, shall not be less than those shown in the Standard Detail Section. The design and construction of all sidewalks, curbs and gutters shall be in accordance with the details shown in the Standard Detail Section.

- A. If sidewalk widening is required, it shall be accomplished with a monolithic width pour. This may require removal of an existing sidewalk.
- B. The City Engineer may reduce the sidewalk width for sidewalks over six feet wide if the City Engineer does not anticipate probable pedestrian traffic through the horizon year indicated by the traffic analysis. If the width of the sidewalk is reduced, the right-of-way width shall not be reduced. Instead, the planter width shall be increased accordingly.
- C. Monolithic pour of curb, gutter and sidewalk may be allowed with approval of the City Engineer.
- D. Sidewalks that dead-end at the project property line shall be designed as shown on the details in the Standard Details Section.

#### 5D.050 Pathways and Trails

Trails and pathways should be developed in accordance with the City's Comprehensive Plan, including the Open Space and Recreation Sub-Element, the Transportation Element, the Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Plan, the Lake Chelan Valley Trails Master Plan, the Lakeside Trail Study, the Non-Motorized Transportation Implementation Plan, and any other plans or studies adopted as components of the Comprehensive Plan.

# **5D.060 Bicycle Facilities**

Bicycle facilities should be developed in accordance with the City's Comprehensive Plan, including the Open Space and Recreation Sub-Element, the Transportation Element, the Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Plan, the Lake Chelan Valley Trails Master Plan, the Lakeside Trail Study, the Non-Motorized Transportation Implementation Plan, and any other plans or studies adopted as components of the Comprehensive Plan.

When the need for a bikeway is identified in approved Planning documents, bikeway construction is required in conjunction with any new development or redevelopment where the estimated cost of improvements on such properties exceeds 25% of the value of the existing structures, or subdivision or short subdivision approval.

The design of bikeways shall depend upon their type and usage. Bike lanes and shared roadways shall be surfaced the same as the adjacent motor vehicle roadway.

In general, all bikeway facilities shall be signed per the MUTCD or as specified herein. The bike lane stripes and pavement markings shall be as shown on the details in the Standard Details Section.

# 5D.070 Staking

All surveying and staking shall be as set forth in Chapter 5C.080.

# 5D.080 Testing

Testing shall be required per Chapter 5C.090. In addition, the City shall be notified before each phase of sidewalk, curb and gutter construction commences.

# 5E ROADSIDE FEATURES

#### 5E.010 General

Miscellaneous features included in this section shall be developed and constructed to encourage the uniform development and use of roadside features wherever possible. The design and placement of roadside features shall adhere to the specific requirements as listed for each feature, and, where applicable, to the appropriate standards as set forth in Chapters 5B.010 and 5B.030.

# **5E.020** Survey Monuments

All existing survey control monuments which will be disturbed or destroyed during construction shall be referenced prior to construction and replaced after construction by or at the direction of a Professional Land Surveyor licensed by the State of Washington. All applicable RCWs and WACs will be complied with, including but not limited to, WAC 332-120, WAC 332-130, RCW 58.09, and RCW 58.24.040. The monuments shall be replaced with the proper type at the expense of the responsible builder or developer.

A. An iron cased monument and lid shall be installed per City of Chelan standard details

- B. Monument locations. Appropriate intervisible monuments shall be placed:
  - 1. At all intersections. At intersections with arterials or collectors, the centerline of the minor street may be monumented at the edge of the arterial or collector right-of-way.
  - 2. At the PC, PT, PCC, and PRC of horizontal curves, or at the PI if it lies within the travel roadway. The City Engineer may waive monument requirement at a particular location if sufficient intervisible monumentation is provided. The City Engineer may also require additional monumentation such as POT or POC to ensure intervisibility of monumentation.

#### 5E.030 Mailboxes

Mailboxes shall generally be located per City of Chelen Development Standard Details. New developments shall utilized cluster mailboxes and must receive US Postal Service and Public Works approval as to their specific type and location.

During construction, existing mailboxes shall be accessible for the delivery of mail, or, if necessary, moved to a temporary location. Temporary relocation shall be coordinated with the U.S. Postal Service. The mailboxes shall be reinstalled at the original location or, if construction has made it impossible, to a location as approved by the U.S. Postal Service.

On existing improved frontages with on-street parking, new mailboxes for infill lot development and/or existing homes shall be clustered to maximize on-street parking availability. Specific location and layout shall be approved by the U.S. Postal Service and City Engineer.

#### 5E.040 Bus Pads, Shelters and Amenities

Different population densities dictate the number and placement of bus stops. The location of LINK Transit and/or Lake Chelan School District (LCSD) bus pads, shelters, or amenities will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis for each project. LINK Transit and LCSD shall make every effort to coordinate the location of bus stops and shall work with the City Public Works Department to determine the best location for the required amenity.

The first consideration in locating any bus stop or amenity shall be safety. The following considerations shall also be considered in determining a bus stop or amenity: operational efficiency, integration with non-motorized facilities, and minimizing impacts to adjacent property. Bus pullouts may be required if road geometry requires, such as determined by the City, LINK Transit and LCSD.

Shelters, pavement markings and signs shall be provided and installed by the developer

LINK Transit shelters shall be maintained by LINK Transit. School bus stop shelters shall be maintained by the subdivision's Homeowner's Association or apartment owner, whichever is appropriate.

Developments enclosed by walls or fences shall provide openings or gates for walkways to provide direct access between developments and bus facilities.

The City and Lake Chelan Public Schools will use the following criteria in placement and design of school bus stops:

- 1. A school bus stop shall be required for each new residential subdivision or apartment complex where school children are to be boarding or deboarding unless it is determined by Lake Chelan School District (LCSD) that a new bus stop is not required because adjacent facilities already exist for the site.
- School bus facilities shall meet the same design standards as specified for Link Transit except that the contractor shall install the required school bus amenities. School bus facilities shall also meet safety design guidelines of the LCSD.
- 3. Placement shall be determined by LCSD and the City.

#### 5E.050 Retaining Walls in Right-of-Way

Poured-in-place concrete, mechanically stabilized earth (MSE) walls, gabion walls, rock, concrete building block, or other approved material may be used for erosion protection of cut or fill embankments, for structurally retaining embankments, or as desired for aesthetic purposes. Retaining walls may be subject to design review.

The height of a retaining wall is that distance as measured from the top of the footing, regardless of whether the footing is buried or exposed, to the top of the wall. Structural walls on private property require the issuance of a Building Permit prior to construction, and fall under the jurisdiction of the Building Official, per CMC 17.04.077.

Retaining walls over 4 feet in height located on a public right-of-way shall meet or exceed WSDOT design standards and be designed by a Washington State Licensed Professional Engineer, and be approved by the City Engineer.

#### **5E.060 Street Trees**

Blank.

#### **5E.070** Planter Strips/Islands

Blank.

#### 5E.080 Parking Lots

Access and drainage issues are governed by the Public Works Department. Contact the City of Chelan Planning Department to determine if the parking lot requires a site

plan review process. The configuration of the stalls shall be as outlined in the Standard Details Section of these Standards.

The storm drainage system must be designed by a licensed professional engineer. Plans and specifications as required by Storm Water development standards, shall be required to be submitted for review and approval by the City with respect to storm drainage discharge and on-site retention or detention, matching street and/or sidewalk grades, access locations, parking layout and to check for future street improvement conformity and zoning regulations.

#### 5E.090 Traffic Signs

Traffic control and street name signs shall be provided and installed by the developer in accordance with the current edition of the MUTCD Manual, and as directed by the City Engineer.

#### 5E.100 Guard Rails

Guard rails may be required by the City Engineer where deemed appropriate in the interest of public safety, health and welfare. All guard rails shall conform to the criteria in the WSDOT Design Manual as may be amended or revised.

#### 5E.110 Hand Rails

A hand rail or fence is required to be constructed along the back of the sidewalk if required by the current Building Code adopted by the City of Chelan.



CITY STANDARDS

Adopted July, 1998

CITY OF CHELAN

Adopted Chelan County Feb 2009 Exhibit A

SECTION FIVE - STREET STANDARDS

# CITY OF CHELAN

# SECTION SIX TABLE OF CONTENTS

	. 6-1
LOCAL PRIVATE ACCESS STREET DESIGN	. 6-2
	. 6-3
MINOR COLLECTOR STREET DESIGN	. 6-4
	. 6-5
MALOR COLLECTOR STREET DESIGN	. 6-6
MAJOR COLLECTOR ONCE T DECION	. 6-7
ARTERIAL STREET DEGION	. 6-8
BIRE LANES	. 6-9
INTERSECTION FLANS AND CORDITANT LOCATION FLANS	6-10
	6-11
	6-12
	6-13
	6-14
WHEELCHAIR RAMP DETAIL WITH LANDING	6-16
	6-17
ACCESSIBLE PARKING WITH CONTINUOUS CONDITION	6-18
SIDEWALK	6-19
SIDEWALK SPACING	6-20
ACCESS APPROACH CONTROL (DRIVEWAYS & PRIVATE ROADO)	6-21
MAILBOX MOUNTING CURB TYPE INSTALLATION	6-22
NEIGHBORHOOD DELIVERY AND COLLECTION BOX UNIT	6-23
SIGN INSTALLATION	6-24
SILT FENCING	6-25
DRIVEWAY WITH DEPRESSED SIDEWALK	6-26
TYPICAL DRIVEWAY	0-20

(

#### LOCAL/PRIVATE ACCESS STREET DESIGN



ID-073

EXISTING STANDARD

LOCAL, PRIVATE

6-2



**CITY STANDARDS** 

6-3

EXISTING STANDARD



# **PROPOSED STANDARD**

#### MINOR COLLECTOR STREET DESIGN

1

Ć



# MINOR COLLECTOR IN MOUNTAINOUS TERRAIN



(Revised 01/07)

Adopted July, 1998

6-5

**EXISTING STANDARD** 





TRAFFIC LANES REDUCED TC 10' WDTH.
2. ELIMINATE PLANTER STRIPS AND UTILITY EASMENTS.
3. ADD 2' RIGHT-OF-WAY BEYOND BACK OF SIDEWALKS.

MOUNTAINOUS TERRAIN, >15%

;; ;; ;;

īc

jo

j

٦ 9

ĩc

٦.

ې

# MAJOR COLLECTOR STREET DESIGN

( --

MAJOR COLLECTOR

(

ĺ



**EXISTING STANDARD** 

ID-072

CITY STANDARDS

(Revised 01/07)

6-6

MAJOR COLLECTOR

,



PROPOSED STANDARD

•

#### ARTERIAL STREET DESIGN



C~~ / CAND/ C~/ EXISTING STAND/

ARTERIAI

(Revised 01/07)

6-7



# PROPOSED STANDARD

#### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **BIKE LANES**



\* THE OPTIONAL SOLID WHITE STRIPE MAY BE ADVSABLE WHERE STALLS ARE UNNECESSARY (BECAUSE PARKING IS LIGHT) BUT THERE IS CONCERN THAT MOTORISTS MAY MISCONSTURE THE BIKE LANE TO BE A TRAFFIC LANE.







ID-12D

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### INTERSECTION PLANS AND CURB RAMP LOCATIONS

#### Notes:

- 1. Catch basin and inlets shall be outside the curb ramp (24" min. Clearance from ramp).
- 2. Care shall be taken to keep the ramp from conflicting with hydrants, poles, inlets, and other utilities.
- When ramps are constructed on one side of street, ramps shall be constructed at corresponding locations on opposite side of street.
  Minimum 20' R. local and minor collector, 35' R.
  - Minimum 20' R. local and minor collector, 35' R. major collector and arterial.



ID-038

#### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### CUL-DE-SAC PLAN



ID-039

NOTE: A "Hammerhead" or "L' turnaround may be used, with City Engineer approval, as an alternate when a cul-de-sac is not feasible, or as a means of intermediate turnaround for permanent streets longer than 150'.

A street that is planned to dead-end against a subdivision boundary for future extension, shall have temporary easement for right-of-way and be paved without curb and gutter for ease of removal of extra pavement and easement when street is extended.

At least one sign stating "No parking - Fire Lane" shall be installed at the beginning of Cul-de-sac by developer.

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### OTHER TYPE TURNAROUND PLANS







#### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **CURB & GUTTER SECTIONS**



CITY STANDARDS

Adopted July, 1998

1.

#### CITY OF CHELAN

#### **ROLLED CURB SECTION** (Sidewalk Adjacent or Separated)

NOTE:

Rolled curb is only permitted on local and minor collector streets by developer request and only if curbside sidewalks are built at the same time. It is not allowed by developer request in mountainous terain where property access is prohibited or not intended to occur.

- 2. 4000 psi concrete required for sidewalks abutting rolled curbs.
- 3. 6 x 6 W1.4 x W1.4 welded wire fabric as per ASHTO M55 reinforcement required in rolled curb sidewalk sections. 8" overlap on splices required.



# **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### WHEELCHAIR RAMP DETAIL WITH LANDING



- 1. Depressed curb shall have no more than a 1/2" radius lip at gutter in wheelchair ramp sections.
- 2. Texturing with metal grid placed in wet concrete and then removed to leave ridged surface pattern. Texturing shall cover upper sloped area in ramp and shall not exceed 1/2" depth. Contractor to provide sample for approval by engineer prior to performing work. ADA truncated domes as per WSDOT standards. Dome material as approved by Public Works.
- 3. Minimum 5' landing, or use detail #6-15 without landing.
- 4. See also WSDOT Standard Plan F-3a.

#### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### WHEELCHAIR RAMP DETAIL WITHOUT LANDING

- 1. Depressed curb shall have no more than a ½" radius lip at gutter in wheelchair ramp sections.
- 2. Texturing with metal grid placed in wet concrete and then removed to leave ridged surface pattern. Texturing shall cover all sloped area in ramp and shall not exceed 1/2" depth. Contractor to provide sample for approval by engineer prior to performing work. ADA truncated domes as per WSDOT Standards. Dome material as approved by Public Works.
- 3. See also WSDOT Standard Plan F-3b.



# WHEELCHAIR RAMP WITHOUT LANDING

ID-041

#### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### HANDICAP RAMP TYPE I



ĺ

ĺ

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### ACCESSIBLE PARKING WITH CONTINUOUS CURB RAMP



ACCESSIBLE PARKING SHOWN WITH CONTINUOUS CURB RAMP

ID-122

í

#### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### SIDEWALK



- expansion joints, and score marks.
- 2. Concrete driveways require a minimum depth of 6".

#### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### SIDEWALK SPACING



WSDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS CURBS, GUTTERS, AND SPILLWAYS

#### ID-058

#### **GENERAL NOTES:**

- 1. Expansion joint material to be 3/8" thick premolded joint filler full thickness of concrete.
- 2. Form and subgrade inspection required before pouring concrete.
- 3. Score marks shall be  $\pm 1/8$ " wide by  $\pm 1$ " deep for sidewalks 10' in width, a longitudinal score mark shall be made along center of walk.
- 4. Expansion joints shall be installed in curb and gutter and in sidewalk at PC and PT at all curb returns. Expansion joints shall be placed in sidewalk at same locations as those in curb and gutter when sidewalk is adjacent to curb and gutter, unless otherwise directed by Public Works.
- 5. Brush finish.
- 6. Extruded cement concrete curb allowed with approval of City Engineer.

#### CITY OF CHELAN

#### ACCESS APPROACH CONTROL (DRIVEWAYS & PRIVATE ROADS)

A residential driveway is an access which serves one, two, or three single family residences. Recorded easements are necessary for such joint use access. All other accesses are commercial access.

Width shall be determined as the net width of opening, exclusive of side slopes.

The maximum width of residential driveway curb cuts shall be 25', minimum 10'. If a parcel is entitled to two accesses, these may be combined into one single access of 35' maximum width. (Does not apply to rolled curb section.)

The maximum width of commercial access shall be 35', minimum 15'.

Not more than one access shall be permitted for frontage 75' or less. Two accesses shall be permitted for frontage greater than 75'. Permission to have three or more accesses on a frontage greater than 150' must be approved by the engineer.

As a condition of issuance of any Right of Way Permit, all abandoned access improvements on the same frontage shall be removed and the curbing and sidewalks properly restored. Location and extent of all commercial access is subject to approval of the engineer.

No concrete shall be poured until forms are inspected by engineer.

Joint use accesses are encouraged in commercial areas.

Upon remodel of existing commercial accesses, standards may be modified to allow minimum turning radius required for related commerce as approved by the City engineer.

The centerline of the approach extended, shall intersect the centerline of the City street at an angle not less than 75°.

Wherever topographic conditions permit, there shall be a level section on the approach extending back from the road shoulder a distance of fifteen feet (15').

Road approaches must be ballasted and leveled with crushed stone surfacing (standard top course.) Approaches shall be paved and must slope away from the road shoulder at a minimum rate of three inches (3") per ten feet (10'). Maximum driveway slope shall not exceed 18%.

No access approach shall be constructed until a permit from the City has been issued.



CITY STANDARDS

**CITY OF CHELAN** 

# **SECTION SIX - STREET DESIGN**

#### MAILBOX MOUNTING CURB TYPE INSTALLATION



#### Mailbox Locations Shall Be:

- For three or more mailboxes on urban residential access streets where the speed limit is 25 mph. Mailbox height varies according to the type of delivery vehicle. These heights shall be determined by the 1. 2. Mailboxes must be postmaster approved with a uniform box style and method of address identification. Location of mailboxes subject to approval of postmaster and City engineer. Optional newspaper box structures are subject to approval of postmaster and City engineer.

- Roof is optional.
- 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. The minimum spacing between the centers of support posts shall be three-fourths the height of the posts above
- 8.
- 9.
- The minimum spacing between the centers of support posts shall be three-routins the neight of the posts above the groundline. Mailbox support designs not described in this regulation will be acceptable if approved by the chief engineer of the United States Post Office. It will be the responsibility of the postal patron to inform the USPO of any new or existing mailbox installation where shoulder construction is inadequate to permit all-weather vehicular access to the mailbox. Any mailbox that is found to violate the intent of this regulation shall be removed by the postal patron upon notification by the USPO. At the discretion of the USPO, based on an assessment of hazard to the public, the patron will be granted not less than 24 hours nor more than 30 days to remove an unacceptable mailbox. 10. patron will be granted not less than 24 hours nor more than 30 days to remove an unacceptable mailbox. After the specified removal period has expired, the unacceptable mailbox will be removed by the USPO at the postal patron's expense.

#### **NEIGHBORHOOD DELIVERY AND COLLECTION BOX UNIT**

**CITY STANDARDS** 

#### **CITY OF CHELAN**



(

ĺ

#### **CITY OF CHELAN**





#### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### SILT FENCING







ID-031

**CITY STANDARDS** 

#### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **SECTION SIX - STREET DESIGN**

#### **DRIVEWAY WITH DEPRESSED SIDEWALK**



NOTES:

1 CEMENT CONCRETE APPROACHES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF AIR-ENTRAINED CONCRETE CLASS B

- 2 CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL BE PLACED AT 15' MAXIMUM SPACING.
- 3 ALL JOINTS SHALL BE CLEANED AND EDGED.

ID-043

**CITY STANDARDS** 

#### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### TYPICAL DRIVEWAY WITH CURB/WALK, WITH AND WITHOUT GREEN STRIP



ID-116
#### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### SECTION SEVEN TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Description</u>	Page
INTRODUCTION:	7-2
PURPOSE:	7-2
WHEN A DRAINAGE PLAN OR DRAINAGE REVIEW IS REQUIRED:	7-2
WHEN PLANS ARE EXEMPT:	7-2
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS:	7-3
BASIC REQUIREMENTS:	7-4
DRAFTING STANDARDS AND CONTENTS:	7-4
DESIGN CRITERIA:	7-5
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE PLAN:	7-8
FEES:	7-8
BONDS AND LIABILITY INSURANCE:	7-8
STANDARD DRAINAGE SYSTEM MAINTENANCE:	7-8
ACCESS DRAINAGE	7-8
MINIMUM CULVERT SIZES	7-10
FLOW RESTRICTOR (Catch Basin Type 2)	7-11
MULTI-ORIFICE FLOW RESTRICTOR (Catch Basin type 2)	7-12
PRECAST CONCRETE DRYWELL	7-13
MANHOLE TYPE 1	7-14
CATCH BASIN TYPE 1	7-15
CATCH BASIN TYPE II (Oil Separator)	7-16
CATCH BASIN TYPE III (Oil Separator)	7-17

#### **INTRODUCTION:**

The City of Chelan has found that future storm water drainage problems may be reduced or avoided if future developers, both private and public, provide for storm and surface water drainage of their respective properties. Storm Drainage Standards and Guidelines are set forth to protect life and property from loss and damage by flooding and to protect streams, creeks, and lakes from pollution and excessive flows.

Any material, design procedure, standard or testing not specifically addressed within this document shall be in conformance with the City's current master drainage plan as now exists or as may hereafter be amended as may be directed by the City engineer. Analysis and improvements shall conform to the guidelines contained in the *Stormwater Management Manual for Eastern Washington* by the Washington State Department of Ecology.

#### PURPOSE:

The following storm drainage standards and guidelines are intended to reduce and prevent adverse storm drainage impacts. They represent the minimum design standards for the construction of storm drainage facilities and stream channel improvements within Chelan. Compliance with these standards does not relieve the designer, owner, or developer of the responsibility to apply conservative and sound professional judgment to protect the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Special site conditions and environmental constraints and considerations may require a greater level of protection than would normally be required under these standards.

#### WHEN A DRAINAGE PLAN OR DRAINAGE REVIEW IS REQUIRED:

- A. Plans for permanent drainage and storm water detention facilities shall be provided on property improvements within Chelan in accordance with the Standards for the following types of improvements.
  - 1. All plats (including short plats) where required by the SEPA document.
  - 2. All developments, including remodeling, reconstruction, and new construction adding five thousand (5000) square feet or more of new impervious surfaces, including gravel surfaces.
  - 3. Developments entailing construction which would change the point of discharge of surface waters, discharge surface waters at a higher velocity and/or quantity than that of the pre-development discharge rate, or, tend to add to pollution of surface waters.
  - 4. Any proposed development adjacent to the 100 year flood plain of any stream or lake.

#### WHEN PLANS ARE EXEMPT:

The plan requirement established in the previous section shall not apply when Public

Works determines that the proposal meets all of conditions A, B and C.

- A. Will not seriously and adversely impact the water quality conditions of any affected receiving bodies of water.
- B. Will not substantially alter the drainage pattern or increase the peak discharge.
- C. Will not cause run-off exceeding the available capacity of the existing drainage system where such system was designed to serve the proposed development area.

A single family residence development with less than 5,000 square feet of impervious surfaces is exempt from plan requirements. However, all buildings with down spouts or other point sources shall provide a drainage plan.

#### GENERAL REQUIREMENTS:

All persons proposing land development and/or approvals as outlined above shall provide a drainage plan for surface water flows entering, flowing within and leaving the subject property. The plan is to conform to the following standards and requirements:

- A. When required, plans for storm water management shall be prepared by a registered Civil Engineer currently licensed by the State of Washington and qualified by experience and education in the field of hydraulics, hydrology, or a closely related field. Storm drainage plans or revisions to any approved plan shall be reviewed and approved by Public Works prior to any construction.
- B. On-site storm drainage improvements must be sufficient to mitigate impacts on runoff, erosion, sedimentation and pollution.
- C. All drainage system elements must be designed to allow for adequate maintenance and accessibility at all times.
- D. Developer shall meet all applicable laws for water quality prior to discharge to any wetland, stream, or lake.
- E. In no case shall storm sewers be allowed to connect to sanitary sewers.
- F. Storm sewer systems shall generally conform to sanitary sewer design standards. City engineer may specify ductile iron pipe in special circumstances.
- G. No drainage originating inside of a building or structure shall be connected to the storm drainage of surface water systems.

CITY STANDARDS

**CITY OF CHELAN** 

H. Drainage systems shall be designed to meet applicable State and Federal requirements for water quality prior to discharge to any wetland, stream, or lake. The developer shall be responsible for obtaining any Local, State, Or Federal construction or discharge approvals or permits.

# **BASIC REQUIREMENTS:**

- A. Discharge at Natural Location: All surface and storm water runoff from a proposed development that would construct new or modify existing drainage facilities should be discharged at the natural location. Diversions may be allowed if it corrects an existing problem.
- B. Tributary Area Analysis: Proposed developments should identify the upstream tributary drainage area and provide an analysis of the pre-existing drainage volume and quality and an analysis of the impact of the proposal on the drainage system. The post development peak rate runoff shall not exceed the pre-development peak rates for the site. The methods of peak rate runoff control may include detention, retention and/or infiltration. On site bio-filtration in combination with infiltration systems is the preferred method for management of on-site storm water and shall be considered before transporting storm water off-site.
- C. Existing System Assessment: For all proposed development requiring a drainage conveyance system, the conveyance system must be analyzed, designed and constructed to handle existing off-site tributary flows and on-site storm drainage flows caused by development of the project.
- D. Erosion & Sediment Control: Developments involving clearing and grading and which require new or modification of existing drainage facilities must include an erosion/sedimentation control plan meeting DOE requirements and providing suitable measures to prevent sediment-laden runoff from leaving the site during construction.
- E. Maintenance and Operation: The long-term maintenance & operation of the proposed drainage facilities must be addressed in the plan (who, when & how).
- F. Adequate easements shall be provided for operation and maintenance of all drainage facilities located on private property.

# DRAFTING STANDARDS AND CONTENTS:

Construction plans for drainage systems shall be prepared in conformance with the City of Chelan's adopted construction plan standards.

#### **DESIGN CRITERIA:**

- 1. Runoff Control
  - A. Developments shall be designed and constructed to provide control of the quality and quantity of storm water runoff both during and after construction. Erosion and sedimentation control plans shall be submitted and approved by the City of Chelan prior to the beginning of any construction. Please note that a permit from the DOE is required if 5 or more acres are disturbed. Peak discharge control and detention facilities shall be provided in accordance with the Development Standards.
  - B. Maximum allowable release rates from storm water detention systems shall be based upon the pre-development runoff from the development site as described in section below. The allowable release rate shall be determined as specified, and may be modified on a case-by-case basis due to constraints in the drainage system downstream of the point of discharge. Storm precipitation distribution and runoff modeling will conform to the Soil Conservation Service Technical Report 55 or other acceptable method. The "Rational method" used by licensed professional engineers may be used for runoff modeling on parcels under 2 acres, not subject to upstream runoff. T<sub>c</sub> minimum shall be 0.1 hours.

Allowable Release Rate:

- 1. For sites with tributary basins greater than 5 acres or sites less than 5 acres in area which are deemed by Public Works to have significant impacts due to runoff quantity, the discharge shall be limited to the capacity of the receiving conveyance system. Peak runoff rate shall be computed using the Soil Conservation Service TR-55 method, modified Santa Barbara Urban Hydrograph Method or other appropriate models.
- 2. Should the proponent desire to discharge at higher flowrates than provided above, then he shall provide for improvements of the downstream conveyance system.
- C. The on-site drainage system including conveyance, flow restriction, detention, pollution control, and emergency overflow elements must be properly designed and sized to handle runoff from the site and conveyance through the site. The design should be carefully analyzed for potential problems, flow impediments, construction or maintenance difficulties, and potential erosion or other property damage. Catch basins shall be required at every intersection and shall be spaced a maximum of :

Spacing	Grade
150'	0.5% to 1.5% and 12.0% and greater
200"	1.5% to 3.0% and 8.0% to 12.0%
300'	3.0% to 8.0%

D. Impoundment structures shall be designed to the 100 year (3.0"/24hrs.) event. Conveyance structures shall be designed to the 25 year (2.5"/24 hrs.) event.

#### 2. Water Quality Protection

All storm water discharge shall be treated prior to release using best management practices. The applicant should consider the use of vegetative or other natural filtration means. Effluent discharges from any oil removal treatment device to the storm sewer or surface water system shall be in compliance with State Department of Ecology regulations for discharge to storm drains or surface waters. Whenever paved parking is provided for more than 10 vehicles, or for any paved parking or access roadway draining to an open waterway or stream, a City approved oil/grease separation device shall be installed by the Owner. It shall be located at a point where it can be easily maintained and where it will intercept floating contaminants flowing off road rights of way, parking lots, and other sources of pollutants. Selection and sizing of oil separation device type shall be subject to approval of Public Works.

- A. The property owner assumes full responsibility and liability for proper maintenance and operation of the oil separator, unless the separator is a part of a publicly operated drainage system. This statement must appear on the recorded drawings for the development.
- B. Access to the separator shall be maintained.
- 3. Detention Facilities
  - A. Detention facilities will be required when the downstream capacity is inadequate to convey the runoff. All storm water runoff originating from and/or draining from any proposed development shall be controlled and/or conveyed in accordance with all City standards and policies and as described in these Standards.
  - B. Storm water detention systems should be designed to maximize reliability, ease of maintenance, and water quality of runoff and should minimize hazards to persons or property (both on-site and off-site), nuisance values, and risk of failure.
  - C. Sufficient detention storage capacity shall be provided to store the excess runoff from the developed site for all storm events up to a "100-year storm".
  - D. Sizing: In calculating the storage volume provided, "dead storage" in wet ponds shall be excluded, i.e. that volume of water which must be assumed to be present in the detention system at the commencement of the design

CITY OF CHELAN

storm. Any volume at a level below that of the outfall invert must be presumed to be dead storage, e.g. catchments.

- E. Controlled Overflow Requirements: All detention storage facilities should include a provision for control of overflows, and suitable data shall be provided to support the design. Under no circumstances should the overflow discharge overland or over private property unless drainage easements are acquired.
- F. Site, Soil and Infiltration Data Requirements for Calculating Effective Infiltration Rates to Reduce Storage Requirements.

General Data Requirements:

- a. The proposed site should have favorable topography to preclude high runoff rates. Engineering calculations shall be included with any submittal to show that there will be no adverse impacts due to the reduced storage. Such adverse impacts may include but not be limited to, increased frequency of overflows.
- b. A log of the soils and infiltration test data should be submitted to reveal site soil conditions and infiltration rates.
- c. An adequate number of test holes should be located over the proposed site to substantiate representative conditions for the final layout of the development, and as a minimum condition, test holes shall be located in each area and at the elevation proposed for infiltration.
- d. Groundwater depth, location, flow and general characteristics shall be considered.
- e. The designer shall demonstrate the adequacy of the depth to the impervious layer below the bottom of the proposed infiltration trench or basin.
- f. Soil Data Requirement:

A soil log may be required to describe soil type and depth along with a site map showing the location of each test hole. Classification may be in general terms such as loose sand, sandy silt, clay hardpan, rock, etc. or classification may be in specific terms as described by the U.S. Department of Agriculture (Soil Conservation Service). The soil log should include the depth to ground water table, if less than twelve (12) feet in depth. A falling head permeability test or similar method must be used to demonstrate the infiltration capacity of the least pervious soil layer.

#### CITY OF CHELAN

#### REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE PLAN:

The drainage plan and supporting calculations will be reviewed by Public Works Department's construction plan review procedures in coordination with all other City land development and/or permit review procedures. The City's review and approval of storm drainage control plan shall not relieve the applicant, owner and/or designer of liability for errors or omissions in the design of storm drainage facilities.

All storm drainage plans prepared shall be submitted for review and approval to the Public Works Department.

Any applicant or property owner proposing an action that may require a storm drainage plan may request a preliminary review of the proposal by the City Engineer and a determination of the need for a drainage plan.

#### FEES:

Storm drainage plan review and inspection fees are calculated as per Appendix B-2.

#### BONDS AND LIABILITY INSURANCE:

The Department of Public Works shall require persons constructing storm drainage facilities to comply with the Section on "Bonding and Liability Insurance."

#### STANDARD DRAINAGE SYSTEM MAINTENANCE:

Maintenance of storm drainage facilities on private property shall be the responsibility of the owner(s), unless otherwise provided for in these standards. This responsibility and the provision for maintenance shall be clearly stated on subdivision and short plat plans, property conveyance documents, and/or drainage improvement plans. In the event the owner(s) does not provide proper maintenance and the City engineer determines the storm drainage facility represents a public safety threat the City engineer will give 30-day notice to the owner(s) to correct the deficiencies. If the deficiencies are not corrected within 30-days the City may enter upon the property to perform the necessary maintenance at the owner(s) expense. This provision for access will be included as a provision of plat or plan approval.

#### ACCESS DRAINAGE

The right to lay a culvert within the street is reserved expressly to the City. A person desiring the installation of a culvert within a street under a driveway or along property frontage shall apply to the City, stating the length, location, and purpose of the culvert. The City engineer, or his authorized representative, shall determine the necessity of a culvert pipe under the driveway approach. In general, a pipe will be required where the approach crossed the roadway ditch, or where a roadside drainage problem exists., or where one will be created by the construction of the road approach. Where a pipe is specified, it shall meet the following requirements:

- a. Inside diameter 12"
- Material concrete, corrugated steel, or corrugated aluminum, culvert pipe specifications. (Reference WSDOT 1994 standard specifications.) Concrete drain pipe shall meet the requirements of ASTM C118. Zinc coated galvanized steel drain pipe shall meet the requirements of ASSHTO M 36, pipe thickness shall be 0.064 inches. Corrugated aluminum alloy drain pipe shall meet requirements of AASHTO M 196, without perforations. Though generally not allowed for driveway culvert applications, corrugated polyethylene pipe (CPEP) with smooth bore interior is allowed for tight-line storm piping. Piping shall be Hancor Blue Seal, or ADS N–12, with water tight seals, or approved equivalent.
- c. Installation the flow line of the pipe shall be at the same elevation and alignment as the flow line of the roadway ditch or drainage ditch. Concrete pipe joints may be ungrouted. The pipe shall extend a sufficient distance past the toe of the approach fill to prevent sloughing into the pipe ends.

# **SECTION SEVEN - STORM WATER MANAGEMENT**

#### MINIMUM CULVERT SIZES

The minimum diameter of culvert pipes under City streets shall be 18." Culvert pipes from grated inlets or catch basins under roadway may have a minimum diameter of 12." Culvert pipes under driveway approaches shall have a minimum diameter of 12."

Culvert pipe shall be CMP or concrete as approved by the City engineer. Culvert outlets shall be constructed to provide erosion control. (See Section 7-8, Driveway access drainage).



**CITY STANDARDS** 

Adopted July, 1998

# CITY OF CHELAN

#### FLOW RESTRICTOR (Catch Basin Type 2)



ID-012

CITY STANDARDS

#### **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### **MULTI-ORIFICE FLOW RESTRICTOR** (Catch Basin type 2)



**CITY OF CHELAN** 

# PRECAST CONCRETE DRYWELL



**CITY STANDARDS** 

# SECTION SEVEN - STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

#### MANHOLE TYPE 1

Note: Design shall provide a one-tenth drop from invert inlet to outlet.



10-074

**CITY STANDARDS** 

# SECTION SEVEN - STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

# CATCH BASIN TYPE 1

Notes:

- 1. As an acceptable alternate to rebar, wire mesh having a minimum area of 0.12 square inches per foot may be used. Wire mesh shall not be placed in knockouts.
- 2. The knockout diameter shall not be greater than 20". Knockouts shall have a wall thicknss of 2" minimum to 2-1/2" maximum.
- 3. The maximum depth from the finished grade to the pipe invert shall be 5'.
- 4. Frame and grate may be installed with flange down or cast into adjustment section.
- 5. The precast base section may have a rounded floor and the walls may be sloped at a rate of 1:24 or steeper.
- 6. Opening shall be measured at the top of the precast base unit.









ID-076

# SECTION SEVEN - STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

# CATCH BASIN TYPE II (Oil Separator)

H2 PRE-CAST BIGO OIL SEPARATOR BASE NO. CB1 RISER NOS. SU6 AND SU12 FRAME AND GRATE NOS. FGR AND FGS OR EQUAL. PIPE AND FITTINGS 6" THROUGH 12"DIA. PVC SCH. 40



í

# CATCH BASIN TYPE III (Oil Separator)

OIL SEPARATOR WITH BAFFLE AND WEIR SIZE AS PER ENGR ANALYSIS H2 PRECAST MFG OR APPROVED EQUAL



**CITY STANDARDS** 

ĺ

# SECTION EIGHT TABLE OF CONTENTS

Description	Page
GENERAL	
DRAFTING STANDARDS	

#### GENERAL

- 1. All final plans shall be prepared on standard double-matte mylar sheets. The standard sheet size is 24 inches x 36 inches x 3 mil thick. All sheets shall be original or archival quality, Dayrex Dx11 copy or equal.
- 2. The Professional Engineer's seal, signature, address and phone number shall be placed in the title block area, along the bottom of the page.
- 3. The drawing shall be in ink on approved mylar. No "sticky-back" or pasted pieces shall be allowed.
- 4. Use of Chelan County approved datum (NGVD 29) for survey reference is required.
- 5. All existing and proposed improvements shall be located and dimensioned to the Government Land Office monument system, State Plane Coordinates, or Chelan County survey monuments, or a monumentation system approved by Public Works. Proposed improvements should be referenced to the monument lines and street centerlines. Dimensioning must be done by stationing and offset from these control lines.
- 6. Scales: The Scale shall be a standard engineering ratio.
- 7. Draw the plan so the North Arrow points to the left or to the top of the sheet.
- 8. The minimum lettering size is 1/10<sup>th</sup> inch. This is to ensure the plan is legible after microfilming or reduction.
- 9. Use the standard Washington State Chapter of the American Public Works Association symbols.
- 10. Match lines with matched sheet number shall be provided where plan is drawn on two or more sheets. Where plan is shown on three or more sheets, include a total site plan key map at scale 1" = 100' or 1" = 200' to cross reference portions of the project with their corresponding plan sheet location.
- 11. All division or phase lines shall be indicated showing proposed limits of construction.
- 12. Existing and proposed topography contours shall cover the entire site and a minimum of 30' beyond the site boundary. Topography contours should be shown at 2 foot intervals (5 foot intervals for slopes greater than 15%, 10 foot intervals for slopes greater than 40%). Elevation labeling shall be shown at 10 foot intervals maximum for 2 foot contour intervals, maximum 25 feet for 5 foot contour intervals.
- 13. Show and clearly label property lines (with distances and bearings), right-of-way lines, sensitive areas and set backs and all existing and proposed easements with

their recording numbers. Show existing and proposed building footprints.

- 14. Label all streets by City of Chelan names.
- 15. Plans shall include a key for abbreviations and a legend for symbols where such are used.
- 16. All final plats and construction as-builts to be in electronic form, on CD media in a format readable by AutoCAD (.dwg or .dxf).
- 17. Preliminaries should be submitted on a standard size paper. We will not accept anything larger than 36 x 24.
- 18. When both plan and profile views are necessary, they will be on the same page with the plan view for a particular segment appearing just above the profile of that segment.

In addition to the drafting standards listed above, the following information should be included within the utility and transportation plans as appropriate:

**DRAFTING STANDARDS** (Plan, Profile and Cross Section Information Required):

- 1. Each submittal shall contain the following project information on the cover sheet or first sheet:
  - a. Title: Project name (add explanatory note if project name has changed).
  - b. Table of Contents (if more than 3 sheets).
  - c. Vicinity Map (Scale sufficient to cover project limits on one sheet or 1" = 200' whichever is greater).
  - d. General description of site, including Quarter Section, Township and Range.
  - e. Name and phone number of architect/engineering firm preparing plans.
- 2. Existing Improvements and Topography: Show all existing underground and surface improvements and topography in proximity to the project. The information must be shown for the full width of the right of way or the easement and for a sufficient distance on either side of the right of way or easement to show possible impacts on adjacent properties and/or the relationship to related facilities. Information on existing surface and underground City of Chelan facilities may be obtained from the Public Works offices. For information regarding the location of underground utilities, call 1-800-424-5555. Other utility information may be obtained from the respective utility owners (i.e. Chelan Public Utility District, U.S. West, Cascade Natural Gas, etc.).
- 3. Sewer, Water and Drainage Improvements: Provide profiles of all proposed sewer, water and drain lines. Show existing underground improvements within ten (10) feet of where they cross or connect to the new improvements. Show the storm water drainage discharge point to a public system or natural water course. Provide drainage system details whether or not

# SECTION EIGHT - DRAFTING STANDARDS

detention of storm water is required, including biofiltration swales.

- 4. Grades: All profiles and cross sections will show the proposed and the existing grade.
- 5. Infrastructure not within street right of way shall be within easements granted to the City or the appropriate utility.
- 6. Easements shall be shown on plan sheets.
- 7. Label all manholes, clean outs and catch basins in sequential number. Label rim and invert elevations and catch basin and manhole size and type.
- 8. Include flow direction arrows on all gravity lines.
- 9. Label pipe size, length, material and slope.
- 10. Include datum and benchmark information on each plan and/or profile sheet.
- 11. Show spot elevations of pavement in parking lots, and run off flow direction arrows.
- 12. Show roof leaders and footing drains connecting into conveyance system.
- 13. Show all stub-out locations for future connections.
- 14. Include section details for rockeries in grading/paving plans.
- 15. Show the following for all storm water facilities:
  - a. Show and label at least two cross-sections through detention pond. One cross-section shall show the control structure.
  - b. Show location and detail of emergency overflows and spillways.
  - c. Provide invert elevations of all pipes, inlets, tanks, vaults and spot elevations of the pond bottom. Call out pond volume and dimensions, and design surface elevation.
  - d. Provide plan and section views and details of all rock protection and energy dissipaters.
  - e. Section and plan view on restrictor/control structure must be shown and adequately detailed, including size and elevation of orifices, overflow weirs, etc.
  - f. Show length, width, and bottom width dimensions for all biofiltration and water quality swales and storm water conveyance swales. Include sectional view, showing side slopes and design depth of flow.
  - g. Include seeding material information.
- 16. The Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan (ESCP) should provide all necessary details to illustrate how the plan is to be implemented.

# SECTION NINE TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Description</u>	'age
TABLE OF CONTENTS	. 9-1
PARKING STANDARDS   Off-Street Parking -General Requirements.   Required Stalls Location   Variance to these Standards   Reduction in Required On-site Parking.   Changes in Occupancy.   Site Plan Required   Improvement of Parking Spaces in all Districts   Standards and Requirements.   Conditions for Joint Use.   Minimum Required Parking Spaces - Fractions   Location of Parking Spaces.   Loading Areas.   Drive Through Stacking Lanes.   Trash Receptacles - Area for Truck Maneuverability   Handrails   Barrier Free Parking   Compact Parking Spaces.   Angled or "Head-In" Parking on Public Right of Way   Parking Delineation   Wheel Stops	.9-2 .9-2 .9-2 .9-2 .9-2 .9-3 .9-3 .9-3 .9-3 .9-3 .9-4 .9-6 .9-7 .9-6 .9-7 .9-8 .9-8 .9-8 .9-8 .9-8 .9-8 .9-9 .9-9
PARKING DESIGN DETAIL	9-10
PARALLEL CURB PARKING SPACING	9-12
PARKING STALL DESIGN	9-13

1

# PARKING STANDARDS

#### **Off-Street Parking -General Requirements**

The provisions of this chapter shall not apply to the C-H High Density Commercial District zone unless otherwise stated herein. Every building hereafter constructed, reconstructed, expanded or occupied, or use of property hereafter established or modified shall be provided with off-street parking as provided in this chapter, and such parking areas shall be made permanently available and maintained for parking purposes. No building permit shall be issued until plans showing provisions for the required off-street parking have been submitted and approved as conforming to the standards of this chapter.

#### **Required Stalls Location**

All parking stalls required to be on-site shall be independently maneuverable, shall not be double stacked, and shall not back out onto a public right of way except as provided herein.

#### Variance to these Standards

An application for a variance to the number of parking spaces required shall follow the procedures outlined in Chapter 17.64 of the Chelan Municipal Code, as the same exists now or may hereafter be amended.

#### **Reduction in Required On-site Parking**

In return for improvement of on-street parking, in accordance with present City standards, credit shall be given for one parking space per each ten feet of street frontage when angle parking is used, and one space for each twenty feet of street frontage when parallel parking is used. Street frontage improvement means curb, gutter, sidewalk, and catch basins if needed. Credit given shall be limited to 50% of total on-site parking spaces required.

# Changes in Occupancy

Whenever the occupancy classification of a building is changed, the minimum standards for off street parking for the new occupancy classification shall be applicable; provided, that if the existing occupancy had established a legal nonconforming status with respect to off-street parking requirements, no additional off street parking shall be required for the new occupancy unless said new occupancy is in a classification requiring more parking than that which would have been required for the existing occupancy if it had been subject to the provisions of this chapter. If strict application of this section is not feasible due to existing site conditions such as building or parking size, shape or layout, a variance may be granted by the hearing examiner in accordance with Chapter 17.64 of the Chelan Municipal Code, as the same exists now or may hereafter be amended.

# Site Plan Required

A site plan for every new or enlarged off street parking lot or motor vehicle sales area shall be approved by the planning department prior to construction. The site plan shall be drawn utilizing a common engineering scale (e.g. 1"=20', 1"=30', 1"=40') and will show the proposed/existing development, locations, size, shape, and design of the parking spaces, curb cuts, lighting, landscaping, irrigation, parking lot circulation, drainage and other features of the proposed parking lot including all easements.

# Improvement of Parking Spaces in all Districts

Any parking facility for ten or more vehicles shall be improved in accordance with the following requirements:

- A. Off-street parking requirements shall not apply to the C-H High Density Commercial District zone except for the following uses which are auto dependent:
  - 1. Radio and Television sales and repair shops,
  - 2. Upholstery shops,
  - 3. Newspaper and lithography establishments where production onsite.

occurs

- 4. Radio and T.V. Studios,
- 5. Hotels,
- 6. Household Appliance and Repair Facilities,
- 7. Mortuaries,
- 8. Gasoline Service Station,
- 9. Brewpub,

10. Any conditional use where the minimum requirements state that off-street parking shall be required.

- B. Off-street parking facilities shall be hard-surfaced, shall be graded and drained so as to dispose of surface water to the satisfaction of the City engineer, and shall be maintained in good condition free of weeds, dust, trash and debris.
- C. The director of public works shall have authority to fix the location, width and manner of approach of vehicular ingress and/or egress from a building or parking area to a public street and to alter existing ingress and egress as may be required to control traffic in the interest of the public safety and general welfare. The City may require ingress and egress (curb cuts) to be located between parcels and constructed as joint ingress and egress when required to control traffic in the interest of the public safety and general welfare.
- D. Any lighting used to illuminate any off-street parking facility shall be so arranged as to reflect light away from any adjoining residential premises. Night lighting must be provided where stairs, curbs, ramps, or other abrupt

changes occur in walk direction. Lighting shall be arranged so as to reflect light away from any adjoining residential premises.

Any parking facility for less than 10 vehicles shall be graveled or have such other surface as approved by the Public Works Director.

#### Standards and Requirements

The minimum required parking spaces for the respective uses shall be as follows. Where square feet are specified, the area measured shall be the total gross floor area of the entire use, structure, or area.

- 1. Adult Entertainment Facilities: one space per one hundred square feet.
- 2. Bakery: one space per one hundred fifty square feet of floor area.
- 3. Banks, businesses or professional offices: one space for three hundred square feet of floor area.
- 4. Barber/Beauty Shops: 1.5 parking spaces per work station.
- 5. Bowling alleys: six spaces for each lane.
- 6. Businesses that provide services outside of their primary location shall provide one parking space per employee.
- 7. Church, mortuary, funeral home, auditorium, gymnasium, club, lodge hall: one space per four seats or eight feet of bench length in the chapel.
- 8. Drive-in eating or drinking establishment serving customers outside the building only: no less than fifteen parking spaces on site.
- 9. Eating and drinking establishments serving both within and without the building: one space for each fifty square feet of floor area, with not less than fifteen spaces.
- 10. Eating and drinking establishments with no service outside the building: one space for one hundred square feet of floor area.
- 11. Gasoline stations with a convenience store: one space per one hundred fifty square feet.
- 12. Hospitals: one space per three beds plus one space per each shift doctor and one space per three employees.
- 13. Malls including business and commercial centers that have multiple spaces available for a variety of tenant uses shall provide one parking space per

two hundred fifty square feet.

- 14. Manufacturing/Assembly, Industrial : one space per employee.
- 15. Marinas: 1.5 spaces per boat moorage stall; provided, that .5 spaces per boat moorage stall shall be sufficient where no boat launching facilities are provided, except for boat launching facilities provided and used solely for the private use of a marina operator and to which the public has no access.
- 16. Medical or dental office: one space per two hundred square feet of floor area.
- 17. Mixed occupancies: in the case of mixed uses, the total requirements for off-street parking facilities shall be the sum of the requirements for the various uses computed separately. Off-street parking facilities for one use shall not be considered as providing required facilities for any other use except as hereinafter specified for a joint use.
- 18. Motel or hotel: 1.2 spaces for each room or suite plus required spaces for accessory uses and one space per boat moorage stall.
- 19. Multi-family building, Condominiums, Timeshares, and Apartments: 1.5 per one and two bedroom and two spaced per three or more bedrooms. Developments within the Tourist Accomodation Zoning District shall provide 120% of the required parking to accommodate boats and trailers.
- 20. Newspaper publication, TV and Radio Studios: one space per five hundred square feet.
- 21. Open air market used car lot: one space per fifteen hundred square feet of land.
- 22. Places of Public Assembly:
  - 1. Library, museum, art gallery, private athletic club, government buildings: one space per four hundred square feet of floor area.
  - 2. Preschool, nursery, day nursery, kindergarten: two spaces per teacher or adult supervisor.
  - 3. Elementary or junior high school: three spaces per classroom.
  - 4. High school or college: eight spaces per classroom.
  - 5. Parks, Playgrounds, Golf Courses, Ball Fields, Outdoor Recreation Amenities: one space per five thousand square feet of area including structures.
- 23. Public Swimming Pools including Private Community Pools: one space per fifty square feet of enclosed/fenced pool area.
  - 24. Retail store (exclusive of those listed below): one space per two hundred

square feet of floor area.

- 25. Retail store exclusively handling bulky merchandise such as furniture or appliances: one space per six hundred square feet of floor area.
- 26. Service or repair shop: one space per six hundred square feet of floor area. Each actual vehicle repair bay area space located inside or outside of a building may be counted as a parking space to attain compliance with this requirement.
- 27. Dwellings: one space for the first unit and 1.5 spaces for each additional dwelling unit with fractions to be rounded up.Single Family Residence: one space minimum.
- 28. Unspecified uses: in the case of a use not specifically mentioned, the requirements for off-street parking facilities shall be the same as the above-mentioned use which is most similar.
- 29. Veterinary hospitals and clinics: one space per four hundred square feet of floor area provided that a minimum of five spaces shall be required.

# Conditions for Joint Use

A. Joint use of parking facilities - Spaces required. For joint use of parking facilities, the minimum total number of required parking spaces may be reduced by up to ten percent and the minimum number of required parking spaces may be further reduced by the following amounts in the following circumstances:

- 1. Up to fifty percent of the parking spaces required for a theater, bowling alley, tavern, restaurant, or other enterprise which is primarily a nighttime or Sunday use may be supplied by the off-street parking spaces allocable to other types of uses which are not primarily nighttime or Sunday uses.
- 2. Up to fifty percent of the parking spaces required for a bank, business office, retail store, personal service shop, household equipment or furniture shop or other enterprise which is primarily a daytime and non-Sunday use may be supplied by the off-street parking space allocable to other types of uses which are primarily nighttime or Sunday uses.
- B. The building or use for which application is being made to utilize the off-street parking facilities provided by another building or use shall be located within 500 feet of such parking facilities and, in addition:
  - 1. The off-site parking facilities must be on the same side of the street as the business that is requesting the joint use parking facilities;
  - 2. The applicant shall show that there is no substantial conflict in the principal operating hours of the two buildings or uses for which joint use of off-street

parking facilities is proposed;

- 3. Parties concerned in the joint use of off street parking facilities shall submit a proper legal instrument defining the conditions of the joint use for review and approval of the Community Development Director and the City Attorney; and
- 4. In the event of a change in ownership or use, the joint use instrument may

**CITY OF CHELAN** 

Manufacturing/Assembly, Industrial : 1 space per employee.

Y. Z.

Х.

Adult Entertainment Facilities: 1 space per 100 square feet. Newspaper publication, TV and Radio Studios: 1 space per 500 square feet.

# Conditions for Joint Use

A. Joint use of parking facilities - Spaces required. For joint use of parking facilities, the minimum total number of required parking spaces may be reduced by up to ten percent and the minimum number of required parking spaces may be further reduced by the following amounts in the following circumstances:

- 1. Up to fifty percent of the parking spaces required for a theater, bowling alley, tavern, restaurant, or other enterprise which is primarily a nighttime or Sunday use may be supplied by the off-street parking spaces allocable to other types of uses which are not primarily nighttime or Sunday uses.
- 2. Up to fifty percent of the parking spaces required for a bank, business office, retail store, personal service shop, household equipment or furniture shop or other enterprise which is primarily a daytime and non-Sunday use may be supplied by the off-street parking space allocable to other types of uses which are primarily nighttime or Sunday uses.
- B. The building or use for which application is being made to utilize the off-street parking facilities provided by another building or use shall be located within 500 feet of such parking facilities and, in addition:
  - 1. The off-site parking facilities must be on the same side of the street as the business that is requesting the joint use parking facilities;
  - 2. The applicant shall show that there is no substantial conflict in the principal operating hours of the two buildings or uses for which joint use of off-street parking facilities is proposed;
  - 3. Parties concerned in the joint use of off street parking facilities shall submit a proper legal instrument defining the conditions of the joint use for review and approval of the Community Development Director and the City Attorney; and
  - 4. In the event of a change in ownership or use, the joint use instrument may be terminated upon mutual agreement by all parties if reviewed and approved by the Community Development Director. The existing and/or new uses shall comply with all parking and other requirements of this section for said uses.

# Minimum Required Parking Spaces - Fractions

In the event the minimum required parking spaces results in the requirement of any

CITY OF CHELAN

fraction of a parking space, an entire additional parking space shall be required.

# Location of Parking Spaces

Required off-street parking spaces shall be located as follows:

- A. Dwelling: on the same lot with the building to be served but not in any required front yard or side yard setback abutting upon a street.
- B. For any other use except one served by an approved joint use parking facility: the parking lot shall be not more than one hundred fifty feet from the building or use to be served and on the same lot.
- C. Parking Setbacks.
  - 1. This subsection shall not apply to the following structures:
    - a. Structures located in the R-1 Single Family Residential District zone; and
    - b. Residential structures containing three or fewer dwelling units and located in the R-M Multi-Family Residential District zone.
  - 2. Required parking may occur within a required front yard upon compliance with the following:
    - a. A minimum landscaped buffer of at least ten feet in width is located between the front property line and the parking area.
    - b. An agreement in a form acceptable to the City guaranteeing the property owner will maintain the landscaped buffer is executed by the property owner and filed with the City.
    - c. The landscaped buffer shall be designed so as not to impair site distance requirements and other traffic safety concerns of the City.
    - d. A detailed landscaping plan shall be submitted to the City engineer for review and approval prior to the issuance of a building permit. At the discretion of the City engineer, surety may be required to ensure construction of the landscaped buffer in accordance with approved plans.

# Loading Areas

On the same premises with every building, structure, or part thereof, erected and occupied for manufacturing, storage, warehouse, goods display, department store, wholesale store, market, hotel, hospital, or for any use that requires a delivery of merchandise, materials or supplies by truck there shall be provided truck loading/unloading berths. The space shall be situated so that no part of a truck or delivery van using the loading berth will project into any public right-of-way. Each loading berth shall measure not less than 10 feet wide by 30 feet long with a 14 foot height clearance, and shall be made permanently available for such purposes, and shall be of impermeable surface, and maintained. Required loading

**CITY STANDARDS** 

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

berths shall be provided in accordance with the following table:

<u> Total Gross Floor Area</u>	Number of Berths			
10,000-20,000 sq. ft.	· 1			
20,001-50,000 sq. ft.	2			
50,001-100,000 sq. ft.	3			

Greater than 100,001 sq. ft.1 berth for each additional 50,000 sq. ft. Exception or waiver to the requirements listed in this section: For businesses within the C-H High Density Commercial District zone, if a business is located immediately adjacent to an alley, the alley may serve as a loading/unloading berth.

#### Drive Through Stacking Lanes

Any facility or business that provides a drive through lane or drive up window shall provide outside of the public right-of-way a stacking lane that shall accommodate seven parking spaces for each side of each structure with drive-up window(s) in addition to the onsite parking requirements. A stacking lane shall be at least 9 feet wide and each stacking space shall be at least 12 feet in length. A stacking lane must be delineated clearly and shall not be located within any required driveway, internal circulation drive, parking aisle, or parking stall.

#### Trash Receptacles - Area for Truck Maneuverability

If the parking lot is the location for trash receptacles, trash receptacles shall not impede parking areas or travel lanes.

# Handrails

The Community Development Director may require handrails in parking areas where more than three risers exist for pedestrian traffic, and such handrails are warranted for safety reasons.

# Barrier Free Parking

Included in the number of required parking spaces outlined in this section, parking shall be provided and designed in accordance with the Washington State Barrier Free Design Regulations, as the same exist now or may hereafter be amended.

# **Compact Parking Spaces**

A. Compact parking spaces may comprise up to forty percent of the required minimum number of off-street parking spaces for commercial property uses and for multi-family property uses consisting of greater than four dwelling units.

- B. Every compact parking space shall be clearly identified as such by painting the word "COMPACT" in upper case block letters, using white paint, on the pavement within the space.
- C. Each individual compact parking space shall be at least eight feet by sixteen feet in size.

#### Angled or "Head-In" Parking on Public Right of Way

- A. All parking shall be 0°, 60° or 90° parking.
- B. Any angled (60°) or "head-in" (90°) parking in the public right of way shall only be allowed in commercially zoned areas, serving commercial uses, and shall only be allowed on streets classified as minor collector or less.
- C. Any angled or "head-in" parking on the public right of way shall be located so that the minimum distance from the center line of the street to the property line shall be 50 feet. The front of each parking space shall be a minimum of 40 feet from the center line of the street for angled or "head-in" parking.
- D. For those streets that do not have 100 feet of width, property owners may dedicate additional width to the City or create an unrestricted parking easement in favor of the City to allow the necessary width.

# Parking Delineation

Hard-surfaced parking areas shall use paint or other similar devices to delineate parking stalls and directional arrows.

#### Wheel Stops

Wheel stops shall be installed as per drawing 9-10 where designed parking will likely cause vehicles to overhang and encroach on adjoining private or public right-of-way, land, or alleys.

ID-054





60°





# UNE WAY IRAFFIC

A	В	С	D		F	Β'	С,
0°	30'	9'	12'	24'	9'		
90°	58'	20'	18'	9'	9'		
60°	59'	22'	15'	10.5	9'	55'	20'

# PARKING DESIGN DETAIL

0

(

(

**SECTION NINE - PARKING STANDARDS** 

**CITY OF CHELAN** 

# **CITY OF CHELAN**

NOTE: Capacity is approximated by the total lot area (ft<sup>2</sup>) divided by 320.



# **CITY OF CHELAN**

# PARALLEL CURB PARKING SPACING



Ĺ

# SECTION NINE - PARKING STANDARDS

# PARKING STALL DESIGN



ID-065
# **CITY OF CHELAN**

## SECTION TEN TABLE OF CONTENTS

escription	<u>Page</u>
ENERAL CONDITIONS	10-2
ONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS AND GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS	10-2
LOTS	10-5
Access:	10-5
Width and Depth:	10-5
Slope:	10-5
Corners At Street Intersections:	10-6
Line Angles:	10-6
Reverse Frontage:	10-6
LOCKS	10-6
	10-6
ASEMENT PREPARATION STANDARDS	10-7
TILITIES EASEMENTS	10-8
UTILITIES	10-8
Undergrounding:	10-8
Public:	10-8
TILITY SERVICES	10-8
OMMON UTILITY TRENCHES	10-8
TREET NAME AND TRAFFIC SIGNS	10-8
ROJECT REVIEW AND INSPECTION	10-9
OLID WASTE REQUIREMENTS	10-9
TANDARD DETAIL S9-01 - DUMPSTER PAD AND ENCLOSURE	. 10-10
YPICAL CITY UTILITY LOCATION FOR NEW STREET CONSTRUCTION	. 10-11
	. 10-12
ATCH BASIN FRAME AND GRATE	. 10-13
	. 10-14
	. 10-15
IPE SUPPORTS	. 10-16
YPICAL MONUMENT CASE (NEW)	. 10-17
	. 10-18

(

### **GENERAL CONDITIONS**

Construction shall be in accordance with the current City development standards and APWA/WSDOT Standard Specifications; except as specifically superseded by the approved plans or special condition of the permit. The following conditions or restrictions must be followed:

Should any damage be done to the roads during the time of construction and installation or in the maintenance and/or operations of said facilities, the road(s) shall be restored by the permittee(s), their successors or assigns, to as good a condition as it was before such damage occurred. Should the grade, width or location of the road(s) be changed or altered in any way so as to require the removal of said facilities, the permittee(s), their successors or assigns, shall forthwith move and relocate said facilities without any redress against the City.

The permittee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees, from and against any and all claims, losses or liability, including attorneys fees, arising from injury or death to persons or damage to property occasioned by the construction, installation, operation, location, maintenance, or any other cause related to the improvement for which this permit is granted. With respect to this permit and to claims against the City, its officers, agents and employees, the permittee expressly waives its immunity under Tittle 51 of the Revised Code of Washington, the Industrial Insurance, Act, for injuries to any employee the permittee may have, and agrees that the obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless provided for in this paragraph extends to any claim brought by or on behalf of any employee of the permittee. This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties as part of the permitting process and is given, as is the indemnification agreement contained within this paragraph, as consideration for issuance of a right-of-way use permit by the City. This paragraph shall not apply to any damage or injury resulting from the sole negligence of the City, its agents or employees. The extent any of the damages or injuries referenced by this paragraph were caused by or resulted from the concurrent negligence of the City, its agents or employees, this obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless is valid and enforceable only to the extent of the negligence of the permittee, its officers, agents or employees, if any.

The acceptance of the conditions upon which this permit is granted shall be evidenced by the beginning of the installation of said facilities as set forth herein.

### CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS AND GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

- 1. No open cut crossing of City roads or streets shall be made without the approval of the City engineer (notice of two working days required). Borings will generally be required.
- 2. Signing, flagging and traffic control shall be in accordance with the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices. One lane of traffic shall remain open at all times. The road shall be restored with asphalt surface to two-way traffic at the end of each working day. Should a total road closure appear necessary, application for a road

### **CITY OF CHELAN**

closure permit must be filed with the Public Works office at least two (2) working days prior to the anticipated closure. Application must be accompanied with dust control plan, detour plans, hours of closure, and signing/traffic control plans.

- 3. Asphalt shall be cut in a solid straight line. After excavating trench and installing utility, all backfill material must be free draining granular material, free of debris and clay. This material to be compacted by a mechanical compactor (approved by the City engineer) to 95% of maximum density (modified protor) in six inch lifts followed by placement of six (6) inches in 5/8" minus crushed stone top course. After placing a tack coat on the edges of the existing pavement, three (3) inches of class B shall be placed and compacted to match the existing surface. Pavement sections are subject to a two year workmanship warranty; to be replaced if excessive settling or mechanical breakdown develops.
- 4. When the excavation is located in a graveled shoulder, backfill shall be placed and compacted as specified in paragraph 4 above, and surfaced with a minimum of six (6) inches of compacted 5/8" minus crushed stone surfacing.
- 5. When multiple open cut utility crossings are proposed at intervals of 200 feet or less, between adjacent crossing, a full width chip coat of the roadway pavement section will be required for the entire length of roadway between crossing extending to ten (10) feet either side of crossings. Existing crossing will be considered when establishing overlay requirements in addition to work contemplated under current utility permit application.
- 6. Existing drainage ditches, culverts, etc. shall be kept clean at all times. Temporary diversion of any drainage system will not be permitted without the consent of the City engineer. Any drainage culvert tile, catch basins, manholes, etc., disturbed by excavation shall be replaced with new material or repaired as directed by the City engineer. Temporary erosion/sedimentation control measures shall be employed to protect adjacent property and storm drain facilities.
- 7. If in the opinion of the City engineer, weather conditions are so bad as to make the traveled roadways unsafe for the traveling public or detrimental to the restoration of the roads, excavation shall cease immediately and clean up shall be promptly accomplished.
- 8. Maximum amount of open trench on streets shall be 200 lineal feet unless authorized otherwise by the City engineer. At the end of each day, all ditches must be backfilled or covered with steel plates and barricaded with flashing warning lights to prevent people or animals from falling into the trench.
- 9. All pipe or other material strung along City right-of-way must be placed a safe distance from the traveled roadway in such a manner as to avoid rolling onto the roadway, or creating a traffic hazard.
- 10. Final cleanup including complete restoration of shoulders, cleaning of ditches,

## CITY OF CHELAN

culverts and catch basins, and removal of loose material from back slopes of ditches shall not exceed 500 lineal feet behind excavating operations. Street surfaces shall be kept cleaned at all times with the use of a power broom or other approved means.

- 11. No excess material or unsuitable material shall be wasted on City right-of-way without the express written consent of the City engineer.
- 12. The Developer shall use special care to protect existing survey monuments or control points and it is the obligation of the Developer to notify the City engineer of the possibility of them being disturbed by his work.

If any of the markers and/or reference points are disturbed or damaged, the Developer shall have them reset by a registered Land Surveyor. The surveyor shall record or file all required documents with the County or the State Department of Natural Resources as may be appropriate, at the Developer's cost.

Standard cast iron monument cases will be required for all GPS and brass cap monuments and will be furnished by the Developer at no cost to the City. The Developer shall bear the cost of installation, by his surveyor, of such cases in a manner satisfactory to the City engineer.

- 13. Yard improvements within the right-of-way shall be restored to as close to original condition as feasible. This includes but is not limited to features such as landscaping, rockeries, lamp post, mailboxes and fences. This permit does not authorize or regulate work on private property, private easements or vacated and "ancient" rights-of-way without public easements. Any private property damages or liability incurred are the sole responsibility of the Contractor.
- 14. Notify the City engineer immediately prior to starting work and upon completion, the applicant shall call the City engineer for an inspection of work at (509) 682-8030. All items noted during the inspection shall be corrected to meet with the City engineer's approval.
- 15. No equipment, except equipment with rubber tires, shall be permitted to operate on any road. Damage to any road will be repaired by the Developer, at his expense, to restore the road to the original condition.
- 16. Completion of construction of a facility within City road right-of-way by permit or franchise obligates the Developer, successors, and assigns to perpetually maintain said facility or utility for its full period of existence and to cause to be repaired any subsidence, settlement or other condition of damage or hazard to the City road resulting therefrom.

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### LAND DIVISION

### LOTS

**Access:** Every new lot shall be provided with satisfactory access to a street and shall be platted so as to provide acceptable driveway grades of less than 18%. A maximum of 18% grade shall be allowed for a continuous length of up to 100 feet.

**Width and Depth:** All lots shall have a minimum width and depth sufficient to meet the Chelan zoning ordinance width and depth requirements for the particular zone in which the property is located.

**Slope:** As slope increases, lot sizes shall increase to partially or completely avoid the problems of drainage, siltation, flood control, potential land slides and accessibility which frequently are attrtibutable to over development of slope areas. Slope shall be calculated based on the average topography of individual lots. The following slope chart shall be used as a guide to determine minimum lot size and frontage.



ID-055

CITY STANDARDS

## CITY OF CHELAN

Chart Example:

For a lot whose natural ground slope is 25%, the indicated area is 32,000 square feet and the indicated average width is 145 feet. Relief from slope requirements may be obtained only if adequate provisions are made for parking, health regulations, building siting, soil stabilization and utility easements.

A slope analysis shall be submitted showing an access plan to individual lots.

**Corners At Street Intersections:** At street intersections in residential areas, lot corners shall be rounded by an arc. Radii shall be per the Street Standards Section.

**Line Angles:** Side lot lines shall be straight lines running within twenty degrees of perpendicular to the road upon which the lots front. Side lot lines on curved roads should run at or near radially to the curve.

**Reverse Frontage:** No residential lots shall have street frontage along two opposite boundaries unless topographical features or the need to provide separation of the lots from arterials, railways, commercial activities or industrial activities justify the designing of reverse frontage lots.

### BLOCKS

In general, blocks shall be as long as is reasonable and consistent with the topography and the needs for convenient access, circulation, control and safety of street traffic and the type of land use proposed. For residential subdivision, the block length ordinarily shall not exceed one thousand three hundred twenty feet or be less than four hundred feet.

Except for reverse-frontage parcels, the width of blocks shall ordinarily be sufficient to allow for two tiers of lots of depths consistent with the type of land use proposed. This width should not be less than two hundred feet for the sum of two lot depths.

In residential subdivisions, a through pedestrian walk right-of-way not less than ten feet wide shall be provided at the midpoint of any block exceeding six hundred feet in length where such a walk is deemed essential to provide circulation or pedestrian access to schools, parks, shopping centers and other community facilities.

### SURVEY MONUMENTATION

Survey shall comply with RCW 58.20, City Municipal Code Title 16, and this Section. For each 500,000 square feet of new development state plane coordinates shall be calculated for at least one monument. Developments of four or more lots shall establish or tie to at least one such monument. The intent of this requirement is to facilitate entry of plat and development data into Public Works date base. The state plane coordinates are not intended to be a legally binding representation of property locations.

### EASEMENT PREPARATION STANDARDS

- 1. SUMMARY: This procedure establishes a uniform method for the preparation of all City easements.
- 2. SCOPE: This procedure applies to all easements to be granted to the City.
- 3. GENERAL: When City utilities are to be constructed on private property, an easement must be granted to the City. The City Public Works Department will generally process, record, and file all City easements. Easements prepared by applicant consultants must be reviewed and approved by the City before recording and filing by the applicant. The Standard City easement format is in Appendix B, Exhibit 4.
  - 1. EASEMENT PREPARATION. All easements not shown on a plat must be prepared by a licensed land surveyor or licensed engineer. The descriptions contained in the easement document shall be prepared by a Washington licensed land surveyor or licensed engineer who shall seal or affix their name to the legal description. Legal descriptions must contain the full legal description of the real property upon which the easement is located as recorded in the Chelan County Auditor's records. In addition, the Chelan County Assessor's parcel number must be provided.

All easements must be prepared on  $8\frac{1}{2}$ " x 11" paper. Every easement shall include an easement number in the lower right corner of each page. This number will be assigned by the City Public Works Department.

An easement drawing will be attached to each easement. The easement drawing shall include: (1) the name of the grantors, (2) the easement number provided by the City Public Works Department, and (3) the general purpose of the easement, (i.e., all City utility purposes, water, sewer, drainage, well protection, access, etc.) The drawing shall be to a suitable scale on size 81/2" x 11" paper. The drawing must show the entire parcel and shall contain enough information to clearly identify both the parcel and easement. The easement must be tied to a platted corner or a section corner. Easement areas shall be delineated by cross-hatching. Each drawing shall be sealed and signed by the submitting licensed land surveyor or licensed engineer.

2. RETRIEVAL. Original easements will be on file with the City clerk and copies will be on file in the City Public Works Department. To obtain copies of easements, please contact the City Public Works Department. Easements are filed numerically by section, township, and range so the legal description of the real property involved is necessary for a prompt retrieval of any easement.

#### UTILITIES EASEMENTS

Easements for all facilities such as high voltage electric transmission lines, drainage canals, pondage areas, etc., shall be of such width as is adequate for the purpose. Minimum linear easement width shall be 20 feet unless directed otherwise by the City engineer. Easement for utilities at greater depths than 7 feet may require greater width.

### UTILITIES

**Undergrounding:** Utility lines, including but not limited to those for electricity, communications and street lighting, serving and located within the subdivision, shall be placed underground.

**Public:** Where alleys are not provided, easements for public utilities shall be provided along rear lot lines and side lot lines where necessary including any necessary access easement. Where easements are necessary, they shall be a minimum of twenty feet in width. For safety concerns, where possible, the width of rear and side lot line easements shall be equally shared by abutting lots and shall be continuous and aligned from block to block within the subdivision and with adjoining subdivisions. Additional width will be required where multiple utilities or depth and separation so require.

### UTILITY SERVICES

- 1. All utility lines including electric, telephone, fire alarm and television cables shall be placed underground prior to paving.
- 2. Easements for maintenance of all utilities, both on and off site, shall be provided to the City, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer prior to final plat approval.

### COMMON UTILITY TRENCHES

Common Utility trenches shall generally not be allowed with water, sewer, and storm lines. Utility lines shall generally be located as per drawing 10-11. Common trenches may be allowed for phone, electric, cable TV, gas, and other non-City utilities if approved by each individual utility. Water and sewer lines shall be separated as required by the D.O.H.

Under extreme unusual conditions, common trenches may be necessary and allowed as approved by the City engineer. Crossings and connections with existing lines may also require individual evaluation for variation approval by the City engineer.

### STREET NAME AND TRAFFIC SIGNS

1. All street name and traffic directional signs shall be provided and installed by the developer. Sign materials, lettering and placement shall be in

CITY STANDARDS

CITY OF CHELAN

accordance with the current edition of the "Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices" published by the Federal Highway Administration.

- 2. All costs for signage shall be paid by the proponent and installation shall be complete prior to final plat approval.
- 3. The naming of all streets shall receive approval from the Department of Public Works to assure consistency and elimination of confusing or inconsistent address numbers. Address numbers shall be assigned to all new lots prior to recording any plat. The Building Official shall review addresses prior to recording to insure that the addresses are consistent with City policies.

### PROJECT REVIEW AND INSPECTION

Whenever the City Engineer and/or the Public Works Director determine that the magnitude and/or complexity of any public improvement being constructed by a private developer, as a condition of a land use permit or approval, requires full or part-time on-site inspection, the City Engineer and/or the Public Works Director shall have the authority to provide or contract with a duly qualified inspector to provide inspection services for the City in connection with such construction. All costs of such inspection services incurred by the City shall be paid by the developer. The fee must be deposited in advance with the City prior to issuance of a construction permit.

City personnel shall strive to assist developers with such information as is readily available or easily obtained. Costs for investigative research or project review requiring more than two man hours, or which will require an outside consultant (such as City attorney, or City consulting engineer) shall be borne by the requesting developer. Prior to performing such research or review, the City may require the developer to execute a reimbursement agreement.

### SOLID WASTE REQUIREMENTS

- 1. All multi-family and commercial development must provide recycling facilities.
- 2. Multifamily housing shall be served by commercial solid waste containers (dumpsters) at a ratio not less than 0.15 CY per ERU per living unit.
- 3. Commercial solid waste containers or Commercial Accounts with four or more 30-gallon cans must be placed on a fenced concrete slab easily accessible to the solid waste packer truck. The location shall provide side drive-by and side loading, no back-in locations will be allowed. See City of Chelan Standard Detail "Dumpster Pad and Enclosure" for typical construction details.

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

### STANDARD DETAIL S9-01 - DUMPSTER PAD AND ENCLOSURE



1D-056

#### Notes:

1. Solid waste truck requires:

a) no backing up b) A 45' clear radius to turn

- 2. Concrete slab full ramp at opening
- 3. Full opening gates
- 4. 6' high enclosure
- 5. One enclosure as per drawing for each building
- 6. Dumpster concrete pad must match existing pavement/lot grade
- 7. Enclosure doors to be free hanging, no rollers.

(Recycling facilities must also be provided.)

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

### TYPICAL CITY UTILITY LOCATION FOR NEW STREET CONSTRUCTION



#### Notes:

- 1. Developer or contractor is required to call Utility Locate at (800) 424-5555 a minimum of 48 hours prior to digging within the limits of City right-of-way for the location marking of all underground utilities.
- 2. Typical locations for other proposed public utilities shall be in greenway behind sidewalk, City engineer may approve exceptions. A minimum horizontal separation of 3 feet shall be maintained from City water mains and a minimum 5 foot horizontal separation shall be maintained from City sewer and storm sewer mains.
- Street light poles typically will be installed on alternating sides of the street and 3. spaced as indicated on detail page 11-9.
- Water meter boxes will be installed at the back of new or existing sidewalks. 4.
- Potable water lines typically shall be installed 15 feet from and parallel to the 5. centerline of the right-of-way on the north or east side.
- Sanitary sewer line typically shall be installed 6 feet from and parallel to the 6. centerline of the right-of-way on the south or west side.
- 7. Fire hydrants typically will be installed on alternating sides of the street on 300 foot spacing in industrial and commercial areas and on 600 foot spacing in residential areas.
- 8. If conflicts require alternate water or sewer main locations, approval shall be obtained from the City Engineer for the location. A minimum 3 foot separation from the face of curb is required.

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

#### UTILITY TRENCH REPAIR STANDARD



NOTES: 1. BEDDING FOR FLEXIBLE PIPE SHALL BE A MINIMUM THICKNESS OF 4" UNDER THE PIPE AND 6" OVER THE CROWN.

- 2. CRUSHED SURFACING TOP COURSE.
- 3. SELECT BACKFILL SHALL BE 5/8-0 CRUSHED ROCK. \*CONTROLLED DENSITY FILL (CDF) MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE CITY ENGINEER AS NEEDED.
- 4. BACKFILL MECHANICALLY COMPACTED TO 95% MAX. DENSITY IN 6" LIFTS OR CONTROLED DENSITY BACKFILL.
- 5. 4' MIN. COVER ON ALL WATER AND SEWER MAINS.
- 6. TRENCH EXCAVATION SAFTY SYSTEM PER WASHINGTON INDUSTRIAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT.
  - CDF SHALL CONSIST OF:
    - 1.5 SACK CEMENT
    - 1750 LBS. PEAGRAVEL
    - 1750 LBS. SAND
    - 6 OZ./100 WEIGHT WATER REDUCING AGENT
    - 4" TO 5" SLUMP

CDF SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE CITY ENGINEER FOR SPECIFICATIONS AND USE.

ID-113

**CITY STANDARDS** 

Adopted July, 1998

(Revised 01/07)

### CATCH BASIN FRAME AND GRATE



TYPE "A" FRAME

23" -

5/8"--

17'



**CITY OF CHELAN** 







2-1/4"

ID-114

**CITY STANDARDS** 

Adopted July, 1998

(Revised 01/07)

10-13

**CITY OF CHELAN** 

# CATCH BASIN DETAIL



**CITY STANDARDS** 

## **SECTION TEN - UTILITY DESIGNS**

## TRACER WIRE INSTALLATION



**CITY STANDARDS** 

(Revised 01/07)

10-15

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

### **PIPE SUPPORTS**



**CITY STANDARDS** 

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

## **TYPICAL MONUMENT CASE (NEW)**



ID-044

**CITY STANDARDS** 

(Revised 01/07)

### SIGHT OBSTRUCTION

It is unlawful to construct, plant, or place and maintain any trees, shrubs, structure, objects, walls, or fences of more than three feet in height from the ground for a distance of 25' from any street corner property line in order to permit good visibility at said street corners and intersections.



## SECTION ELEVEN TABLE OF CONTENTS

Description	<b>Page</b>
STREET ILLUMINATION	2
General Notes (Street Light Construction)	2
Staking	4
Testing	4
CONDUIT TRENCHING	5
STREET LIGHT CONDUIT LOCATION	6
TYPICAL LIGHTING CONTROL PANEL	7
TYPICAL LIGHT CIRCUIT	8
HIGH PRESSURE SODIUM LUMINAIRE	9
STREET LIGHT STANDARD	10
HIGH PRESSURE SODIUM VAPOR LAMP	11
PEDESTRIAN LIGHTING	12
JUNCTION BOX DETAILS	13
JUNCTION BOX DETAILS, Cont.	14
JUNCTION BOX DETAILS, Cont.	15
TYPICAL SERVICE LIGHTING DETAILS	16

#### STREET ILLUMINATION

All new commercial or residential subdivisions, short plats, building site plans shall provide street lights in accordance with the standards for such improvements of the City and they shall be owned and operated by the City.

A street lighting plan submitted by the applicant and approved by the Public Works Director shall be required for all street light installations. Type of installation shall be as set forth in the current edition of the WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications and as directed by the City except where noted herein.

All public street light designs shall be prepared by an engineering firm capable of performing such work. The engineer shall be licensed by the State of Washington. All developments shall submit the lighting plan on a separate sheet. After the system is completed and approved, a set of "as built" mylars shall be submitted to the City as a permanent record.

All street intersections shall have provisions for lighting, so as to provide minimum illumination as set forth in WSDOT Publication M51-02 (Traffic Manual).

All developments shall include conduit installed so as to provide adequate capacity for future installation of complete street lighting as set forth in these standards and in WSDOT Publication M51-02. Positioning of conduit shall be determined by the City engineer. All conduit installed solely to comply with future street lighting upgrade requirements shall have at least a single ground conductor (minimum #10AWG copper stranded type) installed.

All street light electrical installations including wiring conduit and power connections shall be located underground.

The General Notes below need to be included on any plans dealing with street design.

### General Notes (Street Light Construction)

- 1. All workmanship, materials and testing shall be in accordance with the current edition of the WSDOT/APWA, MUTCD, National Electrical Code (NEC) or City of Chelan Development Guidelines unless otherwise specified below. In cases of conflict, the most stringent guideline shall apply.
- 2. Electrical permits and inspections are required for all street lighting installations within the City of Chelan. The contractor is responsible for obtaining said permits prior to any type of actual construction. These permits are available from the State Department of Electrical Inspections (L & I), Chelan County PUD, and the Department of Planning and Community Development at City Hall.

- 3. A clearly marked service disconnect shall be provided for every lighting circuit. The location and installation of the disconnect shall conform to NEC and City of Chelan standards, whichever is more stringent. The photo cell window shall face north unless otherwise directed by the City. The service disconnect shall not be mounted on the luminaire pole.(See drawing pg. 11-7) The service panel shall be supplied with PUD approved meter base, galvanized steel NEMA 3R enclosure. The photo electric cell shall be utility grade Intermatic series K4100 or equivalent, installed in a vandal/tamper resistant manner. Enclosure shall have provisions for locking with a City supplied padlock. Test switch shall be commercial grade 120/277 VAC rating Hubbell CS115 or equivalent. GFCI duplex recepticle shall be within main enclosure and be Hubbell 5352-IS or equivalent. Contactor shall be Square D model 8903 type L or equivalent.
- 4. All lighting wire shall be stranded copper with a minimum size of #10 AWG. All wire shall be suitable for wet locations. All wire shall be installed in schedule 40 PVC conduit with a minimum diameter of 1-1/4 inches. A bushing or bell-end shall be used at the end of a conduit that terminates at a junctions box or luminaire pole. Conductor/circuit identification shall be used throughout the system. Equipment grounding conductor shall be a minimum of #8 AWG copper. All splices or taps in pull boxes or made below finish grade shall be made by approved methods utilizing epoxy kits rated at 600 volts (3M Scotch cast 82-A series resin splicing kits or equivalent). All splices shall be made with pressure type connectors (wire nuts will not be allowed). Direct buried wire will not be allowed. All other installation shall conform to NEC, WSDOT/APWA and MUTCD standards.
- 5. Each luminaire pole shall have an in-line, water tight fuse on each conduit above ground potential located at the base of the pole. Access to these fuses shall be through the hand-hole on the pole. The hand-hole shall be facing away from on-coming traffic. Additional conductor length shall be left inside the pole and pull or junction box equal to a loop having a diameter of one foot. Load side of in-line fuse to luminaire head shall be a minimum of #10 copper, and shall be supported at the end of the luminaire arm by an approved means. Fuse size and grounding in pole shall conform to NEC standards. All junction boxes shall meet or exceed WSDOT and NEC standards. (See drawings pg. 11-14 & 11-15)
- 6. Approved pull boxes or junction boxes shall be installed when conduit runs are more than 200 feet. In addition, a pull box or junction box shall be located within 10 feet of each luminaire pole and at every road crossing. The luminaire base, where adequate space is available and accessible, may be considered adequate as a pull or junction box. Boxes shall be clearly and permanently marked as lighting boxes by the legend "L.T." or "LIGHTING". See WSDOT standard plan J-11a.

- 7. All lighting poles shall have tapered round shafts with a linear taper of between 0.125 and 0.14 inches per foot. All poles shall be Hapco 50700-005 or 50700-006 for single arm and Hapco 50701-010 for twin arm or approved equal. In existing developed areas, the City may approve/require use of other poles to establish consistency within the developed area.
- 8. Mounting heights, arm length, power source, luminaire, and bolt patterns shall be as indicated on drawings pages 11-9, 11-10, 11-11.
- 9. Any modification to approved plans shall be reviewed and approved by the City engineer prior to installation.

### Staking

All surveying and staking shall be performed by an engineering or surveying firm capable of performing such work. The engineer or surveyor directing such work shall be licensed by the State of Washington.

A preconstruction meeting shall be held with the City prior to commencing staking. All construction staking shall be inspected by the City prior to construction.

The minimum staking of luminaires shall be as follows:

- A. Location and elevation to the center of every pole base;
- B. Location and elevation of each service disconnect.

### Testing

All luminaires shall be subject to an electrical inspection. Lamp, photocell and fixture shall be warranted for a period of two years.

### **CONDUIT TRENCHING**



ID-099

### STREET LIGHT CONDUIT LOCATION



# NOTE:

A TOTAL OF FOUR 90° BENDS, OR AN EQUIVALENT OF 360° MAXIMUM IS PERMITTED IN A CONDUIT RUN PER NEC SECTION 347-14. SINCE EACH "J" BOX REQUIRES ONE 90° BEND TO ENTER THE BOTTON OF THE BOX, A MAXIMUM OF TWO ADDITIONAL 90° BENDS CAN BE INSTALLED BETWEEN BOXES OR NO MORE THAN 180°



.

### **TYPICAL LIGHTING CONTROL PANEL**



### **TYPICAL LIGHT CIRCUIT**



ID-096

### HIGH PRESSURE SODIUM LUMINAIRE



NOTES:

 LUMINAIRE SHALL BE COBRA-HEAD CONFIGURATION WITH BALLAST IN HEAD MEETING I.E.S., TYPE III, LIGHT DISTRIBUTION PATTERN WITH CUT OFF OPTICS AND POWER DOOR.

2) LUMINAIRE BALLAST SHALL BE MAGNETIC REGULATOR TYPE AND PROVIDE FOR A  $\pm$  10% INPUT VOLTAGE. PLUG-IN LEADS, PLUG-IN STARTER BOARD.

3) POWER VOLTAGE TO LUMINAIRE SHALL BE VERIFIED WITH CHELAN COUNTY P.U.D. PRIOR TO ORDERING LUMINAIRE. ALL LUMINAIRES SHALL BE 240V IF AVAILABLE.

- 4) SEE CITY OF CHELAN STANDARD DWG. PAGE 11-10 FOR POLE AND MAST ARM REQUIREMENTS.
- 5) LUMINAIRE SHALL BE G.E. OR CROUS HEINZ.
- 6) LUMINAIRE REQUIREMENTS :

STREET WIDTH *	LUMINAIRE MOUNTING HEIGHT	GENERAL STREET CLASSIFICATION	NOTE3 LAMP WATTAGE	AVERAGE INITIAL LUMENS	MAXIMUM POLE SPACING **
40' MIN.	35.0'	COMMERCIAL	400	50,000	125'
32'	30.0'	MAJOR,MINOR COLLECTORS LOCAL, PRIVATE, RESIDENTAL	LLECTORS RESIDENTAL 250**** 9,500 16,000**** 300'		

 MEASURED FROM FACE OF CURB TO FACE OF CURB.
\*\* SPACING TO BE STAGGERED OPPOSITE SIDE OF STREET INTERVALS, EXCEPT ON CURVES WHERE SPACING SHALL BE DETERMINED USING GUIDELINES SET FORTH IN WSDOT PUB. M51-02
\*\*\* SEE CITY OF CHELAN STANDARD DRAWING 11-11 FOR LAMP REQUIREMENTS.
\*\*\*\* USE TO BE DETERMINED BY CITY ENGINEER.

ID-094



### STREET LIGHT STANDARD

1

#### HIGH PRESSURE SODIUM VAPOR LAMP

See City of Chelan Standard drawing page 11-9 for luminaire housing requirements.

#### General

These lamps shall be used in the luminaires specified on City of Chelan Standards drawing page 11-9.

#### Marking

Manufacturer's name or symbol, catalog number, and wattage rating shall be printed on each lamp.

#### Packaging

Lamps shall be packaged in containers which will prevent shipping and handling breakage.

Each container shall be marked with the manufacturer's name, name of item , wattage, and catalog number.

#### Failed Lamps

Lamps in service for less than one year are under warranty and shall be returned for replacement.

#### Manufacturer and Catalog Numbers

- 100 Watt OSRAM Sylvania #LU100 S54\*
- 200 Watt OSRAM Sylvania #LU200 S66\* Philips #C200 S66
- 400 Watt OSRAM Sylvania #LU400 S51\* Philips #C400 S51

\* ANSI Ballast Reference

#### PEDESTRIAN LIGHTING

Pedestrian light luminaires shall be 18" round globe, 100 watt high pressure sodium vapor with constant wattage ballast, rated 240v when available.. The luminaires shall be as manufactured by Welsback Lighting, Inc., Deville Model T7WH7700 with cast aluminum ballast housing and cast aluminum post fitter, or approved equal. Ballast housing and post fitter to be painted with Benjamin Moore Color PV-61 Blue or approved equal via EP-S system.



# SECTION ELEVEN - STREET ILLUMINATION

## JUNCTION BOX DETAILS

M	ITEM	BOX TYPE			r
R		TYPE 1		TYPE 2	TYPE 3
ĸ		ALTERNATIVE 1	ALTERNATIVE 2		
Α	Box outsitde length	22"	22"	33"	42"
в	Box outside width	17"	17"	22-1/2"	30"
с	Box inside length	18"	18"	28"	36"
D	Box inside width	13"	14"	17"	24"
Е	Lid length	18"	18"	26-1/2"	38"
F	Lid width	13"	13"	17"	26"
G	Box depth	12"	12"	12"	12"
н	Lid and frame depth	5/16"	5/16"	5/16"	1/2"
J	Wall thickness (Minimum)	1-1/2"	1-1/2"	1-1/2"	3"
к	Wire reinforcement	W-3	W-2.5	W-2.5	W-5
L	Legend	See Detail	See Detail	See Detail	See Detail
м	Handle	N/A	N/A	N/A	See Detail
Ν	Frame slot mark	N/A	N/A	N/A	See Detail
Р	Lid hook mark	N/A	N/A	N/A	See Detail
Q	Foundation outside length	N/A	N/A	N/A	48"
R	Foundation outside width	N/A	N/A	N/A	36"
s	Foundation inside length	N/A	N/A	N/A	36"
т	Foundation inside width	N/A	N/A	N/A	20"
U	Foundation depth (Minimum)	N/A	N/A	N/A	3"
v	Fountain reinforcement	N/A	N/A	N/A	2-W-5
Cpacity - Conduit Diameter 6" 6" 12" 24"				24"	
Note: a 1% tolerance is allowed.					

## Junction Box Dimension Table

Notes:

All box dimensions are minimum. Exact configurations vary among different manufacturers. 1.

- The noted lid thicknesses are overall minimums. The diamond pattern for Type 1 or Type 2 boxes shall be 28% 2. minimum of overall thickness. The diamond pattern for Type 3 boxes shall be 3/32" minimum thick.
- 3. Lid support members shall be welded to the frame.
- 4.
- When noted in the contract, Type 2 and Type 3 boxes shall be provided with 12" deep extension boxes. When noted in the contract, Type 2 boxes shall be provided with a 10" x 27-1/2", 10 gage divider plate complete 5. with fasteners.

6. Non-concrete boxes may be submitted for approval. Evaluation will include an H-20 load test.

CITY S	TANDA	RDS

.

## SECTION ELEVEN - STREET ILLUMINATION

#### JUNCTION BOX DETAILS, Cont.

ĺ

ĺ





# SECTION ELEVEN - STREET ILLUMINATION

## CITY OF CHELAN

#### JUNCTION BOX DETAILS, Cont.





HOOK DETAIL (TWO HOOKS PER LID)





LID HOOD MARK DETAIL (MARK P)



LEGEND DETAIL FORM LETTERS WITH 1/8" WELD BEAD GRIND OFF DIAMOND PATTERN BEFORE FORMING LETTERS

ID-104

**CITY STANDARDS** 

Adopted July, 1998

(Revised 02/03)

11-15

### **TYPICAL SERVICE LIGHTING DETAILS**



Notes:

- 1. The contractor shall verify the requirements of the utility prior to installing the service equipment.
- 2. All service pole conduit shall be secured to the pole with conduit strap at minimum 5' centers.
- 3. All risers and service equipment shall be installed on side of pole that is away from traffic.
- 4. Where required by the serving utility, service breakers shall be installed above the meter socket in a separate rain tight enclosure.
- 5. Attach all conduit to pole within 1' of enclosure. See drawing page 11-7
- 6. For service wiring diagram, use Standard Plan, page 11-7.
- 7. Submit breaker schedule in contract for breaker and contactor sizes.
- 8. All exposed conduit to be rigid galvanized steel to 18" below grade.

Reserved for future augmentation

# **SECTION THIRTEEN - BONDING**

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

### SECTION THIRTEEN TABLE OF CONTENTS

Description	Page
BONDING AND LIABILITY INSURANCE	
## **SECTION THIRTEEN - BONDING**

#### CITY OF CHELAN

#### BONDING AND LIABILITY INSURANCE

Developers constructing infrastructure facilities shall provide performance and payment bonds and maintenance bonds, subject to the requirements specified herein, in the form of a surety bond, cash bond, or certified check deposited with the City in a sufficient amount as verified by the City Engineer, to assure construction of required improvements, correction of project deficiencies and/or elimination of hazards relating to the project, payment of subcontractors and material men, maintenance of such improvements and protection of public property. Subject to the bond amount requirements set forth herein, contracts for public improvements or work entered into by the City shall comply with RCW 39.08, as now exists or as may be hereafter amended.

#### Performance and Payment bond:

A performance and payment bond shall be provided to the City in the amount of 150% of the estimated completion cost of the improvement. (See Appendix B, Exhibit 2 for calculation of completion costs.) Prior to commencing construction, the developer constructing the facility shall post a performance and payment bond executed by a security company authorized to transact business in the state in a substantially similar form as that set forth in Appendix B, Exhibit 6, or in a form approved by the City Engineer; or, in lieu of a surety bond, the applicant may establish other legal performance assurance in the form of a cash account with the City Finance Director in the amount specified above. The instructions to the City shall provide that after ten days prior written notice to the developer and the developer's failure to correct project deficiencies and/or eliminate existing or potential hazardous conditions in a timely manner, the City shall be authorized without any further notice to the developer and without any further consent of the developer to disburse the necessary funds to the City for the purpose of completing, correcting and/or eliminating such conditions as specified in the City notice.

After determination by the City Engineer that all infrastructure facilities are constructed in compliance with the approved plans, and all suppliers, laborers and subcontractors have been paid, and that the maintenance bond provided for herein has been posted, the performance and payment bond shall be released.

In the event the developer fails to complete all improvements in accordance with the Chelan Municipal Code and the City completes the same, the City shall call upon the performance and payment bond as required herein, for reimbursement or shall appropriate from any cash deposit, funds for reimbursement. In the event the amount of security bond or cash deposit shall exceed all costs and expenses incurred by the City, it shall release the remainder of such bond or deposit, and if the amount of the security bond or deposit is less than the cost of expense incurred by the City, the developer shall be liable to the City and shall immediately pay for such difference upon notice from the City.

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

Maintenance Bond:

Prior to release of the performance and payment bond required herein, developers and contractors for public works projects shall provide a maintenance bond for a guarantee of all materials, construction and workmanship in an amount equal to 20% of the estimated cost of the improvements (see Appendix B, Exhibit 2) as verified by the City Engineer, for a period of two years after the date of acceptance of all infrastructure facilities by the City. Such maintenance bond shall be in the form substantially similar to Appendix B, Exhibit 7 or in a form approved by the City Engineer and shall be executed by a security company authorized to transact business in the state of Washington. Release of the maintenance bond will occur two years from the date of City acceptance if all maintenance has been accepted by the City.

In lieu of a maintenance bond, the developer or contractor on a public works project may deposit with the City Finance Director in the form of a cash deposit the amount set forth herein.

In the event the Developer and/or contractor fails to maintain the improvement in accordance with the provisions of this section and the terms of the maintenance bond, the City shall have the right to maintain the same, and shall call upon the security for reimbursement or shall appropriate, from any cash deposit, funds for reimbursement. In the event the security bond or cash deposit shall exceed all costs and expenses incurred by the City, it shall release the remainder of such maintenance bond or cash deposit, and if the amount of the security bond or cash deposit is less than the cost of expense incurred by the City, the applicant shall be liable to the City and shall immediately pay for such difference upon notice from the City.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless:

The Developer shall execute an agreement providing the Developer shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including, without limitation, attorney fees, costs, and expenses arising out of or in connection with the construction of the facility, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City, or arising out of Developer's non-observance or non-performance of any law, ordinance, or regulation applicable to the property.

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Developer and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Developer's liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Developer's negligence.

It is further specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided

## **SECTION THIRTEEN - BONDING**

## CITY OF CHELAN

herein constitutes the Developer's waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification. THIS WAIVER HAS BEEN MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED BY THE PARTIES. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION SHALL SURVIVE THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT.

## **CITY OF CHELAN**

# APPENDIX A

# DEFINITIONS

**CITY STANDARDS** 

Adopted July, 1998

(Revised 01/07) A-1

APWA - American Public Works Association

AWWA - American Water Works Association

As-Built Drawing - A neat and legibly marked set of full size construction drawings accurately showing the final location along with changes made during construction and the final location of buried or concealed items. Said drawings shall be to scale.

Alley - A public thoroughfare having a width of not less than sixteen feet nor more than twenty feet; for the use of vehicles and/or pedestrians which affords only a secondary means of access to abutting property and utility purposes.

Bedding Materials - Sand applied as per standard trench detail and good construction practice providing support and strength to pipe lines laid.

Best Management Practices - The most effective method, technique or product available which is generally accepted in the field, and which is demonstrated to be reliable and effective.

City - City of Chelan

Court - A short street, usually no through traffic.

Cul-de-sac - A short dead-end street or court not exceeding 2000 feet and having one end open to traffic and the other temporarily or permanently terminated by a vehicle turnaround.

Developer(s) - Any person or other entity who undertakes any activity regulated by these standards.

Development - The formation of a lot, subdivision, plat or short plat with potential for construction; and/or construction that requires infrastructure improvements or a building permit. (Building permits for "development" shall exclude remodels other than reconstruction that directly affects specific elements of these standards, which element will be considered development only as it applies to the specific category.) Remodels exceeding 50% of the assessed evaluation shall require that development standards apply.

Development Permit - A permit issued by the city to perform any work regulated by these standards.

Development Standards - Design, construction methods, and materials adopted by ordinance as required for infrastructure installation.

Driveway - A private access to one, two, or three single-family residences.

Half-width street - A street constructed along the edge of a development, using a portion of the regular width of right-of-way and permitted as an interim facility pending construction

of the remainder of the street improvement by the adjacent owner(s).

Impervious Surfaces - Hard surfaces made of portland concrete or asphaltic concrete as per City standards.

Improved Street - Street section constructed to City standards including sidewalks, curb, gutter and storm drainage.

Infrastructure Facilities and Improvements - Any improvement required by a development permit except for improvements estimated to cost less than \$5,000 in the reasonable estimation of the City engineer.

Lane - A short street, or a street with branching places or lanes. A lane is a minor residential street, and usually there is no through traffic between two streets of a higher classification.

Maintenance Bond - A bond posted with the City for the guarantee of the public works improvements in a specified amount of the estimated cost of the improvements for a period of two years after the completed job is accepted by the City.

Path - a surfaced facility designed for pedestrians. Paths shall be a minimum of five feet in width with at least one and one-half feet of clearance to obstructions on both sides and a 10 feet vertical clearance. Paths shall be designed and located to avoid drainage and erosion problems.

Performance Bond - A bond posted with the City assuring construction in a specified amount.

Place - A short street, cul-de-sac, or court. A place has a very limited destination and deadends with no apparent future need for extension. A place cannot exceed three hundred fifty feet in length.

Private Road - A privately owned and maintained access provided for by a tract, easement or other legal means.

Public Street - A publically-owned facility providing access, including the roadway and all other improvements inside the right-of-way.

Public Works - means the Public Works Director or his/her designee.

Right-of-Way - land dedicated to the City for purposes of public circulation and/or utilities.

Sewerage Collection System - The collection of sewer mains and sewer service lines required to provide sewer service to each customer in a development.

Sewer Main - An 8" or larger pipe designed to collect sewerage from more than two users to properties over 150 feet from an existing sewer main.

## CITY OF CHELAN

Sewer Service Line - 4" to 6" pipe, valves, and necessary accessories designed to convey sewerage from each lot to the sewer main, unless said lot is over 150 feet from the sewer main.

Sewer System User - Any persons, firm, or corporation having a right to sewer service within the City. This also includes the holders of title or evidence of title to land to which sewer service is furnished.

Street - A public thoroughfare which provides the principal means of access to abutting properties, but not including an alley.

Unimproved Street - A street not built to complete City standards, i.e. no curb, gutter, sidewalk, or storm drainage.

Water Distribution System - The collection of water mains and water service lines required to provide water service to each customer in a development.

Water Main - A pipe designed to convey water to two or more users or to two or more properties over 150 feet from an existing water main.

Water Service Line - The pipe, valves, and necessary accessories designed to convey water from the water main to each lot.

Water User - Any person, firm or corporation having a right to water service within the water service area; this also includes the holders of title or evidence of title to land to which water service is furnished.

WSDOT - Washington State Department of Transportation.

## APPENDIX B - FORMS

# CITY OF CHELAN

## APPENDIX B TABLE OF CONTENTS

# **Description**

ĺ

ĺ

(

## <u>Page</u>

AGREEMENT FOR EXTENSION OF CHELAN INFRASTRUCTURE	B-2
IMPROVEMENT EVALUATION PACKET	B-6
PUBLIC WORKS EXCAVATION PERMIT (CMC 12.20)	B-14
UTILITY EASEMENT	B-15
SEWER CONNECTION INSPECTION REPORT	B-16
PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND	B-17
MAINTENANCE BOND	B-20

B-1

CITY OF CHELAN

## EXHIBIT 1

## AGREEMENT FOR EXTENSION OF CHELAN INFRASTRUCTURE

This AGREEMENT is executed \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_ by the City of Chelan (herein "City") and \_\_\_\_\_ (herein "Developer").

WHEREAS, the Developer desires to develop certain real property situated in the County of Chelan, State of Washington, particularly described as:

and to install a system of streets, pipes and appurtenances for the above described property to enable the delivery of domestic water, wastewater, or transportation from the City's existing service;

WHEREAS, the City will approve the proposed facilities and furnish said connections upon the Developer's facilities upon the Developers full compliance with the terms, conditions and covenants of this agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed as follows:

1. <u>DEVELOPER TO FURNISH DESCRIPTION</u>: Developer shall furnish to the City a legal description of the real property which he plans to develop. A copy of the legal description is attached to this Agreement as "Exhibit A".

2. <u>DEVELOPER TO FURNISH DEVELOPMENT PLAN</u>: Developer shall also furnish to the City a copy of his plan to develop or subdivide the "Exhibit A" real property.

3. <u>PREPARATION OF INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN</u>: Upon receipt of the Developer's plans, the City shall provide basic information as needed by the Developer to prepare an infrastructure plan. Developer will be responsible for the cost of preparation of the plan. The plan shall be prepared by a professional engineer licensed in the State of Washington. The plan shall include the following:

- a. The location of connection to the City's existing systems for the purpose of supplying service to the proposed development.
- b. A plan/profile of all transportation and pipe system facilities to be installed to serve the development and its components.

- c. The pipe sizes and specifications of all mains and laterals.
- d. All fittings, equipment and material to be installed in connection with the mains and laterals in order to transport water from the City's system to the point of utilization.
- e. Standards and methods of construction as adopted herein shall be in full force for this agreement.
- f. Any other information which the City determines is required by the particular circumstances involved.

4. <u>DEVELOPER TO PROVIDE PROOF OF INSURANCE</u>: Developer shall have system installed by a licensed and bonded contractor. The contractor shall furnish proof of license, bond and insurance. The Developer may elect to install the infrastructure system with his own forces. The City will require that the Developer have public liability and property damage insurance coverage as outlined in Section 13 "Bonding" of Chelan City Standards.

5. <u>CONSTRUCTION OF SYSTEM</u>: Developer will construct or cause to be constructed a completed system, in full conformity with the infrastructure plan, as prepared by the Developer's Engineer. The City's standards, conditions and specifications shall be followed in the construction of the Water Plan.

6. <u>AS-BUILT PLAN</u>: Developer will provide a certified mylar copy of the as-built plan showing final relations to the property lines and other physical features. Electronic file is required. Bond will not be released until asbuilts are completed and approved.

7. <u>EASEMENT DESCRIPTIONS</u>: Easements for all the infrastructure shall be a minimum of 20 feet wide. Easement legal descriptions shall be prepared by a surveyor or engineer licensed to practice in the State of Washington. Easement legal descriptions shall be reviewed and approved by the City engineer prior to acceptance and recording.

8. <u>CITY'S INSPECTION AND DIRECTION</u>: The City, by its agents, servants and employees, shall have the right to enter upon the Developer's property, at any time prior to the completion of the construction, installation, inspection and testing of the system to inspect the construction of the water system and/or to direct the Developer, his contractor, agents, or employees, to take any action necessary to fully comply with the infrastructure plan. Developer shall take, or cause to be taken, any action directed by the City and shall cause such system to be constructed in all respects in full conformity with the plan. The Developer shall reimburse the City for the inspection services at the current inspection rate as calculated in these standards, Appendix B-2.

If the scope of the project requires such, the City will require the design-engineering firm to provide inspection of the construction work. The Developer shall be responsible for the charges from the engineering firm. The City and the engineering firm shall coordinate

## APPENDIX B - FORMS

the inspections and resolve any disputes regarding plan or specification interpretation.

9. <u>INSTALLATION OF STREETS, MAIN TAPS AND VALVES</u>: All connections to existing City facilities, necessary to serve such water and wastewater systems, shall be installed by the Developer, at the expense of the Developer. All costs shall be paid in full prior to acceptance of the system by the City.

10. <u>INSPECTION AND TESTING OF COMPLETED SYSTEM</u>: When the Developer believes that the system has been completed in full conformity with the Infrastructure Plan, he shall notify the City. The City shall inspect the system and be present during tests to the system as the City shall specify. Such testing shall be at the expense of the developer. Following such testing, the City shall notify the Developer in writing of its approval of the system, or of any additions, changes or modifications required prior to such approval.

11. <u>ACCEPTANCE OF SYSTEM</u>: Upon approval of the construction and conveyance of the water system by the City, and the deposit of cash or a bond by the Developer as hereinafter provided, the City shall notify the Developer of its acceptance of the system. The system shall then become a part of the City's system. Thereafter, the Developer and his assigns shall be entitled to receive services from the City in the same manner, and upon the same terms as other users within the City.

12. <u>REPAIRS TO AND REPLACEMENT OF SYSTEM</u>: Following the acceptance of the said system by the City, the responsibility for repairs and replacements thereto shall be as follows:

a. For the first twenty-four months following such acceptance, the obligation and expense of any repairs or replacements to the system which are required by the City shall be that of the Developer. Any such repairs or replacement shall be done by the City. The cost shall be paid by the Developer, as computed by the City. The Developer shall deposit with the City either cash or a performance bond with a surety acceptable to the City in the sum of 20 percent of construction costs. In the event the Developer fails or neglects to pay the costs of any such repairs or replacements during the twenty-four month period, the costs may be assessed against the surety bond. After the Developer's responsibility for repair or replacement has terminated, any balance of the cash deposit will be refunded to the Developer.

b. Twenty-four months after the acceptance of the water system, the responsibility for the repair and replacement of that portion of the system conveyed by the Developer to the City shall become the responsibility of the City.

13. <u>CITY RULES AND REGULATIONS</u>: The Developer, his successors and assigns shall be subject to existing or as amended ordinances, rules and regulations of the City at the time of development.

14. <u>BINDING AGREEMENT</u>: The terms, conditions and covenant hereof shall

# CITY OF CHELAN

extend to and be binding upon the heirs, successors, and assigns of the parties to this agreement.

15. INDEMNIFICATION The permittee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees, from and against any and all claims, losses or liability, including attorneys fees, arising from injury or death to persons or damage to property occasioned by the construction, installation, operation, location, maintenance, or any other cause related to the improvement for which this agreement is granted. With respect to this agreement and to claims against the City, its officers, agents and employees, the permittee expressly waives its immunity under Tittle 51 of the Revised Code of Washington, the Industrial Insurance Act, for injuries to any employee the permittee may have, and agrees that the obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless provided for in this paragraph extends to any claim brought by or on behalf of any employee of the developer. This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties as part of the agreement process and is given, as is the indemnification agreement contained within this paragraph, as consideration for the City allowing development. This paragraph shall not apply to any damage or injury resulting from the sole negligence of the City, its agents or employees. The extent any of the damages or injuries referenced by this paragraph were caused by or resulted from the concurrent negligence of the City, its agents or employees, this obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless is valid and enforceable only to the extent of the negligence of the developer, its officers, agents or employees, if any.

## 16. <u>ADDITIONAL COVENANTS AND TERMS</u>: (If any)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have caused this instrument to be executed the day and year first written.

Developer

CITY OF CHELAN

Developer

Mayor

**City Administrator** 

#### CITY OF CHELAN

#### EXHIBIT 2

#### IMPROVEMENT EVALUATION PACKET

The Improvement Evaluation Packet is used by the City of Chelan Public Works Department to evaluate the dollar inspection and bond value of the improvements being installed on development construction projects. The applicant filling out the packet is asked to provide the material quantities and to compute the value of the improvements using the dollar amounts as verified by the Public Works Department. The following are answers to commonly asked questions about the packet:

- 1. All development projects must complete the packet.
- 2. The amounts generated are used to establish bond amounts and review and inspection fees for Public Works.
- 3. Public work is considered to be any improvement installed in the right-of-way. The break occurs at the property line for all developments. However, maintenance for sewer laterals remains the responsibility of the property owner to the sewer main.
- 4. Private work is considered to be any of the listed improvements occurring on private property. Private work will be covered within the authority of the building permit.
- 5. After completion of the packet, the Public Works Department will check the quantities, establish the bond and fee amounts and sign off.
- 6. The Public Works Department will not issue permits for the project until the packet is completed.

If you have any further questions about the packet, please call the Public Works Department at (509) 682-8030.

#### APPENDIX B - FORMS

#### IMPROVEMENT EVALUATION

This form must be completed by the developer (or representative), and include all work Required by the project. Quantity take-offs shall be from documents approved by the City of Chelan.

PUBLIC WORK, except for sewer laterals, will be owned and maintained by the City after the appropriate maintenance period and will be subject to review bond and inspection fees.

PRIVATE WORK will be owned and maintained by the property owner(s), and is not subject to the above fees. All private work shall conform to the respective building permit. Planned Unit Development's (PUD) infrastructure within designated right-of-way shall fall under the definition of Public Work as it applies to meeting the required City standard specification.

## **CONSTRUCTION STORM DRAINAGE - PUBLIC WORK**

ltem	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
Silt fence, Installed	LF			
Grading for drainage swales	LF			
Sod for drainage swales	SY			
Hydroseeding	SF			
Construction entrance	EA			
OTHER				
OTHER				

# **Construction Storm Drainage Total**

## **EXCAVATION IN RIGHT-OF-WAY AND CUT & FILL - PUBLIC WORK**

Item	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
Paved wide area	LF			
Right-of-way - Unpaved	LF			
Total yardage				
Bond requirement				
	_			

# Excavation in Right-of-way and Cut & Fill Total

# SANITARY SEWER - PUBLIC WORK

	ltem	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
6" PVC pipe	9	LF			
8" PVC pipe	9	LF			
Unsuitable	Ex. (2' over & ballast)	CY			
Extra Depth	n Ex. (over 12' deep)	FT/LF			
Manhole, 4	8"	EA			
Extra Depth	MH, (per ft over 12")	FT			
Sewer Connection		ERU			
OTHER					
Sanitary Sewer Total					

(

# **STORM SEWER - PUBLIC WORK**

	ltem	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
8" Pipe		LF			
12" Pipe		LF			
18" Pipe		LF			
24" Pipe		LF			
30" Pipe		LF			
36" Pipe		LF			
48" Pipe		LF			
Detention P	ipe	LF			
Unsuitable I	Ex. (2' over & ballast)	CY			
Extra Depth	Ex. (over 12' deep)	FT/LF		: 	
Curb Inlet		EA			
Type I Catc	h Basin	EA			
Type II Cate	ch Basin - 48"	EA			
Type II Cate	ch Basin - 54"	EA			
Connection	to existing Catch Basin	EA			
Extra Depth	MH, (per ft over 12")	FT			
Restrictor/Pollution Control - 8"		EA			
Restrictor/P	ollution Control - 12"	EA			
OTHER					
OTHER					
	Storm Sewer Total				

ĺ

# **PAVING - PUBLIC WORK**

	ltem	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
AC paveme	ent patching	SY			
Crushed roo	ck; 1¼" minus	CY			
Crushed roo	ck; 5/8" minus	CY			
Asphalt pav	vement	CY			
Saw cut AC	; pavement	LF			
Cold Planin	g (Grinding)	SY			
OTHER					
OTHER					
	Paving Total				

# **CURB AND GUTTER - PUBLIC WORK**

	ltem	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
Concrete e	xtruded curb	LF			
Asphalt ext	ruded curb	LF			
Conc. curb	& gutter, Type A	LF			
OTHER	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••				
OTHER					
	Curb and Gutter	Гotal			

# SIDEWALKS - PUBLIC WORK

	ltem	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
5' Concrete	sidewalk	LF			
6' Concrete	sidewalk	LF			
5' Concrete	driveway	LF			
Asphalt wa	kways, Class B	SY			
Wheel chai	r ramps	EA			
OTHER					
<b>.</b>	Sidewalks Total				

# LANDSCAPING - PUBLIC WORK

	ltem	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
Street trees	;	EA			
Sod		SY			
Rockery wa		SY			
OTHER					
	Landscaping Total				

## WATER - PUBLIC WORKS

ltem	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
Pipe				
Valves				
Other				
Other				
Other				
Water Total				

# **MISCELLANEOUS - PUBLIC WORKS**

Item	Unit	Quantity	Unit Price	Amount
Monuments	EA			
Street signs	EA			
Pavement marking	LF			
Adjust existing utilities	EA		<u> </u>	
OTHER			······	
OTHER				

# **Miscellaneous Total**

	Items Required	Value of Public Infrastructure
1.	Construction Drainage	
2.	ROW Excavation/C&F	
3.	Sanitary Sewer	
4.	Storm Sewer	
5.	Paving	
6.	Curb & Gutter	
7.	Sidewalks	
8.	Landscaping	
9.	Water	
10.	Miscellaneous	
11.	Other	
тот	AL	

ĺ

(

	PUBLIC WO	RKS DEPARTME	NT MMARY	
TYPE	OF PROJECT: () Subdivision () Access Permit	() Utility	Excavation Pe	rmit
PROJ	ECT NAME:			
PROJ	ECT LOCATION		-	
DEVE	LOPER:			
CONT	ACT PERSON:	TEI	EPHONE:	
I here constr Ager All pro in valu	eby certify the above to be a tru ruction for the above mentioned pr nt/Owner: ojects within City right-of-way requin ue may request waiver with justifica	e and accurate r roject. Da re insurance and b ation of no signific	epresentation ate: onding. Project ant effect.	of the required
1.	Total Value Public Project Infrast	ructure:		
2.	Insurance Amount (See Section	13):		
3.	Inspection Fee Deposit (1/2% of #1, \$25.00 min.): Final Fee will be actual City Cost	Amount	Date Received	Date Released
4.	Performance Bond (See Section 13) (150% of #1)	Amount	Date Received	Date Released
5.	Maintenance Bond (See Section 13) (20% of #1)	Amount	Date Received	Date Released
Depo	sit and Bonding Release Authoriza	ation: City Engin	eer	Date
This approact	application, for all improvements oved subject to completion of const Conditions and any special requirer	that are performe truction in conform ments as stated be	d on right-of-v ance with City elow:	way, are hereby Standard Plans

(

## EXHIBIT 3 PUBLIC WORKS EXCAVATION PERMIT (CMC 12.20)

PERMIT #:	DATE:	EXPIRES:	
PROJECT ADDRES	68 <u></u>	PHONE	
	Plans Attached	Improvement Evaluation	Summary Sheet Attached
CONTRACTOR		PHONE	
Address	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
State Registration #	# Expires	City Business Lic	ense
"Additional Insured"	Endorsement: Yes	No Expires	
Project Start:		Project Complete:	
RIGHT-OF-WAY PE Utility Exca Sidewalk Street/Curl	ERMIT avation b Cut, Driveway Access rol Plan Approved? Y N	REQUEST FOR INSPECTI Failure to call for in Backfilling, pouring Will result in requir Date/Time	ON hspection prior to performing g or other inspection obstructions red removal of the improvement.
SANITARY/STORM	SEWER PERMIT	REQUEST FOR IN	ISPECTION
Sanitary S	ewer Connection	Date/Time	9
Storm Sew	ver Connection	Number of Housin Commercial	g Units
Comments:		City Water P.U.D. Water Inside City Limits Outside City Limits	
	48 HOUR NOTICE REQUIRE 24 HOUR NOTICE REQUIR	TO UTILITY COUNCIL: (8) ED FOR INSPECTION: (509	00) 424-5555 ) 682-8030
The contractor agre and sidewalk, accor	ees, at his expense, to barricade, rding to the City of Chelan Stand	compact, backfill and replace rds.	street base, surfacing, and/or curb
Contractor		Date	
Applicant hereby certi permit in accordance become null and void.	fies that the information given herein with all applicable ordinances and s	true and accurate and further a tutes. Any deviation from this	grees to perform work authorized by the original application causes the permit to
Applicant	:	Date	
* PERMIT FEE	Received Check #	Cash	Receipt #
*Bond Required:(I Application Appro Inspection By * These fees are for fees.	Evaluation Summary Sheet B oved By Public Works Date/Commer or permit processing, inspectio	<sup>1</sup> 3) Date , and bonding only. They c	on Fee:

(

(

#### EXHIBIT #4 - UTILITY EASEMENT

THIS EASEMENT is granted effective the \_\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, \_\_\_\_ b e t w e e n \_\_\_\_\_\_ hereinafter called "GRANTOR," and the CITY OF CHELAN, a Municipal Corporation, hereinafter called the "GRANTEE."

#### WITNESSETH:

For valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Grantor hereby grants and conveys to the Grantee, its successors and assigns, A PERPETUAL EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR ALL UTILITY PURPOSES, over, under, upon and through a portion of that certain Real Property situated and being in the County of Chelan, State of Washington, more particularly described as follows (hereinafter called "Real Property"):

#### (INSERT LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF ENTIRE PARCEL)

The portion of the above-described Real Property where the PERPETUAL EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR ALL UTILITY PURPOSES is located is described as follows (hereinafter called "Easement Area"):

#### (INSERT LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF EASEMENT AREA)

GRANTOR further grants to GRANTEE the right to enter upon, over and along the Real Property, from time to time, to construct, install, inspect, service, repair, alter, modify, replace, remove, maintain, and update to present and future technological standards, any and all public utilities. Grantor shall not place or construct any building, fence, planter, or other structure on the Easement Area.

GRANTEE shall not be responsible for replacing or restoring any structures, fences, retaining walls, shrubbery, hedges, landscaping or any other items located now or hereafter within the Easement Area.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been executed the date and year first above written

GRANTOR

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) ) ss.

COUNTY OF CHELAN

I certify that I know or have satisfactory ev	/idence that	(is/are) the person(s) who
appeared before me, and said person(s)	acknowledged that	(he/she/they) signed this
instrument and acknowledged it to be	(his/her/their) free	and voluntary act for the uses and
purposes mentioned in the instrument.		-
GIVEN under my hand and seal this	day of	

Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, residing at \_\_\_\_\_ My commission expires: ĺ

#### **EXHIBIT #5 - SEWER CONNECTION INSPECTION REPORT**

Date:	Account No	
Name of Person Connecting:		
Address:		
Location of Tap:		
Size of Tap:	Depth:	
Service Line Size:		
Owner of Collection System:		
Remarks:		
Approved and Inspected by:		

(

#### Appendix B Exhibit 6

#### PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND

Project Name: Project Address:	
Developer/Contractor: City of Chelan File Name and Permit No.	

WHEREAS, \_\_\_\_\_\_, hereinafter referred to as "the Principal", has applied to the City of Chelan, hereinafter referred to as "the City", for \_\_\_\_\_\_ to construct the project known as

on a site located at \_\_\_\_\_, within the City of Chelan, and

WHEREAS, the City approved the requested action on \_\_\_\_\_, 200 \_\_\_\_, and

WHEREAS, the approval granted by the City and the provisions of the Chelan Municipal Code require certain improvements to be made in connection with construction of the project and the improvements are shown on the approved site plan and other required plans and further defined by the conditions identified in the City file,

NOW THEREFORE, the undersigned Principal and \_\_\_\_\_\_, a corporation authorized to transact surety business in the State of Washington, hereinafter referred to as "the Surety", agree and jointly and severally bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators and assigns, unto the City, in the sum of \_\_\_\_\_\_ (\$\_\_\_), lawful money of the United States, according to the following terms and conditions:

1) If the Principal does not complete all improvements required by the abovereferenced conditions, plans, and file by \_\_\_\_\_\_, 200\_\_\_, and/or fails to pay any laborers, mechanics and subcontractors and materialmen, taxing authorities, and all persons who supply such person or persons or subcontractors with material, equipment and supplies for such work, then the Surety shall, upon the written demand of the City, remit to the City within ten (10) days of receipt of said demand the amount of this bond or such lesser amount as may be specified in the demand.

2) In the event the Principal fails to complete all of the above referenced improvements within the time period specified by the City, its employees and agents shall have the right at their sole election to enter onto said property described above for the purpose of completing the improvements. This provision shall not be construed as creating an obligation on the part of the City or its representatives to complete such improvements.

3) In the event any lawsuit is instituted by the City, the principal or the surety to enforce the terms of this bond or to determine the rights of any party hereunder, the substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred as a result of such lawsuit.

4) This obligation shall be governed by the laws of the state of Washington and venue shall be in Chelan County, Washington.

5) This bond shall remain in full force and effect until the obligations secured hereby have been fully performed and a bond guaranteeing maintenance of all improvements for a period of 2 years from acceptance has been submitted to the City in an amount of not less than \_\_\_\_\_\_ percent (\_\_%) of the cost of the improvements and in a form suitable to the City, and until released in writing by the City at the request of the Surety or the Principal upon expiration of the period specified in paragraph 1 above.

DATED this \_\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 200 \_\_\_.

Surety

Principal

Title

Surety Address

Accepted: \_\_\_\_ City of Chelan

Attached hereto is an Authorization or a Power of Attorney to execute this Bond.

Surety

Note:

If attorney-in-fact signs for surety, a certified copy of the power of attorney must be attached.

CITY STANDARDS

#### SURETY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF WASHINGTON

County of Chelan

On this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_, 200\_\_\_, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared \_\_\_\_\_\_, to me known to be the \_\_\_\_\_\_ of \_\_\_\_\_\_, the corporation that executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act mentioned, and on oath stated that \_\_\_\_\_\_ was authorized to execute said instrument.

DATED this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 200\_\_\_

)ss.

(Printed Name) NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Washington My appointment expires

#### PRINCIPAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF WASHINGTON

County of Chelan

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that \_\_\_\_\_\_ is the person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this instrument, on oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it to be his/her free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument.

DATED this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 200\_.

)ss.

(Printed Name) NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Washington My appointment expires \_\_\_\_\_

#### Appendix B Exhibit 7

#### MAINTENANCE BOND

DATE POSTED: DATE EXPIRES:

RE:	Chelan Subdivision/Plat/Permit No.:	
	Owner/Developer/Contractor:	
	Project Address:	

#### KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

WHEREAS, the City of Chelan, Washington (hereinafter "City") has approved an application by \_\_\_\_\_\_\_(hereinafter "Developer") for the construction of an extension to the City's infrastructure to serve the \_\_\_\_\_\_(hereinafter "Development"), in accordance with the City ordinances governing street, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, and water, which are incorporated into this agreement by reference, and which require the Developer to furnish a bond for the faithful maintenance of the work, including replacement or repair, for a period of \_\_\_\_\_\_(maintenance) months from the final and written acceptance by the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, Developer and \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ (hereinafter "Surety"), are held and firmly bound to the City in the amount of \_\_\_\_\_\_ dollars (\$\_\_\_\_\_\_) for the payment of which Developer and Surety do jointly and severally bind themselves, their heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns.

1. The work shall remain free of defects in material, workmanship and installation for a period of \_\_ month(s) from the final and written acceptance by the City; and in the case of landscaping, shall survive for a period of \_\_\_\_\_ month(s) from the date of final and written acceptance by the City. Maintenance is defined as acts carried out to prevent a decline, lapse or cessation of the state of project as accepted by the City during the month period following final and written acceptance, and includes but is not limited to repair or replacement of defective workmanship, materials or installations.

These improvements include, but are not limited to:

2.

The Developer and Surety agree that in the event that any of the improvements or restoration work installed or completed by the Developer or Surety pursuant to the above-referenced permit, plans, conditions and file, fail to remain free from defects in materials, workmanship or installation, for a period of \_\_\_\_\_\_(\_\_\_) month(s) from the date of acceptance of the work by the City, the Developer shall repair and/or replace the

CITY STANDARDS

(Revised 2/03)

B-20

same within ten (10) days of demand by the City, and if the Developer should fail to do so, then the Surety shall, within twenty (20) days of demand by the City, make a written commitment to the City that it will either:

A. remedy the defect(s) itself with reasonable diligence pursuant to a time schedule acceptable to the City, or

B. tender to the City within an additional ten (10) days, the amount necessary as determined by the City, for the City to remedy the defect(s), up to the total bond amount.

The Surety shall then fulfill its obligation under this bond, according to the requirement selected by the Surety under either paragraph 2.A or 2.B above.

If the Surety elects to fulfill its obligation under paragraph 2.B above, then upon completion of the remedy, the City shall notify the Surety of the actual cost of the remedy. The City shall return, without interest, any overpayment made by the Surety, and the Surety shall pay to the City any actual cost which exceeded the City's estimate, limited to the bond amount.

- 3. This bond shall remain in full force and effect until the obligations secured hereby have been fully performed and until released in writing by the City at the request of the Surety or Developer.
- 4. Any corrections required shall be commenced within seven (7) days of notification by the City and completed within thirty (30) days of the date of notification. If the work is not performed in a timely manner, the City shall have the right, without recourse to legal action, to have said work performed, at the expense of the Developer.
- 5. No change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the work to be performed by the Developer shall affect the obligation of the Developer or Surety on this bond, and the Surety waives notice of any such change, extension, alteration or addition thereunder.
- 6. It is hereby specifically agreed by and between the parties that in the event any legal action must be taken to enforce the provisions of this bond or to collect said bond, the substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to collect its costs and reasonable attorney fees as a part of the reasonable costs of securing the obligation hereunder. In the event of settlement or resolution of these issues prior to the filing of any suit, the actual costs incurred by the City, including reasonable attorney fees, shall be considered a part of the obligation hereunder secured. Said costs and reasonable legal fees shall be recoverable by the prevailing party, not only from the proceeds of this bond, but also over and above said bond as a part of any recovery in any judicial proceeding, in addition to recovery on the bond.

## APPENDIX B - FORMS

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Developer and Su	rety have caused	this bond to be signed
by their duly authorized officers or representatives this	day of	, 200

Developer	Surety
By:	By:Attorney in Fact
Title:	-
Business Name	Business Address
Business Address	City/State/Zip Code
City/State/Zip Code	Business Telephone Number
Business Telephone Number	- Accepted by the City of Chelan:
	Name/Title
	Date

Ę

{

#### SURETY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF WASHINGTON

County of Chelan

On this \_\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_, 200\_\_\_, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared \_\_\_\_\_\_, to me known to be the \_\_\_\_\_\_ of \_\_\_\_\_, the corporation that executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act mentioned, and on oath stated that \_\_\_\_\_\_ was authorized to execute said instrument.

DATED this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 200\_\_\_

) )ss.

)

(Printed Name) NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Washington My appointment expires

#### DEVELOPER ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF WASHINGTON

County of Chelan

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that \_\_\_\_\_\_ is the person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this instrument, on oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it to be his/her free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument.

DATED this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 200\_.

)ss.

(Printed Name) NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Washington My appointment expires \_\_\_\_\_